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MISSION 
STATEMENT 
EOU guides student inquiry through integrated, high-quality liberal arts and professional programs that 
lead to responsible and refective action in a diverse and interconnected world. 

As an educational, cultural and scholarly center, EOU connects the rural regions of Oregon to a wider 
world. Our beautiful setting and small size enhance the personal attention our students receive, while 
partnerships with colleges, universities, agencies and communities add to the educational possibilities of 
our region and state. 
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VALUES &VALUES & 
PRINCIPLES 

ALTRUISM 
We give selfessly to empower one another and the University 
community through inclusiveness, appreciation, and stewardship. 

CIVILITY 
We believe in the free and open exchange of ideas, embrace 
diverse backgrounds, and deliberately seek multiple perspectives. 

DISCOVERY 
We honor our heritage and invest in our future with 
innovation, vision, and creativity. 

INTEGRITY 
We uphold the foundation of professionalism, honesty, 
respect, and sincerity in all of our interactions. 

INTERDEPENDENCE 
We cultivate vibrant connections and relationships to 
enhance opportunity and success, locally and globally. 

QUALITY 
We passionately pursue intellectual engagement, academic 
rigor, and the highest standards in all endeavors. 
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LETTER FROM THE PRESIDENT 

LETTER FROM 
THE PRESIDENT 
Friends of Eastern Oregon University, 

Refecting on the past year brings to mind the well-known Robert Frost quote, 
“two roads diverged in a wood, and I—I took the one less traveled by, and that has 
made all the diference.” 

A global pandemic did not change EOU’s commitment to our purpose and 
mission. As other universities transitioned to fully remote instruction and learning 
during the 2020-21 academic year, EOU took the road less traveled and welcomed 
students to campus. We made every efort to provide for the safety and health of our 
campus community, while also providing for the educational and experiential needs of 
our students. 

Nearly two-thirds of EOU’s campus-based classes were taught fully, or with a 
portion of the class, in-person. Student-athletes were able to compete. Students 
performed in our newly upgraded Schwarz Theater. Musical performances were 
shared with the community in outdoor venues. New friendships were formed in our 
residence halls. And last June, graduates walked across the stage, with friends and 
family present, celebrating their educational accomplishments. 

Our commitment to doing everything possible to preserve a meaningful on-
campus student experience, coupled with our continued focus on increasing access 
with EOU Online, contributed to EOU being one of very few universities that did 
not see a substantial decrease in enrollment this year. Then, we strengthened our 
position as a “best value” institution by freezing undergraduate tuition for the 2021-22 
academic year. 

To end with another quote from Frost, “in three words I can sum up everything 
I’ve learned about life: it goes on.” The pandemic has challenged us all, but life goes 
on at EOU. Our future is bright and the information provided within this annual 
report illustrates the continued growth and progress being made as we serve as an 
institution of access and opportunity. 

Sincerely, 

Thomas A. Insko, ’94 | President 

2021 
ANNUAL REPORT 

005 

“From behind masks or across a video screen, we will discover 
what’s possible together. We will expand access and equity, together. 
We will rise to the heights of empathy and integrity, together. 

Mountaineers do not take the easy road. We climb, and we tumble, 
and we try again. We are Mountaineers of Eastern Oregon University, 
and we never give up.” 

— DIXIE LUND ’73, TRUSTEE, 

RETIRED EDUCATOR, AND FORMER EOU PRESIDENT 
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LETTER 
FROM THE 
BOARD CHAIR 
Dear EOU Community, 

Along with the rest of the world, Eastern Oregon University is emerging from 
the COVID-19 pandemic. Students, staf, faculty, administrators, alumni, partners and 
friends are returning to campus with renewed appreciation for one another. On behalf 
of myself and the Board, I would like to ofer our heartfelt appreciation, gratitude, and 
admiration to everyone at EOU who dedicated themselves to minimizing disruption to 
our students. 

The nimbleness of our small institution made it possible to adapt again and again 
as the landscape shifted repeatedly over the last two years. In fact, our university was 
among the frst to safely deliver in-person learning, and one of the only institutions to 
avoid employee layofs. 

The Board of Trustees is responsible for the fnancial sustainability of EOU, and I 
take that very seriously. This university gave me the tools to succeed when I attended 
EOU, and it’s now working hard to equip the next generation of leaders. 

EOU remains committed to providing quality higher education in rural Oregon. 
Our strategic plan challenges the university to live out that mission boldly. We have 
documented progress toward these outcomes throughout this report including data 
and personal stories that depict just some of the ways EOU embodies our shared 
values and principles. 

As we look toward the future, Oregon’s Rural University remains a pillar of 
altruism, civility, discovery, integrity, interdependence and quality in Eastern Oregon, 
throughout the state and beyond. 

Sincerely, 

Richard Chaves  Chair, EOU Board of Trustees | 



  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

STORIES OF 
THE ASCENT 

STRATEGIC 
PLAN FRAMEWORK 

GOAL 1 

GOAL 2 

GOAL 3 

GOAL 4 

GOAL 5 

GOAL 6 

Student Success — Graduate students with the 
competence and confdence to succeed 

Transformational Education — Enrich academic quality 
and enhance intellectual vitality 

Grow the Number of Lives Impacted — Expand student 
access, opportunity, and completion 

Thriving University Community — A great place to 
work and learn 

Relevance and Interconnection — Serve as the 
educational, economic , and cultural engine for rural 
places 

Financial Sustainability — Stewardship in fnancial 
sustainability and in growing EOU’s fnancial and 
capital resources 



010 

2021 
ANNUAL REPORTT 

STORIES OF THE ASCENT 

ACHIEVING 
LONG-TERM 
GOALS 

GOAL 1 Student Success — Graduate students with the competence and 
confdence to succeed 
Objective 1: Student Success - All Objective 2: Graduates engage in post-
graduates engage in high-impact, graduate planning and preparation 
experiential learning activities 

• 90% of graduates are employed or 
• Students complete an internship, enrolled in graduate school within one 

practicum experience, research project, year of degree completion 
or the equivalent 

• 85% of alumni indicate EOU 
• Students engage in meaningful civic, adequately prepared them for 

service-learning, or co-curricular achievement of long-term educational 
activities and career goals 

2021 EOU 
ANNUAL REPORT 

Last spring Damien Tracy, ’21, and his family counted down 
to his fnal assignment together. After graduation, his 
four kids rejoiced in more play time with dad and Tracy 

celebrated a promotion from supervising 20 employees to a 
team that oversees 500. 

The achievement was long-awaited. Tracy worked multiple jobs 
and attended school for half a decade. Although he planned to 
earn his psychology degree fully online, Tracy visited campus 
with his children before he decided to transfer to EOU. He said 
the personal welcome they received set the tone for his EOU 
experience. 

When he walked across the stage in June, a car-full of family 
members cheered him on. Professors who had mentored him 
from a computer screen congratulated him face-to-face. Just 
a month later, Tracy’s newly minted bachelor’s degree helped 
earn him the promotion he’d been hoping for. 

Years of late nights and long days have paid of in a fulflling 
career, where he puts his communication and leadership skills 
to work. His degree is more than a fancy piece of paper, it’s a 
testament to his heart for helping others and his commitment to 
setting an example for his children. 

His oldest daughter is six, and lately she dreams about being an 
astronaut, a mommy, and a teacher. 

“She never takes anything of the list—she just keeps adding to 
it,” Tracy said. “I tell her she can do anything.” 

EOU 

81% OF STUDENTS WORK 
WHILE ATTENDING 

43% WORKED 30+ HOURS 
PER WEEK 
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2021 STORIES OF THE ASCENT 
ANNUAL REPORT 

READY FOR A 
DIVERSE AND 
INTERCONNECTED 
WORLD 

GOAL 2 Transformational Education — Enrich academic quality and 
enhance intellectual vitality 
Objective 1: Excellence in teaching Objective 2: Graduates possess 
and scholarship the essential learning outcomes 

employers seek 
• Students experience meaningful 

student-faculty interactions • Graduates demonstrate profciency 
in University Learning Outcomes 

• Faculty engage in best practice 
interactive pedagogies • Graduates demonstrate readiness 

for a diverse and interconnected 
• Teaching and library faculty are world 

supported in disciplinary research 
and/or the scholarship of teaching 
and learning 

2021 EOU 
ANNUAL REPORT 

22% SENIORS COMPLETING 
AN INTERNSHIP OR 
FIELD EXPERIENCE 

Thick dust and a selection of 
bird droppings covered what 
used to be bustling high school 

hallways in Baker City. A small group 
of EOU students were some of the frst 
to leave footprints since the school 
was abandoned in 2009, but their visit 
marked a turning point for the historic 
building. 

These students, all majoring in 
Sustainable Rural Systems at EOU, 
will play a key role in transforming the 
contaminated building into a functional 
community asset. After two terms of 
virtual and then on-campus meetings, 
students took their frst feld trip in 
April 2021. Professor Shannon Donovan 
arranged for the small class to visit 
the former Baker Central High School 
building, which was recently designated 
as a brownfeld. An EPA assessment 
found lead and asbestos contamination 
in tiles and paint. 

The program’s cohort model allows 
groups of students to work on real-
world, multi-year projects to restore 
and enhance sites in eastern Oregon. 
The one-of-a-kind curriculum combines 
environmental science, public 
administration, community organizing, 
project management and leadership. 

Once it’s cleaned up, leaders expect 
to sell the historic building for further 
development. Airy classrooms on the 

second and third foors could become 
studio apartments or host exercise 
classes with a world-class view of the 
surrounding mountains. The school’s 
theatre, gym, home economics and 
choir facilities are still recognizable, and 
could feature in its second life. 

This is the frst of many hands-on 
projects Sustainable Rural Systems 
cohorts will tackle. The same four 
students who visited the dark, messy 
building will return regularly throughout 
the restoration process and have a role 
in its revitalization. 

EOU 
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2021 
ANNUAL REPORT 

STORIES OF THE ASCENT 

EXPANDING 
ACCESS,
OPPORTUNITY,
AND 
COMPLETION 

GOAL 3 Grow the Number of Lives Impacted — Expand student access, 
opportunity, and completion 
Objective 1: Serve as a growing and Objective 3: Efcient degree attainment 
thriving rural university 

• Increase 4-year completion rates to 
• Grow on campus FTE enrollment 50% for frst-year freshman cohort 

to 2,500 • Increase 2-year completion rates to 
• Grow on-line FTE enrollment to 5,000 70% for entering transfer students 

Objective 2: Students are retained 

• Achieve 80% year 1 retention for 
frst-year freshman cohort 

• Achieve 90% year 1 retention for 
entering transfers 

2021 EOU 
ANNUAL REPORT 

$3.1
MILLION 
AWARDED IN 
INSTITUTIONAL 
SCHOLARSHIPS 

$1.7 
MILLION IN HIGHER 
EDUCATION 
EMERGENCY 
RELIEF FUND 
DISTRIBUTED TO 
STUDENTS 

In a special meeting in March 
2021, EOU’s Board of Trustees 
voted unanimously in favor of 

holding tuition fat for all returning 
undergraduate students, on-campus 
and online. 

“This is something we can do for our 
students hardest hit by the pandemic,” 
EOU President Tom Insko said. “As 
Oregon’s Rural University, meeting 
students where they are is core to our 
mission and particularly this year we 
need to do all we can to carry out that 
mission and make higher education as 
afordable as possible.” 

The decision came earlier than typical 
tuition announcements to provide 
greater certainty for current students 
and an extended opportunity for 

prospective students to make an 
informed decision. National trends 
showed students spending more time 
deciding whether to invest in higher 
education as the COVID-19 pandemic 
stretched into its second year. 

Nearly two-thirds of EOU students are 
from low-income households, identify 
as ethnically diverse, hail from rural 
areas, or are the frst in their families to 
attend college. Students and families 
from these demographics have been 
the most adversely impacted by 
COVID-19. 

The university aims to keep future 
tuition increases minimal, between 1.5% 

and 3.5% per year. Administrators held 
discussions with student leaders and 
internal groups to garner feedback. 

Maintaining an afordable university 
education relies heavily on continued 
state investment. EOU and the other 
six public universities lobbied together 
for a $63 million increase in the Public 
University Support Fund, bringing 
the total allocation to $900M. This 
moderate boost covers cost increases 
and ensures afordable access to a 
university degree. 

“This is going to take sacrifce, but we 
are choosing to take that considered 
risk and prioritize students,” Insko said. 

EOU 
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2021 STORIES OF THE ASCENT 
ANNUAL REPORT 

AN INVITING,
SUPPORTIVE 
UNIVERSITY 
CULTURE 

Thriving University Community — A great place to work and learn GOAL 4 
Objective 1: Foster an inviting 
and supportive university culture 
that exemplifes EOU’s values and 
principles 

• Achieve national recognition on the 
“Great Colleges to Work For” list 

• 85% of students, faculty, and staf 
indicate the institution provides a 
supportive and caring environment 

Objective 2: Support intercultural 
competency, inclusiveness, and 
diversity 

• Resident students refect a cross-
section of Oregon enriched by 
students from other regions and 
countries 

• The students, faculty, and staf 
demonstrate competency in 
intercultural interactions 

Objective 3: Provide and maintain a 
campus that promotes quality of life 
for students, faculty, staf, and the 
community 

• Infrastructure and facilities are well 
maintained, accessible, safe and 
secure 

• The physical campus refects and 
strengthens our naturally beautiful 
setting 

• Use of campus by stakeholders is 
maximized 

2021 EOU 
ANNUAL REPORT 

EMPLOYEES 
AGREE THEIR 
SUPERVISOR 
SUPPORTS 83% WORK/LIFE 
BALANCE 

83%
EMPLOYEES 
AGREE THEY 
HAVE A GOOD 
RELATIONSHIP 
WITH THEIR 
SUPERVISOR 

When recent results from 
the Great Colleges to 
Work For Survey indicated 

disconnectedness between staf and 
administrators, EOU employees took 
matters into their own hands. 

No institution can mandate positivity, 
and colleagues from SEIU and 
University Council recognized that 
the only way to engender connection 
was to model it themselves. A small 
group implemented the Looking for 
the Good initiative in spring 2021. The 
movement encouraged employees 
to recognize the hard work of their 
peers with a ‘thank you’ or ‘kudos’ 
that would be shared with both the 
recipient and their supervisor. 

Organizers received 15 
entries in the frst month, 
and 35 the next. The 
program had a ripple 
efect that led to better 
relationships within 
departments and between 
supervisors and their stafs. 

The initiative expanded to 
include students as well, 
challenging all members of 
the campus community to 
greet one another and share, “what 
made them smile this week.” Over 
300 people participated, spreading 
positivity and increasing personal 
connection in every corner of the 
university. 

“After the frst month, people saw 
how it really worked, and we started 
hearing about the efects,” Organizer 
Kate Gekeler said. “It was so cool to 
see on campus, people going out of 
their way to spread positivity and 
gratitude.” 

EOU 
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2021 
ANNUAL REPORT 

STORIES OF THE ASCENT 

A LEADER 
IN RURAL 
PROSPERITY 
AND RESILIENCE 

Relevance and Interconnection — Serve as the educational, 
economic , and cultural engine for the rural places 
Objective 1: Educational partnerships Objective 2: Be recognized as a 
are cultivated leader in promoting rural community 

prosperity and resilience 
• Maximize transfer student credit 

articulation • Designated as Oregon’s rural 
• Increase matriculation of regional university 

high school students • Achieve Carnegie Community 
Engagement Classifcation 

GOAL 5 

2021 EOU 
ANNUAL REPORT 

Stage, seats, lights, speakers, 
steps, screens and tech—no part 
of EOU’s performing arts spaces 

were forgotten in a major renovation 
of Loso Hall this year. 

“This is an update to the performance 
venues that have largely been 
unchanged since the original 
construction over 30 years ago,” 
Capital Projects Manager David Moore 
said. 

Attendees of choir concerts, 
community symphony shows, 
musicals, plays, speaking events, 
conferences, flm festivals, graduations 
and other ceremonies will notice 
distinct upgrades. Blue seats and 
a gold curtain refect EOU’s school 
colors, while a matte black masonite 
stage is ready to welcome performers 
back to the spotlight. 

Improved ADA access includes 
additional seating for people who use 
wheelchairs, a lift to access the second 
level, and no-step access to stages in 
both McKenzie and Schwarz Theatre. 

Schwarz also got a “black box” 
makeover and movable seating 
that can be adjusted to suit each 
performance. The biggest news in 
the small theatre, though, is a built-in 
rotating stage. EOU is one of the only 
college campuses in the West to install 
this highly adaptable feature. 

Beyond surface gloss, the 
infrastructure of both spaces has been 
fundamentally transformed by more 
than four miles of conduit that routes 
sound, video and electricity to both 
theatres. A new tech booth embedded 
in McKenzie Theatre connects to 
controls backstage and above 
in the catwalk to control lights, 
sound and efects. All of those 
wires were invisibly tucked into 
the existing structure, along 
with energy-efcient upgrades 
to the heating and cooling 
systems. 

Backstage, touchscreen 
controls, an automated 
fre safety mechanism, and 

seven engine-driven rigging sets 
allow student stagehands to get a 
professional-grade experience. Plus, a 
permanently mounted projector and 
screen connect with giant speakers 
turn McKenzie Theatre into the 
county’s newest movie venue. 

Although COVID-19 restrictions will 
limit audience capacity in the near 
future, EOU students and faculty have 
already begun using their new state-
of-the-art facility. 

EOU 

LIVE PERFORMANCES 
PRESENTED IN 2020-21 

RADIO PERFORMANCES 
DURING THE PANDEMIC 2

3 
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STORIES OF THE ASCENT 

EXPANDING 
REVENUE FROM 
ALTERNATIVE 
SOURCES 

GOAL 6 Financial Sustainability — Stewardship in fnancial sustainability 
and in growing EOU’s fnancial and capital resources 

2021 
ANNUAL REPORT 

62% INCREASE IN FUNDING 
FROM ALTERNATIVE 
SOURCES 

Innovative teacher preparation programs at EOU 
received a boost from two state grants that will expand 
collaboration and responsive teaching practices in rural 

Oregon. 

The Educator Advancement Council and Oregon 
Department of Education awarded grants to two EOU 
programs in spring 2021: one that’s already successful, and 
one that’s brand-new. 

The Oregon Teacher Pathway program received $350,000 
to enhance its work, which has allowed over 250 high 
school students to explore a career in teaching since 2014. 
Participants who matriculate to EOU can earn tuition 
reductions. Over a dozen graduates of the program are 
already teaching in regional classrooms. Grant funds will 
improve opportunities for professional development and 
increase stipends for high school teachers who introduce 
teens to a career in education. OTP also qualifed to apply 
for an additional $100,000 grant through the Meyer 
Foundation. 

New to the mix, the Teach Rural Oregon progam and the 
Eastern Oregon Teaching Academy, received $200,000 
in partnership with the Wallowa Educational Service 
District. Both programs invite community college students, 

EOU 

paraprofessionals, and other individuals to become 
teachers in rural areas of the state and provide professional 
development opportunities for teachers in underserved 
schools. 

Teach Rural Oregon invites community college students 
from Gresham to visit rural Eastern Oregon for three weeks 
to observe classrooms and learn from rural colleagues, while 
a student board, crisis intervention for teachers, access to 
EOU faculty and stipends for guest speakers are part of 
the vision for EOTA. Ultimately, the program aims to recruit 
more teachers to the rural areas of Oregon. 

“We’re two of 27 grant recipients in the state of Oregon, 
so EOU received over a half-million dollars of that pot 
of funding. It’s signifcant that our programs are being 
recognized and allowed that opportunity,” Education 
Professor Tawnya Lubbes said. 

EOU 

Objective 1: Develop and foster Objective 3: Expand revenue from 
a culture of fscal responsibility, alternative sources such as grants, 
accountability, and security for all sponsorships, partnerships, and 
university funds alternative uses of campus property 
• Maintain E&G fund balance ≥ 10% 
• Maintain primary reserve ratio ≥ 40% 
• Maintain debt burden ratio ≤ 5% 

Objective 2: Foster a culture of 
philanthropy that signifcantly 
increases engagement with and 
giving to the university 
• Complete a successful 

comprehensive campaign 
• Increase alumni participation rate to 

6 percent or more 
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THE ASCENT 2029 BY THE NUMBERS 
KEY METRICS 

KEY METRICS Tap to change report Key Metrics 

On Campus FTE 
(G3.O1.K1) 

Off Campus FTE 
(G3.O1.K2) 

Retention - First-time 
freshman (G3.O2.K1) 

Proficiency in Student 
Learning Outcomes 

(G2.O2.K1) 

Fund balance (% of E&G 
Revenue) (G6.O1.K1) 

1157 892 65% 86% 29.9% 
-10% 7% -8% 17% 

ALL METRICS Do not modify the information below. Tap to enter Financial Data 

Cohort graduation rate: 4 
yr (G3.O3.K1) 

Graduates employed or 
enrolled (G1.O2.K1) 

Alumni giving 
participation rate 

(G6.O2.K2) 

30% 87% 1.3% 
73% 2% 2% 

METRIC TARGET REPORT YEAR % CHANGE 

Transfer graduation rate: 
2-yr (G3.O3.K2) 

31% -14% 

Great Colleges to Work 
For Survey (G4.O1.K1) 

56 0% 

Supportive environment 
(students) (G4.O1.K2) 

43% -2% 

Student cultural/ethnic 
diversity (G4.O2.K1) 

27% -4% 

Transfers experiencing 
credit loss (G5.O1.K1) 

11% -31% 

Regional HS matriculation 
(G5.O1.K2) 

15% 7% 

Fund balance (% of E&G 
Revenue) (G6.O1.K1) 

30% 17% 

Primary reserve ratio 
(G6.O1.K2) 

51% 16% 

Debt burden ratio -
institution paid debt 
(G6.O1.K3) 

2.6% -11% 

Ascent 2029 Campaign 
Cumulative Giving 
($millions) (G6.O2.K1) 

$5.7 235% 

Alumni giving 
participation rate 
(G6.O2.K2) 

1.3% 2% 

Alternative sources of 
revenue ($ millions) 
(G6.O3) 

$8.4 62% 

≥10% 

≥40% 

≤5% 

$29.0 

≥6% 

$15.0 

70% 

On List 

85% 

26% 

≤10% 

≥25% 

$2.2 

1.3% 

$5.2 

26% 

44% 

2.9% 

28% 

16% 

14% 

36% 

56 

44% 

PREVIOUS YEAR 5 YEAR TREND 

Primary reserve ratio 
(G6.O1.K2) 

51.0% 
16% 

ALL METRICS Do not modify the information below. Tap to enter Financial Data 

Transfer graduation rate: 2-
yr (G3.O3.K2) 

31% 
-14% 

KEY METRICS Tap to change report Key Metrics 

METRIC TARGET REPORT YEAR % CHANGEPREVIOUS YEAR 5 YEAR TREND 

Research, Practicums, & 
Internships (G1.O1.K1) 

Civic engagement, Service 
learning, & Co-curricular 
(G1,O1.K2) 

Graduates employed or 
enrolled (G1.O2.K1) 

Alumni satisfaction 
(G1.O2.K2) 

Meaningful student-
faculty interactions 
(G2.O1.K1) 

Effective teaching 
practices (G2.O1.K2) 

Faculty supported in 
research & scholarship 
(G2.O1.K3) 
Proficiency in Student 
Learning Outcomes 
(G2.O2.K1) 
Diverse and 
interconnected world 
(G2.O2.K2) 

On Campus FTE 
(G3.O1.K1) 

Off Campus FTE 
(G3.O1.K2) 

Retention - First-time 
freshman (G3.O2.K1) 

Retention - Transfer 
students (G3.O2.K2) 

100% 85% 92% -8% 

100% 59% 59% 1% 

90% 87% 85% 2% 

85% 74% 81% -9% 

20 18.1 19.1 -5% 

40 39.2 39.2 0% 

10% 6% 6% 0% 

100% 86% n/a 

65% 59% 62% -4% 

2500 1157 1290 -10% 

5000 892 835 7% 

80% 65% 70% -8% 

90% 67% 61% 10% 

Cohort graduation rate: 4- 50% 30% 17% 73% 
yr (G3.O3.K1) 

https://G3.O3.K1
https://G3.O2.K2
https://G3.O2.K1
https://G3.O1.K2
https://G3.O1.K1
https://G2.O2.K2
https://G2.O2.K1
https://G2.O1.K3
https://G2.O1.K2
https://G2.O1.K1
https://G1.O2.K2
https://G1.O2.K1
https://G1,O1.K2
https://G1.O1.K1
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RESEARCH, PRACTICUMS, & INTERNSHIPS 
Percentage of graduating undergradu 
ates who complete an internship, practi 
cum experience, research project, or the 
equivalent. 

CIVIC ENGAGEMENT, SERVICE LEARNING, & CO-
CURRICULAR 
Percentage of graduating undergradu 
ates who complete a course identifed 
with the civic engagement learning 
outcome or designated as containing a 
required service learning or performance 
component, who participate in univer 
sity athletics, or who are a member of a 
student club. 

GRADUATES EMPLOYED OR ENROLLED 
Percentage of respondents to the EOU 
graduating student survey item “Which 
of the following best describes your pri 
mary activity?”  who indicate they were 
employed or re-enrolled for further ed 
ucation subsequent to completing their 
degree (also merges data from National 
Student Clearinghouse on subsequent 
enrollments). 

ALUMNI SATISFACTION 
Percentage of alumni indicating EOU ad 
equately prepared them for achievement 
of long-term educational and career 
goals (EOU alumni survey - graduates 6 
years prior to reporting year). 

MEANINGFUL STUDENT-FACULTY INTERACTIONS 
Students experience meaningful stu 
dent-faculty interactions. Uses NSSE 
student-faculty interaction scale. 

EFFECTIVE TEACHING PRACTICES 
Faculty engage in best practice inter 
active pedagogies. Uses NSSE efective 
teaching practices scale. 

FACULTY SUPPORTED IN RESEARCH & 
SCHOLARSHIP 
Teaching and library faculty are support 
ed in disciplinary research and/or the 
scholarship of teaching and learning. 
Calculated as the ratio of discipline load 
expense, research stipends, and Center 
for Teaching Learning and Assessment 
(CTLA) expense to the instructional 
expense for the institution. 

PROFICIENCY IN STUDENT LEARNING OUTCOMES 
Percentage of sampled students at 
“Profcient” or “Adequate” in assessed 
Program Learning Outcomes (PLOs). 

DIVERSE AND INTERCONNECTED WORLD 
Graduates demonstrate readiness for a 
diverse and interconnected world. Uses 
NSSE Item 2c. 

ON CAMPUS FTE / OFF CAMPUS FTE 
Fall 4th week student FTE by modality 
(assigned campus). FTE is the total of 
all student credit hours (SCH) for each 
student divided by the appropriate de 
nominator for that student s level (15 for 
undergraduate and 12 for graduate). 

RETENTION - FIRST-TIME FRESHMAN 
The percentage of frst-time full-time 
bachelors (or equivalent) degree-seeking 
undergraduates from the previous fall 
who are again enrolled in the current fall. 

RETENTION - TRANSFER STUDENTS 
The percentage of new transfers from 
the previous fall who are again enrolled 
in the current fall. 

COHORT GRADUATION RATE: 4-YR 
Graduation rate is based on the number 
of frst-time, full-time, degree-seeking 
freshmen entering in fall (or summer 
and returning fall) six years prior to the 
reporting year. The number graduating 
with a bachelor s within 4 years and 6 
years of the initial cohort term divided by 
the total number in the initial cohort are 
the rates. 

TRANSFER GRADUATION RATE: 2-YR 
The percentage of new transfers entering 
at junior or senior standing who com 
plete an undergraduate degree within 
two years. Uses a cohort calculation 
approach. For example, data reported for 
2017 18 looks at the proportion of new 
transfers who entered at junior or higher 
standing in fall of 2015. 

GREAT COLLEGES TO WORK FOR SURVEY 
Overall survey average score. Target is to 
achieve recognition in one of the catego 
ries of the ‘Great Colleges to Work For 
list sponsored by the Chronicle of Higher 
Education. 

SUPPORTIVE ENVIRONMENT (STUDENTS) 
Percentage of students, faculty, and 
staf indicating the institution provides 
a supportive and caring environment. 
For students, this measure is taken from 
the NSSE supportive environment scale. 
A score of 50.0 equates to 85% on that 
scale. 

STUDENT CULTURAL/ETHNIC DIVERSITY 
Percentage of 4th week students in one 
of the following categories: 
1) Nonresident Alien 
3) Hispanics of any race 
4) American Indian or Alaska Native 
5) Asian 
6) Black or African American 
7) Native Hawaiian or Other Pacifc

 Islander 
9) Two or more races 

STORIES OF THE ASCENT 

TRANSFERS EXPERIENCING CREDIT LOSS 
Percentage of new fall transfers who 
have non-articulated credits. 

REGIONAL HS MATRICULATION (W/IN 16 MONTHS) 
Looks at all students graduating from 
regional high schools with a regular 
diploma (all public high schools within 
our 10 county region) and of those who 
matriculate to post-secondary education 
w/in 16 months, what proportion EOU 
matriculates - HS graduation year is 2 
years behind the academic year in which 
data is provided  - 2011-12 HS grads are 
reported in 2013-14 data. 

FUND BALANCE (% OF E&G REVENUE) 
The diference between assets and 
liabilities as a proportion of Education & 
General Revenue. 

PRIMARY RESERVE RATIO 
Expendable net position to operating 
expense.  W/Foundation and W/O GASB 
68 Source: EOU Financial Statements. 
Reported to HECC 

DEBT BURDEN RATIO - INSTITUTION PAID DEBT 
Debt service to total expenditures.  W/ 
Foundation and W/GASB 68  Source: 
EOU Financial Statements.  Reported to 
HECC 

ASCENT 2029 CAMPAIGN CUMULATIVE GIVING 
($MILLIONS) 
Cumulative amount donated to the cen 
tennial campaign for the university. Total 
is calculated at the end of the fscal/aca 
demic year. 

ALUMNI GIVING PARTICIPATION RATE 
Alumni are defned as any student who 
has attended EOU at any time (this 
includes partner program students as 
well). The participation rate is the pro 
portion of alumni who have donated as 
of the end of the academic year listed. 

ALTERNATIVE SOURCES OF REVENUE 
Objective is to expand revenue from 
alternative sources such as grants, 
sponsorships, partnerships, and alterna 
tive uses of campus property. No KPIs 
yet identifed. Currently measured using 
Fund <> 900000 Agency Funds | Orgn 
<> 400100 Financial Aid | Fund Type <> 
8% | Acct Type = 57,53. 
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2021 INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
ANNUAL REPORT 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
CLAconnect.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Members of the Board of Directors 
Eastern Oregon University 
La Grande, Oregon 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying fnancial statements of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component 
unit of Eastern Oregon University, a component unit of the state of Oregon, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 
2020, and the related notes to the fnancial statements, which collectively comprise the entity’s basic fnancial statements as 
listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these fnancial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of fnancial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these fnancial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the fnancial state-
ments of the Eastern Oregon University Foundation (the Foundation), which represents 100 percent of the assets, net assets, and 
revenues of the discretely presented component unit. Those fnancial statements were audited by other auditors whose report 
has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it related to the amounts included for the discretely presented component 
unit, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to fnancial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fnancial statements are free from material misstatement. The fnancial statements 
of the Foundation, a discretely presented component unit, were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the fnancial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the fnancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the fnancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the efectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of signifcant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall pre-
sentation of the fnancial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 
In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the fnancial statements referred to above present fairly, in 
all material respects, the respective fnancial position of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component 
unit of Eastern Oregon University as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the respective changes in fnancial position and, where 
applicable, cash fows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

CLA is an independent member of Nexia International, a leading, global network of independent 
accounting and consulting firms. See nexia.com/member‐firm‐disclaimer for details. 
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Emphasis of a Matters 
Changes in Acounting Principal 
As discussed in Note 1 to the fnancial statements, efective July 1, 2019, the University adopted new accounting guidance for 
leases. The guidance requires lessees to recognize a right-to-use lease asset and corresponding lease liability and lessors to 
recognize a lease receivable and corresponding deferred infow of resources for all leases with lease terms greater than twelve 
months. Our opinion is not modifed with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion on pages 
28 through 40, the Schedule of University’s Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) Contributions, Schedule of Universi-
ty’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset/Liability, Schedule of University PERS RHIA OPEB Employer Contribution, 
Schedule of University’s Proportionate Share of the Net PERS RHIA OPEB Asset/Liability, and the Schedule of University’s Pro-
portionate Share of the Total PEBB OPEB Liability, listed as Required Supplementary Information in the table of contents, be 
presented to supplement the basic fnancial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic fnancial statements, 
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of fnancial reporting for 
placing the basic fnancial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic fnancial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic fnancial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufcient evidence to express an opinion 
or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the fnancial statements that collectively comprise Eastern 
Oregon University’s basic fnancial statements. The Values & Principles, Letter from the President, Letter from the Board Chair, 
Stories of the Ascent, Financial Ratios, and the EOU Foundation Philanthropic Support, as listed in the table of contents, are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic fnancial statements. 

This other information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic fnancial statements, 
and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
IIn accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 3, 2021, on our consider-
ation of Eastern Oregon University’s internal control over fnancial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain pro-
visions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe 
the scope of our testing of internal control over fnancial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the efectiveness of Eastern Oregon University’s internal control over fnancial reporting or on compliance. 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Eastern 
Oregon University’s internal control over fnancial reporting and compliance. 

a 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Bellevue, Washington 
November 3, 2021 

https://nexia.com/member-firm-disclaimer
https://CLAconnect.com
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2021

2,286

2021

$ 21,795

17,788

79,155

$ 118,738

9,342$

$ 11,924

46,986

$ 58,910

2,568$

$ 60,313

554

1,979

3,756

$ 66,602

MANAGEMENT’S 
DISCUSSION 
& ANALYSIS 

INTRODUCTION 
The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides an overview of the fnancial position and activities of 
Eastern Oregon University (EOU, university) for the year ended June 30, 2021 with comparative data for the fscal year ended 
June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019. This discussion has been prepared by management to assist readers in understanding the 
accompanying fnancial statements and footnotes. 

Annual Full Time Equivalent (FTE) Student 
Enrollment Summary: 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 

2,286 2,286 2,329 2,315 2,393 

UNDERSTANDING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The MD&A focuses on EOU as a whole and is intended to foster 
a greater understanding of EOU’s fnancial activities. Since this 
presentation includes summarized formats, it should be read 
in conjunction with the fnancial statements which have the 
following six components. 

Independent Auditor’s Report presents an unmodifed opinion 
rendered by an independent certifed public accounting frm, 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP, on the fairness in presentation (in all 
material respects) of the fnancial statements. 

Statement of Net Position (SNP) presents a snapshot of EOU 
assets, deferred outfows, liabilities and deferred infows under 
the accrual basis of accounting at the end of each fscal year 
presented. The SNP helps the reader understand the types and 
amounts of assets available to support operations, how much 
EOU owes to vendors and bond holders; and net position de-
lineated based upon their availability for future expenditures. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Position (SRE) presents EOU revenues and expenses cate-
gorized between operating, nonoperating and other related 
activities. The SRE reports the EOU operating results for each 
fscal year presented. 

Statement of Cash Flows (SCF) provides information about 
EOU’s sources (receipts) and uses (payments) of cash during 
the fscal year. The SCF classifes sources and uses of cash 
into four categories, and assists in determining whether EOU 
has the ability to generate future net cash fows to meet its 
obligations as they come due. 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Notes) provide additional 
information to clarify and expand on the fnancial statements. 

The Component Unit, comprised of a supporting foundation, 
is discretely presented in the EOU fnancial statements and in 
Note 2 Cash and Investments and Note 20 University Foun-
dation. 

The MD&A provides an objective analysis of EOU’s fnancial 
activities based on currently known facts, decisions, and con-
ditions. The MD&A discusses the current and prior year results 
in comparison to the current and two previous fscal years. 
Unless otherwise stated, all years refer to the fscal year ended 
June 30. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
The university’s fnancial position improved in the past year 
with an increase in total net position as of June 30, 2021 of 
$8,451 thousand. During 2021, unrestricted net position im-
proved by $5,172 thousand due to improved unrestricted oper-
ations, which includes education, auxiliary and general business 
activities. Accruals related to net pension liability and other 
postemployment benefts (OPEB) as required by GASB State-
ment Nos. 68, 71, and 75 decreased unrestricted net position 
by a net $3,340 thousand. Net investment in capital assets 
increased by $6,729 thousand. 

During 2020, total net position increased by $1,612 thousand. 
Unrestricted net position improved by $3,701 thousand due to 
improved unrestricted operations, which includes education, 
auxiliary and general business activities. Accruals related to net 
pension liability and other postemployment benefts (OPEB) 
as required by GASB Statement Nos. 68, 71, and 75 decreased 
unrestricted net position by a net $2,949 thousand. Net invest-
ment in capital assets increased by $1,050 thousand 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
The term “Net Position” refers to the diference between (a) 
assets and deferred outfows of resources and (b) liabilities 
and deferred infows of resources, and is an indicator of EOU’s 
current fnancial condition. Changes in net position that oc-
cur over time indicate improvement or deterioration in EOU’s 
fnancial condition. 

The following summarizes EOU’s assets and deferred outfows 
of resources, liabilities and deferred infows of resources, and 
net position: 

Condensed Statements of Net Position (in 000’s) 
As of June 30, 2021 2020 2019 

Current Assets $ 21,795 $ 22,844 $ 16,465 

Noncurrent Assets 17,788 11,796 14,929 

Capital Assets, Net 79,155 73,389 73,782 

Total Assets $ 118,738 $ 108,029 $ 105,176 

Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 9,342 $ 7,111 $ 7,109 

Current Liabilities $ 11,924 $ 11,058 $ 9,885 

Noncurrent Liabilities 46,986 41,994 41,129 

Total Liabilities $ 58,910 $ 53,052 $ 51,014 

Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 2,568 $ 3,937 $ 4,732 

Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 60,313 $ 53,584 $ 52,534 

Restricted - Nonexpendable 554 554 554 

Restricted - Expendable 1,979 2,069 2,275 

Unrestricted 3,756 1,944 1,176 

Total Net Position $ 66,602 $ 58,151 $ 56,539 

Total Net Position 
Total net position increased by $8,451 thousand, or 15 per-
cent, during 2021. Total net position benefted from a $6,729 
thousand increase in net investment in capital assets and in 
increase of $1,812 thousand in unrestricted net position, but 
was negatively impacted by a reduction of $90 thousand in 
restricted expendable net position. 

Total net position increased by $1,612 thousand, or 3 percent, 
during 2020. Total net position benefted from a $1,050 thou-
sand increase in net investment in capital assets and in increase 
of $768 thousand in unrestricted net position, but was nega-
tively impacted by a reduction of $206 thousand in restricted 
expendable net position. 

EOU 

As illustrated by the following graph, the make-up of net po-
sition changed between 2021, 2020 and 2019 (in 000’s): 

$-

$10,000 

$20,000 

$30,000 

$40,000 

$50,000 

$60,000 

$70,000 

2021 2020 2019 

Unrestricted 

Restricted -
Expendable 

Nonexpendable 
Endowments 

Net Investment 
in Capital 
Assets 

COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL 
YEAR 2020 

Net Investment in Capital Assets increased by $6,729 thou-
sand, or 13 percent. 

* Capital asset increases, net of disposals and adjustments, of 
$9,868 thousand were ofset by a $4,102 thousand increase 
to accumulated depreciation for a net decrease in capital 
assets of $5,766 thousand. See also Changes in Capital 
Assets later in this MD&A and Note 5 Capital Assets for 
additional details. 

* Long-term debt outstanding attributable to the capital assets 
decreased by $963 thousand due to net debt refunding and 
debt service payments made on outstanding debt. See Debt 
Administration later in this MD&A and Note 9 Long-Term 
Liabilities. 

Restricted Expendable Net Position decreased by $90 thou-
sand, or 4 percent. 

* Net position related to gifts, grants and contracts increased 
by $269 thousand. Decreased cash and increased deferred 
revenue on grants and contracts were ofset by increased 
receivables and decreased invoices payable as well as 
increased earnings on endowments. 

* Net position related to student loans decreased by $16 
thousand. Decreases in cash and student loans receivable 
were ofset by a decrease in the Perkins Loan liquidation 
liability as EOU completed the process of assigning loans 
back to the federal government. See Note 1 X Perkins Loan 
Program Termination for additional information. 

* Net position relating to the funding of capital projects 
decreased by $51 thousand. Increases in cash, XI-Q bonds 
receivable and decreases in year-end accounts payable were 
ofset by decreases in other year-end accounts receivable 
and an increase in contract retainage payable. 
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* Net position relating to funds reserved for debt service 
decreased by $69 thousand primarily due to a decrease in 
cash held at year end for debt service payments. 

* Net position restricted expendable related to the OPEB Asset 
decreased by $223 thousand. The restricted expendable 
OPEB asset is equal to the Net OPEB Asset reported in 
noncurrent assets. 

Unrestricted Net Position increased by $1,812 thousand, or 
93 percent. 

* Improved unrestricted operations added $5,172 thousand. 
Unrestricted operations were helped by $1,398 in COVID-19 
relief funding for institutional support from the federal 
government to cover lost revenues resulting from the 
pandemic. See Note 1 Y COVID-19 Relief Funding for 
additional information. 

* Changes associated with year-end liability accruals for 
PERS state and local government rate pool (SLGRP) and 
compensated absences decreased unrestricted net position 
by $20 thousand. 

* Changes associated with year-end accruals for the PERS 
net pension liability and related deferred outfows and 
deferred infows decreased unrestricted net position by 
$3,561 thousand. 

* Changes associated with year-end accruals for the reporting 
of net OPEB liabilities along with the associated deferred 
outfows and deferred infows for the OPEB liabilities and 
the OPEB asset resulted in a net increase of $221 thousand. 

* See Note 10 Unrestricted Net Position for additional 
information. 

COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL 
YEAR 2019 

Net Investment in Capital Assets increased by $1,050 thou-
sand, or 2 percent. 

* Capital asset increases, net of disposals and adjustments, of 
$4,105 thousand were ofset by a $4,498 thousand increase 
to accumulated depreciation for a net decrease in capital 
assets of $393 thousand. See also Changes in Capital Assets 
later in this MD&A and Note 5 for additional details. 

* Long-term debt outstanding attributable to the capital assets 
decreased by $1,443 thousand due to debt service payments 
made on outstanding debt. See Debt Administration later in 
this MD&A and Note 9. 

Restricted Expendable Net Position decreased by $206 thou-
sand, or 9 percent. 

* Net position related to gifts, grants and contracts decreased 
by $81 thousand. Increased cash was ofset by decreased 
receivables and increased deferred revenue on grants and 
contracts as well as decreased earnings on endowments. 

* Net position related to student loans decreased by $137 
thousand. Decreases in cash and student loans receivable 
were ofset by a decrease in the Perkins Loan liquidation 
liability as EOU began assigning loans back to the federal 
government.  See Note 1 X for additional information. 

* Net position relating to the funding of capital projects 
increased by $2 thousand. 

* Net position relating to funds reserved for debt service 
decreased by $131 thousand primarily due to a decrease in 
cash held at year end for debt service payments. 

* Net position restricted expendable related to the OPEB Asset 
increased by $141 thousand. The restricted expendable OPEB 
asset is equal to the Net OPEB Asset reported in noncurrent 
assets. 

Unrestricted Net Position increased by $768 thousand, or 65 
percent. 

* Improved unrestricted operations added $3,701 thousand. 

* Changes associated with year-end liability accruals for 
PERS state and local government rate pool (SLGRP) and 
compensated absences increased unrestricted net position 
by $16 thousand. 

* Changes associated with year-end accruals for the PERS 
net pension liability and related deferred outfows and 
deferred infows decreased unrestricted net position by 
$2,855 thousand. 

* Changes associated with year-end accruals for the reporting 
of net OPEB liabilities along with the associated deferred 
outfows and deferred infows for the OPEB liabilities and 
the OPEB asset resulted in a net decrease of $94 thousand. 

* See Note 10 for additional information. 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 
Total assets increased by $10,709 thousand, or 10 percent, 
during the year ended June 30, 2021. Increases in investments, 
accounts receivable and net capital assets were somewhat 
ofset by decreases in cash and cash equivalents, leases re-
ceivable, and net OPEB asset. Total assets increased by $2,853 
thousand, or 3 percent, during the year ended June 30, 2020. 
Increases in cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, 
and net OPEB asset were somewhat ofset by decreases in 
investments, notes receivable, leases receivable and net cap-
ital assets. 

COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL 
YEAR 2020 

Current Assets decreased by $1,049 thousand, or 5 percent, 
primarily due to: 

* Current cash and cash equivalents decreased by $3,012 
thousand due primarily to a reinvestment of cash balances 
held in the early part of fscal year 2021. In the fourth quarter 
of fscal year 2020, intermediate term investments had been 

sold in order to provide a liquidity cushion for fscal year 
2021 in the face of uncertainties related to the coronavirus. 

* Accounts receivable increased by $2,521 thousand. Increases 
in receivables for capital construction reimbursement from 
the state and federal grants and contracts were ofset by a 
decrease in receivables for student tuition and fees and an 
increase in the allowance for doubtful accounts. See Note 3 
Accounts Receivable for additional information. 

* Current notes receivable decreased by $4 thousand due 
mainly to the reduction in Perkins notes receivable and 
associated allowance as EOU completed the process of 
assigning their remaining Perkins loan receivable back to 
the federal government.  See Note 1 X Perkins Loan Program 
Termination for additional information. 

* Current leases receivable decreased by $468 thousand as 
the result of lease payments received and only one new lease 
signed in fscal year 2021. See Note 8 Leases for additional 
details. 

* Prepaid expenses increased by $8 thousand due primarily to 
increases in prepaid airfare, memberships and subscriptions. 

Noncurrent Assets increased by $5,992 thousand, or 51 per-
cent, primarily due to: 

* Noncurrent cash and cash equivalents decreased by $193 
thousand due primarily to a decrease in cash held for debt 
service payments. 

* Investments increased by $6,796 thousand due primarily 
to the reinvestment of cash balances held in the early part 
of fscal year 2021. In the fourth quarter of fscal year 2020, 
intermediate term investments had been sold in order to 
provide a liquidity cushion for fscal year 2021 in the face of 
uncertainties related to the coronavirus. 

* Noncurrent notes receivable decreased by $12 thousand 
due primarily to a  the reduction in Perkins notes receivable 
and associated allowance as EOU completed the process 
of assigning their remaining Perkins loan receivable back to 
the federal government.  See Note 1 X Perkins Loan Program 
Termination for additional information. 

* Noncurrent leases receivable decreased by $376 thousand 
due to the receipt of prior lease receivables. See Note 8 
Leases for additional details. 

* Net OPEB asset decreased by $223 thousand. See Note 
15 Other Postemployment Benefts (OPEB) for additional 
details. 

Capital Assets, Net increased by $5,766 thousand, or 8 percent. 
Capitalized acquisitions net of disposals and adjustments added 
$9,868 thousand, which was ofset by an increase of $4,102 
thousand in accumulated depreciation. See Note 5 Capital As-
sets for additional information. 

Deferred Outfows of Resources increased by $2,231 thousand, 
or 31 percent. 

* Deferred outflows related to the net pension liability 
increased by $2,095 thousand. 

* Deferred outfows related to the OPEB asset and liabilities 
increased by $136 thousand. 

* See Note 6 Deferred Outfows and Deferred Infows of 
Resources for additional information. 

COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL 
YEAR 2019 

Current Assets increased by $6,379 thousand, or 39 percent, 
primarily due to: 

* Current cash and cash equivalents increased by $7,259 
thousand due primarily to a strategic sell-of of intermediate 
term investments in the fourth quarter of fscal year 2020 in 
order to provide a liquidity cushion for fscal year 2021 in the 
face of uncertainties related to the coronavirus. 

* Accounts receivable increased by $616 thousand. Increases in 
receivables for student tuition and fees and capital construction 
reimbursement from the state and a decrease in the allowance 
for doubtful accounts were ofset by a decrease in receivables 
for state grants. See Note 3 for additional information. 

* Current notes receivable decreased by $1,281 thousand 
due mainly to the receipt of the prior year current note 
receivable from the state for XI-F(1) bonds for capital 
construction and a reduction in Perkins notes receivable and 
associated allowance as EOU began the process of assigning 
their remaining Perkins loan receivable back to the federal 
government.  See Note 1 X Perkins Loan Program Termination 
for additional information. 

* Current leases receivable increased by $17 thousand. See 
Note 8 Leases for additional details. 

* Prepaid expenses increased by $25 thousand due primarily to 
prepaid athletic association dues and prepaid airfare. 

Noncurrent Assets decreased by $3,133 thousand, or 21 per-
cent, primarily due to: 

* Noncurrent cash and cash equivalents increased by $450 
thousand due primarily to a decrease in the spending of 
capital construction funds not yet reimbursed. 

* Investments decreased by $2,407 thousand due primarily to 
the sell-of on intermediate term investments in the fourth 
quarter of fscal year 2020 to provide a liquidity cushion 
for fscal year 2021 in the face of uncertainties related to 
the coronavirus. 

* Noncurrent notes receivable decreased by $491 thousand 
due primarily to a decrease in notes receivable and an 
ofsetting decrease to the allowance for federal Perkins 
loans as EOU began the process of assigning their remaining 



2021 
ANNUAL REPORT 

032 

2021 
ANNUAL REPORT 

033 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS EOU  

 

  
 

  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 

  

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

  
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 

  
 
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

  
 
 
 
 

  

  

 
 

  
 

  
 

  

  

 

 

  
 
  
 
 

         
 
 

          
 

   
 

 

 

  
 
 
 

  

  

 
 

  
 

  
 

  

 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

   

 

  

  
 

   
 

          
                 

           

                 
                      

                             

                       

        

   

               

                       

                           

                                       
                        

                  
                             

                                    
                                

                       
                                         

                     
      

      

  

  

I 

2021

$32,665
66,907

(34,242)

32,028
10,665

8,451

58,151

66,602$

2021

$ 19,753

6,943

5,225

744
32,665

23,675
7,751
635
691

10,027
631

43,410
$ 76,075

Perkins note receivable back to the federal government. See 
Note 1 X for additional information. 

* Noncurrent leases receivable decreased by $826 thousand 
due to the receipt of prior lease receivables. See Note 8 
Leases for additional details. 

* Net OPEB asset increased by $141 thousand. See Note 15 for 
additional details. 

Capital Assets, Net decreased by $393 thousand, or 1 percent. 
Capitalized acquisitions net of disposals and adjustments added 
$4,105 thousand, which was ofset by an increase of $4,498 
thousand in accumulated depreciation. See Note 5 for additional 
information. 

Deferred Outfows of Resources increased by $2 thousand, 
or less than 1 percent. 

* Deferred outflows related to the net pension liability 
increased by $93 thousand. 

* Deferred outfows related to the OPEB asset and liabilities 
decreased by $91 thousand. 

* See Note 6 for additional information. 

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 
Total liabilities increased by $5,858 thousand, or 11 percent, 
during the year ended June 30, 2021. Increases in accounts 
payable and accrued liabilities and net pension liability were 
ofset by decreases in long-term liabilities and unearned reve-
nue. Total liabilities increased by $2,038 thousand, or 4 percent, 
during the year ended June 30, 2020. Increases in accounts 
payable and accrued liabilities, unearned revenue and net pen-
sion liability were ofset by decreases in long-term liabilities 
and net OPEB liability. 

COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL 
YEAR 2020 

Current Liabilities increased by $866 thousand, or 8 percent, 
primarily due to: 

* Accounts payable and accrued liabilities increased by 
$1,527 thousand. Increases in payroll related, services and 
supplies related and contract retainage payables were 
slightly ofset by a decrease in accrued interest payable. 
See Note 7 Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities for 
additional details 

* The current portion of long-term liabilities increased by $19 
thousand due primarily to increases in compensated absence 
liability, SELP and Leases only slightly ofset by decreases in 
the Perkins loan program liability and XI-F contracts payable 
to the State. See Note 9 Long-Term Liabilities for additional 
information. 

* Deposits decreased by $7 thousand primarily due to a 
decrease in funds held for student deposits and student 
clubs slightly ofset by an increase in funds held for donors. 

* Unearned revenue decreased by $581 thousand due to 
decreases in summer session tuition and unearned revenue 
related to federal CARES Act grants. 

Noncurrent Liabilities increased by $4,992 thousand, or 12 
percent. 

* The noncurrent portion of long-term liabilities decreased by 
$1,093 thousand. Decreases were seen in most categories 
of noncurrent long-term liabilities except for compensated 
absences and leases which increased slightly. See Debt 
Administration later in this MD&A and Note 9 Long-Term 
Liabilities for additional details. 

* Net pension liability increased by $6,135 thousand. See Note 
14 Employee Retirement Plans for additional information. 

* OPEB liability decreased by $50 thousand. See Note 15 Other 
Postemployment Benefts (OPEB) for additional information 

Deferred Infows of Resources decreased by $1,369 thousand, 
or 35 percent. 

* Deferred infows related to the net pension liability decreased 
by $479 thousand. 

* Deferred infows related to the OPEB asset and liabilities 
decreased by $35 thousand. 

* Deferred infows related to leases decreased by $855 
thousand. 

* See Note 6 Deferred Outfows and Deferred Infows of 
Resources for detailed information on these changes. 

COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL 
YEAR 2019 

Current Liabilities increased by $1,173 thousand, or 12 percent, 
primarily due to: 

* Accounts payable and accrued liabilities increased by 
$1,160 thousand due to increases in all categories of 
accounts payable with significant increases seen in 
services and supplies related to construction projects and 
general operations as well as payroll related payables. See 
Note 7 for additional details 

* The current portion of long-term liabilities decreased by 
$317 thousand due primarily to decreases in compensated 
absence liability, leases liability and Perkins loan program 
liability. See Note 9 for additional information. 

* Deposits decreased by $26 thousand primarily due to a 
decrease in funds held for student clubs and donors. 

* Unearned revenue increased by $605 thousand due to 
increases in summer session tuition and unearned revenue 
related to federal CARES Act grants. 

Noncurrent Liabilities increased by $865 thousand, or 2 per-
cent. 

* The noncurrent portion of long-term liabilities decreased 
by $2,042 thousand. Decreases were seen in all categories 
of noncurrent long-term liabilities except for compensated 
absences which increased slightly. See Debt Administration 
later in this MD&A and Note 9 for additional details. 

* Net pension liability increased by $3,081 thousand. See Note 
14 for additional information. 

* OPEB liability decreased by $174 thousand. See Note 15 for 
additional information 

Deferred Infows of Resources decreased by $795 thousand, 
or 17 percent. 

* Deferred infows related to the net pension liability decreased 
by $134 thousand. 

* Deferred infows related to the OPEB asset and liabilities 
increased by $177 thousand. 

* Deferred infows related to leases decreased by $838 
thousand. 

* See Note 6 for detailed information on these changes. 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN 
NET POSITION (SRE) 
Due to the classifcation of certain revenues as nonoperating 
revenue, EOU shows a loss from operations. State general fund 
appropriations, nonexchange grants and non-capital gifts, al-
though considered nonoperating revenue under GASB State-
ment No. 35 and refected accordingly in the nonoperating 
section of the SRE, are used solely for operating purposes. 

The following summarizes the revenue and expense activity 
of EOU: 

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position (in 000’s) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019 

Operating Revenues $32,665 $ 28,819 $ 29,141 
Operating Expenses 66,907 61,656 59,822 

Operating Loss (34,242) (32,837) (30,681) 

Nonoperating Revenues, Net of Expenses 32,028 30,423 28,590 
Other Revenues 10,665 4,026 3,564 

Increase in Net Position 8,451 1,612 1,473 

Net Position, Beginning of Year 58,151 56,539 55,074 

Net Position, End of Year $66,602 $ 58,151 $ 56,539 

Revenues 
Total revenues increased by $11,764 thousand, or 18 percent in 
2021 over 2020. The increase was primarily due to increases 
in student tuition and fees, operating grants and contracts, 
capital grants and gifts, appropriations and fnancial aid grants 
slightly ofset by decreases in auxiliary enterprises, investment 
activity and other nonoperating items. 

Total Operating and Nonoperating Revenues (in 000’s) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019 

Student Tuition and Fees $ 19,753 $ 17,751 $ 17,598 

Grants and Contracts 6,943 4,390 4,465 

Auxiliary Enterprises 5,225 5,827 6,159 

Educational and Other 744 851 919 
Total Operating Revenues 32,665 28,819 29,141 

Appropriations 23,675 22,865 21,452 
Financial Aid Grants 7,751 6,836 6,828 
Gifts 635 587 812 
Investment Activity 691 1,084 1,068 
Capital Grants and Gifts 10,027 3,388 2,926 
Other Nonoperating Items 631 732 115 

Total Nonoperating and Other Revenues 43,410 35,492 33,201
 Total Revenues $ 76,075 $ 64,311 $ 62,342 

Total Operating and Nonoperating Revenues (in 000’s) 
Operating Revenues 

$- $5,000 $10,000 $15,000 $20,000 $25,000 

Student Tuition and Fees 

Operating Grants and Contracts 

Auxiliary Enterprises 

Educational and Other Revenues 

Appropriations 

Other Nonoperating Revenues 

2021 2020 2019 

Operating revenues increased by $3,846 thousand in 2021, or 13 
percent, over 2020, to $32,665 thousand. This increase is due to 
increases in student tuition and fees and operating grants and 
contracts slightly ofset by decreases in auxiliary enterprises 
and educational and other revenues. Operating revenues de-
creased by $322 thousand in 2020, or 1 percent, over 2019, to 
$28,819 thousand. This decrease is due to decreases in most 
categories of operating revenue with the largest decrease in 
auxiliary enterprise revenues. These decreases were ofset by 
an increase in student tuition and fees revenue. 

COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL 
YEAR 2020 

Net Student Tuition and Fees increased by $2,002 thousand, 
or 11 percent, primarily due to: 

* Tuition and fees increased by $2,469 thousand. Tuition 
increased by $2,472 thousand due primarily to rate increases. 
Fees decreased by $3 thousand. 

* Fee remissions and scholarship allowances reduced tuition 
and fees by $294 thousand more than in the previous year. 
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* Bad debt expense, primarily related to the maintenance of 
the allowance for bad debt, increased by $171 thousand, 
resulting in a decrease to net tuition and fees. 

Federal, State and Nongovernmental Grants and Contracts 
increased by $2,553 thousand, or 58 percent. 

* Federal grant and contract revenues decreased by $18 
thousand due primarily to decreased Department of 
Education fnancial aid grants somewhat ofset by increased 
Department of Health and Human Services grants for Head 
Start funding. 

* State grant revenue increased by $2,690 thousand primarily 
due to increases in grants from the Oregon Department of 
Education for pre-kindergarten programs and emergency 
child care. 

* Nongovernmental grant activity decreased by $119 thousand 
due primarily to decreases in grants from commercial 
businesses, non-affiliated foundations and the EOU 
Foundation slightly ofset by increased grants from the 
private individuals. 

Auxiliary Enterprises revenues decreased by $602 thousand, 
or 10 percent. 

* Housing and dining revenues decreased by $23 thousand 
as a result of decreases in events revenue slightly ofset by 
increased rental and food services revenue. 

* Student health service revenues increased by $22 thousand 
due to increased student health fee revenues. 

* Athletics revenues decreased by $131 thousand due primarily 
to decreased event and general sales revenues. 

* Parking revenues decreased by $46 thousand due to 
decreased fees and permits revenue. 

* Student centers and activities decreased by $286 thousand 
due to decreased student incidental fees, other fees, and 
services revenue which mostly resulted from decreased fees 
and events due to the pandemic-caused campus closure. 

* Other auxiliary revenues decreased by $138 thousand due 
primarily to decreases in property lease revenues. 

Educational and Other Operating Revenues decreased by 
$107 thousand, or 13 percent. 

* Educational Department Sales and Services revenues 
decreased by $42 thousand, primarily due to decreased 
camp and clinic and sales income slightly ofset by increased 
fees and lease revenue. 

* Other Operating revenues decreased by $65 thousand, 
primarily due to decreased miscellaneous revenues for youth 
and athletic camps and interest on student loans slightly 
ofset by increase general interest income and insurance 
recoveries from FEMA. 

COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL 
YEAR 2019 

Net Student Tuition and Fees increased by $153 thousand, or 
less than 1 percent, primarily due to: 

* Tuition and fees increased by $579 thousand. Tuition 
increased by $636 thousand due primarily to rate increases, 
ofset by a slight decline in enrollment. Fees decreased by 
$57 thousand. 

* Fee remissions and scholarship allowances reduced tuition 
and fees by $461 thousand more than in the previous year. 

* Bad debt expense, primarily related to the maintenance of 
the allowance for bad debt, decreased by $35 thousand, 
resulting in an increase to net tuition and fees. 

Federal, State and Nongovernmental Grants and Contracts 
decreased by $75 thousand, or 2 percent. 

* Federal grant and contract revenues increased by $283 
thousand due primarily to increased Department of Education 
fnancial aid grants and Department of Health and Human 
Services grants for Head Start funding, somewhat ofset by 
the end of a pass-through grants for watershed work. 

* State grant revenue decreased by $431 thousand primarily 
due to decreases in grants from the Oregon Department of 
Education for STEM hubs and pre-kindergarten programs. 

* Nongovernmental grant activity increased by $73 thousand 
due primarily to increased grants from non-affiliated 
foundations and associations slightly ofset by decreased 
grants from the EOU Foundation. 

Auxiliary Enterprises revenues decreased by $332 thousand, 
or 5 percent. 

* Housing and dining revenues decreased by $567 thousand. 
Revenues from events, rentals, food service and housing 
charges were severely impacted by the university moving 
to remote teaching in March 2020. The EOU campus closure 
and subsequent remote transition in Spring 2020 was a 
direct result of the Governor’s “stay home” order, in response 
to the unexpected coronavirus pandemic. 

* Student health service revenues decreased by $48 thousand 
due to decreased student health fees.  Fees were reduced 
for Spring Term as a result of the campus closure during the 
coronavirus pandemic. 

* Athletics revenues increased by $138 thousand due primarily 
to an increased allocation of student incidental fees and 
increased event revenues from the summer prior to the 
pandemic. 

* Parking revenues decreased by $10 thousand due to 
decreased fnes revenue spring term during campus closure. 

* Student centers and activities decreased by $83 thousand 
due to decreased student incidental fees, other fees, permits, 
and services revenue. Fees were reduced for Spring Term 

as a result of the campus closure during the coronavirus 
pandemic. 

* Other auxiliary revenues increased by $228 thousand due 
primarily to increases in property lease revenues slightly 
ofset by a decreased allocation of student incidental fee 
revenue. 

Educational and Other Operating Revenues decreased by 
$68 thousand, or 7 percent. 

* Educational Department Sales and Services revenues 
decreased by $140 thousand, primarily due to decreased 
camp and clinic and event income.  Numerous events and 
contracts were canceled in the spring of 2020 as a result of 
the pandemic-caused campus closure. 

* Other Operating revenues increased by $72 thousand, 
primarily due to increased miscellaneous revenues for youth 
and athletic camps. 

Nonoperating and Other Revenues 
Nonoperating and other revenues increased by $7,918 thou-
sand, or 22 percent, during 2021. Increases in appropriations, 
fnancial aid grants, gifts and capital grants and gifts were 
only slightly ofset by decreases in investment activity and 
other nonoperating items. Nonoperating revenues increased 
by $2,291 thousand, or 7 percent, during 2020. Increases in 
appropriations, fnancial aid grants, investment activity, cap-
ital grants and gifts and other nonoperating items were only 
slightly ofset by a decrease in gifts. 

COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL 
YEAR 2020 

Government Appropriations increased by $810 thousand, or 
4 percent. 

* State appropriations in support of university operations 
increased by $505 thousand due to increased general 
university support. 

* State appropriations for SELP debt service remained 
unchanged. 

* State appropriations from sports lottery increased by $305 
thousand due to increased support from the state. 

See Note 13 Government Appropriations for additional infor-
mation relating to changes in appropriations. 

Financial Aid Grants increased by $915 thousand, or 13 percent. 
Increases in federal aid resulting from COVID-19 relief fund-
ing and state need grants were slightly ofset by decreases in 
federal Pell grants. 

Gifts increased by $48 thousand, or 8 percent, due primarily 
to increased gifts from the EOU Foundation slightly ofset by 
decreases in gifts from private individuals and commercial 
businesses. 

Investment Activity decreased by $393 thousand, or 36 per-
cent. Decreases in investment earnings and loss on sale of 
investments was only slightly ofset by net appreciation of 
investments. See Note 11 Investment Activity for additional 
information. 

Capital Grants and Gifts increased by $6,639 thousand, or 196 
percent, due to increased federal grant and contracts, state 
XI-Q and state lottery grants revenue. 

Other Nonoperating Items decreased by $101 thousand, or 
14 percent, due primarily to a loss on debt refunding of XI-F 
bonds and a decrease in the Perkins Loan Program Liability as 
EOU completed the process of assigning remaining loans to 
the federal government ofset by an increase in COVID-19 relief 
funding for institutional support purposes. 

COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL 
YEAR 2019 

Government Appropriations increased by $1,413 thousand, 
or 7 percent. 

* State appropriations in support of university operations 
increased by $802 thousand due to increased general 
university support. 

* State appropriations for SELP debt service remained 
unchanged. 

* State appropriations from sports lottery increased by $611 
thousand due to increased support from the state. 

See Note 13 for additional information relating to changes in 
appropriations. 

Financial Aid Grants increased by $8 thousand, or less than 1 
percent. An increase in federal aid resulting from the CARES 
Act was ofset by decreases in state need grants and federal 
Pell grants. 

Gifts decreased by $225 thousand, or 28 percent, due primarily 
to decreased gifts from the EOU Foundation. 

Investment Activity increased by $16 thousand, or 1 percent. 
Increases in investment earnings and gain on sale of invest-
ments was mostly ofset by net depreciation of investments. 
See Note 11 for additional information. 

Capital Grants and Gifts increased by $462 thousand, or 16 
percent, due to increased state XI-Q and lottery grants rev-
enue somewhat ofset by decreased State of Oregon capital 
appropriations. 

Other Nonoperating Items increased by $617 thousand, or 537 
percent, due primarily to a decrease in the Perkins Loan Program 
Liability as EOU began the process of assigning remaining loans 
to the federal government and the receipt of CARES Act funding 
for institutional support purposes. 
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2021

$ 16,811
180

5,221
10,689
3,205
7,693

10,386
3,780
4,833
4,109

$ 66,907

66,907$ $ 63,343 $ 3,564

2021

$43,994
13,043

5,175
4,663

32

66,907$

EXPENSES 

Operating Expenses 
Operating expenses increased by $5,251 thousand in 2021, or 
9 percent, to $66,907 thousand, compared to 2020. During 
2021 increases in most categories were ofset by decreases in 
research and auxiliary programs. Operating expenses increased 
by $1,834 thousand in 2020, or 3 percent, to $61,656 thousand, 
compared to 2019. During 2020 increases in instruction, public 
service, academic support, institutional support, student aid 
and other operating expenses were ofset by decreases in 
research, student services, auxiliary programs and facilities 
operations and maintenance. 

The following summarizes operating expenses by functional 
classifcation: 

Operating Expense by Function (in 000’s) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019 

Instruction $ 16,811 $ 16,673 $ 15,969 
Research 180 354 604 
Public Service 5,221 3,382 3,007 
Academic Support 10,689 7,829 7,520 
Student Services 3,205 3,144 3,260 
Auxiliary Programs 7,693 8,029 8,253 
Institutional Support 10,386 10,087 9,690 
Operation and Maint. of Plant 3,780 3,666 3,747 
Student Aid 4,833 4,529 4,040 
Other Operating Expenses 4,109 3,963 3,732 

Total Operating Expenses $ 66,907 $ 61,656 $ 59,822 

2021 Operating Expense by Function 

Institutional 
Support 

16% 
Operation & 

Maintenance of Plant 
6% 

Student Aid 
7% 

Other Operating 
Expenses 

6% 
Instruction 

27% 

Research 
1% 

Public 
Service 

6% 

Academic 
Support 

13% 

Student 
Services 

5% 

Auxiliary 
Programs 

13% 

The implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Pensions—an amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 27 and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transi-
tion for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement 
Date - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68 beginning 
with fscal year 2015 and GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefts Other 
Than Pensions beginning with fscal year 2018 has had a sig-
nifcant impact on the operating expenses reported by EOU. 

The following shows the efect of GASB Statement Nos. 68, 
71 and 75 on operating expenses across the functional clas-
sifcations: 

Efect of GASB Statement Nos. 68, 71 and 75 on Expense 
by Function (in 000’s) 

Without 
As GASB 68/71 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 Reported & 75 Difference 

Instruction $ 16,811 $ 15,736 $ 1,075 
Research 180 171 9 
Public Service 5,221 4,874 347 
Academic Support 10,689 9,981 708 
Student Services 3,205 2,946 259 
Auxiliary Programs 7,693 7,438 255 
Institutional Support 10,386 10,087 299 
Operation and Maint. of Plant 3,780 3,174 606 
Student Aid 4,833 4,833 -
Other Operating Expenses 4,109 4,103 6 

Total Operating Expenses $ 66,907 $ 63,343 $ 3,564 

Without 
As GASB 68/71 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 Reported & 75 Difference 

Instruction $ 16,673 $ 15,710 $ 963 
Research 354 332 22 
Public Service 3,382 3,196 186 
Academic Support 7,829 7,315 514 
Student Services 3,144 2,943 201 
Auxiliary Programs 8,029 7,837 192 
Institutional Support 10,087 9,865 222 
Operation and Maint. of Plant 3,666 3,176 490 
Student Aid 4,529 4,529 -
Other Operating Expenses 3,963 3,947 16 

Total Operating Expenses $ 61,656 $ 58,850 $ 2,806 

Without 
As GASB 68/71 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 Reported & 75 Difference 

Instruction $ 15,969 $ 15,401 $ 568 
Research 604 590 14 
Public Service 3,007 2,908 99 
Academic Support 7,520 7,230 290 
Student Services 3,260 3,136 124 
Auxiliary Programs 8,253 8,137 116 
Institutional Support 9,690 9,560 130 
Operation and Maint. of Plant 3,747 3,478 269 
Student Aid 4,040 4,040 -
Other Operating Expenses 3,732 3,724 8 

Total Operating Expenses $ 59,822 $ 58,204 $ 1,618 

Without the adjustments to compensation and benefts re-
quired under GASB Statement Nos. 68, 71 and 75, total op-
erating expenses for EOU would have increased by $4,493 
thousand, or 8 percent, during 2021 and by $646 thousand, 
or 1 percent, during 2020. 

Operating Expenses by Nature 
Due to the way in which expenses are incurred by EOU, vari-
ances are presented and explained by analyzing changes in the 
natural classifcation of expenses. Each natural classifcation 
analysis can be applied to many of the functional expense 
caption items. 

The following summarizes operating expenses by 
natural classifcation: 

Operating Expenses by Natural Classification (in 000’s) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019 

Compensation and Benefits $43,994 $ 41,560 $ 39,383 
Services and Supplies 13,043 10,555 11,856 
Scholarships and Fellowships 5,175 4,107 4,075 
Depreciation and Amortizatio 4,663 4,554 4,306 
Other Expenses 32 880 202 

Total Operating Expenses $66,907 $ 61,656 $ 59,822 

2021 Operating Expenses by Natural Classification 

CCoommppeennssaattiioonn aanndd 
BBeenneeffiittss 

6666%% 

SSeerrvviicceess aanndd 
SSuupppplliieess 

1199%% 

SScchhoollaarrsshhiippss aanndd 
FFeelllloowwsshhiippss 

88%% 

DDeepprreecciiaattiioonn aanndd 
AAmmoorrttiizzaattiioonn 

77%% 
OOtthheerr EExxppeennsseess 

00%% 

COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL 
YEAR 2020 

Compensation and Benefts costs increased by $2,434 thou-
sand, or 6 percent. 

* Salary and wage costs increased by $1,075 thousand. Increase 
are attributed to increased employee FTE, increased wages 
and new hires to meet work demands. 

* Retirement and health insurance costs increased by 
$470 thousand. 

* Other payroll expenses increased by $171 thousand. 

* Other costs associated with compensation and benefts 
decreased by $25 thousand due to decreased staf tuition 
and fee benefts. 

* The adjustment of the PERS state and local government rate 
pool (SLGRP) decreased compensation and beneft costs 
by $14 thousand. 

* Adjustments and accruals associated with the net pension 
liability reporting requirement of GASB Statement Nos. 68 
and 71 increased by $706 thousand. See the GASB 68/71/75 
table to the left and Note 14 Employee Retirement Plans for 
additional information on this variance. 

* Adjustments and accruals associated with the OPEB asset/ 
(liability) reporting requirement of GASB Statement No. 75 
increased by $51 thousand. See table on the previous page 

and Note 15 Other Postemployment Benefts (OPEB) for 
additional information on this variance. 

Services and Supplies expenses increased by $2,488 thousand, 
or 24 percent, during 2021 due primarily to increases in minor 
equipment, online program management services and medical 
and scientifc services for COVID-19 testing, which were slightly 
ofset by continued decreases in employee and student travel. 

Scholarships and Fellowships increased by $1,068 thousand, 
or 26 percent. Decreases in federal TEACH and Pell aid were 
more than ofset by new student aid funding under the CARES 
Act and COVID-19 relief funding as well as increases in SEOG 
aid. Increases were also seen in institutional aid, private aid 
and state aid. This expense category does not include fee re-
missions, which are reported as reductions to student tuition 
and fee revenues. 

Depreciation and Amortization increased by $109 thousand, 
or 2 percent due primarily to increases in depreciation for build-
ings, infrastructure and right-of-use lease assets. Major capi-
tal projects completed during fscal year 2021 include a HVAC 
maintenance project in Badgley Hall, a campus-wide fber optic 
upgrade, fuel system replacement for Facilities, Ackerman ADA 
access, and completion of a few other smaller deferred main-
tenance projects. 

Other Operating Expenses decreased by $848 thousand, or 96 
percent, due to a decrease in federal student loans assigned to 
the federal government as the university completed the close 
out of the Perkins Loan Program. 

COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL 
YEAR 2019 

Compensation and Benefts costs increased by $2,177 thou-
sand, or 6 percent. 

* Salary and wage costs increased by $245 thousand. Increases 
in wages were ofset by decreases in FTE as a result of the 
coronavirus pandemic. Due to the unexpected campus 
closure, the university enrolled in the State of Oregon work-
share program in May of 2020, which resulted in less work 
hours for staf. 

* Retirement and health insurance costs increased by 
$802 thousand. 

* Other payroll expenses decreased by $63 thousand. 

* Other costs associated with compensation and benefts 
increased by $30 thousand due to increased staf tuition 
and fee benefts. 

* The adjustment of the PERS state and local government rate 
pool (SLGRP) decreased compensation and beneft costs 
by $25 thousand. 

* Adjustments and accruals associated with the net pension 
liability reporting requirement of GASB Statement Nos. 68 
and 71 increased by $1,154 thousand. See the GASB 68/71/75 
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table to the left and Note 14 for additional information on 
this variance. 

* Adjustments and accruals associated with the OPEB asset/ 
(liability) reporting requirement of GASB Statement No. 75 
increased by $34 thousand. See table on the previous page 
and Note 15 for additional information on this variance. 

Services and Supplies expenses decreased by $1,301 thousand, 
or 11 percent, during 2020 due primarily to impacts of the 
coronavirus pandemic and the Spring 2020 campus closure. 
These savings were seen across many categories including 
minor equipment, subscriptions, utilities, professional services, 
travel and other services and supplies. 

Scholarships and Fellowships increased by $32 thousand, or 
1 percent. Decreases in federal TEACH, NSF, Pell and SEOG aid 
were more than ofset by new student aid funding under the 
CARES Act. Decreases were also seen in institutional and private 
aid. State aid increased slightly due to an increase in sports 
lottery appropriations. This expense category does not include 
fee remissions, which are reported as reductions to student 
tuition and fee revenues. 

Depreciation and Amortization increased by $248 thousand, 
or 6 percent. Increases in depreciation for buildings and land 
improvements resulted from newly completed construction 
projects being put into service. Major capital projects complet-
ed during fscal year 2020 included a full roof replacement on 
Ackerman Hall and Loso Hall, addition of a new building and 
land located by Community Stadium, and completion of a few 
other smaller outstanding deferred maintenance projects. 

Other Operating Expenses increased by $678 thousand, or 336 
percent, due to an increase in federal student loans assigned to 
the federal government. 

Nonoperating Expenses 

COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL 
YEAR 2020 

Interest Expense decreased by $316 thousand, or 31 percent, 
primarily due to decreases in bond interest, SELP interest and 
SLGRP interest. 

COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL 
YEAR 2019 

Interest Expense increased by $9 thousand, or 1 percent, pri-
marily due to increased bond interest somewhat ofset by 
decreased SELP interest. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Capital Assets 
At June 30, 2021, EOU had $160,529 thousand in capital assets, 
less accumulated depreciation of $81,374 thousand, for net 
capital assets of $79,155 thousand. At June 30, 2020, EOU had 

$150,661 thousand in capital assets, less accumulated depre-
ciation of $77,272 thousand, for net capital assets of $73,389 
thousand. EOU is committed to a comprehensive program 
of capital investment and facility maintenance that includes 
addressing current maintenance needs and minimizing EOU’s 
deferred maintenance backlog. State, federal, private, debt, 
and internal EOU funding are all used to accomplish EOU’s 
capital objectives. 

2021 Capital Assets, Net - $79,155 Thousand 

Infrastructure 
3% 

Land and 
Improvements 

10% 

Changes to Capital Assets (in 000’s) 
As of June 30, 2021 2020 2019 

Capital Assets, Beginning of Year $ 150,661 $ 146,556 $ 141,812 

Add: Purchases/Construction 10,490 4,215 6,806 

Less: Retirements/Disposals/Adjustments (622) (110) (2,062) 

Total Capital Assets, End of Year 160,529 150,661 146,556 

Accum. Depreciation, Beginning of Year (77,272) (72,774) (68,773) 

Add: Depreciation Expense (4,663) (4,554) (4,306) 

Less: Retirements/Disposals/Adjustments 561 56 305 

Total Accum. Depreciation, End of Year (81,374) (77,272) (72,774) 

Total Capital Assets, Net, End of Year $ 79,155 $ 73,389 $ 73,782 

Capital additions totaled $10,490 thousand for 2021, $4,215 
thousand for 2020, and $6,806 thousand for 2019. 

During 2021, capital additions included $7,878 thousand for 
construction in progress (CIP) for buildings and infrastruc-
ture; $810 thousand for land; $780 thousand for infrastruc-
ture; $412 thousand for equipment; $307 thousand for library 
materials; $131 thousand for buildings; $112 thousand for ROU 
Leases Space; $30 thousand of ROU leased equipment; and 
$30 thousand for land improvements. The large increase for 
CIP during 2021 includes continued construction of the Loso 
Hall Phase I Project and the new EOU Field House as well as a 
new Head Start modular building in La Grande. During 2020, 
capital additions included $2,041 thousand for construction in 
progress (CIP) for buildings and infrastructure; $68 thousand 
for land; $234 thousand for equipment; $303 thousand for 
library materials; $1,523 thousand for buildings; $13 thousand 
for land improvements; $9 thousand for improvements other 
than buildings; and $24 thousand for ROU leased equipment. 
The addition for CIP during 2020 includes the Loso Hall Phase 

I Project and the new EOU Field House. During 2019, capital 
additions included $1,646 thousand for construction in prog-
ress (CIP) for buildings and infrastructure; $336 thousand for 
equipment; $313 thousand for library materials; $4,073 thou-
sand for land improvements; and $148 thousand for buildings. 

Debt Administration 
During 2021, long-term debt held by EOU decreased by $972 
thousand, or 5 percent, from $19,832 thousand to $18,860 
thousand. 

* EOU made debt service principal payments totaling $1,504 
thousand on outstanding long-term debt. 

* Net change in long-term debt due to refunding was $495 
thousand. 

* EOU’s obligation for accreted interest on outstanding debt 
decreased by a net $8 thousand. 

* EOU added new debt of $152 thousand for new leases and 
made principal payments of $107 thousand on capital leases 
for a net change of $45 thousand in lease liabilities. 

During 2020, long-term debt held by EOU decreased by $1,502 
thousand, or 7 percent, from $21,334 thousand to $19,832 thou-
sand. 

* EOU made debt service principal payments totaling $1,380 
thousand on outstanding long-term debt. 

* EOU’s obligation for accreted interest on outstanding debt 
decreased by a net $60 thousand. 

* EOU added new debt of $24 thousand for new leases and 
made principal payments of $86 thousand on leases for a 
net decrease of $62 thousand in lease liabilities. 

See Note 9 Long-Term Liabilities for additional information. 

Long-term Debt (in 000,000’s) 

$-
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$15

 $20

 $25 

2021 2020 2019 

Other 

Oregon Department 
of Energy Loans 

State of Oregon 
Contracts Payable 

ECONOMIC 
OUTLOOK 
Funding for the major activities of EOU comes from a variety 
of sources including tuition and fees, fnancial aid programs, 
federal and state appropriations, grants, private and government 
contracts, donor gifts, and investment earnings. Revenues are 
also generated through recovery of costs associated with fed-
eral grants and contract activities, which serve to ofset related 
administrative and facilities costs at the university. 

State funding levels continue to challenge EOU’s ability to meet 
its public mission of teaching, research and service. While the 
state has made some investment in higher education over the 
last few years, it is still dramatically lower than the per student 
level of state contribution that existed prior to the last recession. 
Looking ahead, the state held our funding fat for the coming 
biennium. This low level of state support, combined with rising 
expenses, particularly compensation costs, has put increasing 
pressure on the institution to raise tuition. 

For the 2020-21 academic year, the EOU Board of Trustees ap-
proved a 4.2% increase for undergraduate resident tuition and 
a 7.1% increase for undergraduate of campus programs. In 
addition, non-resident on campus and graduate programs were 
increased by 4.5%. For the 2021-22 academic year, the Board 
approved the university’s recommendation to freeze undergrad-
uate on campus tuition, as well as of campus undergraduate 
resident tuition. The institution implemented an of campus 
non-resident tuition rate for new students and increased grad-
uate tuition by 2.15%. EOU continues to maintain tuition levels 
at the lowest in the state for all Oregon public universities. In-
creases in revenue were allocated to support current and future 
investments, which aligned with the goals in the Ascent 2029. 

The University is focused on responsible stewardship of its f-
nancial resources. The unexpected impacts of the Coronavirus 
over the last 18 months have certainly reiterated the importance 
of the University’s need to keep adapting to a changing fnancial 
environment. EOU will continue to face intense economic pres-
sures from competition, uncertainties in state funding, signifcant 
operating cost escalators and efects of the Coronavirus. EOU 
emerged from the pandemic in a position of strength, both 
operationally and fnancially. During the year, EOU focused 
resources on assisting students fnancially, physically and emo-
tionally to ensure their academic success during the pandemic. 
The longer-term impacts of the pandemic, however, create a 
great deal of uncertainty and complicate our ability to predict 
future economic trends. 

EOU remains challenged to balance the investment of state 
funding with aspirations related to Oregon’s 40/40/20 goals: 
40 percent of all adult Oregonians to hold a bachelor’s or ad-
vanced degree; 40 percent to have an associates’ degree or 
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2021

Viability Ratio 0.74
Primary Reserve Ratio 0.22
Net Revenues Ratio -3.07%
Return on Net Assets Ratio 13.84%
Debt Burden Ratio 2.46%

meaningful postsecondary certifcate; and all remaining adult 
Oregonians to hold a high school diploma or equivalent by the 
year 2025. Eastern is committed to increasing enrollment and 
assisting Oregon in meeting the 40/40/20 goals, as seen in the 
recent approval of nine additional academic degree programs, 
one certifcation and bolstering two existing graduate programs. 
The approval of future graduate programs is also on the horizon. 

The EOU Board of Trustees and university leadership have re-
afrmed their commitment to meeting these challenges by 
adopting the Ascent 2029 university strategic plan, which fo-

cuses on student success, transformational education, building a 
thriving university community, bolstering enrollment, relevance 
and interconnection, and fnancial sustainability. The plan focus-
es on ensuring the long-term fnancial health of the institution 
by actively seeking operating efciencies, diversifying funding 
sources, and acting on the primary goal of graduating students 
with the competencies and confdence to succeed. FINANCIAL RATIOS 

2021 2020 2019 
Viability Ratio (expendable net position to long-term debt) 0.74 0.54 0.41 
Primary Reserve Ratio (expendable net position to operating expenses) 0.22 0.18 0.15 
Net Revenues Ratio (total net income to total revenues) -3.07% -3.95% -3.75% 
Return on Net Assets Ratio (change in net position to beginning net position) 13.84% 4.89% 2.30% 
Debt Burden Ratio (debt service to total expenditures) 

VIABILITY RATIO 
The viability ratio is a measure of clear fnancial health; the 
availability of expendable net position to cover debt should 
the University need to settle its obligations as of the fscal 
year end. Expendable net position is the balance in total net 
position excluding investment in capital assets and non-ex-
pendable endowments of the University plus the unrestricted 
and temporarily restricted net assets of the component unit. 
Long-term debt includes bonds, loans and capital leases pay-
able by the University as well as the long-term liabilities of 
the component unit. A ratio of 1.00 or greater indicates an 
institution has sufcient expendable net position to satisfy 
debt requirements. EOU’s Viability Ratio was 0.74 for fscal 
year 2021. 

PRIMARY RESERVE RATIO 
The primary reserve ratio, calculated by dividing expendable 
net position by operating expenses, measures the ability of 
the University to continue operating at current levels, within 
current restrictions, without future revenues. Expendable net 
position is the balance in total net position excluding invest-
ment in capital assets and non-expendable endowments of 
the University plus the unrestricted and temporarily restrict-
ed net assets of the component unit. Total operating expens-
es include the operating expenses and interest expenses of 
both the University and the component unit. Proof of an ad-
equate reserve ratio is often required to secure long-term f-
nancing. A ratio of 1.0 denotes that an institution would have 
the ability to cover its expenses for one year without a reve-
nue stream. EOU’s Primary Reserve Ratio was 0.22 for fscal 
year 2021. 

2.46% 2.79% 2.87% 

NET REVENUES RATIO 
The net revenues ratio indicates whether the University has 
an operating surplus or defcit for the year. Total net income 
includes operating income (loss) plus net nonoperating reve-
nues of the University, excluding capital gifts and debt service 
appropriations, plus total change in unrestricted net assets 
of the component unit. Total revenues include operating and 
net nonoperating revenues of the University plus unrestricted 
revenues, gains and other support of the component unit. A 
positive ratio would indicate that the University experienced 
an operating surplus for the year. EOU’s Net Revenues Ratio 
was -3.07 percent for fscal year 2021. 

RETURN ON NET ASSETS RATIO 
The return on net assets ratio determines whether the Uni-
versity is fnancially better of than in previous years by mea-
suring total economic return. Total change in net position 
includes the change in net position for the University plus 
the change in total net assets for the component unit. Total 
beginning net position includes the beginning net position 
of the University plus the total beginning net assets of the 
component unit. A positive ratio indicates a net increase in 
total net position at the end of the year. EOU’s Return on Net 
Assets Ratio for fscal year 2021 was 13.84 percent. 

DEBT BURDEN RATIO 
The debt burden ratio measures the cost of servicing the 
debt of the University. This ratio examines the institution’s 
dependence on borrowed funds as a source of fnancing its 
mission and the relative cost of borrowing to overall expen-
ditures. It compares the level of current debt service with the 
institution’s total expenditures. Total debt service includes 
the interest and principal payments on capital debt of both 
the University and the component unit. Total expenditures 
includes total expenses, including any loss on sale of assets 
and transfers, less depreciation plus debt service principal 
payments of both the University and the component unit. 
EOU’s Debt Burden Ratio for fscal year 2021 was 2.46 per-
cent. 
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OREGON 
UNIVERSITY 

As of June 30, 2021

ASSETS
Current Assets

$ 12,907
247

8,190
7

375
7

62
Total Current Assets 21,795

Noncurrent Assets
257

16,361
2

1,093
75

79,155
Total Noncurrent Assets 96,943
Total Assets $ 118,738

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES (Note 6) $ 9,342

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

$ 6,196
260
247

2,921
2,300

Total Current Liabilites 11,924
Noncurrent Liabilities

18,970
26,950

1,066
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 46,986
Total Liabilities $ 58,910

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES (Note 6) $ 2,568

NET POSITION
$ 60,313

554

1,485
142
28

249
75

3,756
Total Net Position $ 66,602

As of December 31, 2020

ASSETS
$ 3,448

366
15,899

496
351

1,100
Total Assets $ 21,660

LIABILITIES
$ 19

1,602
73

Total Liabilities $ 1,694

NET ASSETS
$ 1,248

18,718
Total Net Assets $ 19,966

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 21,660$

EASTERN OREGON UNIVERSITY 
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 
As of June 30, 2021 2020 

as Restated 
ASSETS (In thousands) 
Current Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2) $ 12,907 $ 15,919 
Collateral from Securities Lending (Note 2) 247 339 
Accounts Receivable, Net (Note 3) 8,190 5,669 
Notes Receivable, Net (Note 4) 7 11 
Leases Receivable (Note 8) 375 843 
Inventories 7 9 
Prepaid Expenses 62 54 

Total Current Assets 21,795 22,844 
Noncurrent Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2) 257 450 
Investments (Note 2) 16,361 9,565 
Notes Receivable, Net (Note 4) 2 14 
Leases Receivable (Note 8) 1,093 1,469 
Net OPEB Asset (Note 15) 75 298 
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation (Note 5) 79,155 73,389 

Total Noncurrent Assets 96,943 85,185 
Total Assets $ 118,738 $ 108,029 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES (Note 6) $ 9,342 $ 7,111 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (Note 7) $ 6,196 $ 4,669 
Deposits 260 267 
Obligations Under Securities Lending (Note 2) 247 339 
Current Portion of Long-Term Liabilities (Note 9) 2,921 2,902 
Unearned Revenues 2,300 2,881 

Total Current Liabilites 11,924 11,058 
Noncurrent Liabilities 

Long-Term Liabilities  (Note 9) 18,970 20,063 
Net Pension Liability (Note 14) 26,950 20,815 
OPEB Liability (Note 15) 1,066 1,116 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 46,986 41,994 
Total Liabilities $ 58,910 $ 53,052 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES (Note 6) $ 2,568 $ 3,937 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 60,313 $ 53,584 
Restricted For: 

Nonexpendable Endowments 554 554 
Expendable: 

Gifts, Grants and Contracts 1,485 1,216 
Student Loans 142 158 
Capital Projects 28 79 
Debt Service 249 318 
OPEB Asset 75 298 

Unrestricted (Note 10) 3,756 1,944 
Total Net Position $ 66,602 $ 58,151 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

EOU FOUNDATION 
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
As of December 31, 2020 2019 

(In thousands) 
ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,448 $ 3,299 
Pledges Receivable, Net 366 477 
Investments (Note 2) 15,899 13,864 
Assets Held Under Split-Interest Agreements 496 461 
Beneficial Interests 351 261 
Property and Equipment, Net 1,100 1,103 
Total Assets $ 21,660 $ 19,465 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 
Accounts Payable to University 
Revocable Donor Endowment 

$ 19 
1,602 

73 

$ 18 
1,516 

38 
Total Liabilities $ 1,694 $ 1,572 

NET ASSETS 
Without Donor Restrictions $ 1,248 $ 1,084 
With Donor Restrictions 18,718 16,809 
Total Net Assets $ 19,966 $ 17,893 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 21,660 $ 19,465 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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OREGON 
UNIVERSITY 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

OPERATING REVENUES
$ 19,753

2,790
3,899

254
262

5,225
482

Total Operating Revenues 32,665

OPERATING EXPENSES

Total Operating Expenses

16,811
180

5,221
10,689
3,205
7,693

10,386
3,780
4,833
4,109

66,907
Operating Loss (34,242)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
23,037

7,751
635
691

-
(717)
631

Net Nonoperating Revenues 32,028
Loss Before Other Revenues (2,214)

Total Other Revenues

638
10,027
10,665

Increase In Net Position 8,451

NET POSITION
58,151

Ending Balance 66,602$

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
REVENUES

$ 469
26

713
2

216
Total Revenues 1,426

EXPENSES
707
249
306

Total Expenses 1,262
Increase (Decrease) In Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 164

Beginning Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 1,084
Ending Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 1,248

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
REVENUES

1,217
1,192

(2)
215

(713)
Increase In Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 1,909

Beginning Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 16,809
Ending Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 18,718

Increase In Total Net Assets 2,073

17,893

Ending Balance, Total Net Assets 19,966$

EASTERN OREGON UNIVERSITY 
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, 
EXPENSES & CHANGES IN NET 
POSITION 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 2020 

as Restated 
(In thousands) 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Student Tuition and Fees (Net of Allowances of $6,682 and $6,527, respectively) $ 19,753 $ 17,751 
Federal Grants and Contracts 2,790 2,808 
State and Local Grants and Contracts 3,899 1,209 
Nongovernmental Grants and Contracts 254 373 
Educational Department Sales and Services 262 304 
Auxiliary Enterprises Revenues (Net of Allowances of $213 and $233, respectively) 5,225 5,827 
Other Operating Revenues 482 547 

Total Operating Revenues 32,665 28,819 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Instruction 
Research 
Public Service 
Academic Support 
Student Services 
Auxiliary Programs 
Institutional Support 
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 
Student Aid 
Other Operating Expenses 

Total Operating Expenses (Note 12) 

16,811 
180 

5,221 
10,689 
3,205 
7,693 

10,386 
3,780 
4,833 
4,109 

66,907 

16,673 
354 

3,382 
7,829 
3,144 
8,029 

10,087 
3,666 
4,529 
3,963 

61,656 
Operating Loss (34,242) (32,837) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Government Appropriations (Note 13) 23,037 22,227 
Financial Aid Grants 7,751 6,836 
Gifts 635 587 
Investment Activity (Note 11) 691 1,084 
Loss on Sale of Assets, Net - (10) 
Interest Expense (717) (1,033) 
Other Nonoperating Items 631 732 

Net Nonoperating Revenues 32,028 30,423 
Loss Before Other Revenues (2,214) (2,414) 

Debt Service Appropriations (Note 13) 
Capital Grants and Gifts 

Total Other Revenues 

638 
10,027 
10,665 

638 
3,388 
4,026 

Increase In Net Position 8,451 1,612 

NET POSITION 
Beginning Balance, Restated 58,151 56,539 

Ending Balance $ 66,602 $ 58,151 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

EOU FOUNDATION 
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 2019 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS (In thousands) 
REVENUES 

Contributions $ 469 $ 406 
Investment Income (Loss), Net 26 46 
Net Assets Released From Restrictions 713 806 
Donor Requested Transfers 2 (3) 
Other Revenues 216 193 

Total Revenues 1,426 1,448 

EXPENSES 
University Support 707 808 
General and Administrative 249 267 
Fundraising Support 306 396 

Total Expenses 1,262 1,471 
Increase (Decrease) In Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 164 (23) 

Beginning Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 1,084 1,106 
Ending Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 1,248 1,083 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 
REVENUES 

Grants, Bequests and Gifts 1,217 870 
Investment Income (Loss), Net 1,192 1,722 
Donor Requested Transfers (2) 3 
Other Revenues 215 170 
Net Assets Released from Restrictions (713) (806) 

Increase In Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 1,909 1,959 

Beginning Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 16,809 14,851 
Ending Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 18,718 16,810 

Increase In Total Net Assets 2,073 1,936 

Beginning Balance, Total Net Assets 17,893 15,957 

Ending Balance, Total Net Assets $ 19,966 $ 17,893 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

$ 19,937

5,691

264

3,930

(38,432)

(12,706)

(5,175)

452

14,042

(14,012)

1,828

(1,789)

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (25,970)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

23,037

7,751

635

(122)

402

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 31,703

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

638
9,114

116

(10,235)

(847)

(1,619)

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (2,833)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(6,564)

459

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (6,105)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (3,205)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

16,369

Ending Balance $ 13,164

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USED BY

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

$ (34,242)

4,663
30
39

(689)

(1)

(1,120)

2

(8)

1,245

20

(581)

3,962

710

NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (25,970)$

NONCASH INVESTING, NONCAPITAL FINANCING, AND CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

152$
1

73

159

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

EASTERN OREGON UNIVERSITY 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 2020 

as Restated 
(In thousands) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Tuition and Fees $ 19,937 $ 18,031 

Grants and Contracts 5,691 5,157 

Educational Department Sales and Services 264 288 

Auxiliary Enterprises Operations 3,930 5,784 

Payments to Employees for Compensation and Benefits (38,432) (38,350) 

Payments to Suppliers (12,706) (10,722) 

Student Financial Aid (5,175) (4,107) 

Other Operating Receipts 452 594 

Fiduciary Activities - Direct Student Loan Receipts 14,042 13,861 

Fiduciary Activities - Direct Student Loan Disbursements (14,012) (13,862) 

Fiduciary Activities - External Scholarship Awards and Other Receipts 1,828 1,892 

Fiduciary Activities - External Scholarship Awards and Other Disbursements (1,789) (1,917) 

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (25,970) (23,351) 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Government Appropriations 23,037 22,227 

Financial Aid Grants 7,751 6,836 

Gifts 635 587 

Perkins Loan Program Repayment to Federal Government (122) (344) 

Other Noncapital Financing Receipts 402 266 

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 31,703 29,572 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Debt Service Appropriations 638 638 
Capital Grants and Gifts 9,114 3,247 
Sales of Capital Assets 116 35 

Purchases of Capital Assets (10,235) (3,376) 

Interest Payments on Capital Debt (847) (1,022) 

Principal Payments on Capital Debt (1,619) (1,525) 

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (2,833) (2,003) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Net Sales (Purchases) of Investments (6,564) 2,542 

Income on Investments and Cash Balances 459 949 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (6,105) 3,491 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (3,205) 7,709 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Beginning Balance 16,369 8,660 

Ending Balance $ 13,164 $ 16,369 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

EASTERN OREGON UNIVERSITY 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, CONT 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 2020 

as Restated 
(In thousands) 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USED BY 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating Loss $ (34,242) $ (32,837) 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash Used by 

Operating Activities: 

Depreciation Expense 4,663 4,554 
Fiduciary Student Loans 30 (1) 
Fiduciary Scholarships 39 (25) 

Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 

Accounts Receivable (689) (213) 

Notes Receivable (1) 672 

Leases (1,120) (29) 

Inventories 2 8 

Prepaid Expenses (8) (25) 

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 1,245 1,149 

Long-Term Liabilities 20 (16) 

Unearned Revenue (581) 605 

Net Pension Liability and Related Deferrals 3,962 2,854 

OPEB Asset/(Liability) and Related Deferrals 710 (47) 

NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (25,970) $ (23,351) 

NONCASH INVESTING, NONCAPITAL FINANCING, AND CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING TRANSACTIONS 

Capital Assets Acquired by Incurring Lease Obligations $ 152 $ 24 
Capital Assets Acquired by Gifts-in-Kind 1 -
Change in Fair Value of Investments Recognized as a Component of

 Investment Activity 73 (67) 

Gain on Sale of Investments Recognized as a Component of

 Investment Activity 159 202 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 

POLICIES 
A. REPORTING ENTITY 
Eastern Oregon University (EOU, university) is governed by 
the Eastern Oregon University Board of Trustees (Board), a 
citizen board appointed by the Governor with confrmation 
by the Oregon State Senate. EOU is located in La Grande, 
Oregon. 

The fnancial reporting entity includes EOU and the EOU 
Foundation (foundation) as a discretely presented compo-
nent unit under the guidelines established by Governmen-
tal Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 39, 
Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component 
Units. Discretely presented means that the statements are 
included separately in the fnancial report. See Note 20 EOU 
Foundation for additional information relating to this com-
ponent unit. 

The Governor of the State of Oregon (state) appoints the EOU 
Board and because EOU receives some fnancial support from 
the state, EOU is a discretely presented component unit and is 
included in the state’s annual comprehensive fnancial report. 

B. FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION 
EOU fnancial accounting records are maintained in accordance 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed in 
applicable pronouncements of the GASB. The fnancial statement 
presentation required by GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial 
Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for Public 
Colleges and Universities—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 
34, modifed by GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported 
as Assets and Liabilities, provides a comprehensive, entity-wide 
perspective of EOU assets, deferred outfows of resources, liabilities, 
deferred infows of resources, net position, revenues, expenses, 
changes in net position, and cash fows. 

In preparing the fnancial statements, interfund transfers be-
tween university funds, and internal revenues and expenses 
associated with self-supporting auxiliary and service center 
operations have been eliminated. Unless otherwise stated, dol-
lars are presented in thousands. 

Financial statements of the foundation for the fscal years 
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are discretely presented 
because of the diference in its reporting model. The founda-
tion’s fnancial statements are prepared in accordance with 
the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (FASB). As such, certain revenue recognition criteria 
and presentation features are diferent from GASB revenue 

criteria and presentation. Accordingly, those fnancial state-
ments have been reported on separate pages following the 
respective counterpart fnancial statements of the university. 
No modifcations have been made to the foundation’s fnancial 
information included in the university’s fnancial report. 

C. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
For fnancial reporting purposes, EOU is considered a spe-
cial-purpose government engaged only in business-type activ-
ities. Accordingly, the EOU fnancial statements are presented 
using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenues 
are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when 
incurred. 

Newly Implemented Accounting Standards 
EOU implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. GASB 
Statement No. 87 improves the accounting and fnancial re-
porting for leases.  Under this Statement, a lessee is required 
to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use 
lease asset, while a lessor is required to recognize a lease re-
ceivable and a deferred infow of resources. This Statement 
substantially impacts the university’s lease accounting and 
reporting.  Previously, the university reported capital leases 
as a capital asset and a long-term liability in the Statement 
of Net Position. Additionally, operating lessee leases were re-
corded as operating expenses and operating lessor leases as 
operating revenue in the Statement of Revenue, Expenses 
and Changes in Net Position. As a result of the implementa-
tion, EOU restated 2020 beginning net position on the State-
ment of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position by 
$51. For the fscal year ended June 30, 2020, EOU increased 
operating revenue by $28, increased operating expenses by 
$3, and decreased net nonoperating revenue by $5 for a net 
impact to the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes 
in Net Position of $20.  EOU recorded an additional $2,454 in 
total assets, an additional $168 in total liabilities, an increase 
of $2,214 in deferred outfow, and a $71 increase in total net 
position on the Statement of Net Position for the fscal year 
ended June 30, 2020. For the fscal year ended June 30, 2019, 
EOU increased operating revenue by $69, increased operating 
expenses by $4, decreased net nonoperating revenue by $6, 
and recorded a ($8) change in accounting principle for a net 
impact to the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes 
in Net Position of $51.  EOU recorded an additional $2,499 in 
total assets, an additional $222 in total liabilities, an increase 
of $3,052 in deferred outfow, and a $51 increase in total net 
position on the Statement of Net Position for the fscal year 
ended June 30, 2019. 

Upcoming Accounting Standards 
In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscrip-
tion-Based Information Technology Arrangements. GASB 
Statement No. 96 provides guidance on the accounting and 
fnancial reporting for subscription-based information tech-
nology arrangement (SBITAs) for government end users and 
is efective for the fscal year ended June 30, 2023. This State-
ment (1) defnes a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results 
in a right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible asset—and 
a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capital-
ization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, 
including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires 
note disclosures regarding a SBITA.  This statement will change 
how the university accounts for and reports SBITAs. 

D. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments 
with original maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash 
equivalents consists of cash on hand, cash and investments 
held by the state in the Oregon Short-Term Fund (OSTF), and 
cash held by U.S. Bank as required by the U.S. Department of 
Education for Title IV funds. 

E. INVESTMENTS 
Investments are reported at fair value as determined by market 
prices. Unrealized gains or losses on investments are reported 
as investment activity in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net Position. 

Investments are classifed as noncurrent assets in the State-
ment of Net Position. 

F. RECEIVABLES 
Accounts receivable consists primarily of tuition and fee 
charges to students and auxiliary enterprise services provided 
to students, faculty and staf. Accounts receivable for tuition 
and fee charges are recorded net of estimated uncollectible 
amounts in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. Grants and contracts receivable include amounts 
due from federal, state and local governments, or private sourc-
es, in connection with reimbursement of allowable expendi-
tures made pursuant to the university’s grants and contracts. 
Capital construction receivables include amounts due from 
the state in connection with reimbursement of allowable ex-
penditures made pursuant to the grant agreements between 
the university and the state for facilities projects funded by 
the state. 

Notes receivable consist primarily of student loans receivable 
due from student loans administered by the university. 

G. INVENTORIES 
Inventories are recorded at cost, with cost being generally 
determined on a frst-in, frst-out or average basis. Invento-
ries consist primarily of supplies in storerooms and physical 
plant stores. 

H. CAPITAL ASSETS 
Capital assets are recorded at cost on the date acquired or at 
acquisition value on the date donated. EOU capitalizes equip-
ment with unit costs of fve thousand dollars or more and an es-
timated useful life of greater than one year. EOU capitalizes real 
property expenditures that increase the functionality and/or 
extend the useful life of the real property if total expenditures 
exceed the capitalization thresholds of $50 to $100, depending 
on the type of real property. Intangible assets valued in excess 
of $100 are capitalized. Expenditures below the capitalization 
threshold and repairs and maintenance are charged to oper-
ating expense in the year in which the expense is incurred. 

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over 
the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally 15 to 50 
years for buildings, 10 to 20 years for infrastructure and land 
improvements, 10 years for library books and 5 to 11 years 
for equipment. Amortization terms of intangible assets vary 
depending on the factors relating to the specifc asset. Depre-
ciation is not applied to land, museum collections, works of art 
or historical treasures, or library special collections. 

I. LEASES 
The university determines if an arrangement is a lease at in-
ception. Lessee arrangements are included in lease assets and 
lease liabilities in the statements of net position. Lease assets 
represent the university’s control of the right to use an under-
lying asset for the lease term, as specifed in the contract, in 
an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Lease assets are 
recognized at the commencement date based on the initial 
measurement of the lease liability, plus any payments made 
to the lessor at or before the commencement of the lease 
term and certain direct costs. Lease assets are amortized in a 
systematic and rational manner over the shorter of the lease 
term or the useful life of the underlying asset. Lease liabilities 
represent the university’s obligation to make lease payments 
arising from the lessee arrangement. Lease liabilities are rec-
ognized at the commencement date based on the present 
value of expected lease payments over the lease term, less 
any lease incentives. Interest expense is recognized ratably 
over the contract term. The lease term may include options 
to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain 
that the university will exercise that option. Per EOU policy, the 
university has elected to recognize payments for short-term 
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less and leases with a 
present value of less than fve thousand dollars as expenses as 
incurred, and these leases are not included as lease liabilities 
or right-to-use lease assets on the statements of net position. 

Lessor arrangements are included in lease receivables and 
deferred infows of resources in the statements of net position. 
Lease receivables represent the university’s claim to receive 
lease payments over the lease term, as specifed in the contract, 
in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Lease receivables 
are recognized at commencement date based on the present 
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value of expected lease payments over the lease term, reduced 
by any provision for estimated uncollectible amounts. Interest 
revenue is recognized ratably over the contract term. Deferred 
infows of resources related to leases are recognized at the 
commencement date based on the initial measurement of the 
lease receivable, plus any payments received from the lessee 
at or before the commencement of the lease term that relate 
to future periods, less any lease incentives paid to, or on behalf 
of, the lessee at or before the commencement of the lease 
term. The deferred infows related to leases are recognized 
as lease revenue in a systematic and rational manner over the 
lease term. EOU recognizes payments received for short-term 
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less as revenue as the 
payments are received. Per university policy, EOU also recog-
nizes payments received on leases with an initial calculated 
net present value of fve thousand dollars or less as revenue 
as the payments are received. These leases are not included 
as lease receivables or deferred infows on the statements of 
net position. 

J. UNEARNED REVENUES 
Unearned revenues include amounts received for tuition and 
fees, grants and contracts, lease income and auxiliary enter-
prises activities in which cash has been received, but revenues 
will be earned in subsequent fscal year(s). 

K. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
EOU accrues a liability for vacation leave and other compensat-
ed absences that were earned but not used during the current 
or prior fscal year for which employees can receive compen-
sation in a future period. An estimate is made to allocate this 
liability between its current and noncurrent components. 

Sick leave is recorded as an expense when paid. There is no 
payout provision for unused sick leave and no liability exists 
for terminated employees. 

L. NET PENSION LIABILITY 
The net pension liability, deferred outfows of resources and 
deferred infows of resources related to pensions, and pension 
expense are actuarially determined at the system-wide plan 
level and are allocated to employers based on their propor-
tionate share. EOU is included in the proportionate share for all 
state agencies. The university’s proportionate share is allocated 
to EOU by the Oregon State Department of Administrative 
Services. 

M. NET OPEB (ASSET)/LIABILITY 
The university reports their proportionate share of the net 
PERS RHIA OPEB asset, net PERS RHIPA OPEB liability and the 
total PEBB OPEB liability along with the associated deferred 
outfows of resources and deferred infows of resources.  See 
Note 15 Other Post-Employment Benefts (OPEB) for a de-
tailed description of each plan and the proportionate share 
methodology for each. 

N. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES 

Deferred outfows of resources represent the consumption of 
net position in one period that is applicable to future periods. 
These deferred outfows have a positive efect on net position 
that is similar to assets, but they are not considered assets. 
Deferred infows of resources represent the acquisition of net 
position that is applicable to future periods. These deferred 
infows have a negative efect on net position that is similar to 
liabilities, but they are not considered liabilities. Deferred out-
fows and infows are related to lessor arrangements, defned 
beneft pension plans and other postemployment benefts. See 
Note 6 Deferred Infows and Deferred Outfows of Resources, 
Note 8 Leases, Note 14 Employee Retirement Plans and Note 
15 Other Postemployment Beneft Plans (OPEB) for additional 
information. 

O. NET POSITION 
EOU’s net position is classifed as follows: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Net investment in capital assets represents the total invest-
ment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 
amortization, less outstanding debt obligations related to those 
capital assets. 

Restricted – Nonexpendable 
Restricted nonexpendable consists of endowment funds in 
which donors have stipulated, as a condition of the gift instru-
ment, that the principal is to be maintained inviolate and in 
perpetuity, and invested for the purpose of producing present 
and future income. The income may either be expended or, de-
pending on the terms of the gift instrument, added to principal. 

Restricted – Expendable 
Restricted expendable includes resources which EOU is legally 
or contractually obligated to spend in accordance with restric-
tions imposed by external parties. 

Unrestricted 
Unrestricted are resources that may be used at the discretion 
of the Board. 

P. RESTRICTED/UNRESTRICTED RESOURCES 
The university has no formal policy addressing which resources 
to use when both restricted and unrestricted net position are 
available for the same purpose. University personnel decide 
which resources to use at the time expenses are incurred. Fac-
tors used to determine which resources to use include relative 
priorities of the university in accordance with the university’s 
strategic initiatives and externally imposed matching require-
ments of certain restricted funds. Major capital purchases are 
many times split funded from multiple restricted and unre-
stricted funding sources. 

Q. ENDOWMENTS 
The university’s endowment assets are invested and managed 
by the EOU Foundation in accordance with a fund manage-
ment agreement between the university and the foundation. 
The endowment investments are invested with the objectives 
of long-term capital appreciation and stable but growing in-
come stream. Per the agreement, the university policy is to 
distribute 5.5 percent of true endowment earnings, in quarterly 
installments. Earnings of quasi endowments are expended as 
needed. All endowments are managed for long-term growth. 

For the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the net amount 
of appreciation available for authorization for expenditure was 
$671 and $510, respectively. 

Nonexpendable Endowments on the Statement of Net Position 
of $554 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, represents the original 
corpus of true endowment funds and does not include the 
accumulated gains of those endowments. The EOU Foundation 
manages the endowment funds, however the assets belong to 
EOU and both the corpus and the net undistributed appreci-
ation are included in the Statement of Net Position for EOU 
as investments. 

R. INCOME TAXES 
EOU is treated as a governmental entity for tax purposes. As 
such, EOU is generally not subject to federal and state income 
taxes. However, EOU remains subject to income taxes on any 
income that is derived from a trade or business regularly car-
ried on and not in furtherance of the purpose for which it 
was granted exemption from income taxes. No income tax is 
recorded for the year ended June 30, 2021, because there is 
not estimated to be any amount of taxes on such unrelated 
business income for EOU. 

S. REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
EOU has classifed its revenues and expenses as either operat-
ing or nonoperating according to the following criteria: 

Operating revenues and expenses generally have the char-
acteristics of exchange transactions. These transactions can 
be defned as an exchange in which two or more entities both 
receive and sacrifce value, such as purchases and sales of 
goods or services. Examples of operating revenues include 
student tuition and fees, sales and services of auxiliary enter-
prises, most federal, state and local grants and contracts, and 
other operating revenues. Examples of operating expenses 
include employee compensation and benefts, scholarships and 
fellowships, utilities, supplies and other services, professional 
fees, and depreciation. 

Nonoperating revenues and expenses generally have the char-
acteristics of nonexchange transactions. In a nonexchange 
transaction, EOU receives value without directly giving equal 
value in exchange. Examples of nonoperating revenues in-

clude state appropriations, nonexchange grants, gifts, and 
contributions. Nonoperating expenses are defned in GASB 
Statement No. 9, Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and 
Non-expendable Trust Funds and Governmental Entities That 
Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, and GASB Statement No. 
34, Basic Financial Statement - and Management Discussion 
and Analysis - for State and Local Governments. Examples of 
nonoperating expenses include interest on capital asset related 
debt and loss on sale of assets. 

T. STATE SUPPORT 
EOU receives support from the state in the form of general 
fund and lottery appropriations and debt service appropria-
tions for some Oregon Department of Energy loans. See Note 
13 for details on appropriations. 

In addition to appropriations, the state provides funding for 
plant facilities on the university’s campus. Capital projects for 
new facilities, capital improvements, and repair are funded 
by philanthropy, state-paid debt, university-paid debt and 
other resources. The state legislature considers projects from 
all seven public universities for allocation of Oregon’s bond-
ing capacity. Funds for capital projects funded by state-paid 
debt are provided through grant agreements between EOU 
and the state. Revenue is recorded as capital grants in the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
when appropriate expenditures are reimbursable per the grant 
agreements. Funds for capital projects funded by campus paid 
debt can also be funded through Oregon’s bonding capacity. 
At the time that the bonds are sold, the state instructs EOU to 
record a liability for the debt and a receivable for construction 
reimbursements. The receivable is reduced as expenditures on 
the capital project are completed and reimbursed by the State. 

Facilities funded by philanthropy, state-paid debt and universi-
ty-paid debt are refected as completed assets or construction 
in progress in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. The 
obligations for the bonds issued by the state are not obligations 
of EOU. EOU is obligated to pay contracts for projects funded 
by university-paid debt. These contracts are included as cur-
rent and long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. 

U. ALLOWANCES 
Student tuition and fees and campus housing revenues includ-
ed in auxiliary enterprise revenues are reported net of schol-
arship allowances. A scholarship allowance is the diference 
between the university’s stated rates and charges and the 
amounts actually paid by students and/or third parties mak-
ing payments on behalf of the students. Under this approach, 
scholarships awarded by the university are considered as re-
ductions in tuition and fee revenues rather than as expenses. 
Additionally, certain governmental grants, such as Pell grants, 
and payments from other federal, state or nongovernmental 
programs, are required to be recorded as either operating or 
nonoperating revenues in the university’s fnancial statement. 
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            $ 56,539

To the extent that revenues from such programs are applied 
to tuition, fees, and other student charges, the university has 
reported a corresponding scholarship allowance. 

EOU has three types of allowances that net into tuition and fees 
and housing revenues. Tuition and housing waivers, provided 
directly by EOU, amounted to $3,136 and $2,896 for the fscal 
years ended 2021 and 2020, respectively. Revenues from fnan-
cial aid programs (e.g., Pell Grants, Supplemental Educational 
Opportunity Grants, and Oregon Opportunity Grants) used 
for paying student tuition and fees and campus housing was 
estimated to be $3,914 and $3,880 for the fscal years ended 
2021 and 2020, respectively. Bad debt expense is included as 
an allowance to operating revenues and is estimated to be 
($155) and ($16) for the fscal years ended 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. Negative bad debt expense indicates a reduction 
in the allowance for doubtful accounts for the year. 

V. FEDERAL STUDENT LOAN PROGRAMS 
EOU receives proceeds from the Federal Direct Student 
Loan Program (FDSLP). GASB Statement No. 84 allows busi-
ness-type activities, such as EOU, to report activities that would 
otherwise be considered custodial funds in EOU’s Statement 
of Net Position and Statement of Cash Flows as an operating 
activity if upon receipt, the funds are normally expected to be 
held for three months or less. Funds associated with the FDSLP 
meet this exception and are reported as such. Federal student 
loans received by EOU students but not reported in operations 
were $13,403 and $13,090 for the fscal years ended 2021 and 
2020, respectively. 

W. DEPOSIT LIABILITIES 
Deposit Liabilities primarily consist of fund balances held by 
EOU on behalf of student groups and organizations that ac-
count for activities in the EOU accounting system and whose 
cash is part of the cash held on deposit with the State Treasury. 

X. PERKINS LOAN PROGRAM TERMINATION 
EOU administers Title IV Perkins Loans for the beneft of its 
students. Funds for the Perkins program were initially re-
ceived through Federal Capital Contributions (FCC) from 
the U.S. Department of Education (ED) and were supple-
mented with Institutional Capital Contributions (ICC). Over 
the years, the proportion of federal to institutional matching 
funds has varied, from a 90/10 split to a 75/25 split. Aca-
demic year 2017-18 was the last year in which new Perkins 
loans were allowed to be disbursed as Congress did not re-
new the program. Institutions have been given the option of 
assigning existing Perkins loans back to the federal govern-
ment or continuing to collect on these loans while returning 
the FCC portion as loans are repaid. 

During the fscal year ended June 30, 2020, EOU began the 
process of assigning the Perkins loans back to the federal 
government. The balance of the Perkins loans was reported 

in Notes Receivable and in Restricted Net Position Expend-
able for Student Loans. Additionally, a liability was estab-
lished for the amount of the remaining FCC due to the ED. 
The liability was reported in current and noncurrent long-
term liabilities. 

During the fscal year ended June 30, 2021, EOU completed 
the process of assigning all of the Perkins Loans back to the 
federal government. As of June 30, 2021, EOU reports no 
assets, liabilities or net position related to Perkins Loans 
balances. 

Y. COVID-19 RELIEF FUNDING 
The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) 
Act, passed by Congress in March 2020, provides budget-
ary relief to higher education institutions through numerous 
provisions. Of the $30.75 billion allotted to the Education 
Stabilization Fund through the CARES Act, Congress set 
aside approximately $14.25 billion for the Higher Education 
Emergency Relief Fund (HEERF). Due to the diferent for-
mulas and discretionary allocations Congress created within 
the CARES Act, the HEERF is comprised of multiple pro-
grams and distribution allocations. 

The Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Ap-
propriations Act (CRRSAA) was approved by Congress in 
December 2020 as part of the Consolidated Appropriations 
Act of 2021. The law authorized $23 billion through the Ed-
ucation Stabilization Fund specifcally for higher education. 
These funds were allocated to institutions using the HEERF 
in the CARES Act and this portion of relief funding is com-
monly referred to as HEERF II. The CRRSA Act requires in-
stitutions to provide the same amount in emergency aid to 
students as they received under the CARES Act, but may 
spend any additional funds on institutional expenses such as 
to reimburse themselves for expenses occurred due to con-
tinuing operations during the pandemic; defray losses due 
to decreased revenue; implement information technology 
infrastructure and distance learning capacity for current and 
future students; fund payroll, and faculty and staf profes-
sional development. 

In March 2021, Congress passed additional COVID relief 
funding in the American Rescue Plan (ARP). This law au-
thorized $39.6 billion to higher education through the High-
er Education Emergency Relief Fund (known as HEERF III). 
Similar to the CARES Act, institutions must spend at least 
50% of their allocation on emergency fnancial aid grants 
directly to students. Institutions are required to spend a 
“reasonable and necessary” amount of institutional funds on 
monitoring and controlling the spread of COVID-19 on their 
campus and on outreach to students alerting them of op-
portunities to receive a fnancial aid adjustment due to lost 
income as a result of the pandemic. Additionally, institutions 
may use remaining funds to replace lost revenue, fund emer-
gency expenses, or meet payroll costs, among other expens-

es. Institutions who received HEERF I or HEERF II funds were 
automatically awarded HEERF III funds. 

As of June 30, 2021, total COVID relief funding awarded to 
EOU under HEERF II and HEERF III was $7,410. EOU was 
awarded $3,042 for the student aid allocation. As of June 30, 
2021, EOU had received and dispersed $1,172 directly to stu-
dents as emergency fnancial aid grants. Additionally, $271 
of the prior year award was disbursed. For fscal year 2022, 
$1,870 remains to be received and dispersed. EOU recog-
nized nonoperating fnancial aid grant revenue and student 
aid operating expense for the receipt and disbursement of 
these funds. EOU was awarded $4,073 for the institutional 
portion allocation. As of June 30, 2021 EOU had spent the 
remaining $315 of the prior year award and $1,053 of the 
current year awards and $3,020 remained to be expended in 
fscal year 2022. EOU recognized other nonoperating reve-
nue for the amount received of $113 and accounts receivable 
for $940 not received by year-end. Expenditures identifed 
as allowable relate to costs for COVID testing, additional 
staf for cleaning, student aid and technology and equip-
ment all related to the pandemic. In addition to the student 
and institutional portions, EOU was awarded $295 through 
the Strengthening Institutions Program (SIP). As of June 30, 
2021, the prior year award was fully spent and $295 remains 
available for allowable expenditures to be identifed in fscal 
year 2022. Funding through this program could be used for 
student aid or to defray institutional expenses, which may 
include lost revenue, reimbursement for expenses already 
incurred, technology costs associated with the transition to 
distance education, faculty and staf training, and payroll. 

EOU was also awarded $127 through the Governor’s Emer-
gency Education Relief (GEER) Fund. As of June 30, 2021, 
$57 had been received and distributed as grants to students 
and $70 remained available for institutional support. 

As of June 30, 2020, the total CARES Act funding award-
ed to EOU was $1,216. EOU was awarded $579 for the stu-
dent portion allocation and all funds awarded were received 
as of June 30, 2020. Of the student allocation, $308 was 
dispersed directly to students as emergency fnancial aid 
grants as of June 30, 2020 and $271 remained to be dis-
persed in fscal year 2021. EOU recognized nonoperating f-
nancial aid grant revenue and student aid operating expense 
for the total amount dispersed to students and recorded the 
undispersed amount as unearned revenue on the Statement 
of Net Position. 

EOU was awarded a matching $579 for the institutional por-
tion allocation. Due to the timing of when eligible expendi-
tures were identifed, EOU did not draw down any of the in-
stitutional portion funds as of June 30, 2020. EOU recorded 
a receivable and recognized nonoperating revenue in other 
nonoperating items in the amount $264 for expenditures in-
curred in fscal year 2020 which were identifed as allowable 

under the institutional portion of the HEERF. Expenditures 
identifed as allowable primarily relate to foregone auxilia-
ry revenues in housing and dining, student activities, health 
services, and parking attributed to the pandemic-caused 
campus closure. As of June 30, 2020, $315 remained avail-
able to EOU for reimbursement of eligible expenditures in-
curred in fscal year 2021. 

In addition to the student and institutional portions, EOU 
was awarded $58 through the Strengthening Institutions 
Program (SIP). No amounts from this program were received 
or accrued as of June 30, 2020. 

Z. USE OF ESTIMATES 
The preparation of fnancial statements in conformity with U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles requires manage-
ment to make estimates and assumptions that could afect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and 
expenses, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the fnancial statements. Actual results could difer 
from those estimates. 

AA. RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR PERIODS 
The implementation of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, re-
quired the restatement of all prior periods presented in the 
fnancial statements for leasing activity of the university. Pre-
viously, EOU had capital assets and operating lease revenues 
and expenses. As a result of the implementation, EOU restat-
ed 2020 beginning net position on the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position by $51. Restatement of 
beginning net position: 

June 30, 
2020 

Beginning Net Position, as Previously Reported $ 56,488 
Retroactive GASB 87 Implementation 51 

Beginning Net Position, Restated $ 56,539 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
The majority of EOU’s cash and investments were held in 
custody with the Oregon State Treasury (OST) during fscal 
years 2021 and 2020. The OST manages these invested assets 
through commingled investment pools. The operating funds 
of EOU are commingled with cash and investments from fve 
other public universities in Oregon and referred to collectively 
as the Public University Fund (PUF). The investments held in 
the PUF are managed by the OST and administered by the 
statutorily defned designated university, currently Oregon 
State University. Each underlying investment pool has an in-
vestment policy and set of objectives identifying risk and re-
turn parameters for the respective investment pool. The OST 
invests these deposits in high grade, dollar-denominated, short 
and intermediate-term fxed income securities. The Oregon In-
vestment Council (OIC) provides oversight and counsel on the 
investment policies for each investment pool held in the PUF. 
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June 30,
2021

Current
9,809$

-
57

-
2,927

108
-
6

Total Current 12,907

Noncurrent

257
Total Noncurrent 257

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,164$

2020

$ 9,419
5,496

984
$ 15,899

In general, deposits and investment securities as described be-
low have exposure to various risks such as credit, concentration 
of credit, custodial credit, interest rate and foreign currency. 
Although the objective of the investment pool is to preserve 
capital within defned risk parameters, it is likely that the value 
of the investment securities will fuctuate during short periods 
of time, and it is possible that such changes could materially af-
fect the amounts reported in the fnancial statements. For more 
information on the investment risk exposures, see Note 2.B. 

For full disclosure regarding cash and investments managed 
by the OST, a copy of the OST audited annual fnancial report 
may be obtained by writing to the Oregon State Treasury, 350 
Winter St. NE, Suite 100, Salem, OR 97301-3896 or via the 
internet at: https://www.oregon.gov/treasury/news-data/ 
pages/treasury-news-reports.aspx#annualrep 

A. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents are classifed as current and non-
current which include both restricted and unrestricted cash 
and are summarized at June 30, 2021 and 2020 as follows: 

June 30, June 30, 
2021 2020 

Current 
Unrestricted $ 9,809 $ 13,011 
Restricted For: 

Gifts, Grants and Contracts - 282 
Student Aid 57 161 
Debt Service - 27 

Payroll Withholdings 2,927 2,072 
Student Groups and Campus

 Organizations 108 106 
US Bank - 254 
Petty Cash 6 6 

Total Current 12,907 15,919 

Noncurrent 

Debt Service 257 450 
Total Noncurrent 257 450 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 13,164 $ 16,369 

Noncurrent, unrestricted cash consisted of student building fee 
funds and cash in capital construction funds. Prior to July 1, 
2015, the student building fee funds were restricted for future 
debt service payments or other capital project expenses. The 
Board of Trustees now has spending authority over these funds, 
which are no longer restricted. The portion of the student build-
ing fee funds that will be used for debt service payable in 2022 
is reported as current cash. 

Deposits with State Treasury 
EOU maintains the majority of its cash balances on deposit with 
the OST. These deposits at the OST are held, on a pooled basis 
as described above, in the Oregon Short-Term Fund (OSTF). 
The OSTF is a short-term cash and investment pool available 
for use by all state agencies or by agreement for related agen-
cies, such as EOU. The OST invests these deposits in high-grade 
short-term investment securities. While the university is not 

required by statute to collateralize deposits, they do have a 
contractual obligation with the OST to collateralize deposits 
within 24 hours of receipt. At the fscal years ended June 30, 
2021 and 2020, EOU cash and cash equivalents on deposit at 
OST totaled $13,158 and $16,109, respectively. 

Other Deposits 
For the year ended June 30, 2021, EOU closed out the Perkins 
loan program and the associated U.S. Bank account for Title 
IV Perkins Loans. For the year ended June 30, 2020, EOU had 
cash at U.S. Bank held for Title IV Perkins Loans of $254. Ad-
ditionally, for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, EOU 
had vault and petty cash balances of $6. 

Custodial Credit Risk—Deposits 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a fnancial 
institution failure, cash deposits will not be returned to a de-
positor. The university and state do not have formal policies 
regarding custodial credit risk for deposits. However, banking 
regulations and Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) Chapter 295 
establish the insurance and collateral requirements for deposits 
in the OSTF. EOU cash balances held on deposit at the OST are 
invested continuously, therefore custodial credit risk exposure 
to the OST is low. Additionally, cash balances on deposit with 
U.S. Bank are collateralized, therefore invested continuously, 
resulting in low custodial risk. 

Foreign Currency Risk—Deposits 
Deposits in foreign currency run the risk of changing value due 
to fuctuations in foreign exchange rates. OST deposits are in 
U.S. currency and therefore not exposed to foreign currency 
risk. 

B. INVESTMENTS 
EOU’s operating funds are invested in the PUF. University in-
vestments in the PUF are invested in the Core Bond Fund 
(CBF) managed by the OST. The CBF invests primarily in inter-
mediate-term fxed income securities and is managed with an 
investment objective to maximize total return (i.e., principal and 
income) over an intermediate time horizon within stipulated 
risk parameters. The CBF is actively managed to maintain an 
average duration of four to fve years, through a diversifed 
portfolio of quality, investment grade fxed income securities 
as defned in the portfolio guidelines. 

EOU endowments are invested and managed by the EOU 
Foundation. These endowment assets are invested in the EOU 
Foundation’s pooled endowment fund (Fund) and directed by 
external investment managers. The Fund is expected to operate 
in perpetuity and the investments are invested with a long-term 
horizon while maintaining a prudent level of risk. See Note 1.Q 
for additional information regarding EOU endowments. 

All investments are managed as a prudent investor would do, 
exercising reasonable care, skill and caution. Due to the level of 
risk associated with certain investment securities, it is at least 

reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment 
securities could occur in the near term and such changes could 
materially afect the amounts reported in the Statement of 
Net Position. 

Signifcant events in domestic and international investment 
markets or aggressive action by the Federal Open Market Com-
mittee to infuence both short and long-term interest rates 
contribute to price volatility. Consequently, the fair value of 
EOU’s operating and endowment investments is exposed to 
price volatility which could result in a substantial change in the 
fair value of certain investments from the amounts reported 
as of June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

Investments are all classifed as noncurrent and include both 
restricted and unrestricted funds. Earnings on investments 
from restricted fund sources are spent in accordance with 
the restrictions of the funding source. At June 30, 2021, EOU 
had $16,361 in investments; $14,685 invested through the PUF 
CBF and $1,676 of restricted endowments managed by the 
foundation. At June 30, 2020, EOU had $9,565 in investments; 
$8,110 invested through the PUF CBF and $1,455 of restricted 
endowments managed by the foundation. 

Investments of the EOU discretely presented component unit 
are summarized as follows: 

Fair Value at December 31, 
Investment Type: 

Corporate Equity Mutual Funds 
Corporate Debt Mutual Funds 
Money Market Funds 

Total Investments 

2020 

$ 9,419 
5,496 

984 
$ 15,899 

2019 

$ 8,087 
5,683 

94 
$ 13,864 

Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of an investment fails to 
fulfll its obligations. EOU has separate investment policies for 
its operating and endowment assets. As of June 30, 2021, ap-
proximately 94.5 percent of investments in the PUF CBF were 
subject to credit risk reporting. PUF CBF investments totaled 
$270,091, of which EOU owned $14,685 or 5.4 percent. Fixed 
income securities rated by the credit agencies as lower medi-
um to high quality, indicating the issuer has a strong capacity 
to pay principal and interest when due, totaled $223,564 at 
June 30, 2021. Fixed income securities which have not been 
evaluated by the rating agencies totaled $31,546 at June 30, 
2021. Of the EOU endowments managed by the foundation and 
allocated to fxed income, all investments were held in mutual 
funds which have not been evaluated by the rating agencies. 

As of June 30, 2020, approximately 91.5 percent of invest-
ments in the PUF CBF were subject to credit risk reporting. 
PUF CBF investments totaled $192,396, of which EOU owned 
$8,110 or 4.2 percent. Fixed income securities rated by the 
credit agencies as lower medium to high quality, indicating 
the issuer has a strong capacity to pay principal and interest 
when due, totaled $120,344 at June 30, 2020. Fixed income 

securities which have not been evaluated by the rating agencies 
totaled $55,753 at June 30, 2020. Of the EOU endowments 
managed by the foundation and allocated to fxed income, all 
investments were held in mutual funds which have not been 
evaluated by the rating agencies. 

Custodial Credit Risk—Investments 
Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that in the event 
of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the university 
will not be able to recover the value of an investment or collat-
eral securities in the possession of an outside party. The OST 
has no formal policy regarding the holding of securities by a 
custodian or counterparty. For the years ended June 30, 2021 
and 2020, the university’s investments in the PUF CBF were 
exposed to custodial credit risk indirectly through the OST. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
Concentration of credit risk refers to potential losses if total 
investments are concentrated with one or few issuers. The PUF 
policy for reducing this risk for fxed income securities is that, 
with the exception of U.S. Government and Agency issues, no 
more than fve percent of the bond portfolio, at par value, will 
be invested in securities of a single issuer or no more than three 
percent of the individual issue. The PUF held no securities from 
a single issuer that exceeded fve percent of the bond portfolio. 

Foreign Currency Risk—Investments 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that investments may lose value 
due to fuctuations in foreign exchange rates. Per PUF invest-
ment policy, all investments are to be in U.S. dollar denominated 
securities, therefore no amounts of the PUF CBF investments 
had reportable foreign currency risk at June 30, 2021 or 2020. 

The university’s endowments are invested by the foundation. 
Per the foundation’s investment policy, a maximum of 32 per-
cent of equities and 10 percent of bonds may be invested in 
foreign securities, leading to foreign currency exposure. At 
June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, $300, or 17.9 percent, and 
$254, or 17.5 percent, were held subject to foreign currency risk. 

Interest Rate Risk 
Investments in fxed income securities are subject to the risk 
that changes in interest rates will adversely afect the fair value 
of the investments. As of June 30, 2021, securities in the PUF 
CBF held subject to interest rate risk totaling $255,110 had an 
average duration of 4.04 years. Additionally, securities of the 
endowment investments held subject to interest rate risk to-
taling $629 had an average duration of 4.77 years. As of June 
30, 2020, securities in the PUF CBF held subject to interest 
rate risk totaling $176,097 had an average duration of 3.77 
years. Additionally, securities of the endowment investments 
held subject to interest rate risk totaling $517 had an average 
duration of 4.74 years. Duration measures the change in the 
value of a fxed income security that will result from a one 
percent change in interest rates. 

https://www.oregon.gov/treasury/news-data
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June 30,
2021

Investment Type
$ 302

237

Total $ 539

June 30,
2021

4,050$
1,917

357
2,105

889
12
32

9,362
(1,172)
8,190$

June 30, 2021
Current Noncurrent Total

$ 7 $ 2 $ 9
- - -
7 2 9

- - -
$ 7 $ 2 $ 9

Transfer Retire. Balance
Completed And June 30,

Additions Assets Adjust. 2021

Capital Assets,

Non-depreciable/Non-amortizable:
$ 810 $ 223 $ - $ 2,070

- - - 336
7,878 (2,135) - 9,451

Total Capital Assets,
Non-depreciable/Non-amortizable 8,688 (1,912) - 11,857

Capital Assets, Depreciable/
Amortizable:

412 15 (496) 8,160
307 - (21) 10,205
131 1,436 (32) 114,093
30 - (13) 8,765

- - - 577
780 461 19 4,608

- - - 1,870
30 - (30) 166
112 - (49) 228

Total Capital Assets,
Depreciable/Amortizable 1,802 1,912 (622) 148,672

Less Accumulated Depreciation/
Amortization for:

(264) - 475 (6,747)
(266) - - (8,746)

(3,387) - - (57,836)
(507) - - (2,824)

(14) - - (479)
(120) - - (2,696)

- - - (1,870)
(38) - 26 (85)
(67) - 60 (91)

Total Accumulated Depreciation/
Amortization (4,663) - 561 (81,374)

Total Capital Assets, Net $ 5,827 $ - $ (61) $ 79,155

Capital Assets Summary

$ 8,688 $ (1,912) $ - $ 11,857

1,802 1,912 (622) 148,672
10,490 - (622) 160,529

(4,663) - 561 (81,374)
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 5,827 $ - $ (61) $ 79,155

Fair Value Measurement 
Investments are reported at estimated fair value as determined 
by OST, based on a fair value hierarchy which prioritizes the 
input techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy 
gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the 
lowest priority to Level 3 measurements: 

Level 1 – Inputs that refect unadjusted quoted prices in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted market prices that are 
observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly, including 
inputs in markets that are not considered to be active; and 

Level 3 – Inputs that are unobservable. These are only used if 
relevant Level 1 and Level 2 inputs are not available. 

Inputs are used in applying valuation techniques and broadly 
refer to the assumptions that market participants use to make 
valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk. In addi-
tion to the underlying reported net asset values (NAV), which 
generally serve as the primary valuation input, other inputs may 
include liquidity factors and broad credit data. An investment’s 
level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level 
of any input that is signifcant to the fair value measurement. 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Mea-
surement and Application, investments valued at net asset 
value per share are not required to be leveled as described 
previously. The fair value of EOU’s investments in the PUF 
CBF at June 30, 2021 and 2020 totaled $14,685 and $8,110, 
respectively. 

The university’s investments at the foundation are all level 3 
since the underlying inputs are unobservable. 

The component unit investments are all valued using level 1 
inputs as of December 31, 2020 and 2019. 

C. SECURITIES LENDING 
In accordance with the state investment policies, the state 
participates in securities lending transactions. The OST has, 
through a securities lending agreement, authorized State Street 
Bank and Trust Company (State Street) to lend the state’s secu-
rities pursuant to a form of loan agreement. Both the state and 
borrowers maintain the right to terminate all securities lend-
ing transactions on demand. EOU’s cash on deposit with the 
OST is subject to securities lending. There were no signifcant 
violations of the provisions of securities lending agreements 
during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

During the year, State Street had the authority to lend short-
term, fxed income, and equity securities and receive as collat-
eral U.S. dollar and foreign currency cash, U.S. government and 
agency securities, and foreign sovereign debt of Organization 
of Economic Cooperation and Development countries. Bor-
rowers were required to deliver collateral for each loan equal 
to not less than 102 percent of the market value of the loaned 
U.S. security. The custodian did not have the ability to pledge or 

sell collateral securities absent a borrower default, and during 
the year the state did impose restrictions on the amount of the 
loans that the custodian made on its behalf. The OST is fully 
indemnifed by the custodian against losses due to borrower 
default. There were no losses during the year from the failure 
of borrowers to return loaned securities. 

State Street, as lending agent, has created a fund to reinvest 
cash collateral received on behalf of the OSTF and Oregon state 
agencies and related agencies, including EOU. As permitted 
under the fund’s Declaration of Trust (Declaration), partici-
pant purchases and redemptions are transacted at $1 per unit 
(“constant value”) based on the amortized cost of the fund’s 
investments. Accordingly, the securities lending collateral held 
and the obligation to the lending agent are both stated at 
constant value on the statement of net position. 

The maturities of investments made with the cash collateral 
generally do not match the maturities of the securities loaned. 
Since the securities loaned are callable on demand by either 
the lender or borrower, the life of the loans at June 30, 2021 
and 2020, is efectively one day. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, 
the state had no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the 
amounts owed to borrowers exceeded the amounts borrowers 
owed to the state. 

The fair value of the university’s share of securities lending 
balances on loan as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 comprised the 
following: 

June 30, June 30, 
2021 2020 

Investment Type 
U.S. Treasury and Agency Securities $ 302 $ 527 
Domestic Fixed Income Securities 237 53 

Total $ 539 $ 580 

The fair value of the university’s share of total cash and securi-
ties collateral received as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, was $550 
and $592, respectively. The fair value of the university’s share 
of investments purchased with cash collateral as of June 30, 
2021 and 2020, was $247 and $339 respectively. 

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
Accounts Receivable comprised the following: 

June 30,  June 30, 
2021 2020 

Student Tuition and Fees $ 4,050 $ 4,445 
Construction Reimbursements from State 1,917 1,005 
Auxiliary Enterprises and Other 

Operating Activities 357 270 
Federal Grants and Contracts 2,105 545 
State, Other Government, and Private

 Gifts, Grants and Contracts 889 455 
Component Unit 12 2 
Other 32 2 

9,362 6,724 
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (1,172) (1,055) 
Accounts Receivable, Net $ 8,190 $ 5,669 

4. NOTES RECEIVABLE 
During the fscal year ended June 30, 2021, EOU completed the process of assigning all of the Perkins Loans back to the fed-
eral government. As of June 30, 2021, EOU reports no notes receivable related to the Perkins program. See Note 1, Section X 
for additional information. Institutional and other student loans include loans ofered through the university itself and other various 
non-federal loan programs. EOU has provided an allowance for uncollectable loans, which in management’s opinion will absorb 
loans that will ultimately be written of. Notes Receivable comprised the following: 

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 
Current Noncurrent Total Current Noncurrent Total 

Institutional and Other 
Student Loans $ 7 $ 2 $ 9 $ 8 $ 2 $ 10 

Federal Student Loans - - - 3 14 17 
7 2 9 11 16 27 

Less: Allowance for Doubtful 
Accounts - - - - (2) (2) 

Notes Receivable, Net $ 7 $ 2 $ 9 $ 11 $ 14 $ 25 

5. CAPITAL ASSETS 
The following schedule refects the changes in capital assets: 

Balance Transfer Retire. Balance Transfer Retire. Balance 
June 30, Completed And June 30, Completed And June 30, 

2019 Additions Assets Adjust. 2020 Additions Assets Adjust. 2021 

Capital Assets, 

Non-depreciable/Non-amortizable: 
Land $ 969 $ 68 $ - $ - $ 1,037 $ 810 $ 223 $ - $ 2,070 
Capitalized Collections 339 - - (3) 336 - - - 336 
Construction in Progress 2,171 2,041 (504) - 3,708 7,878 (2,135) - 9,451 

Total Capital Assets, 
Non-depreciable/Non-amortizable 3,479 2,109 (504) (3) 5,081 8,688 (1,912) - 11,857 

Capital Assets, Depreciable/ 
Amortizable: 
Equipment 8,030 234 - (35) 8,229 412 15 (496) 8,160 
Library Materials 9,658 303 - (42) 9,919 307 - (21) 10,205 
Buildings 110,564 1,523 471 - 112,558 131 1,436 (32) 114,093 
Land Improvements 8,735 13 - - 8,748 30 - (13) 8,765 
Improvements Other Than Buildings 568 9 - - 577 - - - 577 
Infrastructure 3,315 - 33 - 3,348 780 461 19 4,608 
Intangible Assets 1,870 - - - 1,870 - - - 1,870 
ROU Leased Equipment 172 24 - (30) 166 30 - (30) 166 
ROU Leased Space 165 - - - 165 112 - (49) 228 

Total Capital Assets, 
Depreciable/Amortizable 143,077 2,106 504 (107) 145,580 1,802 1,912 (622) 148,672 

Less Accumulated Depreciation/ 
Amortization for: 
Equipment (6,737) (260) - 39 (6,958) (264) - 475 (6,747) 
Library Materials (8,214) (266) - - (8,480) (266) - - (8,746) 
Buildings (51,115) (3,325) - (9) (54,449) (3,387) - - (57,836) 
Land Improvements (1,807) (510) - - (2,317) (507) - - (2,824) 
Improvements Other Than Buildings (451) (14) - - (465) (14) - - (479) 
Infrastructure (2,482) (94) - - (2,576) (120) - - (2,696) 
Intangible Assets (1,870) - - - (1,870) - - - (1,870) 
ROU Leased Equipment (57) (42) - 26 (73) (38) - 26 (85) 
ROU Leased Space (41) (43) - - (84) (67) - 60 (91) 
Total Accumulated Depreciation/ 

Amortization (72,774) (4,554) - 56 (77,272) (4,663) - 561 (81,374) 
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 73,782 $ (339) $ - $ (54) $ 73,389 $ 5,827 $ - $ (61) $ 79,155 

Capital Assets Summary 
Capital Assets, Non-depreciable/ 

Non-amortizable $ 3,479 $ 2,109 $ (504) $ (3) $ 5,081 $ 8,688 $ (1,912) $ - $ 11,857 
Capital Assets, Depreciable/ 

Amortizable 143,077 2,106 504 (107) 145,580 1,802 1,912 (622) 148,672 
Total Cost of Capital Assets 146,556 4,215 - (110) 150,661 10,490 - (622) 160,529 
Less Accumulated Depreciation/ 

Amortization (72,774) (4,554) - 56 (77,272) (4,663) - 561 (81,374) 
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 73,782 $ (339) $ - $ (54) $ 73,389 $ 5,827 $ - $ (61) $ 79,155 
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June 30,
2021

Deferred Outflows

$ 2,578
718

5
1,186

1,446
3,169

56
135

4
26
19

Total Deferred Outflows $ 9,342

Deferred Inflows

$ 291
616

51
-

2
61
29

159
-

1,359
Total Deferred Inflows $ 2,568

June 30,
2021

2,929$
1,634
1,045

172
416

6,196$

1,469$ 119$

AmountBalance
Long-TermDue WithinJune 30,

PortionOne Year2021Additions Reductions

$ 6,271 $ (6,829) $ 12,835 $ 940 $ 11,895
- (459) 5,797 467 5,330

152 (107) 228 88 140
6,423 (7,395) 18,860 1,495 17,365

- (192) 1,355 178 1,177
899 (687) 1,676 1,248 428

- (122) - - -
899 (1,001) 3,031 1,426 1,605

Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 7,322 $ (8,396) $ 21,891 $ 2,921 $ 18,970

Total Future Debt Service 15,588 7,235 238 23,061

Principal Portion of
Future Payments $ 12,835 5,797$ $ 228 $ 18,860

6. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Outfows and Deferred Infows of Resources comprised the following: 

June 30, June 30, 
2021 2020 

Deferred Outflows 
Pension 

Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date $ 2,578 $ 2,418 
Change in Proportionate Share 718 610 
Differences Between Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 5 7 
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience 1,186 1,148 
Changes in Assumptions 1,446 2,824 
Net difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments 3,169 -

OPEB 
Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 56 53 
Change in Proportionate Share 135 19 
Differences Between Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 4 5 
Changes in Assumptions 26 27 
Net difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments 19 -

Total Deferred Outflows $ 9,342 $ 7,111 

Deferred Inflows 
Pension 

Change in Proportionate Share $ 291 $ 424 
Differences Between Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 616 423 
Changes in Assumptions 51 -
Net difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments - 590 

OPEB 
Differences Between Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 2 2 
Change in Proportionate Share 61 63 
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience 29 56 
Changes in Assumptions 159 146 
Net difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments - 19 

Leases 1,359 2,214 
Total Deferred Inflows $ 2,568 $ 3,937 

7. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities is comprised of the 
following: 

June 30,  June 30, 
2021 2020 

Payroll Related $ 2,929 $ 2,067 
Services and Supplies 1,634 1,259 
Salaries and Wages 1,045 1,037 
Accrued Interest 172 302 
Contract Retainage 416 4 

Total $ 6,196 $ 4,669 

8. LEASES 

A. LESSEE ARRANGEMENTS 
EOU leases ofce equipment and space from external par-
ties for various terms under long-term non-cancelable lease 
agreements. The leases expire at various dates through 2026 
and provide for renewal options ranging from one year to fve 
years. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 87, the univer-
sity records right-to-use assets and lease liabilities based on 
the present value of expected payments over the lease term of 
the respective leases. The expected payments are discounted 
using the interest rate charged on the lease, if available, or are 
otherwise discounted using the University’s incremental bor-
rowing rate. Variable payments are excluded from the valuations 
unless they are fxed in substance. The university does not have 

any leases featuring payments tied to an index or market rate. 
The university does not have any leases subject to a residual 
value guarantee. See Note 5 Capital Assets for information on 
right-to-use assets and associated accumulated depreciation. 
See Note 9 Long-Term Liabilities for future payments schedule. 

B. LESSOR ARRANGEMENTS 
EOU leases ofce and data center space to external parties. 
The university records lease receivables and deferred infows 
of resources based on the present value of expected receipts 
over the term of the respective leases. The expected receipts 
are discounted using the interest rate charged on the lease or 
using the universities incremental borrowing rate. Variable pay-
ments are excluded from the valuations unless they are fxed 
in substance. During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, 
the university recognized revenues related to these lease agree-
ments totaling $894 and $904, respectively. Total future min-
imum lease payments to be received under lessor agreements 
are as follows: 

For the Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest 

2022 $ 375 $ 35 
2023 224 28 
2024 193 23 
2025 205 17 
2026 218 11 
2027-2031 254 5 

Total Future Receipts $ 1,469 $ 119 

9. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Long-term liability activity was as follows: 

Balance Balance Amount 
June 30, June 30, Due Within Long-Term 

2020 Additions Reductions 2021 One Year Portion 
Long-Term Debt 

Due to the State of Oregon: 
Contracts Payable $ 13,393 $ 6,271 $ (6,829) $ 12,835 $ 940 $ 11,895 
Oregon Department of Energy Loans (SELP) 6,256 - (459) 5,797 467 5,330 

Leases 183 152 (107) 228 88 140 
Total Long-Term Debt 19,832 6,423 (7,395) 18,860 1,495 17,365 

Other Noncurrent Liabilities 
PERS pre-SLGRP pooled Liability 1,547 - (192) 1,355 178 1,177 
Compensated Absences 1,464 899 (687) 1,676 1,248 428 
Perkins Loan Program Liability 122 - (122) - - -

Total Other Noncurrent Liabilities 3,133 899 (1,001) 3,031 1,426 1,605 
Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 22,965 $ 7,322 $ (8,396) $ 21,891 $ 2,921 $ 18,970 

Balance Balance Amount 
June 30, June 30, Due Within Long-Term 

2019 Additions Reductions 2020 One Year Portion 
Long-Term Debt 

Due to the State of Oregon: 
Contracts Payable $ 14,402 $ 2 $ (1,011) $ 13,393 $ 1,073 $ 12,320 
Oregon Department of Energy Loans (SELP) 6,687 - (431) 6,256 451 5,805 

Leases 245 24 (86) 183 55 128 
Total Long-Term Debt 21,334 26 (1,528) 19,832 1,579 18,253 

Other Noncurrent Liabilities 
PERS pre-SLGRP pooled Liability 1,711 - (164) 1,547 168 1,379 
Compensated Absences 1,316 1,174 (1,026) 1,464 1,133 331 
Perkins Loan Program Liability 964 - (842) 122 22 100 

Total Other Noncurrent Liabilities 3,991 1,174 (2,032) 3,133 1,323 1,810 
Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 25,325 $ 1,200 $ (3,560) $ 22,965 $ 2,902 $ 20,063 

The schedule of principal and interest payments for EOU debt is as follows: 

Contracts Total 
For the Year Ending June 30, Payable SELP Leases Payments Principal Interest 

2022 $ 1,283 $ 717 $ 93 $ 2,093 $ 1,476 $ 617 
2023 1,173 718 63 1,954 1,401 553 
2024 1,248 717 41 2,006 1,509 497 
2025 1,254 717 40 2,011 1,560 451 
2026 1,149 718 1 1,868 1,461 407 
2027-2031 5,516 3,238 - 8,754 7,399 1,355 
2032-2036 3,965 410 - 4,375 4,035 340 

Accreted Interest 19 (19) 
$ 18,860 $ 4,201 

Total Future Debt Service 15,588 7,235 238 23,061 
Less: Interest Component

 of Future Payments (2,753) (1,438) (10) (4,201) 
Principal Portion of 

Future Payments $ 12,835 $ 5,797 $ 228 $ 18,860 
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June 30,
2021June 30,

2021 15,822$
1,00426,670$

76(26,950)
8,149

(1,066)
1,619

Total Unrestricted University9,342
Operations 26,670$

(1,209)

(1,355)

June 30,(1,676)
2021

Total Unrestricted Net Position 3,756$
458$

73
1

159
Total Investment Activity 691$

June 30, 2021 Total

$ 16,811
180

5,221
10,689
3,205
7,693

10,386
3,780
4,833
4,109

Total $ 43,994 $ 13,043 $ 5,175 $ 4,663 $ 32 $ 66,907

The state periodically issues bonded debt which it then loans 
to the university for capital construction. EOU has entered into 
contract loan agreements with the state for the principal and 
interest amounts due. In addition, EOU also borrows funds from 
the Oregon Department of Energy through the Small Scale 
Energy Loan Program (SELP). The state may periodically issue 
new debt to refund previously held debt. Per the contract and 
loan agreements, when this happens the state is required to 
pass the savings on to the university. 

A. CONTRACTS PAYABLE 
EOU has entered into loan agreements with the state for repay-
ment of XI-F(1) bonds issued by the state on behalf of EOU for 
capital construction and refunding of previously issued debt. 
EOU makes loan payments (principal and interest) to the state 
in accordance with the loan agreements. In the event of default, 
the state may withhold future disbursements of state general 
fund appropriations up to the amount of default. Loans, with 
interest rates ranging from 0.12 percent to 5.29 percent, are 
due serially through 2036. 

During the fscal year ended June 30, 2021, the state issued 
$290 of Series 2020N XI-F(1) Tax Exempt bonds and $2,425 of 
Series 2020O XI-F(1) Taxable bonds on behalf of EOU for the 
refunding of previously held debt. The bonds have an efective 
rate of 1.94 percent, and are due serially through 2033. The 
state also issued $135 of Series 2021H XI-F(1) Tax 
Exempt bonds and $3,420 of Series 2021I XI-F(1) 
Taxable bonds on behalf of EOU for the refunding 
of previously held debt. The bonds have an efective 
rate of 1.94 percent, and are due serially through 
2034. The new issuances and refunding of previ-
ously held debt resulted in a net increase of $495 in 
contracts payable. The refunding of previously held debt 
will ultimately save the university $728 over the next 13 years, 
with 81 percent of the savings front loaded to the frst four years 
of debt service payments. Savings were front loaded by the 
state in order to assist the university with cash fow and liquidity 
during uncertain times in light of the coronavirus pandemic. 

Other changes to the university’s contracts payable to the state 
during fscal year ended June 30, 2021, include debt service 
payments for principal of $1,045, and the addition of $1 and 
the deduction of $10 for the amortization of accreted interest 
applicable to zero coupon bonds sold prior to 2002. 

During the fscal year ended June 30, 2020, the state did 
not issue any bonds on behalf of EOU. Other changes to the 
university’s contracts payable to the state during fscal year 
ended June 30, 2020, include debt service payments for 
principal of $949, and the addition of $2 and the deduction 
of $62 for the amortization of accreted interest applicable to 
zero coupon bonds sold prior to 2002. 

B. OREGON DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY LOANS (SELP) 
EOU has entered into loan agreements with the state De-

partment of Energy (DOE) Small Scale Energy Loan Program 
(SELP) for energy conservation projects at the university. EOU 
makes monthly loan payments (principal and interest) to the 
DOE in accordance with the loan agreements. Upon event of 
default, the lender may accelerate the due date and declare 
balance due immediately. The projects funded by the loan 
serve as security for the debt. SELP loans, with interest rates 
ranging from 3.73 percent to 5.15 percent, are due through 
fscal year 2033. 

C. STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT RATE POOL 
Prior to the formation of the PERS State and Local Govern-
ment Rate Pool (SLGRP), the state and community colleges 
were pooled together in the State and Community College 
Pool (SCCP), and local government employers participated 
in the Local Government Rate Pool (LGRP). These two pools 
combined to form the SLGRP efective January 1, 2002, at 
which time a transitional, pre-SLGRP liability was created. The 
pre-SLGRP liability is essentially a debt owed to the SLGRP by 
the SCCP employers. The balance of the pre-SLGRP pooled 
liability attributable to the state is being amortized over the 
period ending December 31, 2027. The liability is allocated by 
the state, based on salaries and wages, to all public universities, 
state proprietary funds and the government-wide reporting 
fund in the state annual comprehensive fnancial report. Interest 
expense was paid by EOU in the amount of $112 and $126 for 
fscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Prin-
cipal payments of $192 and $164 were applied to the liability 
for fscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

D. PERKINS LOAN PROGRAM LIABILITY 
During fscal year 2018, EOU established a liability for the 
Federal Capital Contributions (FCC) received from the U.S. 
Department of Education (ED) which funded the Perkins 
loan program. With the close-out of the Perkins loan pro-
gram, the FCC is due back to the ED. EOU has elected to 
assign their remaining loans back to the federal government. 
During the fscal year ended June 30, 2021, EOU complet-
ed the process of assigning these loans back to the federal 
government and closed out the Perkins Loan Program. See 
Note 1, Organization and Summary of Signifcant Account-
ing Policies, Section X, Perkins Loan Program Termination 
for additional information. 

Unrestricted university operations is comprised of the follow-10. UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION 
ing:Unrestricted net position is comprised of the following: June 30, June 30, 

June 30, June 30, 2021 2020 
2021 2020 Education & General Operations $ 15,822 $ 12,760 

University Operations $ 26,670 $ 21,498 Designated Operations 1,004 784 
Net Pension Liability (See Note 14) (26,950)  (20,815) Service Departments 76 62 
Net Other Postemployment Benefits Auxiliary Enterprise Operations 8,149 6,648

 Liabilities (see Note 15) (1,066)  (1,116) Unrestricted Capital Construction 
Pension & OPEB Related Deferred  & Debt Reserves 1,619 1,244

 Outflows (See Note 6) 9,342  7,111 Total Unrestricted University 
Pension & OPEB Related Deferred Operations $ 26,670 $ 21,498

 Inflows (See Note 6) (1,209)  (1,723) 
State and Local Government Rate 11. INVESTMENT ACTIVITY

Pool (see Note 9) (1,355)  (1,547) 
Investment activity detail is as follows:Compensated Absences Liability 

June 30, June 30,(see Note 9) (1,676)  (1,464) 
2021 2020 

Total Unrestricted Net Position $ 3,756 $ 1,944 
Investment Earnings $ 458 $ 943 
Net Appreciation (Depreciation) of

 Investments 73 (67) 
Interest Income 1 6 
Gain on Sale of Investment 159 202 

Total Investment Activity $ 691 $ 1,084 

12. OPERATING EXPENSES BY NATURAL CLASSIFICATION 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position reports operating expenses by their functional classifcation. 
The table below displays operating expenses by both their functional classifcation and their natural classifcation. The reporting 
of the net pension liability and OPEB asset and liabilities, as required by GASB Statement Nos. 68, 71 and 75, afected the re-
ported compensation and beneft expenses of EOU. Changes in the pension and OPEB expenses and associated reporting re-
quirements increased the reported compensation and beneft expenses of EOU by $3,564 and $2,807 for the fscal years ended 
June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The following displays operating expenses by both the functional and natural classifcations: 

Scholarships Depreciation 
Compensation Services and and and 

June 30, 2021 and Benefits Supplies Fellowships Amortization Other Total 

Instruction $ 16,276 $ 535 $ - $ - $ - $ 16,811 
Research 92 26 62 - - 180 
Public Services 4,061 1,160 - - - 5,221 
Academic Support 7,630 2,952 107 - - 10,689 
Student Services 2,876 329 - - - 3,205 
Auxiliary Services 3,389 3,316 198 790 - 7,693 
Institutional Support 6,593 3,769 8 - 16 10,386 
Operation & Maint. of Plant 3,023 757 - - - 3,780 
Student Aid 19 (2) 4,800 - 16 4,833 
Other 35 201 - 3,873 - 4,109 
Total $ 43,994 $ 13,043 $ 5,175 $ 4,663 $ 32 $ 66,907 

Scholarships Depreciation 
Compensation Services and and and 

June 30, 2020 and Benefits Supplies Fellowships Amortization Other Total 

Instruction $ 16,121 $ 539 $ - $ 13 $ - $ 16,673 
Research 276 43 35 - - 354 
Public Services 2,659 706 - 17 - 3,382 
Academic Support 6,703 1,116 - 10 - 7,829 
Student Services 2,807 336 - 1 - 3,144 
Auxiliary Services 3,123 3,907 198 801 - 8,029 
Institutional Support 6,832 3,235 - 6 14 10,087 
Operation & Maint. of Plant 2,906 760 - - - 3,666 
Student Aid 29 (240) 3,874 - 866 4,529 
Other 104 153 - 3,706 - 3,963 
Total $ 41,560 $ 10,555 $ 4,107 $ 4,554 $ 880 $ 61,656 
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June 30,
2021

$ 21,664
638

1,373
Total State Appropriations $ 23,675

June 30,
2020

90,143$

68,319
21,823$

13. GOVERNMENT APPROPRIATIONS 
EOU receives support from the state in the form of general 
fund and lottery appropriations. These appropriations are in 
support of the operations of the university and debt service 
of SELP loans. Appropriations for SELP debt service are based 
on the loan agreements between the university and the Oregon 
Department of Energy. Government appropriations is com-
prised of the following: 

June 30, June 30, 
2021 2020 

General Fund - Operations $ 21,664 $ 21,159 
General Fund - SELP Debt Service 638 638 
Lottery Funding 1,373 1,067 

Total State Appropriations $ 23,675 $ 22,864 

14. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS 
The university ofers various defned beneft and defned con-
tribution retirement plans to qualifed employees as described 
below. 

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN (PERS) 

Organization 
EOU participates with other state agencies in the Oregon 
Public Employees Retirement System (System), which is a 
cost-sharing multiple employer defned beneft plan (Plan). 
Plan assets may be used to pay the benefts of the employees 
of any employer that provides pensions through the plan. PERS 
is administered in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes 
(ORS) Chapter 238, Chapter 238A, and Internal Revenue Code 
Section 401(a). The Oregon Legislature has delegated authority 
to the Public Employees Retirement Board (PERS Board) to 
administer and manage the System. 

Plan Membership 
The 1995 Oregon Legislature enacted Chapter 654, Section 3, 
Oregon Laws 1995, which has been codifed into ORS 238.435. 
This legislation created a second tier of benefts for those who 
established membership on or after January 1, 1996. Mem-
bership prior to January 1, 1996 are Tier One members. The 
second tier does not have the Tier One assumed earnings 
rate guarantee and has a higher normal retirement age of 60, 
compared to 58 for Tier One. Both Tier One and Tier Two are 
defned beneft plans. 

The 2003 Legislature enacted HB 2020, codifed as ORS 238A, 
which created the Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan 
(OPSRP). OPSRP consists of the Pension Program (defned 
beneft, DB) and the Individual Account Program (IAP). The 
IAP is a defned contribution plan. Membership includes public 
employees hired on or after August 29, 2003. 

Beginning January 1, 2004, PERS active Tier One and Tier Two 
members became members of IAP of OPSRP. PERS members 
retain their existing Defned Beneft Plan accounts, but mem-
ber contributions are now deposited into the member’s IAP 
account, not into the member’s Defned Beneft Plan account. 

Accounts are credited with earnings and losses, net of admin-
istrative expenses. OPSRP is part of PERS and is administered 
by the PERS Board. 

Pension Plan Report 
The PERS defned beneft and defned contribution retirement 
plans are reported as pension trust funds in the fduciary funds 
combining statements and as part of the Pension and Other 
Employee Beneft Trust in the State’s Comprehensive Financial 
Report. PERS issues a separate, publicly available fnancial 
report which includes an audit opinion that may be obtained 
by writing to the Public Employees Retirement System, Fiscal 
Services Division, PO Box 23700, Tigard, OR 97281-3700. The 
report may also be accessed online at: www.oregon.gov/pers/ 
Pages/Financials/Actuarial-Financial-Information.aspx 

Summary of Signifcant Accounting Policies 
Employers participating in the Plan are required to report pen-
sion information in their fnancial statements for fscal periods 
beginning on or after June 15, 2014, in accordance with GASB 
Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pen-
sions—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. 

The requirements of this Statement incorporate provisions 
intended to refect the efects of transactions and events re-
lated to pensions in the measurement of employer liabilities 
for pensions and recognition of pension expense and deferred 
outfows of resources and deferred infows of resources related 
to pensions. 

Basis of Accounting 
Contributions for employers are recognized on the accrual ba-
sis of accounting by the Plan. Employer contributions to PERS 
are calculated based on creditable compensation for active 
members reported by employers. Employer contributions are 
accrued when due pursuant to legal requirements. These are 
amounts normally included in the employer statements cut of 
as of the ffth of the following month. 

Plan Proportionate Share Allocation Methodology 
The basis for the employer’s proportion is actuarially deter-
mined by comparing the employer’s projected long-term con-
tribution efort to the Plan with the total projected long-term 
contribution efort of all employers. The contribution rate for 
every employer has at least two major components; Normal 
Cost Rate and Unfunded Actuarial Liability (UAL) Rate. 

Collective Pension Plan Liability 
The components of the Plan’s collective net pension liability 
as of the measurement dates of June 30, 2020 and 2019 are 
as follows (dollars in millions): 

June 30, June 30, 
2020 2019 

Total Pension Liability $ 90,143 $ 87,501 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 68,319 70,204 
Plan Net Pension Liability $ 21,823 $ 17,297 

Changes Subsequent to Measurement Date 
The university is not aware of any changes to beneft terms 
subsequent to the June 30, 2020 measurement date. 

OREGON PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
(PERS) PENSION (CHAPTER 238) PROGRAM 

Pension Benefts 
The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life. 
There are 13 retirement beneft options a retiring employee 
may select from. These options include survivorship benefts 
and lump-sum refunds. The basic beneft is based on years of 
service and fnal average salary. A percentage (1.67 percent 
for general service employees) is multiplied by the number of 
years of service and the fnal average salary. Benefts may also 
be calculated under either a formula plus annuity (for members 
who were contributing before August 21, 1981) or a money 
match computation if a greater beneft results. Monthly pay-
ments must be a minimum of $200 per month or the member 
will receive a lump-sum payment of the actuarial equivalence 
of benefts to which he or she is entitled. 

A member is considered vested and will be eligible at minimum 
retirement age for a service retirement allowance if he or she 
has had a contribution in each of fve calendar years or has 
reached at least 50 years of age before ceasing employment 
with a participating employer. General Service employees may 
retire after reaching age 55. Tier One general service employee 
benefts are reduced if retirement occurs prior to age 58 with 
fewer than 30 years of service. Tier Two members are eligible 
for full benefts at age 60. The ORS Chapter 238 Defned Ben-
eft Pension Plan is closed to new members hired on or after 
August 29, 2003. 

Death Benefts 
Upon the death of a non-retired member, the benefciary re-
ceives a lump-sum refund of the member’s account balance 
(accumulated contributions and interest). In addition, the ben-
efciary will receive a lump-sum payment from employer funds 
equal to the account balance provided one or more of the 
following conditions are met: 

* The member was employed by a PERS employer at the time 
of death. 

* The member died within 120 days after termination of PERS-
covered employment. 

* The member died as a result of injury sustained while 
employed in a PERS-covered job. 

* The member was on an ofcial leave of absence from a PERS-
covered job at the time of death. 

Disability Benefts 
A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who 
becomes disabled due to an other than duty-connected cause 
may receive a non-duty disability beneft. A disability resulting 
from a job-incurred injury or illness qualifes a member for 

disability benefts regardless of the length of PERS-covered 
service. Upon qualifying for either a non-duty or duty disabil-
ity, service time is computed to age 58 when determining the 
monthly beneft. 

Beneft Changes After Retirement 
Members may choose to continue participation in a variable 
equities investment account after retiring and may experience 
annual beneft fuctuations due to changes in the market value 
of equity investments. 

Under ORS 238.360 monthly benefts are adjusted annual-
ly through cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs). The COLA is 
capped at 2.00 percent. 

OREGON PUBLIC SERVICE RETIREMENT PLAN (OPSRP 
DB) PENSION PROGRAM 

Pension Benefts 
This portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by em-
ployer contributions. Benefts are calculated with the following 
formula for members who attain normal retirement age: 1.50 
percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the 
fnal average salary. Normal retirement age for general service 
members is age 65, or age 58 with 30 years of retirement credit. 

A member of the pension program becomes vested on the 
earliest of the following dates:  the date the member com-
pletes 600 hours of service in each of fve calendar years, the 
date the member reaches normal retirement age, and if the 
pension program is terminated, the date on which termination 
becomes efective. 

Death Benefts 
Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other 
person who is constitutionally required to be treated in the 
same manner as the spouse, receives for life 50 percent of the 
pension that would otherwise have been paid to the deceased 
member. 

Disability Benefts 
A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement 
credits before the member becomes disabled or a member 
who becomes disabled due to job-related injury shall receive 
a disability beneft of 45 percent of the member’s salary de-
termined as of the last full month of employment before the 
disability occurred. 

Beneft Changes After Retirement 
Under ORS 238A.210 monthly benefts are adjusted annually 
through COLAs. The cap on the COLA varies based on 1.25 
percent on the frst $60 of annual beneft and 0.15 percent on 
annual benefts above $60. 

www.oregon.gov/pers
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2021

21.21%

14.75%

DeferredDeferred
Inflows ofOutflows of
ResourcesResources

6,524$ (958)$

5,566

8,144$

$ 5,566

OREGON PUBLIC SERVICE RETIREMENT PLAN (OPSRP 
IAP) PENSION PROGRAM 

Beneft Terms 
The IAP is an individual account-based program under the 
PERS tax-qualifed governmental plan as defned under ORS 
238A.400. An IAP member becomes vested on the date the 
employee account is established or on the date the rollover 
account was established. If the employer makes optional em-
ployer contributions for a member, the member becomes vest-
ed on the earliest of the following dates: the date the member 
completes 600 hours of service in each of fve calendar years, 
the date the member reaches normal retirement age, the date 
the IAP is terminated, the date the active member becomes 
disabled, or the date the active member dies. The accounts 
fall under Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a). 

Upon retirement, a member of the IAP may receive the amounts 
in his or her employee account, rollover account, and vested 
employer account as a lump-sum payment or in equal install-
ments over a 5-, 10-, 15-, 20-year period or an anticipated life 
span option. Installment amounts vary with market returns 
as the account remains invested while in distribution. When 
chosen, the distribution option must result in a $200 minimum 
distribution amount, or the frequency of the installments will 
be adjusted to reach that minimum. 

Death Benefts 
Upon the death of a non-retired member, the benefciary re-
ceives in a lump sum the member’s account balance, rollover 
account balance, and vested employer optional contribution 
account balance. If a retired member dies before the install-
ment payments are completed, the benefciary may receive 
the remaining installment payments or choose a lump-sum 
payment. 

PENSION PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS 
PERS and OPSRP employee contribution requirements are 
established by ORS 238.200 and ORS 238A.330, respective-
ly, and are credited to an employee’s account in the IAP and 
may be amended by an act of the Oregon Legislature. PERS 
funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at 
actuarially determined rates. These contributions, expressed 
as a percentage of covered payroll, are intended to accumu-
late sufcient assets to pay benefts when due. This funding 
policy applies to the PERS Defned Beneft Plan and the Other 
Postemployment Beneft Plans. 

Employer contribution rates for the fscal years ended June 
30, 2021 and 2020 were based on the December 31, 2017 ac-
tuarial valuation. 

The employer contribution rates for the PERS and OPSRP are 
as follows: 

2021 2020 
Base Tier One/Two Rate 19.05% 19.05% 
SLGRP Rate 1.71% 1.71% 
RHIA/RHIPA OPEB Rate 0.45% 0.45% 

Total PERS Tier One/Two Rate 21.21% 21.21% 

Base OPSRP Rate 12.77% 12.77% 
SLGRP Rate 1.71% 1.71% 
RHIA/RHIPA OPEB Rate 0.27% 0.27% 

Total OPSRP Rate 14.75% 14.75% 

The university’s required employer contributions for PERS 
and OPSRP for the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, were 
$2,940 and $2,762, respectively, including amounts to fund 
separately fnanced employer specifc liabilities associated with 
the SLGRP liability (see Note 9.C for additional information). 

B. NET PENSION LIABILITY 
At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the university reported a liability of 
$26,950 and $20,815, respectively, for its proportionate share 
of the PERS net pension liability. The net pension liability as of 
June 30, 2021, was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018. 
The net pension liability as of June 30, 2020, was measured 
as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to cal-
culate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of December 31, 2017. The PERS system does not 
provide EOU an audited proportionate share as a separate em-
ployer; the university is a proportionate share of PERS employer 
state agencies which includes all state agencies. The State 
Department of Administrative Services (DAS) calculated EOU’s 
proportional share of all state agencies internally based on ac-
tual contributions by EOU compared to the total for employer 
state agencies. The state Audits Division reviewed this internal 
calculation. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, EOU’s proportion was 
0.12 percent of the statewide pension plan. 

For the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, EOU recorded 
total pension expense of $6,139 and $5,274, respectively, due 
to the changes in net pension liability, deferred infows, and 
deferred outfows. 

Deferred Items 
Deferred items are calculated at the system-wide level and are 
allocated to employers based on their proportionate share. For 
fscal years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020, deferred items 
include: 

* Diference between expected and actual experience 

* Changes in assumptions 

* Net diference between projected and actual pension plan 
investment earnings 

* Changes in employer proportion since the prior measurement 
date 

* Diference between employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 

Diferences between expected and actual experience, changes 
in assumption, and changes in employer proportion are amor-
tized over the average remaining service lives of all plan par-
ticipants, including retirees, determined as of the beginning of 
the respective measurement period. Employers are required to 
recognize pension expense based on the balance of the closed 
period “layers” attributable to each measurement period. The 
average remaining service lives determined as of the beginning 
of each measurement period are as follows: 

* Measurement period ended June 30, 2020 - 5.3 years 

* Measurement period ended June 30, 2019 - 5.2 years 

* Measurement period ended June 30, 2018 - 5.2 years 

* Measurement period ended June 30, 2017 - 5.3 years 

* Measurement period ended June 30, 2016 - 5.3 years 

The diference between projected and actual pension plan 
investment earnings attributable to each measurement period 
is amortized over a closed fve-year period. 

One year of amortization is recognized in the university’s total 
pension expense for fscal years 2021 and 2020. 

At June 30, 2021, EOU reported deferred outfows of resourc-
es and deferred infows of resources related to pensions from 
the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and
 actual experience $ 1,186 $ -

Changes of assumptions 1,446 (51) 
Net difference between projected and

 actual earnings on pension plan
 investments 3,169 -

Change in proportionate share 718 (291) 
Difference between contributions

 and proportionate share of 
contributions 5 (616) 

Total $ 6,524 $ (958) 
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 

Resources before Contributions 
Subsequent to the Measurement 
Date (MD) 5,566 

Contributions Subsequent to the MD 2,578 
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 

Resources after Contributions
 Subsequent to the MD $ 8,144 

Of the amount reported as deferred outfows of resources, 
$2,578 are related to pension contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction 
of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2022. 

At June 30, 2020, EOU reported deferred outfows of resourc-
es and deferred infows of resources related to pensions from 
the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and
 actual experience $ 1,148 $ -

Changes of assumptions 2,824 -
Net difference between projected and

 actual earnings on pension plan
 investments - (590) 

Change in proportionate share 610 (424) 
Difference between contributions

 and proportionate share of 
contributions 7 (423) 

Total $ 4,589 $ (1,437) 
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 

Resources before Contributions 
Subsequent to the Measurement 
Date (MD) 3,152 

Contributions Subsequent to the MD 2,418 
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 

Resources after Contributions
 Subsequent to the MD $ 5,570 

Of the amount reported as deferred outfows of resources, 
$2,418 are related to pension contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date and are recognized as a reduction 
of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. 

As of June 30, 2021, other amounts reported as deferred 
outfows of resources and deferred infows of resources re-
lated to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as 
follows: 

Year Ended June 30: 
2022  $  1,236 
2023  1,601 
2024  1,578 
2025  1,124 
2026  27 

$ 5,566 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of 
the value of projected benefts and assumptions about the 
probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined 
amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are 
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made 
about the future. Experience studies are performed as of De-
cember 31 of even numbered years. 
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Actuarial Methods:
As of: June 30, 2021

Actuarial Assumptions:

June 30, 2021

$40,019

26,950

15,992

Asset Class/ Strategy Low Range High Range OIC Target

Asset Class Target
Compound

Annual Return
(Geometric)

The following methods and assumptions were used in the de-
velopment of the total pension liability: 

Actuarial Methods: 
As of: June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 
Valuation Date December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 
Measurement Date June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 
Experience Study Report 2018, published July 2019 2016, published July 2017 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 
Actuarial Assumptions: 
Inflation Rate 2.50 percent 
Long-Term Expected Rate 
of Return 

7.20 percent 

Discount Rate 7.20 percent 
Projected Salary Increases 3.50 percent 

Cost of Living Adjustments 
(COLA) 

Blend of 2.00% COLA and graded COLA (1.25%/0.15%) 
in accordance with Moro decision; blend based on 
service 

Mortality 

Healthy retirees and beneficiaries: 

Pub-2010 Healthy Retriee, 
sex distinct, generational 
with Unisex, Social Security 
Data Scale, with job 
category adjustments and 
set-backs as described in 
the valuation. 

RP-2014 Healthy annuitant, 
sex distinct, generational 
with Unisex, Social Security 
Data Scale, with collar 
adjustments and set-backs 
as described in the 
valuation. 

Active members: 

Pub-2010 Employee, sex 
distinct, generational with 
Unisex, Social Security 
Data Scale, with job 
category adjustments and 
set-backs as described in 
the valuation. 

RP-2014 Employees, sex-
distinct, generational with 
Unisex, Social Security 
Data Scale, with collar 
adjustments and set-backs 
as described in the 
valuation. 

Disabled retirees: 

Pub-2010 Disabled Retriee, 
sex distinct, generational 
with Unisex, Social Security 
Data Scale, with job 
category adjustments and 
set-backs as described in 
the valuation. 

RP-2014 Disabled retirees, 
sex-distinct, generational 
with Unisex, Social Security 
Data Scale 

Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability 
at June 30, 2021 and 2020, was 7.20. The projection of cash 
fows used to determine the discount rate assumed that con-
tributions from plan members and those of the contributing 
employers are made at the contractually required rates, as 
actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pen-
sion plan’s fduciary net position was projected to be available 
to make all projected future beneft payments of current plan 
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of project-
ed beneft payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity Analysis 
The sensitivity analysis shows the sensitivity of the university’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in 
the discount rate. 

The following presents the university’s proportionate share of 
the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 
7.20 percent as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, as well as what the 
university’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one 
percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than 
the current rate: 

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 
1% Decrease 

6.20% 
$40,019 $33,334 

Current Discount Rate 
7.20% 

26,950 20,815 

1% Increase 
8.20% 

15,992 10,339 

Depletion Date Projection 
GASB Statement No. 68 generally requires that a blended dis-
count rate be used to measure the Total Pension Liability (the 
Actuarial Accrued Liability calculated using the Individual Entry 
Age Normal Cost Method). The long-term expected return 
on plan investments may be used to discount liabilities to the 
extent that the plan’s Fiduciary Net Position (fair market value 
of assets) is projected to cover beneft payments and admin-
istrative expenses. A 20-year high quality (AA/Aa or higher) 
municipal bond rate must be used for periods where the Fidu-
ciary Net Position is not projected to cover beneft payments 
and administrative expenses. Determining the discount rate 
under GASB Statement No. 68 will often require that the ac-
tuary perform complex projections of future beneft payments 
and asset values. GASB Statement No. 68 (paragraph 67) does 
allow for alternative evaluations of projected solvency, if such 
evaluation can reliably be made. GASB does not contemplate 
a specifc method for making an alternative evaluation of suf-
fciency; it is left to professional judgment. 

The following circumstances justify an alternative evaluation 
of sufciency for Oregon PERS: 

* Oregon PERS has a formal written policy to calculate an 
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC), which is 
articulated in the actuarial valuation report. 

* The ADC is based on a closed, layered amortization period, 
which means that payment of the full ADC each year will 
bring the plan to a 100 percent funded position by the 
end of the amortization period if future experience follows 
assumption. 

* GASB Statement No. 68 specifies that the projections 
regarding future solvency assume that plan assets earn the 
assumed rate of return and there are no future changes in the 
plan provisions or actuarial methods and assumptions, which 
means that the projections would not refect any adverse 
future experience, which might impact the plan’s funded 
position. 

Based on these circumstances, it is the independent actuary’s 
opinion that the detailed depletion date projections outlined in 

GASB Statement No. 68 would clearly indicate that the Fidu-
ciary Net Position is always projected to be sufcient to cover 
beneft payments and administrative expenses. 

Assumed Asset Allocation 
Asset Class/ Strategy Low Range High Range OIC Target 
Debt Securities 15.00 % 25.00 % 20.00 % 
Public Equity 27.50 37.50 32.50 
Private Equity 14.00 21.00 17.50 
Real Estate 9.50 15.50 12.50 
Alternative Investments 7.50 17.50 15.00 
Opportunity Portfolio 0.00 3.00 0.00 
Risk Parity 0.00 2.50 2.50 
Total 100 % 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 
To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term 
expected rate of return assumption, in May 2019 the PERS 
Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both 
Milliman’s capital market assumptions team and the Oregon 
Investment Council’s (OIC) investment advisors. Each asset 
assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assump-
tions, and includes adjustment for the infation assumption. 
These assumptions are not based on historical returns, but in-
stead are based on a forward-looking capital market economic 
model. For more information on the Plan’s portfolio, assumed 
asset allocation, and the long-term expected rate of return 
for each major asset class, calculated using both arithmetic 
and geometric means, see PERS’ audited fnancial statements 
at: www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/Financials/Actuarial-Finan-
cial-Information.aspx 

The following table shows long-term expected rate of return 
by asset class: 

Asset Class Target 
Compound 

Annual Return 
(Geometric) 

Core Fixed Income  9.60%  4.07% 
Short-Term Bonds 9.60 3.68 
Bank/Leveraged Loans 3.60 5.19 
High Yield Bonds 1.20 5.74 
Large/Mid Cap US Equities 16.17 6.30 
Small Cap US Equities 1.35 6.68 
Micro Cap US Equities 1.35 6.79 
Developed Foreign Equities 13.48 6.91 
Emerging Market Equities 4.24 7.69 
Non-US Small Cap Equities 1.93 7.25 
Private Equity 17.50 8.33 
Real Estate (Property) 10.00 5.55 
Real Estate (REITS) 2.50 6.69 
Hedge Fund of Funds -
Diversified 

1.50 4.06 

Hedge Fund - Event-driven 0.38 5.59 
Timber 1.13 5.61 
Farmland 1.13 6.12 
Infrastructure 2.25 6.67 
Commodities 1.13 3.79 

Assumed Inflation – Mean 2.50% 

BOND DEBT 
The retirement bond debt service assessment was authorized 
by the Oregon Legislature in 2003 to sell general obligation 
bonds in the amount of $2 billion to pay a PERS unfunded 
actuarial liability. This action reduced the PERS contribution 
rate for PERS covered employers in the state actuarial pool in 
November 2003. 

The Oregon Department of Administrative Services coordi-
nates the debt service assessments to PERS employers to cover 
the bond debt service payments. PERS employers are assessed 
a percentage of PERS-subject payroll to fund the payments. 
The assessment rate is adjusted periodically over the life of the 
twenty-four year debt repayment schedule. 

The payroll assessment for the pension obligation bond began 
in May 2004. The assessment rate for fscal year 2021 was 5.60 
percent. The assessment rate for fscal year 2020 was 6.20 per-
cent through October 31, 2019. The 2020 rate was decreased to 
5.60 percent efective November 1, 2019. Payroll assessments 
for the fscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, were $990 
and $952, respectively. 

C. OTHER RETIREMENT PLANS 

OPTIONAL RETIREMENT PLAN 
The 1995 Oregon Legislature enacted legislation that autho-
rized the university to ofer a defned contribution retirement 
plan as an alternative to PERS. A Retirement Plan Committee 
was appointed to administer the Optional Retirement Plan 
(ORP) and named trustees to manage plan assets placed with 
mutual funds and insurance companies. Beginning April 1, 1996, 
the ORP was made available to university academic and admin-
istrative faculty. Employees choosing the ORP may invest the 
employee and employer contributions in one of two investment 
companies, either Fidelity or the Teacher’s Insurance Annuity 
Association (TIAA). 

The ORP consists of four tiers. Membership under ORP Tier 
One and Tier Two is determined using the same date of entry 
criteria as PERS. Tier Three is determined by the date of entry 
applicable to the OPSRP. Employees hired on or after July 1, 
2014 who elected the ORP are Tier Four members. 

Tier Four is a departure from the other three tiers. The em-
ployee is entitled to an employer contribution plus a “match” 
contribution based on the employee’s participation in the vol-
untary 403(b) investment plan. The employer contribution is 
fxed at 8 percent by plan rules and is unafected by PERS 
rates, unlike the other tiers. The employer provides an ORP 
match contribution equal to 403(b) deferrals up to a 4 per-
cent maximum. Under the ORP Tiers One, Two and Three, the 
employee’s contribution rate is 6 percent and is paid by the 
employer. There is no employee contribution rate for Tier Four. 

www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/Financials/Actuarial-Finan
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2021

27.20%

9.85%

8.00%

June 30,
Net OPEB - RHIA (Asset) 2020

$(203.8)

June 30,
Net OPEB - RHIPA Liability 2020

$ 10.0

The employer contribution rates for the ORP are as follows: 

2021 2020 

Tier One/Two 27.20% 27.20% 

Tier Three 9.85% 9.85% 

Tier Four 8.00% 8.00% 

SUMMARY OF OTHER PENSION PAYMENTS 
EOU’s total payroll for the year ended June 30, 2021 was 
$25,606, of which $4,226 was subject to optional retirement 
plan contributions. Employer contributions for the year to-
taled $623, or 14.74 percent of covered payroll. Employee 
contributions, paid by the university on behalf of the em-
ployees, totaled $277, or 6.55 percent of covered payroll. 
Employee contributions paid by the employees totaled $37. 
EOU’s total payroll for the year ended June 30, 2020 was 
$26,780, of which $4,389 was subject to optional retirement 
plan contributions. Employer contributions for the year to-
taled $667, or 15.19 percent of covered payroll. Employee 
contributions, paid by the university on behalf of the em-
ployees, totaled $286, or 6.51 percent of covered payroll. 
Employee contributions paid by the employees totaled $36. 

15. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (PERS) 

PLAN DESCRIPTIONS 
The Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) Board 
contracts for health insurance coverage on behalf of eligi-
ble PERS members. Eligible retirees pay their own age-ad-
justed premiums. To help retirees defray the cost of these 
premiums, PERS also administers two separate defned ben-
eft other postemployment beneft (OPEB) plans: the Re-
tirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA) and the Retiree 
Health Insurance Premium Account (RHIPA). Only Tier One 
and Tier Two PERS members are eligible to participate in the 
RHIA and RHIPA plans. (Refer to Note 14 for details concern-
ing Tier One and Tier Two membership in PERS.) 

The RHIA is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defned ben-
eft OPEB plan in which the university participates. Estab-
lished under Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 238.420, the 
plan provides a payment of up to $60 toward the monthly 
cost of health insurance for eligible PERS members. To be el-
igible to receive the RHIA subsidy, the member must (1) have 
eight years or more of qualifying service in PERS at the time 
of retirement or receive a disability allowance as if the mem-
ber had eight years or more of creditable service in PERS, 
(2) receive both Medicare parts A and B coverage, and (3) 
enroll in a PERS-sponsored health plan. A surviving spouse 
or dependent of a deceased PERS retiree who was eligible 
to receive the subsidy is eligible to receive the subsidy if he 
or she (1) is receiving a retirement beneft or allowance from 
PERS or (2) was insured at the time the member died and 
the member retired before May 1, 1991. The Legislature has 

sole authority to amend the beneft provisions and employer 
obligations for the RHIA plan. 

Established under ORS 238.415, the RHIPA is considered a 
cost-sharing multiple-employer defned beneft OPEB plan 
for fnancial reporting purposes. The plan provides payment 
of the average diference between the health insurance 
premiums paid by retired state employees under contracts 
entered into by the PERS Board and health insurance pre-
miums paid by state employees who are not retired. PERS 
members are qualifed to receive the RHIPA subsidy if they 
have eight or more years of qualifying service in PERS at the 
time of retirement or receive a disability pension calculated 
as if they had eight or more years of qualifying service, but 
are not eligible for federal Medicare coverage. A surviving 
spouse or dependent of a deceased retired state employee 
is eligible to receive the subsidy if he or she (1) is receiving 
a retirement beneft or allowance from PERS or (2) was in-
sured at the time the member died and the member retired 
on or after September 29, 1991. The Legislature has sole au-
thority to amend the beneft provisions and employer obli-
gations of the RHIPA plan. 

Both RHIA and RHIPA are closed to employees hired on or 
after August 29, 2003, who had not established PERS mem-
bership prior to that date. 

OPEB PLANS REPORT 
The PERS RHIA and RHIPA defned beneft OPEB plans are 
reported separately under Other Employee Beneft Trust 
Funds in the fduciary funds combining statements and as 
part of the Pension and Other Employee Beneft Trust in the 
state’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. PERS issues 
a separate, publicly available fnancial report that includes 
audited fnancial statements and required supplementary 
information. The report may be obtained by writing to the 
Public Employees Retirement System, Fiscal Services Divi-
sion, PO Box 23700, Tigard, OR 97281-3700. The report may 
also be accessed online at: www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/ 
Financials/Actuarial-Financial-Information.aspx 

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
The fnancial statements for the PERS OPEB plans are pre-
pared using the accrual basis of accounting. Contributions 
are recognized in the period in which the contributions are 
due. Benefts are recognized in the month they are earned 
and withdrawals are recognized in the month they are due 
and payable. Plan investments are reported at fair value. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
Employers participating in PERS are required to report 
OPEB information in their fnancial statements for fscal pe-
riods beginning on or after June 15, 2017, in accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Report-
ing for Postemployment Benefts Other Than Pensions. 

The requirements of this Statement incorporate provisions 
intended to refect the efects of transactions and events 
related to OPEB in the measurement of employer liabilities 
and recognition of OPEB expense and deferred outfows of 
resources and deferred infows of resources related to OPEB. 

PROPORTIONATE SHARE ALLOCATION METHODOLOGY 
The basis for the employer’s proportion is determined by 
comparing the employer’s actual, legally required contribu-
tions made during the fscal year to the Plan with the total 
actual contributions made in the fscal year of all employers. 

COLLECTIVE OPEB PLAN (ASSET)/LIABILITY 
The components of the total PERS Net OPEB (asset)/liabili-
ty for the OPEB plans as of the measurement date of June 
30, 2020 and 2019 are as follows (in millions): 

June 30, June 30, 
Net OPEB - RHIA (Asset) 2020 2019 

Total OPEB - RHIA Liability $ 406.9 $ 435.6 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 610.7 628.9 

Plan Net OPEB - RHIA (Asset) $(203.8) $ (193.3) 

June 30, June 30, 
Net OPEB - RHIPA Liability 2020 2019 

Total OPEB - RHIPA Liability $ 64.3 $ 72.0 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 54.3 46.7 
Plan Net OPEB - RHIA Liability $ 10.0 $ 25.3 

CHANGES SUBSEQUENT TO THE MEASUREMENT DATE 
The university is not aware of any changes to beneft terms 
subsequent to the June 30, 2020 measurement date. 

CONTRIBUTIONS 
Both of the OPEB plans administered by PERS are funded 
through actuarially determined employer contributions. 

For the fscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the uni-
versity contributed 0.06 of PERS-covered payroll for Tier 
One and Tier Two plan members to fund the normal cost 
portion of RHIA benefts. The required employer contribu-
tion was approximately $2 for the years ended June 30, 2021 
and 2020. The actual contribution equaled the annual re-
quired contribution for the fscal year. 

For the fscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the uni-
versity contributed 0.12 of PERS-covered payroll for Tier One 
and Tier Two plan members to fund the normal cost portion 
of RHIPA benefts. In addition, the university contributed 
0.27 of all PERS-covered payroll to amortize the unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability over a fxed period with new un-
funded actuarial accrued liabilities amortized over 20 years. 
The required employer contribution was approximately $54 
and $51 for the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respec-
tively. The actual contribution equaled the annual required 
contribution for the fscal year. 

NET OPEB ASSET/LIABILITY 

a. RHIA 
At June 30, 2021, the university reported an asset of $75 for 
its proportionate share of the RHIA net OPEB asset. The net 
OPEB asset as of June 30, 2021 was measured as of June 
30, 2020, and the total OPEB asset used to calculate the 
net OPEB asset was determined by an actuarial valuation 
as of December 31, 2018. At June 30, 2020, the university 
reported an asset of $298 for its proportionate share of the 
RHIA net OPEB asset. The net OPEB asset as of June 30, 
2020 was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total OPEB 
asset used to calculate the net OPEB asset was determined 
by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2017. The PERS 
system does not provide EOU an audited proportionate 
share as a separate employer; the university is allocated a 
proportionate share of PERS employer state agencies. The 
state Department of Administrative Services (DAS) calculat-
ed EOU’s proportionate share of all state agencies internally 
based on actual contributions by EOU as compared to the 
total for employer state agencies. The Oregon Audits Divi-
sion reviewed this internal calculation. At June 30, 2021 and 
2020, EOU’s proportion was 0.04 and 0.15 percent, respec-
tively, of the statewide OPEB plan. 

For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, EOU recorded 
total OPEB expense of ($48) and ($42) due to the change in 
the net RHIA OPEB asset and changes to deferred outfows 
and deferred infows. 

b. RHIPA 
At June 30, 2021, the university reported a liability of $45 
for its proportionate share of the RHIPA net OPEB liability. 
The net OPEB liability as of June 30, 2021 was measured as 
of June 30, 2020, and the total OPEB liability used to calcu-
late the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of December 31, 2018. At June 30, 2020, the 
university reported a liability of $124 for its proportionate 
share of the RHIPA net OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability 
as of June 30, 2020 was measured as of June 30, 2019, and 
the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liabil-
ity was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 
31, 2017. The PERS system does not provide EOU an audited 
proportionate share as a separate employer; the university 
is allocated a proportionate share of PERS employer state 
agencies. DAS calculated EOU’s proportionate share of all 
state agencies internally based on actual contributions by 
EOU as compared to the total for employer state agencies. 
The Oregon Audits Division reviewed this internal calcula-
tion. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, EOU’s proportion was 0.45 
and 0.49 percent, respectively, of the statewide OPEB plan. 

For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, EOU recorded 
total OPEB expense of $8 and $19 due to the change in the 
net RHIPA OPEB liability and changes to deferred outfows 
and deferred infows. 

www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages
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Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

$ 129 $ (17)

112

$ 114

112$

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

$ 24 $ (58)

(34)

$ 20

DEFERRED ITEMS 

a. RHIA 
Deferred items are calculated at the system-wide level and 
are allocated to employers based on their proportionate 
share. For fscal years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020, de-
ferred items include: 

* Diference between expected and actual experience 

* Diference due to changes in assumptions 

* Changes in employer proportion since the prior measurement 
date 

* Diference between employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 

* A diference between projected and actual earnings 

Diferences between expected and actual experience, 
changes in assumption, and changes in employer proportion 
are amortized over the average remaining service lives of 
all plan participants, including retirees, determined as of the 
beginning of the respective measurement period. Employ-
ers are required to recognize OPEB expense based on the 
balance of the closed period “layers” attributable to each 
measurement period. The average remaining service lives 
determined as of the beginning of each measurement peri-
od are as follows: 

* Measurement period ended June 30, 2020 - 2.9 years 

* Measurement period ended June 30, 2019 - 3.1 years 

* Measurement period ended June 30, 2018 - 3.3 years 

The diference between projected and actual OPEB plan in-
vestment earnings attributable to each measurement period 
is amortized over a closed fve-year period. 

One year of amortization is recognized in the university’s to-
tal OPEB expense for fscal years 2021 and 2020. 

At June 30, 2021, EOU reported deferred outfows of re-
sources and deferred infows of resources related to RHIA 
OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and
 actual experience $ - $ (8) 

Changes of assumptions - (4) 

Net difference between projected and
 actual earnings on pension plan
 investments 9 -

Change in proportionate share 120 (4) 
Difference between contributions

 and proportionate share of 
contributions - (1) 

Total $ 129 $ (17) 
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 

Resources before Contributions 
Subsequent to the Measurement 
Date (MD) 112 

Contributions Subsequent to the MD 2 
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 

Resources after Contributions
 Subsequent to the MD $ 114 

Of the amount reported as deferred outfows of resources, 
$2 are related to contributions subsequent to the measure-
ment date and will be recognized as an increase of the net 
OPEB asset in the year ending June 30, 2022. 

At June 30, 2020, EOU reported deferred outfows of re-
sources and deferred infows of resources related to RHIA 
OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and
 actual experience $ - $ (39) 

Net difference between projected and
 actual earnings on pension plan
 investments - (18) 

Change in proportionate share - (8) 
Difference between contributions

 and proportionate share of 
contributions 1 (2) 

Total $ 1 $ (67) 
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 

Resources before Contributions 
Subsequent to the Measurement 
Date (MD) (66) 

Contributions Subsequent to the MD 2 
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 

Resources after Contributions
 Subsequent to the MD $ (64) 

Of the amount reported as deferred outfows of resources, 
$2 are related to contributions subsequent to the measure-
ment date and was recognized as an increase of the net 
OPEB asset in the year ended June 30, 2021. 

As of June 30, 2021, other amounts reported as deferred 
outfows of resources and deferred infows of resources re-
lated to RHIA OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as 
follows: 

Year Ended June 30: 
2022 $ 51 

2023 55 

2024 3 

2025 3 

$ 112 

b. RHIPA 
Deferred infows of resources and deferred outfows of re-
sources are calculated at the system-wide level and are allo-
cated to employers based on their proportionate share. For 
the fscal years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020, deferred 
items include: 

* Diference due to changes in assumptions 

* Diference between expected and actual experience 

* Changes in employer proportion since the prior 
measurement date 

* Diference between employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 

* Net diference between projected and actual earnings 

Diferences between expected and actual experience, 
changes in assumption, and changes in employer proportion 
are amortized over the average remaining service lives of 
all plan participants, including retirees, determined as of the 
beginning of the respective measurement period. Employ-
ers are required to recognize OPEB expense based on the 
balance of the closed period “layers” attributable to each 
measurement period. The average remaining service lives 
determined as of the beginning of each measurement peri-
od are as follows: 

* Measurement period ended June 30, 2020 - 6.4 years 

* Measurement period ended June 30, 2019 - 6.7 years 

* Measurement period ended June 30, 2018 - 6.9 years 

* Measurement period ended June 30, 2017 - 7.2 years 

The diference between projected and actual OPEB plan in-
vestment earnings attributable to each measurement period 
is amortized over a closed fve-year period. 

One year of amortization is recognized in the university’s to-
tal OPEB expense for fscal years 2021 and 2020. 

At June 30, 2021, EOU reported deferred outfows of resourc-
es and deferred infows of resources related to RHIPA OPEB 
from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Difference Between Expected and
 Actual Experience $ - $ (17) 

Change in Assumptions 1 (30) 
Net Difference Between Projected and

 Actual Earnings on OPEB Plan
 Investments 10 -

Change in Proportion 11 (10) 
Difference between contributions

 and proportionate share of 
contributions 2 (1) 

Total $ 24 $ (58) 
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 

Resources before Contributions 
Subsequent to the Measurement 
Date (MD) (34) 

Contributions Subsequent to the MD 54 
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 

Resources after Contributions
 Subsequent to the MD $ 20 

Of the amount reported as deferred outfows of resources, 
$54 are related to contributions subsequent to the measure-
ment date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
OPEB liability in the year ending June 30, 2022. 

At June 30, 2020, EOU reported deferred outfows of re-
sources and deferred infows of resources related to RHIPA 
OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Difference Between Expected and
 Actual Experience $ - $ (12) 

Change in Assumptions 2 -
Net Difference Between Projected and

 Actual Earnings on OPEB Plan
 Investments - (1) 

Change in Proportion 14 (1) 
Difference between contributions

 and proportionate share of 
contributions 1 -

Total $ 17 $ (14) 
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 

Resources before Contributions 
Subsequent to the Measurement 
Date (MD) 3 

Contributions Subsequent to the MD 51 
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 

Resources after Contributions
 Subsequent to the MD $ 54 

Of the amount reported as deferred outfows of resources, 
$51 are related to contributions subsequent to the measure-
ment date and was recognized as a reduction of the net 
OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. 
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:
RHIA

Fiscal Year June 30, 2021

Actuarial Assumptions:

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:
RHIPA

Fiscal Year June 30, 2021

Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate
RHIA RHIPA

June 30,
2021

June 30,
2021

($60) $62

(75) 44

(87) 28

Healthcare Cost Rate
RHIA RHIPA

June 30,
2021

June 30,
2021

($75) $31
(75) 44
(75) 61

Asset Class/ Strategy Low Range High Range OIC Target

As of June 30, 2020, other amounts reported as deferred 
outfows of resources and deferred infows of resources re-
lated to RHIPA OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as 
follows: 

Year Ended June 30: 
2022 $ (6) 

2023 (5) 

2024 (5) 

2025 (6) 

2026 (9) 

thereafter (3) 

$ (34) 

ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of 
the value of projected benefts and assumptions about the 
probability of events far into the future. Actuarially deter-
mined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual 
results are compared to past expectations and new esti-
mates are made about the future. Experience studies are 
performed as of December 31 of even numbered years. 

The following key methods and assumptions were used to 
measure the total RHIA OPEB liability: 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 
RHIA 

Fiscal Year June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 
Valuation Date December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 
Measurement Date June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 
Experience Study 
Report 

2018, published July 
2019 

2016, published July 
2017 

Actuarial Assumptions: 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 

Inflation Rate 2.50 percent 
Long-Term Expected 
Rate of Return 

7.20 percent 

Discount Rate 7.20 percent 
Projected Salary 
Increases 

3.50 percent 

Retiree Healthcare 
Participation 

Healthy retirees: 32%; 
Disabled retirees: 20% 

Healthy retirees: 35%; 
Disabled retirees: 20% 

Healthcare Cost 
Trend Rate 

Not applicable 

Mortality 

Healthy retirees and beneficiaries: 

Pub-2010 Healthy 
Retiree, sex distinct, 
generational with 
Unisex, Social Security 
Data Scale, with job 
category adjustments 
and set-backs as 
described in the 
valuation 

RP-2014 Healthy 
annuitant, sex distinct, 
generational with 
Unisex, Social Security 
Data Scale, with collar 
adjustments and set-
backs as described in 
the valuation 

Active members: 

Pub-2010 Employee, 
sex distinct, 
generational with 
Unisex, Social Security 
Data Scale, with job 
category adjustments 
and set-backs as 
described in the 
valuation 

RP-2014 Employees, 
sex distinct, 
generational with 
Unisex, Social Security 
Data Scale, with collar 
adjustments and set-
backs as described in 
the valuation 

Disabled retirees: 

Pub-2010 Disabled 
Retriee, sex distinct, 
generational with 
Unisex, Social Security 
Data Scale, with job 
category adjustments 
and set-backs as 
described in the 
valuation 

RP-2014 Disabled 
retriees, sex distinct, 
generational with 
Unisex, Social Security 
Data Scale 

The following key methods and assumptions were used to 
measure the total RHIPA OPEB liability: 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 
RHIPA 

Fiscal Year June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 
Valuation Date December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 
Measurement 
Date 

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 

Experience 
Study Report 

2018, published July 2019 2016, published July 2017 

Actuarial Assumptions: 
Actuarial Cost 
Method 

Entry Age Normal 

Inflation Rate 2.50 percent 
Long-Term 
Expected Rate 
of Return 

7.20 percent 

Discount Rate 7.20 percent 
Projected Salary 
Increases 

3.50 percent 

Retiree 
Healthcare 
Participation 

8-14 Years of Service: 10% 
15-19 Years of Servie: 15% 
20-24 Years of Service: 19% 
25-29 Years of Service: 26% 
30+ Years of Service: 34% 

8-14 Years of Service: 10% 
15-19 Years of Servie: 18% 
20-24 Years of Service: 23% 
25-29 Years of Service: 29% 
30+ Years of Service: 38% 

Healthcare Cost 
Trend Rate 

Applied at beginning of plan 
year, starting with 7.1% for 
2019, decreasing to 5.0% for 
2022, increasing to 5.9% for 
2031, and decreasing to an 
ultimate rate of 4.1% for 
2094 and beyond. 

Applied at beginning of plan 
year, starting with 7.5% for 
2017, decreasing to 5.2% for 
2024, increasing to 6.2% for 
2029, and decreasing to an 
ultimate rate of 4.2% for 
2093 and beyond. 

Mortality 

Healthy retirees and beneficiaries: 

Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree, 
sex distinct, generational 
with Unisex, Social Security 
Data Scale, with job 
category adjustments and 
set-backs as described in 
the valuation 

RP-2014 Healthy annuitant, 
sex-distinct, generational 
with Unisex, Social Security 
Data Scale, with collar 
adjustments and set-backs 
as described in the valuation 

Active members: 

Pub-2010 Employee, sex-
distinct, generational with 
Unisex, Social Security Data 
Scale, with job category 
adjustments and set-backs 
as described in the valuation 

RP-2014 Employees, sex-
distinct, generational with 
Unisex, Social Security Data 
Scale, with collar 
adjustments and set-backs 
as described in the valuation 

Disabled retirees: 

Pub-2010 Disabled Retriee, 
sex distinct, generational 
with Unisex, Social Security 
Data Scale, with job 
category adjustments and 
set-backs as described in 
the valuation 

RP-2014 Disabled retirees, 
sex-distinct, generational 
with Unisex, Social Security 
Data Scale 

DISCOUNT RATE 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability/ 
(asset) at June 30, 2021 and 2020 was 7.20 percent. The 
projection of cash fows used to determine the discount rate 
assumed that contributions from contributing employers 
are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially 
determined. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plans’ 
fduciary net position was projected to be available to make 
all projected future beneft payments of current plan mem-
bers. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
OPEB plan investments for the OPEB Plans was applied to 

all periods of projected beneft payments to determine the 
total OPEB liability. 

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS 
The sensitivity analysis below shows the sensitivity of the 
university’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/ 
(asset) to changes in the discount rate. The following pres-
ents the university’s proportionate share of the net OPEB li-
ability/(asset) calculated using the discount rate of 7.20 per-
cent as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, as well as what the net 
OPEB liability/(asset) would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is one percent lower or one percent higher 
than the current rate: 

Discount Rate 
RHIA RHIPA 

June 30, 
2021 

June 30, 
2020 

June 30, 
2021 

June 30, 
2020 

1% Decrease 
6.20% 

($60) ($231) $62 $148 

Current Discount Rate 
7.20% 

(75) (298) 44 124 

1% Increase 
8.20% 

(87) (355) 28 102 

The sensitivity analysis below shows the sensitivity of the 
university’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/ 
(asset) calculated using the current healthcare cost trend 
rates, as well as what the net OPEB liability/(asset) would be 
if it were calculated using healthcare trend rates that are one 
percentage point lower, or one percentage point higher than 
the current rates: 

Healthcare Cost Rate 
RHIA RHIPA 

June 30, 
2021 

June 30, 
2020 

June 30, 
2021 

June 30, 
2020 

1% Decrease ($75) ($298) $31 $93 
Current Trend Rate (75) (298) 44 124 

1% Increase (75) (298) 61 159 

ASSUMED ASSET ALLOCATION 
Asset Class/ Strategy Low Range High Range OIC Target 
Debt Securities 15.00 % 25.00 % 20.00 % 
Public Equity 27.50 37.50 32.50 
Private Equity 14.00 21.00 17.50 
Real Estate 9.50 15.50 12.50 
Alternative Investments 7.50 17.50 15.00 
Opportunity Portfolio 0.00 3.00 0.00 
Risk Parity 0.00 2.50 2.50 
Total 100 % 

LONG-TERM EXPECTED RATE OF RETURN 
To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-
term expected rate of return assumption, in May 2019 the 
PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by 
both Milliman’s capital market assumptions team and the 
OIC investment advisors. Each asset assumption is based 
on a consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes 
adjustment for the infation assumption. These assumptions 
are not based on historical returns, but instead are based on 
a forward-looking capital market economic model. The table 
below shows a summary of long-term expected rate of re-
turn by asset class. For more information on the Plan’s port-
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Asset Class Target

Compound
Annual
Return

(Geometric)

DeferredDeferred
Inflows ofOutflows of
ResourcesResources

31$ (176)$

(145)$

(145)$

folio, assumed asset allocation, and the long-term expected 
rate of return for each major asset class, calculated using 
both arithmetic and geometric means, see PERS’ audited f-
nancial statements at: www.oregon.gov/pers/pages/fnan-
cials/actuarial-fnancial-information.aspx 

The following table shows long-term expected rate of return 
by asset class: 

Asset Class Target 

Compound 
Annual 
Return 

(Geometric) 

Core Fixed Income  9.60%  4.07% 
Short-Term Bonds 9.60 3.68 
Bank/Leveraged Loans 3.60 5.19 
High Yield Bonds 1.20 5.74 
Large/Mid Cap US Equities 16.17 6.30 
Small Cap US Equities 1.35 6.68 
Micro Cap US Equities 1.35 6.79 
Developed Foreign Equities 13.48 6.91 
Emerging Market Equities 4.24 7.69 
Non-US Small Cap Equities 1.93 7.25 
Private Equity 17.50 8.33 
Real Estate (Property) 10.00 5.55 
Real Estate (REITS) 2.50 6.69 

Hedge Fund of Funds -
Diversified 

1.50 4.06 

Hedge Fund - Event-driven 0.38 5.59 
Timber 1.13 5.61 
Farmland 1.13 6.12 
Infrastructure 2.25 6.67 
Commodities 1.13 3.79 

Assumed Inflation – Mean 2.50% 

DEPLETION DATE PROJECTION 
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Postemployment Benefts Other Than Pensions, general-
ly requires that a blended discount rate be used to measure 
the Total OPEB Liability (the Actuarial Accrued Liability cal-
culated using the Individual Entry Age Normal Cost Method). 
The long-term expected return on plan investments may be 
used to discount liabilities to the extent that the plan’s Fidu-
ciary Net Position (fair market value of assets) is projected 
to cover beneft payments and administrative expenses. A 
20-year high quality (AA/Aa or higher) municipal bond rate 
must be used for periods where the Fiduciary Net Position 
is not projected to cover beneft payments and administra-
tive expenses. Determining the discount rate under GASB 
Statement No. 75 will often require that the actuary perform 
complex projections of future beneft payments and asset 
values. GASB Statement No. 75 (paragraph 39) does allow 
for alternative evaluations of projected solvency, if such 
evaluation can reliably be made. GASB does not contem-

plate a specifc method for making an alternative evaluation 
of sufciency; it is left to professional judgment. 

The following circumstances justify an alternative evaluation 
of sufciency for Oregon PERS: 

* Oregon PERS has a formal written policy to calculate 
an actuarially determined contribution (ADC), which is 
articulated in the actuarial valuation report. 

* The ADC is based on a closed, layered amortization period, 
which means that payment of the full ADC each year will 
bring the plan to a 100 percent funded position by the 
end of the amortization period if future experience follows 
assumption. 

* GASB Statement No. 75 specifes that the projections 
regarding future solvency assume that plan assets earn the 
assumed rate of return and there are no future changes in 
the plan provisions or actuarial methods and assumptions, 
which means that the projections would not refect any 
adverse future experience that might impact the plan’s 
funded position. 

Based on these circumstances, it is the independent actuary’s 
opinion that the detailed depletion date projections outlined 
in GASB Statement No. 75 would clearly indicate that the 
fduciary net position is always projected to be sufcient to 
cover beneft payments and administrative expenses. 

B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ BENEFIT BOARD (PEBB) 

PLAN DESCRIPTION 
EOU participates in a defned beneft postemployment 
healthcare plan administered by the Public Employees Ben-
eft Board (PEBB). This plan ofers healthcare assistance to 
eligible retired employees and their benefciaries. Chapter 
243 of the Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) gives PEBB the 
authority to establish and amend the beneft provisions of 
the PEBB Plan. The PEBB Plan is considered a multi-employ-
er cost-sharing plan for fnancial reporting purposes and is 
not administered through a trust. PEBB does not issue a sep-
arate, publicly available fnancial report. 

The PEBB Plan allows qualifying retired employees to con-
tinue their “active” health insurance coverage on a self-pay 
basis until they are eligible for Medicare. Participating retir-
ees pay their own monthly premiums. However, the premium 
amount is based on a blended rate that is determined by 
pooling the qualifying retirees with active employees, thus, 
creating an “implicit rate subsidy”. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
Employers participating in PEBB are required to report 
OPEB information in their fnancial statements for fscal pe-
riods beginning on or after June 15, 2017, in accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Report-
ing for Postemployment Benefts Other Than Pensions. 

The requirements of this Statement incorporate provisions 
intended to refect the efects of transactions and events 
related to OPEB in the measurement of employer liabilities 
and recognition of OPEB expense and deferred outfows of 
resources and deferred infows of resources related to OPEB. 

PROPORTIONATE SHARE ALLOCATION METHODOLOGY 
The basis for the employer’s proportion is determined by 
comparing the employer’s actual contributions made during 
the fscal year with the total actual contributions made in the 
fscal year of all employers. 

TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY 
At June 30, 2021, the university reported a liability of $1,021 
for its proportionate share of the total OPEB liability. The 
total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2021 was measured as of 
June 30, 2021, and was determined by an actuarial valuation 
as of July 1, 2019. At June 30, 2020, the university report-
ed a liability of $992 for its proportionate share of the total 
OPEB liability. The total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2020 
was measured as of June 30, 2020, and was determined 
by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019. PEBB does not 
provide EOU an audited proportionate share as a separate 
employer; the university is allocated a proportionate share 
of PEBB employer state agencies. DAS calculated EOU’s 
proportionate share of all participating employers internally 
based on actual contributions by EOU as compared to the 
total for participating employers. The Oregon Audits Divi-
sion reviewed this internal calculation. At June 30, 2021 and 
2020, EOU’s proportion was 0.68 percent of participating 
employers. 

For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, EOU recorded 
total OPEB expense of $68 and $85 due to the increase in 
the total OPEB liability and changes to deferred outfows 
and deferred infows. 

DEFERRED ITEMS 
Deferred infows of resources and deferred outfows of re-
sources are calculated at the system-wide level and are al-
located to employers based on their proportionate share. 
For the fscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, deferred 
items include: 

* Diference between expected and actual experience 

* Diference due to changes in assumptions 

* Changes in employer proportion since the prior measurement 
date 

* Diference between employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 

Changes in assumption and changes in proportion are amor-
tized over the closed period equal to the average expect-
ed remaining service lives of all covered active and inactive 
participants. Employers are required to recognize OPEB ex-

pense based on the balance of the closed period “layers” 
attributable to each measurement period. The weighted av-
erage expected remaining service lives, assuming zero years 
for all retirees, determined as of the beginning of each mea-
surement period are as follows: 

* Measurement period ended June 30, 2021 - 8.6 years 

* Measurement period ended June 30, 2020 - 8.6 years 

* Measurement period ended June 30, 2019 - 8.2 years 

* Measurement period ended June 30, 2018 - 8.2 years 

One year of amortization is recognized in the university’s to-
tal OPEB expense for fscal years 2021 and 2020. 

At June 30, 2021, EOU reported deferred outfows of re-
sources and deferred infows of resources related to OPEB 
from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Difference Between Expected and
 Actual Experience $ - $ (4) 

Change in Assumptions 25 (125) 
Change in Proportion 4 (47) 
Difference between contributions

 and proportionate share of 
contributions 2 -

Total $ 31 $ (176) 
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 

Resources $ (145) 

At June 30, 2020, EOU reported deferred outfows of re-
sources and deferred infows of resources related to OPEB 
from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Difference Between Expected and
 Actual Experience $ - $ (5) 

Change in Assumptions 25 (146) 
Change in Proportion 5 (54) 
Difference between contributions

 and proportionate share of 
contributions 3 -

Total $ 33 $ (205) 
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 

Resources $ (172) 

As of June 30, 2021, amounts reported as deferred outfows 
of resources and deferred infows of resources related to 
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30: 
2022 $ (23) 

2023 (23) 

2024 (23) 

2025 (23) 

2026 (21) 

Thereafter (32) 

$ (145) 

www.oregon.gov/pers/pages/finan
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:
June 30, 2021

Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate June 30, 2021

$1,094

1,021

952

Healthcare Cost Rate June 30, 2021
$919
1,021
1,142

ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of 
the value of projected benefts and assumptions about the 
probability of events far into the future. Actuarially deter-
mined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual 
results are compared to past expectations and new esti-
mates are made about the future. The following key meth-
ods and assumptions were used to measure the total OPEB 
liability: 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 
Measurement Date June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 
Valuation Date July 1, 2019 July 1, 2019 

Actuarial Assumptions: 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 

Inflation Rate 2.50 percent 

Discount Rate 2.16 percent 2.21 percent 
Projected Salary 
Increases 

3.50 percent 

Withdrawal, retirement, 
and mortality rates 

December 31, 2018 Oregon PERS valuation 

Healthcare Cost Trend 
Rate 

Pursuant to ORS 243.135(8), growth in per-
member expenditures under self-insured 

plans and premium amounts is assumed to 
be 3.40% per year. 

Election and lapse rates 

30% of eligible employees 

60% spouse coverage for males, 35% for 
females 

7% annual lapse rate 

DISCOUNT RATE 
Unfunded plans must use a discount rate that refects a 20-
year tax-exempt municipal bond yield or index rate. The 
Bond Buyer 20-Year General Obligation Bond Index was 
used to determine the discount rate for the OPEB liability. 
The discount rate in efect for the June 30, 2021 and 2020 
reporting dates was 2.16 percent and 2.21 percent, respec-
tively. 

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS 
The sensitivity analysis below shows the sensitivity of the 
university’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability to 
changes in the discount rate. The following presents the uni-
versity’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability cal-
culated using the discount rate of 2.16 percent as of June 30, 
2021 and 2.21 percent as of June 30, 2020, as well as what 
the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is one percent lower or one percent higher 
than the current rate: 

Discount Rate June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 
1% Decrease 
1.16%/1.21% 

$1,094 $1,063 

Current Discount Rate 
2.16%/2.21% 

1,021 992 

1% Increase 
3.16%/3.21% 

952 925 

The sensitivity analysis below shows the sensitivity of the 
university’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability 
calculated using the current healthcare cost trend rates, as 
well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calcu-
lated using healthcare trend rates that are one percentage 
point lower, or one percentage point higher than the current 
rates: 

Healthcare Cost Rate June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 
1% Decrease $919 $893 

Current Trend Rate 1,021 992 
1% Increase 1,142 1,109 

16. FUNDS HELD IN TRUST BY OTHERS 
Funds held in trust by others, for which EOU is an income 
benefciary, are not recorded in the fnancial records. The ap-
proximate value of such trust funds at June 30, 2021 and 2020, 
was $3,806 and $2,998, respectively. 

17. RISK FINANCING 
EOU is a member of the Public Universities Risk Management 
and Insurance Trust (trust). The trust is a separate legal enti-
ty which operates for the beneft of the member universities 
(members). The trust is governed by a Board of Trustees com-
prised of a representative of each member of the trust. The 
trustees administer an insurance program wherein the mem-
bers share risk by pooling their losses and claims and jointly 
purchasing insurance and administrative services through the 
trust. In exchange, members pay annual assessments and pro-
vide the trustees with information or assistance as necessary 
for the trustees to determine annual assessments and to pur-
chase insurance or reinsurance. By participating, EOU transfers 
the following risk to the trust: 

* real property loss for university owned building, equipment, 
automobiles and other types of property; 

* tort liability claims brought against the university, its ofcers, 
employees or agents; 

* workers’ compensation and employers liability; 

* crime, fduciary; 

* cyber security; and 

* specialty lines of business including: medical practicums, 
international travel, fne art, camps, clinics and other items. 

EOU retains risk for losses under $5, which is the deductible 
per claim for insurance purchased through the trust. 

EOU is charged an assessment to cover the trust’s cost of 
servicing claims and payments based on the risk allocation 
model and actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay 
prior and current-year claims. The amount of settlements has 
not exceeded insurance coverage in the last three years. 

In addition, EOU purchases various commercial insurance pol-
icies to cover the deductible amounts of intercollegiate ath-

letics insurance provided through the National Association of 
Intercollegiate Athletics, and to provide coverage for special 
events and student liability. 

18. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
As of June 30, 2021, EOU had $9,487 in outstanding commit-
ments on partially completed and planned but not initiated 
construction projects. These commitments will be primarily 
funded from bond proceeds, gifts and grants. 

EOU is contingently liable in connection with certain other 
claims and contracts, including those currently in litigation, 
arising in the normal course of its activities. Management is of 
the opinion that the outcome of such matters will not have a 
material efect on the fnancial statements. 

EOU participates in certain federal grant programs. These 
programs are subject to fnancial and compliance audits by 
the grantor or its representative. Such audits could lead to 
requests for reimbursement to the grantor for expenditures 
disallowed under terms of the grant. Management believes 
that disallowances, if any, will not have a material efect on 
the fnancial statements. 

Unemployment compensation claims are administered by the 
Oregon Employment Division pursuant to ORS Chapter 657, or 
other appropriate governmental entity depending on employee 
location. EOU reimburses the appropriate governmental entity 
for actual benefts paid. Each year resources are budgeted to 
pay current charges. The amount of future beneft payments 
to claimants and the resulting liability to EOU cannot be rea-
sonably determined at June 30, 2021. 

19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
EOU management has reviewed events and transactions that 
occurred subsequent to the Statement of Net Position date 
of June 30, 2021, and found none that required adjustment or 
disclosure in the fnancial statements. 

20. UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION 
Under policies approved by the board, individual university 
foundations may be established to provide assistance in fund 
raising, public outreach and other support for the mission of 
EOU. The EOU Foundation is a legally separate, tax-exempt 
entity with an independent governing board. Although EOU 
does not control the timing or amount of receipts from the 
foundation, the majority of resources, or income thereon, that 
the foundation holds and invests are restricted to the activi-
ties of the university by the donors. Because these restricted 
resources held by the foundation can only be used by, or for 
the beneft of, the university, the foundation is considered a 
component unit of EOU and is discretely presented in the f-
nancial statements. The fnancial activity is reported for the 
years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019. The foundation is 
audited annually and received an unmodifed audit opinion. 

Please see the fnancial statements for the EOU component 
unit on pages 23 and 25 of this report. 

During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 gifts of $761 
and $687, respectively, were transferred from the foundation 
to EOU. The university and the foundation have an agreement 
for services and use of facilities and university employees that 
perform foundation functions. The university paid $263 and 
$225 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respec-
tively, in compensation and benefts for university employees 
performing foundation functions. 

Complete fnancial statements for the foundation may be ob-
tained online at: www.eou.edu/foundation/about-the-foun-
dation or by writing to the following: 

* Eastern Oregon University Foundation, One University Blvd., 
La Grande, OR 97850-2807 

www.eou.edu/foundation/about-the-foun
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SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY CONTRIBUTIONS SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY PERS RHIA OPEB EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION
Public Employees Retirement System

SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
NET PENSION ASSET/(LIABILITY)*

Public Employees Retirement System

SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PERS RHIA OPEB ASSET/(LIABILITY)*

REQUIRED
SUPPLEMENTARY 
INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY CONTRIBUTIONS SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY PERS RHIA OPEB EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION
Public Employees Retirement System 

For Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 For Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012Contractually Required
 Contribution $ 2,578 $ 2,418 $ 1,695 $ 1,639 $ 1,111 $ 1,069 $ 875 $ 898 $ 855 $ 875 Actuarially Determined 

Contributions in Relation to Contributions1 $ 2 $ 2 $ 74 $ 70 $ 69 $ 64 $ 67 $ 66 $ 64 $ 66
 the Contractually 

Contributions in Relation to theRequired Contribution 2,578 2,418 1,695 1,639 1,111 1,069 875 898 855 875
 Actuarially Determined 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - Contributions 2 2 74 70 69 64 67 66 64 66 
University's Covered Payroll $ 18,226 $ 16,849 $ 16,381 $ 15,477 $ 14,441 $ 13,330 $ 12,474 $ 12,332 $ 12,005 $ 12,179 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -Contributions as a Percentage of
 Covered Payroll 14.14% 14.35% 10.35% 10.59% 7.69% 8.02% 7.01% 7.28% 7.12% 7.18% 

Covered Payroll $ 18,226 $ 16,849 $ 16,381 $ 15,477 $ 14,441 $ 13,330 $ 12,474 $ 12,332 $ 11,671 $ 11,905 

Contributions as a Percentage of
 Covered Payroll 0.01% 0.01% 0.45% 0.45% 0.48% 0.48% 0.54% 0.54% 0.55% 0.55% 

SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE 
NET PENSION ASSET/(LIABILITY)* 

Public Employees Retirement System 
1For Actuarial Assumptions and Methods, see table in Note 15 

As of the Measurement Date June 30, 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 

University's Proportion of the Net Pension Asset/(Liability) 0.12% 0.12% 0.12% 0.12% 0.12% 0.11% 
University's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension $ (26,950) $ (20,815) $ (17,734) $ (16,689) $ (18,079) $ (6,294) 
University's Covered Payroll $ 16,849 $ 16,381 $ 15,477 $ 14,441 $ 13,330 $ 12,474 
University's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 

Asset/(Liability) as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll 159.95% 127.07% 114.58% 115.57% 135.63% 50.46% 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension 

Asset/(Liability) 75.79% 80.23% 82.07% 83.12% 80.53% 91.88% 

0.11% 0.11% 
SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PERS RHIA OPEB ASSET/(LIABILITY)* $ 2,475 $ (5,571) 

$ 12,332 $ 12,005 

As of the Measurement Date June 30, 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 
20.07% -46.41% University's Proportion of the Net RHIA OPEB Asset/(Liability) 0.04% 0.15% 0.14% 0.14% 0.13% 

103.59% 91.97% University's Proportionate Share of the Net RHIA OPEB Asset/(Liability) $ 75 $ 298 $ 157 $ 58 $ (36) 
University's Covered Payroll $ 16,849 $ 16,381 $ 15,477 $ 14,441 $ 13,330 

University's Proportionate Share of the Net RHIA OPEB Asset/(Liability) as a
 Percentage of Covered Payroll 0.45% 1.82% 1.01% 0.40% 0.27% 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total RHIA OPEB Asset/(Liability) 150.09% 144.38% 123.99% 108.88% 94.15% 

*These tables will eventually contain 10 years of data. Only the data shown above is available at this time. *These tables will eventually contain 10 years of data. Only the data shown above is available at this time. 
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SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY PERS RHIPA OPEB EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION

SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PERS RHIPA OPEB LIABILITY*

SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
TOTAL PEBB OPEB LIABILITY*

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY PERS RHIPA OPEB EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 

For Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

Actuarially Determined 
Contributions1 $ 54 $ 51 $ 68 $ 64 $ 55 $ 51 $ 29 $ 29 $ 16 $ 17 

Contributions in Relation to the
 Actuarially Determined 
Contributions 54 51 68 64 55 51 29 29 16 17 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Covered Payroll $ 18,226 $ 16,849 $ 16,381 $ 15,477 $ 14,441 $ 13,330 $ 12,474 $ 12,332 $ 11,671 $ 11,905 

Contributions as a Percentage of
 Covered Payroll 0.30% 0.30% 0.42% 0.41% 0.38% 0.38% 0.23% 0.24% 0.14% 0.14% 

1For Actuarial Assumptions and Methods, see table in Note 15 

SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PERS RHIPA OPEB LIABILITY* 

As of the Measurement Date June 30, 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 
University's Proportion of the Net RHIPA OPEB Liability 0.45% 0.49% 0.48% 0.45% 0.45% 
University's Proportionate Share of the Net RHIPA OPEB Liability $ 45 $ 124 $ 168 $ 211 $ 241 
University's Covered Payroll $ 16,849 $ 16,381 $ 15,477 $ 14,441 $ 13,330 

University's Proportionate Share of the Net RHIPA OPEB Liability as a Percentage of
 Covered Payroll 0.27% 0.76% 1.09% 1.46% 1.81% 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total RHIPA OPEB Liability 84.45% 64.86% 49.79% 34.25% 21.87% 

SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE 
TOTAL PEBB OPEB LIABILITY* 

As of June 30, 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 

University's Allocation of the Total OPEB Liability 0.68% 0.68% 0.70% 0.72% 0.00% 

University's Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB Liability $ 1,021 $ 992 $ 1,122 $ 1,068 $ 1,033 

University's Covered Payroll $ 21,283 $ 20,208 $ 20,366 $ 19,359 $ 18,454 

University's Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB Liability as a
 Percentage of University Covered Payroll 4.80% 4.91% 5.51% 5.52% 5.60% 

Total OPEB Liability as a % of Total Covered Payroll 4.31% 3.77% 4.31% 4.42% 4.45% 

*These tables will eventually contain 10 years of data. Only the data shown above is available at this time. 
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LETTER FROM 
THE PRESIDENT 
To our alumni, friends, and philanthropic partners, 

On behalf of the Eastern Oregon University Foundation, and its directors and trustees, I 

would like to thank our generous alumni, donors, friends, and partners for your continued 

support. 

Your role is critical to the EOU Foundation’s goal of ensuring that every student has access 

to higher education. You can be very proud that the EOU Foundation awarded over $750,000 

in scholarships this past year! 

We believe that Eastern Oregon University has a transforming impact on students, alumni, 

and the communities we serve. Our philanthropic investments are aimed at supporting this 

transformation. 

We believe education is a great equalizer for underserved people, businesses, and 

communities. The impact for EOU students is particularly strong with our large proportion 

of frst-generation and low-income students. 

The EOU Foundation strategic plan objectives are focused on themes of 1) engaging with 

alumni, friends, and philanthropic partners; 2) dramatically growing our endowment; and 

3) increasing the number of scholarships awarded annually. Achieving these objectives will 

help make college education a reality for more students, enable faculty and programs to 

achieve national distinction, and ensure the continued vitality of Eastern Oregon University. 

Looking into next year, the EOU Foundation will “Engage, Invest, and Enhance” as we grow 

our endowment and increase scholarships. Your support will help realize our shared vision 

of “Funding the Future—Enriching Lives” and make the dream of higher education a reality 

for future Mountaineers. 

Sincerely, 

Mark Pearson, ’77  | President, EOU Foundation 

“We believe that Eastern Oregon University has a transforming impact on students, 
alumni, and the communities we serve. Our philanthropic investments are aimed at 
supporting this transformation.” 

— MARK PEARSON, ’77 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

ASSETS NET ASSETS:EOU 
CASH $ 3,447,939 WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 
INVESTMENTS 15,898,640 UNDESIGNATED $ 841,204 
PLEDGES RECEIVABLE, NET 365,507 BOARD DESIGNATEDFOUNDATION 
ASSETS HELD UNDER SPLIT-INTEREST  FOR OTHER PURPOSES 246,533 

AGREEMENTS 496,448 BOARD DESIGNATED QUASI 
BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN CHARITABLE  ENDOWMENT 160,4902021 

TRUSTS HELD BY OTHERS 351,230 WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 1,100,339 PURPOSE RESTRICTED 7,943,827 

_____________ PERPECTUAL IN NATURE 10,774,432FINANCIAL 
TOTAL ASSETS $ 21,660,103 _____________ 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 19,966,486REPORT 
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
LIABILITIES: NET ASSETS $ 21,660,103 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 19,024 _____________ 
DUE TO AFFILIATE 1,601,834 
REVOCABLE DONOR ENDOWMENT 72,759 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 1,693,617 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

NEWLY ESTABLISHED FUNDS IN 2020 

* Patrick Burke Football Scholarship * Scott Fairley Memorial Scholarship * Neely Physcial Health Scholarship 

* Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla * Fenton Family Scholarship * Pendleton Foundation Trust 
Scholarship Scholarship* Learning Disabilities Foundation 

* Connected Professional Accountants Scholarship * Walter S. Sutton Scholarship 
Accounting Scholarship * Library Support Fund - Burgess Estate * Beatrice Warren Memorial Scholarship 

* EOU Coaching Excellence Award * Lund Last Lap Endowed Scholarship 
* EOU Teacher Excellence Award * Nearing EOU Deans Fund for 

Excellence 
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PHILANTHROPIC SUPPORT 

FOUNDATION 
YEAR 
IN REVIEW 

2021 EOU 
ANNUAL REPORT 

089 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Change in net assets $ 2,073,102 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to 

net cash from operating activities 
Depreciation 2,395 
Net revaluation of split-interest agreement and other trusts (34,995) 
Endowment contributions, including pledges receivable (423,583) 
(Increase) decrease in value of investments 

including reinvested dividends and interest (1,431,356) 
(Increase) decrease in non-endowment pledges receivable 87,905 
Increase (decrease) in due to affiliate 121,110 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 970 

_____________ 
Net case provided by operating activities  $ 395,548 

_____________ 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchases if investments $ (1,255,832) 
Proceeds from sale of investments $ 652,714 

_____________ 

Net case used by investment activities $ (603,118) 
_____________ 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Proceeds from endowment gifts including collection of pledges 356,693 

_____________ 
Net cash provided by financing activities $ 356,693 

Net increase in cash 149,123 

Cash, beginning of year 3,298,816 

Cash, end of year $ 3,447,939 

EOU Foundation Scholarship Awards 

$900,000 

$800,000 

$700,000 

$600,000 

$500,000 

$400,000 

$300,000 

$200,000 

Note: Net gift revenue for EOU $100,000 
Foundation only and does not 
include any trust activity. 

07-08 08-09 09-10 10-11 11-12 12-13 13-14 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21 21-22 
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091 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

Without Donor With Donor 
Restrictions Restrictions  Total____ 

REVENUE AND GAINS: 
Contributions $ 180,957 
Contributions - Shared employees 287,741 
Grants -
Investment income (loss) 25,574 
Administrative assessments 212,198 
Special event revenue 564 
Rental income -
Net revaluation of split-interest agreements 

and other trusts -
Donor requested transfers 2,390 
Other revenue 3,674 _____________ 

Total revenues and gains  713,098 _____________ 

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS: 
Expiration of program & time restrictions 712,561 _____________ 

Total revenues, gains and other support  1,425,659 
_____________ 

EXPENSES: 
Administrative 248,630 
Fundraising support 305,985 
Other University support 706,955 _____________ 

TOTAL EXPENSES  1,261,570 _____________ 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 164,089 _____________ 
Net assets, beginning of year 1,084,138 

_____________ 
Net assets, end of year $ 1,2,48,227 _____________ _____________ 

Calendar Year 2020 Gifts by Designation 

2% 
Athletics 9% Unrestricted 

57% Scholarships 

5% Building & 
Equipment 

27% Other 
Program/Acadmic Support 

$ 1,205,192 $ 1,386.149 
- 287,741 

11,867 11,867 
1,191,726 1,217,300 

- 212,198 
6,476 7,040 

82,251 82,251 

125,266 125,266 
(2,390) -

1,186 4,860 

2,621,574 3,334,672 

(712,561) -

1,909,013 3,334,672 

- 248,630 
- 305,985 
- 706,955 

- 1,261,570 

1,909,013 2,073,102 

16,809,246 17,893,384 

$ 18,718,259 $ 19,966,486 



2020 STRATEGIC PLAN STORIES 18      

     
      

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    
    

    
    

    
    

    
          

    
                          

20
ANNUANNUAL REPORAL REPORTT

_____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ 

_____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ 

092092092 

2021 PHILANTHROPIC SUPPORT 
ANNUAL REPORT 

EOU 
FOUNDATION 

2021 EOU 
ANNUAL REPORT 

093 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

Fundraising Other University 
Administrative Support Support  Total____ 

Salaried and related expenses $ 154,114 $ 133,627 - $ 287,741 
Services and supplies 2,592 77,248 155,933 235,773 
Student aid - - 546,199 546,199 
Events - - 4,823 4,823 
License, membership & fees 2,219 4,995 - 7,214 
Insurance 4,524 - - 4,524 
Contracted services 36,892 33,949 - 70,841 
Purchased services, research, and lists - 3,490 - 3,490 
Maintenance 39,925 - - 39,925 
Postage - 18,258 - 18,258 
Printing - 23,876 - 23,876 
Recognition and stewardship - 6,674 - 6,674 
Meeting expense 862 - - 862 
Training and travel - 3,868 - 3,868 
Advertising and promotion - - - -
Depreciation 2,395 - - 2,395 
Taxes 5,107 - - 5,107 

$ 248,630 $ 305,985 $ 706,955 $ 1,261,570 

Calendar Year 2020 Expenses by Designation 

20% Administrative 
Support 

44% Student Aid 

24% Fundraising Support 

12% Other University Support 
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PROGRAMS 
& ACTIVITIES 
SUPPORTED 

Alumni Program 

Art Dept. Support - media, print 
making, graphics and pottery 

Arts East Publication 

Ars Poetica 

Athletic Support 

Basalt Publication 

Badgley Science Equipment 

Big Idea Fund 

Campus Events to Support Students, 
Faculty, Classifed Staf and 
Administrative Staf 

Career Center 

Campus Carillon 

Chemistry Club 

Choir Program 

Conectate EventThe EOU Foundation supports a wide array of programs and activities 
Concert Piano Equipment 

at the University, above and beyond funding for scholarships. The Clock Tower and Carillon Music 

Collegiate Athletic Program Support 

Conference Attendance for Students 

following pages contain a brief list of some areas of support that the 
Foundation is able to provide, through the various funds from our 

Crisis Support for Students in Needgenerous donors. (from Glasses to Travel, Rent and many 
other areas) 

Dean Support Funds 

E-sports Support 

Education Dept. Equipment 

English Writing Program Support 

EOU Academic Marketing Program 

EOU Drumline 

EOU Governing Board 

Equipment for Sciences Dept. 

Faculty Support for Professional 
Publications and Development 

Fieldhouse 

Fine Arts 

Flag Preservation 

Geology Program 

Hermiston Center Support 

High School Outreach and Summer 
Institute 

Historical Buildings on Campus 
Support 

Hoke Renovation 

Holiday Music Festival 

Honors Program 

Honorariums and Memorials 

International Student Event 

Internship Program Fund 

KickStart Program 

Library Support 

EOU Marketing Dept. 

Media Program 

McKenzie Farm Support 

McKenzie Theatre 

Mountaineer Athletic Association 

Multicultural Center Program Support 

Music Ensemble Program 

Music Program and Equipment 

Nightingale Gallery 

OHSU Rita Monahan Support Fund 
OHSU Nursing Club 

EOU 

One-Up Club 

Oregon East Publication 

Outdoor Program 

Partner Programs with BMCC, TVCC, 
OHSU, OSU 

Physical Health and Science 
Computer Lab 

Polo Club 

Pottery Program 

PowWow Event 

Presidents Innovative Fund 

President’s Support Fund 

Professional development for Faculty 

Professorships 

Psychology Program Support 

Rodeo Club 

Science Dept Equipment 

Science Journal Support Fund 

Stadium improvements 

Staircase Restoration 

Stenard Gardens 

Student Crisis Fund 

Student Media Group 

Student Recruitment Fund 

Student Summer Research Support 

Teacher Licensure Support 

Theatre Program 

Track and Field improvements 

Trap Club 

Trio Program Support 

Vice President’s Support Funds 

Visiting artist and speakers 

University Grant Program - Faculty & 
Staf 

University Grant Program - Student 
Clubs 

Week of Welcome Activities 

Women’s Resources Center 
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LEGACY 
SOCIETY 

The Legacy Society includes those individuals who have included the 
EOU Foundation in their estate. 
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LEGACY SOCIETY MEMBERS 

Estate of Grace M. Scully 

Estate of Elizabeth R. Bohnenkamp 

Mike and Bobbi Allstott 

Donald and Trudy Anderson 

Margaret Anderson 

Estate of Roy Benedict 

Carol and Doug Campbell 

Richard and Kathleen Chaves 

Joy Cleaver 

Michael and Susan Daugherty 

Steven De Hart and Sheldon Donig 

Estate of Alma B. Trask 

Estate of Charles and Rhoda Chollet 

Estate of Gordan Cochran 

Estate of Jennie A. White 

Estate of Joy Dobbin 

Estate of Paul H. Lewis 

Estate of Pauline Harris 

Sharon Evoy and Jerome Sebestyen 

Estate of Rema Fleener 

Dr. Leaun Fuchs 

Mr. Denver C. Ginsey† 

Robert Grable 

Gilbert R. Hunter 

Linda L. Jones 

Pat and Joan Kelly 

Estate of Carol Kennell 

Estate of Irma Klinghammer 

Lawrence Koppy 

William Ralston Lindley, Jr. 

Dixie and Ed Lund 

Jim and Judy Lundy 

Keith Masterson 

Bob and Bev Moody 

Estate of Janice Neely 

G. Susanna Ogston 

Anne Olson 

John Patterson 

Lanetta S. Paul 

Mark and Stacy Pearson 

Robert R. Peshall 

Michael Rosenbaum 

Judith and Lawrence Sale 

Donald and Sarah Stearns 

Elmer Stone 

Lloyd and Carole Trilling 

Honorable Eric and 
Mrs. Meg Valentine 

Peter Wordelman and 
Lisa Ladendorf 
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STRATEGIC PLAN STORIESPHILANTHROPIC SUPPORT 

HONOR ROLL OF 
DONORS 

The EOU Foundation wishes to recognize and thank all of our donors in 
2020. The lists on the following pages recognize each donor who gave 
by cash, pledge, gifts-in-kind or bequest to the Foundation, including 
gifts to the EOU Mountaineer Athletic Association and the many other 
organizations at the University. Donors are listed by the total amount 
given in 2020. The Foundation’s Fiscal Year runs January 1 - December 31. 

Every efort has been made to acknowledge all gifts received by the 
Foundation. If you notice any omissions or have any questions, please 
contact University Advancement. 
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$500,000 AND ABOVE 
Janice Neely† 

$100,000 TO $499,999 
Don Dunbar 

Oregon Agriculture Foundation 

$50,000 TO $99,999 
Herb and Linda Jollif 

$25,000 TO $49,999 
James and Nancy Case 

Dixie and Ed Lund 

Lawrence Koppy 

Patrick Nearing and Barbara Zukin 

$10,000 TO $24,999 
Banner Bank 

Connected Professional 

Accountants, LLC 

Estate of Jennie A. White 

Estate of Walter & Melva Taylor CRUT 

Joann Fenton 

Good Shepherd Community 

Health Foundation 

Tom and Emily Insko 

Lane Farms Inc 

G. Susanna Ogston 

Pendleton Foundation Trust 

Val and G Royes 

$5,000 TO $9,999 
Carey and Heather Allison 

Mike and Bobbi Allstott 

Craig and Kay Braseth 

Stephen C. Carter 

James and Ashley Challis 

Scott Coe 

Peter Dalke 

Rema Fleener† 

Elizabeth and Ray Hyde 

Lee and Beth Insko 

Legacy Chrysler Jeep Dodge Ram 

Les Schwab Tires - La Grande 

Michael A. Becker, 

General Contractor, Inc. 

Mountain West Moving and Storage 

Anne Olson 

Frank and Chloe Pearson 

R. D. Mac, Inc. 

Red Cross United Drug, Inc. 

Margerat and Earl Rother 

Gary and Ina Syphers 

James and Connie Voelz 

Kristle and Marvin Wyant 

$1,000 TO $4,999 
(All gifts of $1,000 and above qualifes 

donors for inclusion in the President’s 

Circle.) 

Margaret Anderson 

Phyllis and Fred Arnst 

Avista Foundation 

Audrey Carey and Tom Hippensteele 

Kevin and Darnel Cassidy 

Centsable Wealth Management 

Holly Chason 

Bud and Elaine Cockrell 

Susan and Steven Corey 

John Cuthbert 

Mike and Sue Daugherty 

Scott and Susan Davidson 

Dale and Jackie De Long 

Energy Trust of Oregon 

Eton Lane Foundation 

Marguerite H. Fitzpatrick 

Jan and Steve Foltz 

Mel Frederick 

Michael and Kelsey Freese 

Carolyn P. Gilbert 

Timothy and Linda Gleeson 

Bob Grable 

Brent and Kimmi Gunderson 

Marcy and Sam Haines 

Linda and Hugo Hartig 

Alex Hattenhauer 

Rebecca and Jason Henry 

Dr. Richard A. Hermens 

Mary and Chris Horn 

Dr. Steven D. Hunsaker 

Ann and Dan Hutchinson 

Matt and Melanie Insko 

Michael and Marilyn Jaeger 

Robert Jenkins 

Steve Jennings 

Jeremy Jones 

Sharon Judycki 

Holly and John Kerfoot 

David E. Kerley† 

Koza Family Dental Care 
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Legacy Chrysler Jeep Dodge Ram Michael and Adelaide Andrews Jennifer and Jarod Teeter Andrew J. Koopman Joseph E. Baird Evan Bryan 

Terry and Mary Jo Lemon Joan Bates Sharon and Burke Thomason Bud and Lorene Lewis Douglas and Wadonna Bansch Elizabeth and Daniel Burton 

Corey and Mandi Maag Blue Summit Realty Group Andrea and Doug Waldrop Brian and Sheryl Little Zachary Bartlow Stacy Burton 

John and D. Gail McAllister Christ and Barbara Bounef Anji Weissenfuh Pamela Lucas Drinda Battalie and Gordon Battaile Marcia Anne Butler 

Jim and Rita McMahan Wayne Bridges Clint and Cindy Williams Kevin and Stormie McCarthy Sheldon Baty Rob and Susan Bynum 

Pat McPherren Patrick and Linda Burke Meredith and Jack Wilson Karen McGillivray† Kathleen Beckett Louis and Sally Byrd 

George and Kristi Mendoza Stacey and Pete Candlish Allen Morgan Naomi and Melvin Beeson Laura and Ron Calif 

Abel and Sherry Mendoza LeeAnn and Jim Case $250 TO $499 Joel and Devon Myer Diana and Ken Benedick Doug and Carol Campbell 

Greg Monahan Roberta Conner Mary Abrams Douglas and Cari Naugle Leanna Bentz Jim Carlson 

Suzannah Moore-Hemann                Sheila Criswell Veronica and Timothy Acevez North Fork John Day Gregory Berry Robert and Charlene Carlton 

and Patrick Hemann Cathy and Josh Cyphers Mark and Sallie Aldape   Watershed Council Ryan Bigelow Carol Carson 

Mountain Valley Therapy, Inc. Anonymous Victoria and Howard Bailey Glenn and Heather Null Beverly and Lloyd Bigler Rob and Heather Cashell 

Richard and Tonya Nichols Adriana and Kyle DalSoglio Brett and Julie Baxter Dan O’Grady Anne Billing Richard and Kathleen Chaves 

Craig and Elena Nightingale Steven De Hart and Sheldon Donig Kim Beck Betty and Rob Palmer Ann Bird Xiaowei Chen 

John Nightingale and Matt and Doris Doherty Eric Bennett Craig Patti Shawn Bird, Sr. Karen A. Chitwood

  Jacqueline Gijssen Skye Fitzgerald Gary and Sheila Bores Linda and Dale Settje Roberta Borgonovo Nicole L. Christian 

Oregon Trail Electric Mary and Lowell Forman Doug Briney Judith Seydel Mary Bousquet Mr. and Mrs. Allan Claudson

  Consumers Cooperative Carolyn Frasier Joe Burgett Scott and Christine Smith 

John Patterson Lou and Gayla Freter Kathryn and Gary Burke Evelyn Spikes 

Mark and Stacy Pearson Suzanne and Eric Gilman Molly and Norman Burke Gordon Syphers 

John and Becky Preston Grande Ronde Hospital Ron and Jolene Burnette Darin Tankersley 

Jef and Sue Quinn Grout Farms LLC Tim and Janet Camp Treasure Valley Steel, Inc. - Ontario 

R.H. Parker/United Foundation Jamie Jo and Anthony Haddock Castle Rock Farming, LLC Ellie and Rick Tymer 

Riverside Greens Patty and Wayne Herron Dr. Kenneth and Mrs. Ellen Chasteen Jessy Watson 

Matt  and Lynn Scarfo James and Sue Hottois Shellee Christensen Dale and Lorrine Wordelman 

Tim and Tressa Seydel Charles and Kathi Karns Jef and Ginger Church Marie and Mark Wyzgala 

Rich and Julie Sipe Pat and Joan Kelly City of La Grande Y1 Farms, Inc. 

Doyle and Connie Slater Ellen Krieger Butch and Marjean Corey 

David Smith and Victoria Tagliafco La Grande Family Eye Care Jack Daugherty UP TO $249 
Greg and Sherri Smith Jim and Judy Lundy John Di Fede Norina Abeyta 

Dr. Bradford and Anne Stephens Kathryn Madden Martin and Marcia Doyle Sy Adler 

Gail L. Sullivan Cheryl Martin Colleen Dunne-Cascio Holly and Jim Akenson 

Luke and Tyan Swanson Jack and Barbara McCown Joyce and Kenneth Edgmon Michael Alvarez 

Anonymous Verl E. Miller Marvin and Dana Endicott Nancy Ames 

Ashley Walker Jacquelyn and Judd Noland Steve and Mindy Gilmore George and Patti Anderson 

Kevin Walker Mel and Diantha Ott Leslie and Joel Hasse Anonymous 

Tim and Christine Wallender Lanetta S. Paul Elizabeth Hayford Cory Andrews 

Gary and Gail Wilhelms Stephen Percy Edward and Suzanne Henninger Caralee Anley 

Wilson Major Gifts Fundraising Inc. William and Julie Pettit Flint and Colleen Holland Patricia Arnson Kathleen Brown Michael and Betty Coblentz 

Peter Wordelman and Puma and Ann Phillips Mr. Edward Carl Holter Rich and Nancy Attebury Sheryl and Norm Brown Sherry Cole

 Lisa Ladendorf Norris and Lucy Preyer Craig Humphrey and Linda Patterson Tim Azevedo† Chrystine and Jim Brown Doyle and Candi Connall 

Patrick and Noreen Regan Mr. Richard D. Hutchison Dustyn Azure Angie Brown Elizabeth and Coop Cooper 

$500 TO $999 Doug Reynolds Marjorie Iburg Priscilla Azurin Peg K. Brown Teresa Cooper Cotton 

Joni and Joel Albright Cindy Stenard Anonymous Jodie Bailey Betty and Howard Brown Thomas Cox 

Luke and Tracie Aldrich Charles and Andrea Stine Greg and Valerie Juul Konnie and Don Baines Morgan Brown Michael Craven 
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Gerald L. Crawford† An Dinh 

Chris and Dan Cronin Elsie Donaldson 

Robert Crow Timothy and Loraine Donivan 

Erin Culley and Morgan Troyer Lynn Duncan and Gary Pierson 

Jacqueline Cupples Lori Durrell 

Melanie Dabulskis David and Nicki Ebel 

John and Barbara Dadoly Margaret and Ken Edwards 

Marilyn K. Daggett Janet and Richard Enger 

David Dallas Matthew and Selena English 

Jean M. Damon Michael Esquibel 

Michael J. DeFelice Shane Essency 

Danielle DeVall Sharon Evoy and Jerome Sebestyen 

Jacquelyn DeVore Farmers Supply Cooperative 

Mirta Diaz Dena Faulstich 

Kyla and Doug Dickerson William Felix 

PHILANTHROPIC SUPPORT 

Roberta Fink 

Sarah Fischer 

Lorri and Ricky Fischer 

Mary Lou Fletcher 

Joanne Flower 

Madeline Ford 

Jessica Franks 

Linda Fratzke 

Claudia Fredricks 

Ronda Fritz 

Evelyn Fuller 

Jeremy and Lindsy Fullenwider 

Gary Gardner 

Lesley Garoutte 

GCT Land Management Inc. 
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Danielle Gentry 

Sarah Giles 

Steven and Mindy Gilmore 

Ondrell Girtley 

Gina Glaubke 

Linda and Timothy Gleeson 

Karyn Gomez 

Patricia Goodin 

David Grifth 

Barbara and Charles Grutzmacher 

Eunice Guerrant 

Colin and Rebecca Guhlke 

Larry and Pam Haddock 

Bob and Marie Hall 

Jerod and Jamie Hall 

Marie and Bob Hall 

Melvin J. Harnett 

Bill Harrison 

Don and Nancy Harsch 

Shirley A. Harshbarger 

Victoria Hart 

Brian and Kristi Hayes 

Tom and Susan Hayes 

Martha and Michael Heather 

Gary and Catherine Hendricks 

Beverly Henneous 

Phillip Hernandez 

Martha and Bob Hickey 

Larry and Mary Hildebrandt 

Charles and Judy Holliday 

Gary and Sharon Holmes 

Sierra Howard 

Peter Howell 

John and Susan Hughes 

Teresa and Ken Humphrey 

Jack S. Hunter 

Lydia Hurty 

Chi and Phuong Huynh 

Lee and Beth Insko 

Hilary Ishii 

Jennifer Jahner 

David James 

Albert James 

Cathy Johnson 

Kristin and Matthew Johnson 

Deontae Johnson 

Linda L. Jones 

Sharon and Gene Jones 

Brandy Jones 

Monk and Terry Kalemba 

Patricia and Pat Kelly 

Dave and Karen King 

Diane Kinsley 

Nancy Knowles 

Dr. Peter and Judy Kohler 

Georgia and Thomas Kuhn 

Carlito Labarda, Jr. 

Robert and Linda Ladendorf 

Christine Langford 

Peggy and Mark Lanman 

Rick Larrison 

Legacy Ford Lincoln Mercury 

Lewis Farms, Inc. 

Kristy Linerud 

Tawnya Lubbes 

Emmett Maine 

Barbara Malone 

Fernanda Marcolla-Van Houten 

Wilma Martin 

Lowell and Susan Masters 

Amanda and Gary May 

Mike Maynard 

Rannolie and DJ Mc Ghee 

Thomas and Rachel McCarthy 

Mike and Katherine McCauley 

Mark and Judy McGladrey 

Andrew McHaddad 

Kim McKague 

Marcia McKeon 

Chris and Janet McLaughlin 

Leslie McMillan 

Genesis Meaderds 

Cheryl and Bob Miles 

Kimberly Miller 

Bryan Mills 

Mrs. Sarah and Dr. David Moore 

Steven and Heidi Moore 

Ruben and Judith Moore 

Darlene P. Morgan 

Larry and Patty Morrill 

Heidi Moyes 
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Les Mueller Wes and Marie Rampton 

Michelle and Pat Mulhill Shaunna Ransdall 

Rosemarie Murphey Landen Reddington 

Damon and Mindy Nash Arthur Reif 

Lyle and Suzanne Nelson Rebecca Rhodes 

Calli Nelson Ashley Rhoton 

Joe and Vicki Neveau Kristen and Rosa Rice 

Dr. Rae Ette Newman Rianna Richard 

Jon Nitz Doug Riggs 

Theresa Noldeke Elizabeth Roberts 

Gordi R. Northrup Donald Rollins 

Eric Olsen and Vicki Bassett Jim and Mary Rose 

Dr. David and Mrs. Candy Olson Sondra and Bill Rosholt 

Ayeesha Ononaiye Jack and Grace Rye 

Oregon Department of Judy and Jim Rygg 

Transportation Jose Salgado 

Oregon Nurses Association Cassandra Sanchez 

Ken and Joanne Parsons Kimberly Sanders 

Darrell and Jean Peterson Prof. Sam C. Saunders 

Branden Phanmaha Ginger and Kerry Savage 

Judith and Ted Pitsaros Amber Schlegel 

Jacob Plocher Grant Schott 

Monica Plut Robert and Susan Schwarz 

Kasey and Melissa Powers Schweitzer Engineering 

Marjorie and Stanley Prowant   Laboratories, Inc. 

Shaneese Pua Matt and Lindsey Seimears 

Dr. Audrey T. and Mark Puscas Michael Sell 

Dr. E. Robert Quinn Steve and Susan Sheehy 

Donna Rainboth and James McIver Nasser Shoaee and Terri Chandler 

Juan Ramirez Gerri and John Silveira 

IN MEMORIAM 
Natalie K. Carey 

Thiele H. Coe 

Scott Fairley 

James Dan Feathergill 

Reme Fleener 

Barbara Harnett 

Larry Johnson 

David Kerley 

Mary Koza 

Alex Mitzimberg 

Marty Owens 

Devin Seibel 

Harris Shelton 

Dixie Stroud 

Glenn Wiseman 

PHILANTHROPIC SUPPORT 

Shirley and Bruce Simmons 

Laurel Singer 

Hope Skowron 

Marcia Slater and James Hatfeld 

Carlene Sluberski 

Edith Smith 

Juliet Smith 

Mike Smith 

Reiba Smith 

Teresa Smtih-Dixon and 

  Craig Dixon 

Remington Spangler 

Jolynne and John Spencer 

Mary Stearns 

Trisha Harshberger 

Patty Strickland 

Robert and Jeannette Strickland 

Bobbi Sumpter 

Sarah Swanson 

Ki Sweeney 

Bonnie and Terril Templeman 

The Wave Carwash, Inc. 

Bicker and Kathy Therien 

Terry and Kathreen Thimmes 

Thompson RV Inc. 

Cheryl Thornton 

Thurston Enterprises, Inc. 

Majalise and Jake Tolan 

Mick† and Susan Tolar 

Kimberly Travis 

COMMERCIAL SPONSORS 
Banner Bank 

Les Schwab, La Grande 

Castle Rock Farming, LLC 

Centsable Wealth Management 

City of La Grande 

EnergyTrust of Oregon 

Foundation for a Better Oregon 

North Fork John Day Watershed Council 

2021 
ANNUAL REPORT 

0105 

Mackenzie Trotter 

Paul and Kathy Tuohy 

Gayle Tweed 

Keith Udy 

Isaac Updike 

Beth and Roger Upshaw 

Carol Vedder 

Christina Wakinyan 

Karry and Jake Walgamott 

Tom and Peg Wallis 

Barbara A. Walter 

Beverley A. Ward 

Bob and Donise Warsaw 

Heather and Larry Watson 

Neil and Debbie Watterson 

Tamara Weaver 

Peggy and Guy Weishaar 

Susan and Shawn White 

Christopher and Dianna White 

Wes and Lynn Whittemore 

Sally and Michael Wiens 

Sean Williams 

Elizabeth Wilson and Bruce DeGrazia 

Karen Wilson 

EOU 

Joanne Glenn Wiseman 

Kreg and Sharon Wishard 

Andrew Woody 

Amy and Jason Yielding 

Dale and Peggy Young 

Vince and Linda Zarkovich 

Tim and Julia Zenke 

Beth Zetter 



 
 

 

For information about the fnancial data and other information 
included in this report, contact; 

Lara Moore 

Vice President for Finance and Administration 

Tim Seydel 

Vice President of University Advancement 

Eastern Oregon University 

One University Blvd. 

La Grande, OR 97850 

541-962-3740 

www.eou.edu 
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	LETTER FROM THE PRESIDENT 
	Friends of Eastern Oregon University, 
	Reflecting on the past year brings to mind the well-known Robert Frost quote, “two roads diverged in a wood, and I—I took the one less traveled by, and that has made all the difference.” 
	A global pandemic did not change EOU’s commitment to our purpose and mission. As other universities transitioned to fully remote instruction and learning during the 2020-21 academic year, EOU took the road less traveled and welcomed students to campus. We made every effort to provide for the safety and health of our campus community, while also providing for the educational and experiential needs of our students. 
	Nearly two-thirds of EOU’s campus-based classes were taught fully, or with a portion of the class, in-person. Student-athletes were able to compete. Students performed in our newly upgraded Schwarz Theater. Musical performances were shared with the community in outdoor venues. New friendships were formed in our residence halls. And last June, graduates walked across the stage, with friends and family present, celebrating their educational accomplishments. 
	Our commitment to doing everything possible to preserve a meaningful on-campus student experience, coupled with our continued focus on increasing access with EOU Online, contributed to EOU being one of very few universities that did not see a substantial decrease in enrollment this year. Then, we strengthened our position as a “best value” institution by freezing undergraduate tuition for the 2021-22 academic year. 
	To end with another quote from Frost, “in three words I can sum up everything I’ve learned about life: it goes on.” The pandemic has challenged us all, but life goes on at EOU. Our future is bright and the information provided within this annual report illustrates the continued growth and progress being made as we serve as an institution of access and opportunity. 
	Sincerely, 
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	“From behind masks or across a video screen, we will discover what’s possible together. We will expand access and equity, together. We will rise to the heights of empathy and integrity, together. Mountaineers do not take the easy road. We climb, and we tumble, and we try again. We are Mountaineers of Eastern Oregon University, and we never give up.” — DIXIE LUND ’73, TRUSTEE, RETIRED EDUCATOR, AND FORMER EOU PRESIDENT 
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	LETTER FROM THE 
	BOARD CHAIR 
	Dear EOU Community, 
	Along with the rest of the world, Eastern Oregon University is emerging from the COVID-19 pandemic. Students, staff, faculty, administrators, alumni, partners and friends are returning to campus with renewed appreciation for one another. On behalf of myself and the Board, I would like to offer our heartfelt appreciation, gratitude, and admiration to everyone at EOU who dedicated themselves to minimizing disruption to our students. 
	The nimbleness of our small institution made it possible to adapt again and again as the landscape shifted repeatedly over the last two years. In fact, our university was among the first to safely deliver in-person learning, and one of the only institutions to avoid employee layoffs. 
	The Board of Trustees is responsible for the financial sustainability of EOU, and I take that very seriously. This university gave me the tools to succeed when I attended EOU, and it’s now working hard to equip the next generation of leaders. 
	EOU remains committed to providing quality higher education in rural Oregon. Our strategic plan challenges the university to live out that mission boldly. We have documented progress toward these outcomes throughout this report including data and personal stories that depict just some of the ways EOU embodies our shared values and principles. 
	As we look toward the future, Oregon’s Rural University remains a pillar of altruism, civility, discovery, integrity, interdependence and quality in Eastern Oregon, throughout the state and beyond. 
	Sincerely, 
	Richard Chaves  Chair, EOU Board of Trustees | 
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	ACHIEVING 
	LONG-TERM GOALS 
	GOAL 1 
	GOAL 1 

	Student Success — Graduate students with the competence and confidence to succeed 
	Objective 1: Student Success - All Objective 2: Graduates engage in postgraduates engage in high-impact, graduate planning and preparation experiential learning activities 
	-

	• 90% of graduates are employed or 
	• 90% of graduates are employed or 

	• 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Students complete an internship, enrolled in graduate school within one practicum experience, research project, year of degree completion or the equivalent 

	• 85% of alumni indicate EOU 
	• 85% of alumni indicate EOU 


	• 
	• 
	Students engage in meaningful civic, adequately prepared them for service-learning, or co-curricular achievement of long-term educational activities and career goals 
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	ast spring Damien Tracy, ’21, and his family counted down to his final assignment together. After graduation, his four kids rejoiced in more play time with dad and Tracy celebrated a promotion from supervising 20 employees to a team that oversees 500. 
	L

	The achievement was long-awaited. Tracy worked multiple jobs and attended school for half a decade. Although he planned to earn his psychology degree fully online, Tracy visited campus with his children before he decided to transfer to EOU. He said the personal welcome they received set the tone for his EOU experience. 
	When he walked across the stage in June, a car-full of family 
	members cheered him on. Professors who had mentored him 
	from a computer screen congratulated him face-to-face. Just 
	a month later, Tracy’s newly minted bachelor’s degree helped 
	earn him the promotion he’d been hoping for. 
	Years of late nights and long days have paid off in a fulfilling career, where he puts his communication and leadership skills to work. His degree is more than a fancy piece of paper, it’s a testament to his heart for helping others and his commitment to setting an example for his children. 
	His oldest daughter is six, and lately she dreams about being an astronaut, a mommy, and a teacher. 
	“She never takes anything off the list—she just keeps adding to it,” Tracy said. “I tell her she can do anything.” 
	EOU 
	Figure
	81% OF STUDENTS WORK WHILE ATTENDING 43% WORKED 30+ HOURS PER WEEK 
	2021 STORIES OF THE ASCENT ANNUAL REPORT 
	READY FOR A 
	DIVERSE AND INTERCONNECTED WORLD 
	GOAL 2 
	GOAL 2 

	Transformational Education — Enrich academic quality and enhance intellectual vitality 
	Objective 1: Excellence in teaching Objective 2: Graduates possess and scholarship the essential learning outcomes employers seek 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Students experience meaningful 

	student-faculty interactions • Graduates demonstrate proficiency in University Learning Outcomes 

	• 
	• 
	• 
	Faculty engage in best practice 

	interactive pedagogies • Graduates demonstrate readiness for a diverse and interconnected 

	• 
	• 
	Teaching and library faculty are world supported in disciplinary research and/or the scholarship of teaching and learning 
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	22% SENIORS COMPLETING AN INTERNSHIP OR FIELD EXPERIENCE 
	Figure
	Sect
	Figure

	hick dust and a selection of bird droppings covered what used to be bustling high school hallways in Baker City. A small group of EOU students were some of the first to leave footprints since the school was abandoned in 2009, but their visit marked a turning point for the historic building. 
	T

	These students, all majoring in Sustainable Rural Systems at EOU, will play a key role in transforming the contaminated building into a functional community asset. After two terms of virtual and then on-campus meetings, students took their first field trip in April 2021. Professor Shannon Donovan arranged for the small class to visit the former Baker Central High School building, which was recently designated as a brownfield. An EPA assessment found lead and asbestos contamination in tiles and paint. 
	The program’s cohort model allows groups of students to work on real-world, multi-year projects to restore and enhance sites in eastern Oregon. The one-of-a-kind curriculum combines environmental science, public administration, community organizing, project management and leadership. 
	Once it’s cleaned up, leaders expect 
	to sell the historic building for further 
	development. Airy classrooms on the 
	development. Airy classrooms on the 
	second and third floors could become studio apartments or host exercise classes with a world-class view of the surrounding mountains. The school’s theatre, gym, home economics and choir facilities are still recognizable, and could feature in its second life. 

	This is the first of many hands-on projects Sustainable Rural Systems cohorts will tackle. The same four students who visited the dark, messy building will return regularly throughout the restoration process and have a role in its revitalization. 
	EOU 
	EOU 
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	EXPANDING 
	ACCESS,OPPORTUNITY,AND COMPLETION 
	GOAL 3 
	GOAL 3 

	Grow the Number of Lives Impacted — Expand student access, opportunity, and completion 
	Objective 1: Serve as a growing and Objective 3: Efficient degree attainment thriving rural university 
	• Increase 4-year completion rates to 
	• Increase 4-year completion rates to 

	• 
	• 
	• 
	Grow on campus FTE enrollment 50% for first-year freshman cohort to 2,500 • Increase 2-year completion rates to 

	• 
	• 
	Grow on-line FTE enrollment to 5,000 70% for entering transfer students 


	Objective 2: Students are retained 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Achieve 80% year 1 retention for first-year freshman cohort 

	• 
	• 
	Achieve 90% year 1 retention for entering transfers 
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	$3.1MILLION AWARDED IN INSTITUTIONAL SCHOLARSHIPS $1.7 MILLION IN HIGHER EDUCATION EMERGENCY RELIEF FUND DISTRIBUTED TO STUDENTS 
	Figure
	n a special meeting in March 2021, EOU’s Board of Trustees voted unanimously in favor of holding tuition flat for all returning undergraduate students, on-campus and online. 
	I

	“This is something we can do for our students hardest hit by the pandemic,” EOU President Tom Insko said. “As Oregon’s Rural University, meeting students where they are is core to our mission and particularly this year we need to do all we can to carry out that mission and make higher education as affordable as possible.” 
	The decision came earlier than typical tuition announcements to provide greater certainty for current students and an extended opportunity for 
	The decision came earlier than typical tuition announcements to provide greater certainty for current students and an extended opportunity for 
	prospective students to make an informed decision. National trends showed students spending more time deciding whether to invest in higher education as the COVID-19 pandemic stretched into its second year. 

	Nearly two-thirds of EOU students are from low-income households, identify as ethnically diverse, hail from rural areas, or are the first in their families to attend college. Students and families from these demographics have been the most adversely impacted by COVID-19. 
	The university aims to keep future tuition increases minimal, between 1.5% 
	and 3.5% per year. Administrators held discussions with student leaders and internal groups to garner feedback. 
	and 3.5% per year. Administrators held discussions with student leaders and internal groups to garner feedback. 
	Maintaining an affordable university education relies heavily on continued state investment. EOU and the other six public universities lobbied together for a $63 million increase in the Public University Support Fund, bringing the total allocation to $900M. This moderate boost covers cost increases and ensures affordable access to a university degree. 
	“This is going to take sacrifice, but we are choosing to take that considered risk and prioritize students,” Insko said. 
	EOU 
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	AN INVITING,SUPPORTIVE 
	UNIVERSITY CULTURE 
	Thriving University Community — A great place to work and learn 
	Thriving University Community — A great place to work and learn 
	GOAL 4 
	GOAL 4 

	Objective 1: Foster an inviting and supportive university culture that exemplifies EOU’s values and principles 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Achieve national recognition on the “Great Colleges to Work For” list 

	• 
	• 
	85% of students, faculty, and staff indicate the institution provides a supportive and caring environment 


	Objective 2: Support intercultural competency, inclusiveness, and diversity 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Resident students reflect a cross-section of Oregon enriched by students from other regions and countries 

	• 
	• 
	The students, faculty, and staff demonstrate competency in intercultural interactions 


	Objective 3: Provide and maintain a campus that promotes quality of life for students, faculty, staff, and the community 
	Objective 3: Provide and maintain a campus that promotes quality of life for students, faculty, staff, and the community 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Infrastructure and facilities are well maintained, accessible, safe and secure 

	• 
	• 
	The physical campus reflects and strengthens our naturally beautiful setting 

	• 
	• 
	Use of campus by stakeholders is maximized 
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	EMPLOYEES 
	EMPLOYEES 
	AGREE THEIR SUPERVISOR SUPPORTS 
	83% WORK/LIFE BALANCE 
	EMPLOYEES AGREE THEY HAVE A GOOD RELATIONSHIP 
	83%

	WITH THEIR SUPERVISOR 

	Figure
	hen recent results from the Great Colleges to Work For Survey indicated disconnectedness between staff and administrators, EOU employees took matters into their own hands. 
	W

	No institution can mandate positivity, 
	and colleagues from SEIU and 
	University Council recognized that 
	the only way to engender connection 
	was to model it themselves. A small 
	group implemented the Looking for 
	the Good initiative in spring 2021. The 
	movement encouraged employees 
	to recognize the hard work of their 
	peers with a ‘thank you’ or ‘kudos’ 
	that would be shared with both the 
	recipient and their supervisor. 
	Organizers received 15 entries in the first month, and 35 the next. The program had a ripple effect that led to better relationships within departments and between supervisors and their staffs. 
	The initiative expanded to include students as well, 
	challenging all members of the campus community to greet one another and share, “what made them smile this week.” Over 300 people participated, spreading positivity and increasing personal connection in every corner of the university. 
	Sect
	Figure
	“After the first month, people saw how it really worked, and we started hearing about the effects,” Organizer Kate Gekeler said. “It was so cool to see on campus, people going out of their way to spread positivity and gratitude.” 
	EOU 
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	A LEADER IN RURAL 
	PROSPERITY AND RESILIENCE 
	Relevance and Interconnection — Serve as the educational, economic , and cultural engine for the rural places 
	Objective 1: Educational partnerships Objective 2: Be recognized as a are cultivated leader in promoting rural community prosperity and resilience 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Maximize transfer student credit articulation • Designated as Oregon’s rural 

	• 
	• 
	Increase matriculation of regional university 


	high school students • Achieve Carnegie Community Engagement Classification 
	GOAL 5 
	GOAL 5 
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	Figure
	tage, seats, lights, speakers, steps, screens and tech—no part of EOU’s performing arts spaces were forgotten in a major renovation of Loso Hall this year. 
	S

	“This is an update to the performance 
	venues that have largely been 
	unchanged since the original 
	construction over 30 years ago,” 
	Capital Projects Manager David Moore 
	said. 
	Attendees of choir concerts, community symphony shows, musicals, plays, speaking events, conferences, film festivals, graduations and other ceremonies will notice distinct upgrades. Blue seats and a gold curtain reflect EOU’s school colors, while a matte black masonite stage is ready to welcome performers back to the spotlight. 
	Improved ADA access includes additional seating for people who use wheelchairs, a lift to access the second level, and no-step access to stages in both McKenzie and Schwarz Theatre. 
	Schwarz also got a “black box” makeover and movable seating that can be adjusted to suit each performance. The biggest news in the small theatre, though, is a built-in rotating stage. EOU is one of the only college campuses in the West to install this highly adaptable feature. 
	Beyond surface gloss, the infrastructure of both spaces has been fundamentally transformed by more than four miles of conduit that routes sound, video and electricity to both theatres. A new tech booth embedded in McKenzie Theatre connects to 
	controls backstage and above in the catwalk to control lights, sound and effects. All of those wires were invisibly tucked into the existing structure, along with energy-efficient upgrades to the heating and cooling systems. 
	Backstage, touchscreen controls, an automated fire safety mechanism, and 
	Backstage, touchscreen controls, an automated fire safety mechanism, and 
	seven engine-driven rigging sets allow student stagehands to get a professional-grade experience. Plus, a permanently mounted projector and screen connect with giant speakers turn McKenzie Theatre into the county’s newest movie venue. 

	Although COVID-19 restrictions will limit audience capacity in the near future, EOU students and faculty have already begun using their new state-of-the-art facility. 
	Although COVID-19 restrictions will limit audience capacity in the near future, EOU students and faculty have already begun using their new state-of-the-art facility. 
	EOU 
	LIVE PERFORMANCES PRESENTED IN 2020-21 RADIO PERFORMANCES DURING THE PANDEMIC 23 
	2021 
	ANNUAL REPORT 
	STORIES OF THE ASCENT 

	EXPANDING REVENUE FROM 
	ALTERNATIVE SOURCES 
	GOAL 6 
	GOAL 6 

	Financial Sustainability — Stewardship in financial sustainability and in growing EOU’s financial and capital resources 
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	62%INCREASE IN FUNDING FROM ALTERNATIVE SOURCES 
	nnovative teacher preparation programs at EOU received a boost from two state grants that will expand collaboration and responsive teaching practices in rural Oregon. 
	I

	The Educator Advancement Council and Oregon Department of Education awarded grants to two EOU programs in spring 2021: one that’s already successful, and one that’s brand-new. 
	The Oregon Teacher Pathway program received $350,000 to enhance its work, which has allowed over 250 high school students to explore a career in teaching since 2014. Participants who matriculate to EOU can earn tuition reductions. Over a dozen graduates of the program are already teaching in regional classrooms. Grant funds will improve opportunities for professional development and increase stipends for high school teachers who introduce teens to a career in education. OTP also qualified to apply for an ad
	New to the mix, the Teach Rural Oregon progam and the Eastern Oregon Teaching Academy, received $200,000 in partnership with the Wallowa Educational Service District. Both programs invite community college students, 
	Figure
	EOU 
	EOU 

	Figure
	paraprofessionals, and other individuals to become teachers in rural areas of the state and provide professional development opportunities for teachers in underserved schools. 
	Teach Rural Oregon invites community college students from Gresham to visit rural Eastern Oregon for three weeks to observe classrooms and learn from rural colleagues, while a student board, crisis intervention for teachers, access to EOU faculty and stipends for guest speakers are part of the vision for EOTA. Ultimately, the program aims to recruit more teachers to the rural areas of Oregon. 
	“We’re two of 27 grant recipients in the state of Oregon, so EOU received over a half-million dollars of that pot of funding. It’s significant that our programs are being recognized and allowed that opportunity,” Education Professor Tawnya Lubbes said. 
	EOU 
	Objective 1: Develop and foster 
	Objective 1: Develop and foster 
	Objective 1: Develop and foster 
	Objective 3: Expand revenue from 

	a culture of fiscal responsibility, 
	a culture of fiscal responsibility, 
	alternative sources such as grants, 

	accountability, and security for all 
	accountability, and security for all 
	sponsorships, partnerships, and 

	university funds 
	university funds 
	alternative uses of campus property 

	• Maintain E&G fund balance ≥ 10% 
	• Maintain E&G fund balance ≥ 10% 

	• Maintain primary reserve ratio ≥ 40% 
	• Maintain primary reserve ratio ≥ 40% 

	• Maintain debt burden ratio ≤ 5% 
	• Maintain debt burden ratio ≤ 5% 

	Objective 2: Foster a culture of 
	Objective 2: Foster a culture of 

	philanthropy that significantly 
	philanthropy that significantly 

	increases engagement with and 
	increases engagement with and 

	giving to the university 
	giving to the university 

	• Complete a successful 
	• Complete a successful 

	comprehensive campaign 
	comprehensive campaign 

	• Increase alumni participation rate to 
	• Increase alumni participation rate to 

	6 percent or more 
	6 percent or more 
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	THE ASCENT 2029 BY THE NUMBERS 
	THE ASCENT 2029 BY THE NUMBERS 


	KEY METRICS 
	KEY METRICS 

	KEY METRICS Tap to change report Key Metrics 
	On Campus FTE (G3.O1.K1) 
	On Campus FTE (G3.O1.K1) 
	On Campus FTE (G3.O1.K1) 
	Off Campus FTE (G3.O1.K2) 
	Retention - First-time freshman (G3.O2.K1) 
	Proficiency in Student Learning Outcomes (G2.O2.K1) 
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	2021 
	ANNUAL REPORT 
	RESEARCH, PRACTICUMS, & INTERNSHIPS 
	RESEARCH, PRACTICUMS, & INTERNSHIPS 
	Percentage of graduating undergradu ates who complete an internship, practi cum experience, research project, or the equivalent. 
	CIVIC ENGAGEMENT, SERVICE LEARNING, & CO
	-


	CURRICULAR 
	CURRICULAR 
	Percentage of graduating undergradu ates who complete a course identified with the civic engagement learning outcome or designated as containing a required service learning or performance component, who participate in univer sity athletics, or who are a member of a student club. 

	GRADUATES EMPLOYED OR ENROLLED 
	GRADUATES EMPLOYED OR ENROLLED 
	Percentage of respondents to the EOU graduating student survey item “Which of the following best describes your pri mary activity?”  who indicate they were employed or re-enrolled for further ed ucation subsequent to completing their degree (also merges data from National Student Clearinghouse on subsequent enrollments). 

	ALUMNI SATISFACTION 
	ALUMNI SATISFACTION 
	Percentage of alumni indicating EOU ad equately prepared them for achievement of long-term educational and career goals (EOU alumni survey - graduates 6 years prior to reporting year). 

	MEANINGFUL STUDENT-FACULTY INTERACTIONS 
	MEANINGFUL STUDENT-FACULTY INTERACTIONS 
	Students experience meaningful stu dent-faculty interactions. Uses NSSE student-faculty interaction scale. 

	EFFECTIVE TEACHING PRACTICES 
	EFFECTIVE TEACHING PRACTICES 
	Faculty engage in best practice inter active pedagogies. Uses NSSE effective teaching practices scale. 
	FACULTY SUPPORTED IN RESEARCH & 

	SCHOLARSHIP 
	SCHOLARSHIP 
	Teaching and library faculty are support ed in disciplinary research and/or the scholarship of teaching and learning. Calculated as the ratio of discipline load expense, research stipends, and Center for Teaching Learning and Assessment (CTLA) expense to the instructional expense for the institution. 

	PROFICIENCY IN STUDENT LEARNING OUTCOMES 
	PROFICIENCY IN STUDENT LEARNING OUTCOMES 
	Percentage of sampled students at “Proficient” or “Adequate” in assessed Program Learning Outcomes (PLOs). 

	DIVERSE AND INTERCONNECTED WORLD 
	DIVERSE AND INTERCONNECTED WORLD 
	Graduates demonstrate readiness for a diverse and interconnected world. Uses NSSE Item 2c. 


	ON CAMPUS FTE / OFF CAMPUS FTE 
	ON CAMPUS FTE / OFF CAMPUS FTE 
	Fall 4th week student FTE by modality (assigned campus). FTE is the total of all student credit hours (SCH) for each student divided by the appropriate de nominator for that student s level (15 for undergraduate and 12 for graduate). 

	RETENTION - FIRST-TIME FRESHMAN 
	RETENTION - FIRST-TIME FRESHMAN 
	The percentage of first-time full-time bachelors (or equivalent) degree-seeking undergraduates from the previous fall who are again enrolled in the current fall. 

	RETENTION - TRANSFER STUDENTS 
	RETENTION - TRANSFER STUDENTS 
	The percentage of new transfers from the previous fall who are again enrolled in the current fall. 

	COHORT GRADUATION RATE: 4-YR 
	COHORT GRADUATION RATE: 4-YR 
	Graduation rate is based on the number of first-time, full-time, degree-seeking freshmen entering in fall (or summer and returning fall) six years prior to the reporting year. The number graduating with a bachelor s within 4 years and 6 years of the initial cohort term divided by the total number in the initial cohort are the rates. 

	TRANSFER GRADUATION RATE: 2-YR 
	TRANSFER GRADUATION RATE: 2-YR 
	The percentage of new transfers entering at junior or senior standing who com plete an undergraduate degree within two years. Uses a cohort calculation approach. For example, data reported for 2017 18 looks at the proportion of new transfers who entered at junior or higher standing in fall of 2015. 

	GREAT COLLEGES TO WORK FOR SURVEY 
	GREAT COLLEGES TO WORK FOR SURVEY 
	Overall survey average score. Target is to achieve recognition in one of the catego ries of the ‘Great Colleges to Work For list sponsored by the Chronicle of Higher Education. 

	SUPPORTIVE ENVIRONMENT (STUDENTS) 
	SUPPORTIVE ENVIRONMENT (STUDENTS) 
	Percentage of students, faculty, and staff indicating the institution provides a supportive and caring environment. For students, this measure is taken from the NSSE supportive environment scale. A score of 50.0 equates to 85% on that scale. 

	STUDENT CULTURAL/ETHNIC DIVERSITY 
	STUDENT CULTURAL/ETHNIC DIVERSITY 
	Percentage of 4th week students in one of the following categories: 
	1) Nonresident Alien 
	1) Nonresident Alien 

	3) Hispanics of any race 
	4) American Indian or Alaska Native 
	5) Asian 
	5) Asian 

	6) Black or African American 
	7) Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander 
	9) Two or more races 
	9) Two or more races 
	STORIES OF THE ASCENT 
	TRANSFERS EXPERIENCING CREDIT LOSS 
	Percentage of new fall transfers who have non-articulated credits. 
	REGIONAL HS MATRICULATION (W/IN 16 MONTHS) 
	Looks at all students graduating from regional high schools with a regular diploma (all public high schools within our 10 county region) and of those who matriculate to post-secondary education w/in 16 months, what proportion EOU matriculates - HS graduation year is 2 years behind the academic year in which data is provided  - 2011-12 HS grads are reported in 2013-14 data. 
	FUND BALANCE (% OF E&G REVENUE) 
	The difference between assets and liabilities as a proportion of Education & General Revenue. 
	PRIMARY RESERVE RATIO 
	Expendable net position to operating expense.  W/Foundation and W/O GASB 68 Source: EOU Financial Statements. Reported to HECC 
	DEBT BURDEN RATIO - INSTITUTION PAID DEBT 
	Debt service to total expenditures.  W/ Foundation and W/GASB 68  Source: EOU Financial Statements.  Reported to HECC 
	ASCENT 2029 CAMPAIGN CUMULATIVE GIVING 
	($MILLIONS) 
	Cumulative amount donated to the cen tennial campaign for the university. Total is calculated at the end of the fiscal/aca demic year. 
	ALUMNI GIVING PARTICIPATION RATE 
	Alumni are defined as any student who has attended EOU at any time (this includes partner program students as well). The participation rate is the pro portion of alumni who have donated as of the end of the academic year listed. 
	ALTERNATIVE SOURCES OF REVENUE 
	Objective is to expand revenue from alternative sources such as grants, sponsorships, partnerships, and alterna tive uses of campus property. No KPIs yet identified. Currently measured using Fund <> 900000 Agency Funds | Orgn <> 400100 Financial Aid | Fund Type <> 8% | Acct Type = 57,53. 

	2021 EOU 
	ANNUAL REPORT 
	ANNUAL REPORT 
	2021 INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ANNUAL REPORT 

	Sect
	Figure
	CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
	CLAconnect.com 


	INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
	Members of the Board of Directors Eastern Oregon University La Grande, Oregon 
	Members of the Board of Directors Eastern Oregon University La Grande, Oregon 
	Report on the Financial Statements 

	We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component unit of Eastern Oregon University, a component unit of the state of Oregon, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the entity’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
	Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
	Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
	Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

	Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

	Auditors’ Responsibility 
	Auditors’ Responsibility 
	Auditors’ Responsibility 

	Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Eastern Oregon University Foundation (the Foundation), which represents 100 percent of the assets, net assets, and revenues of the discretely presented component unit. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it related to the amounts included for the discretely presented component unit
	-

	An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that ar
	-

	We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

	Opinions 
	Opinions 
	Opinions 

	In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component unit of Eastern Oregon University as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
	Sect
	Figure

	CLA is an independent member of Nexia International, a leading, global network of independent 
	accounting and consulting firms. See nexia.com/member‐firm‐disclaimer for details. 
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	Emphasis of a Matters 
	Emphasis of a Matters 
	Changes in Acounting Principal 
	As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, effective July 1, 2019, the University adopted new accounting guidance for leases. The guidance requires lessees to recognize a right-to-use lease asset and corresponding lease liability and lessors to recognize a lease receivable and corresponding deferred inflow of resources for all leases with lease terms greater than twelve months. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

	Other Matters 
	Other Matters 
	Required Supplementary Information 
	Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion on pages 28 through 40, the Schedule of University’s Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) Contributions, Schedule of University’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset/Liability, Schedule of University PERS RHIA OPEB Employer Contribution, Schedule of University’s Proportionate Share of the Net PERS RHIA OPEB Asset/Liability, and the Schedule of University’s Proportionate Share of th
	-
	-

	Other Information 
	Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise Eastern Oregon University’s basic financial statements. The Values & Principles, Letter from the President, Letter from the Board Chair, Stories of the Ascent, Financial Ratios, and the EOU Foundation Philanthropic Support, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
	This other information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

	Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
	Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
	IIn accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 3, 2021, on our consideration of Eastern Oregon University’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to pr
	-
	-

	a 
	CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
	Bellevue, Washington November 3, 2021 
	MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 
	MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 
	INTRODUCTION 

	The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides an overview of the financial position and activities of Eastern Oregon University (EOU, university) for the year ended June 30, 2021 with comparative data for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019. This discussion has been prepared by management to assist readers in understanding the accompanying financial statements and footnotes. 
	Annual Full Time Equivalent (FTE) Student Enrollment Summary: 
	Annual Full Time Equivalent (FTE) Student Enrollment Summary: 
	2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 
	2,286 2,286 2,329 2,315 2,393 
	UNDERSTANDING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
	The MD&A focuses on EOU as a whole and is intended to foster a greater understanding of EOU’s financial activities. Since this presentation includes summarized formats, it should be read in conjunction with the financial statements which have the following six components. 
	Independent Auditor’s Report presents an unmodified opinion rendered by an independent certified public accounting firm, CliftonLarsonAllen LLP, on the fairness in presentation (in all material respects) of the financial statements. 
	Statement of Net Position (SNP) presents a snapshot of EOU assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows under the accrual basis of accounting at the end of each fiscal year presented. The SNP helps the reader understand the types and amounts of assets available to support operations, how much EOU owes to vendors and bond holders; and net position delineated based upon their availability for future expenditures. 
	-

	Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (SRE) presents EOU revenues and expenses categorized between operating, nonoperating and other related activities. The SRE reports the EOU operating results for each fiscal year presented. 
	-

	Statement of Cash Flows (SCF) provides information about EOU’s sources (receipts) and uses (payments) of cash during the fiscal year. The SCF classifies sources and uses of cash into four categories, and assists in determining whether EOU has the ability to generate future net cash flows to meet its obligations as they come due. 

	Notes to the Financial Statements (Notes) provide additional information to clarify and expand on the financial statements. 
	The Component Unit, comprised of a supporting foundation, is discretely presented in the EOU financial statements and in Note 2 Cash and Investments and Note 20 University Foundation. 
	-

	The MD&A provides an objective analysis of EOU’s financial activities based on currently known facts, decisions, and conditions. The MD&A discusses the current and prior year results in comparison to the current and two previous fiscal years. Unless otherwise stated, all years refer to the fiscal year ended June 30. 
	-

	FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
	The university’s financial position improved in the past year with an increase in total net position as of June 30, 2021 of $8,451 thousand. During 2021, unrestricted net position improved by $5,172 thousand due to improved unrestricted operations, which includes education, auxiliary and general business activities. Accruals related to net pension liability and other postemployment benefits (OPEB) as required by GASB Statement Nos. 68, 71, and 75 decreased unrestricted net position by a net $3,340 thousand.
	-
	-
	-

	During 2020, total net position increased by $1,612 thousand. Unrestricted net position improved by $3,701 thousand due to improved unrestricted operations, which includes education, auxiliary and general business activities. Accruals related to net pension liability and other postemployment benefits (OPEB) as required by GASB Statement Nos. 68, 71, and 75 decreased unrestricted net position by a net $2,949 thousand. Net investment in capital assets increased by $1,050 thousand 
	-

	STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
	The term “Net Position” refers to the difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources and (b) liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, and is an indicator of EOU’s current financial condition. Changes in net position that occur over time indicate improvement or deterioration in EOU’s financial condition. 
	-

	The following summarizes EOU’s assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, and net position: 
	Condensed Statements of Net Position (in 000’s) 
	As of June 30, 2021 2020 2019 
	Current Assets 
	Current Assets 
	Current Assets 
	$ 21,795 
	$ 22,844 
	$ 
	16,465 

	Noncurrent Assets 
	Noncurrent Assets 
	17,788 
	11,796 
	14,929 

	Capital Assets, Net 
	Capital Assets, Net 
	79,155 
	73,389 
	73,782 

	Total Assets 
	Total Assets 
	$ 118,738 
	$ 108,029 
	$ 
	105,176 


	Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 9,342 $ 7,111 $ 7,109 
	Current Liabilities 
	Current Liabilities 
	Current Liabilities 
	$ 11,924 
	$ 
	11,058 
	$ 
	9,885 

	Noncurrent Liabilities 
	Noncurrent Liabilities 
	46,986 
	41,994 
	41,129 

	Total Liabilities 
	Total Liabilities 
	$ 58,910 
	$ 
	53,052 
	$ 
	51,014 


	Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 2,568 $ 3,937 $ 4,732 
	Net Investment in Capital Assets 
	Net Investment in Capital Assets 
	Net Investment in Capital Assets 
	$ 60,313 
	$ 
	53,584 
	$ 
	52,534 

	Restricted -Nonexpendable 
	Restricted -Nonexpendable 
	554 
	554 
	554 

	Restricted -Expendable 
	Restricted -Expendable 
	1,979 
	2,069 
	2,275 

	Unrestricted 
	Unrestricted 
	3,756 
	1,944 
	1,176 

	Total Net Position 
	Total Net Position 
	$ 66,602 
	$ 
	58,151 
	$ 
	56,539 



	Total Net Position 
	Total Net Position 
	Total net position increased by $8,451 thousand, or 15 percent, during 2021. Total net position benefited from a $6,729 thousand increase in net investment in capital assets and in increase of $1,812 thousand in unrestricted net position, but was negatively impacted by a reduction of $90 thousand in restricted expendable net position. 
	-

	Total net position increased by $1,612 thousand, or 3 percent, during 2020. Total net position benefited from a $1,050 thousand increase in net investment in capital assets and in increase of $768 thousand in unrestricted net position, but was negatively impacted by a reduction of $206 thousand in restricted expendable net position. 
	-
	-

	EOU 
	EOU 

	As illustrated by the following graph, the make-up of net position changed between 2021, 2020 and 2019 (in 000’s): 
	-

	$-$10,000 $20,000 $30,000 $40,000 $50,000 $60,000 $70,000 2021 2020 2019 Unrestricted Restricted -Expendable Nonexpendable Endowments Net Investment in Capital Assets 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL YEAR 2020 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL YEAR 2020 

	Net Investment in Capital Assets increased by $6,729 thousand, or 13 percent. 
	-

	* 
	* 
	* 
	Capital asset increases, net of disposals and adjustments, of $9,868 thousand were offset by a $4,102 thousand increase to accumulated depreciation for a net decrease in capital assets of $5,766 thousand. See also Changes in Capital Assets later in this MD&A and Note 5 Capital Assets for additional details. 

	* 
	* 
	* 
	Long-term debt outstanding attributable to the capital assets decreased by $963 thousand due to net debt refunding and debt service payments made on outstanding debt. See Debt Administration later in this MD&A and Note 9 Long-Term Liabilities. 

	Restricted Expendable Net Position decreased by $90 thousand, or 4 percent. 
	-


	* 
	* 
	Net position related to gifts, grants and contracts increased by $269 thousand. Decreased cash and increased deferred revenue on grants and contracts were offset by increased receivables and decreased invoices payable as well as increased earnings on endowments. 

	* 
	* 
	Net position related to student loans decreased by $16 thousand. Decreases in cash and student loans receivable were offset by a decrease in the Perkins Loan liquidation liability as EOU completed the process of assigning loans back to the federal government. See Note 1 X Perkins Loan Program Termination for additional information. 

	* 
	* 
	Net position relating to the funding of capital projects decreased by $51 thousand. Increases in cash, XI-Q bonds receivable and decreases in year-end accounts payable were offset by decreases in other year-end accounts receivable and an increase in contract retainage payable. 


	* 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Net position relating to funds reserved for debt service decreased by $69 thousand primarily due to a decrease in cash held at year end for debt service payments. 

	* 
	* 
	* 
	Net position restricted expendable related to the OPEB Asset decreased by $223 thousand. The restricted expendable OPEB asset is equal to the Net OPEB Asset reported in noncurrent assets. 

	Unrestricted Net Position increased by $1,812 thousand, or 93 percent. 

	* 
	* 
	Improved unrestricted operations added $5,172 thousand. Unrestricted operations were helped by $1,398 in COVID-19 relief funding for institutional support from the federal government to cover lost revenues resulting from the pandemic. See Note 1 Y COVID-19 Relief Funding for additional information. 

	* 
	* 
	Changes associated with year-end liability accruals for PERS state and local government rate pool (SLGRP) and compensated absences decreased unrestricted net position by $20 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	Changes associated with year-end accruals for the PERS net pension liability and related deferred outflows and deferred inflows decreased unrestricted net position by $3,561 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	Changes associated with year-end accruals for the reporting of net OPEB liabilities along with the associated deferred outflows and deferred inflows for the OPEB liabilities and the OPEB asset resulted in a net increase of $221 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	See Note 10 Unrestricted Net Position for additional information. 



	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL YEAR 2019 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL YEAR 2019 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL YEAR 2019 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL YEAR 2019 

	Net Investment in Capital Assets increased by $1,050 thousand, or 2 percent. 
	-

	* 
	* 
	* 
	Capital asset increases, net of disposals and adjustments, of $4,105 thousand were offset by a $4,498 thousand increase to accumulated depreciation for a net decrease in capital assets of $393 thousand. See also Changes in Capital Assets later in this MD&A and Note 5 for additional details. 

	* 
	* 
	Long-term debt outstanding attributable to the capital assets decreased by $1,443 thousand due to debt service payments made on outstanding debt. See Debt Administration later in this MD&A and Note 9. 


	Restricted Expendable Net Position decreased by $206 thousand, or 9 percent. 
	-

	* Net position related to gifts, grants and contracts decreased by $81 thousand. Increased cash was offset by decreased receivables and increased deferred revenue on grants and contracts as well as decreased earnings on endowments. 

	* 
	* 
	* 
	Net position related to student loans decreased by $137 thousand. Decreases in cash and student loans receivable were offset by a decrease in the Perkins Loan liquidation liability as EOU began assigning loans back to the federal government.  See Note 1 X for additional information. 

	* 
	* 
	Net position relating to the funding of capital projects increased by $2 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	Net position relating to funds reserved for debt service decreased by $131 thousand primarily due to a decrease in cash held at year end for debt service payments. 

	* 
	* 
	* 
	Net position restricted expendable related to the OPEB Asset increased by $141 thousand. The restricted expendable OPEB asset is equal to the Net OPEB Asset reported in noncurrent assets. 

	Unrestricted Net Position increased by $768 thousand, or 65 percent. 

	* 
	* 
	Improved unrestricted operations added $3,701 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	Changes associated with year-end liability accruals for PERS state and local government rate pool (SLGRP) and compensated absences increased unrestricted net position by $16 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	Changes associated with year-end accruals for the PERS net pension liability and related deferred outflows and deferred inflows decreased unrestricted net position by $2,855 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	Changes associated with year-end accruals for the reporting of net OPEB liabilities along with the associated deferred outflows and deferred inflows for the OPEB liabilities and the OPEB asset resulted in a net decrease of $94 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	See Note 10 for additional information. 




	Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 
	Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 
	Total assets increased by $10,709 thousand, or 10 percent, during the year ended June 30, 2021. Increases in investments, accounts receivable and net capital assets were somewhat offset by decreases in cash and cash equivalents, leases receivable, and net OPEB asset. Total assets increased by $2,853 thousand, or 3 percent, during the year ended June 30, 2020. Increases in cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and net OPEB asset were somewhat offset by decreases in investments, notes receivable, le
	-
	-

	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL YEAR 2020 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL YEAR 2020 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL YEAR 2020 

	Current Assets decreased by $1,049 thousand, or 5 percent, primarily due to: 
	* Current cash and cash equivalents decreased by $3,012 thousand due primarily to a reinvestment of cash balances held in the early part of fiscal year 2021. In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2020, intermediate term investments had been 
	* Current cash and cash equivalents decreased by $3,012 thousand due primarily to a reinvestment of cash balances held in the early part of fiscal year 2021. In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2020, intermediate term investments had been 
	sold in order to provide a liquidity cushion for fiscal year 2021 in the face of uncertainties related to the coronavirus. 

	* 
	* 
	* 
	Accounts receivable increased by $2,521 thousand. Increases in receivables for capital construction reimbursement from the state and federal grants and contracts were offset by a decrease in receivables for student tuition and fees and an increase in the allowance for doubtful accounts. See Note 3 Accounts Receivable for additional information. 

	* 
	* 
	Current notes receivable decreased by $4 thousand due mainly to the reduction in Perkins notes receivable and associated allowance as EOU completed the process of assigning their remaining Perkins loan receivable back to the federal government.  See Note 1 X Perkins Loan Program Termination for additional information. 

	* 
	* 
	Current leases receivable decreased by $468 thousand as the result of lease payments received and only one new lease signed in fiscal year 2021. See Note 8 Leases for additional details. 

	* 
	* 
	* 
	Prepaid expenses increased by $8 thousand due primarily to increases in prepaid airfare, memberships and subscriptions. 

	Noncurrent Assets increased by $5,992 thousand, or 51 percent, primarily due to: 
	-


	* 
	* 
	Noncurrent cash and cash equivalents decreased by $193 thousand due primarily to a decrease in cash held for debt service payments. 

	* 
	* 
	Investments increased by $6,796 thousand due primarily to the reinvestment of cash balances held in the early part of fiscal year 2021. In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2020, intermediate term investments had been sold in order to provide a liquidity cushion for fiscal year 2021 in the face of uncertainties related to the coronavirus. 

	* 
	* 
	Noncurrent notes receivable decreased by $12 thousand due primarily to a  the reduction in Perkins notes receivable and associated allowance as EOU completed the process of assigning their remaining Perkins loan receivable back to the federal government.  See Note 1 X Perkins Loan Program Termination for additional information. 

	* 
	* 
	Noncurrent leases receivable decreased by $376 thousand due to the receipt of prior lease receivables. See Note 8 Leases for additional details. 

	* 
	* 
	Net OPEB asset decreased by $223 thousand. See Note 15 Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) for additional details. 


	Capital Assets, Net increased by $5,766 thousand, or 8 percent. Capitalized acquisitions net of disposals and adjustments added $9,868 thousand, which was offset by an increase of $4,102 thousand in accumulated depreciation. See Note 5 Capital Assets for additional information. 
	-

	Deferred Outflows of Resources increased by $2,231 thousand, or 31 percent. 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Deferred outflows related to the net pension liability increased by $2,095 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	Deferred outflows related to the OPEB asset and liabilities increased by $136 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	See Note 6 Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources for additional information. 


	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL YEAR 2019 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL YEAR 2019 

	Current Assets increased by $6,379 thousand, or 39 percent, primarily due to: 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Current cash and cash equivalents increased by $7,259 thousand due primarily to a strategic sell-off of intermediate term investments in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2020 in order to provide a liquidity cushion for fiscal year 2021 in the face of uncertainties related to the coronavirus. 

	* 
	* 
	Accounts receivable increased by $616 thousand. Increases in receivables for student tuition and fees and capital construction reimbursement from the state and a decrease in the allowance for doubtful accounts were offset by a decrease in receivables for state grants. See Note 3 for additional information. 

	* 
	* 
	Current notes receivable decreased by $1,281 thousand due mainly to the receipt of the prior year current note receivable from the state for XI-F(1) bonds for capital construction and a reduction in Perkins notes receivable and associated allowance as EOU began the process of assigning their remaining Perkins loan receivable back to the federal government.  See Note 1 X Perkins Loan Program Termination for additional information. 

	* 
	* 
	Current leases receivable increased by $17 thousand. See Note 8 Leases for additional details. 

	* 
	* 
	* 
	Prepaid expenses increased by $25 thousand due primarily to prepaid athletic association dues and prepaid airfare. 

	Noncurrent Assets decreased by $3,133 thousand, or 21 percent, primarily due to: 
	-


	* 
	* 
	Noncurrent cash and cash equivalents increased by $450 thousand due primarily to a decrease in the spending of capital construction funds not yet reimbursed. 

	* 
	* 
	Investments decreased by $2,407 thousand due primarily to the sell-of on intermediate term investments in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2020 to provide a liquidity cushion for fiscal year 2021 in the face of uncertainties related to the coronavirus. 

	* 
	* 
	Noncurrent notes receivable decreased by $491 thousand due primarily to a decrease in notes receivable and an offsetting decrease to the allowance for federal Perkins loans as EOU began the process of assigning their remaining 


	Perkins note receivable back to the federal government. See Note 1 X for additional information. 
	Perkins note receivable back to the federal government. See Note 1 X for additional information. 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Noncurrent leases receivable decreased by $826 thousand due to the receipt of prior lease receivables. See Note 8 Leases for additional details. 

	* 
	* 
	Net OPEB asset increased by $141 thousand. See Note 15 for additional details. 


	Capital Assets, Net decreased by $393 thousand, or 1 percent. Capitalized acquisitions net of disposals and adjustments added $4,105 thousand, which was offset by an increase of $4,498 thousand in accumulated depreciation. See Note 5 for additional information. 
	Deferred Outflows of Resources increased by $2 thousand, or less than 1 percent. 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Deferred outflows related to the net pension liability increased by $93 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	Deferred outflows related to the OPEB asset and liabilities decreased by $91 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	See Note 6 for additional information. 





	Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 
	Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 
	Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 
	Total liabilities increased by $5,858 thousand, or 11 percent, during the year ended June 30, 2021. Increases in accounts payable and accrued liabilities and net pension liability were offset by decreases in long-term liabilities and unearned revenue. Total liabilities increased by $2,038 thousand, or 4 percent, during the year ended June 30, 2020. Increases in accounts payable and accrued liabilities, unearned revenue and net pension liability were offset by decreases in long-term liabilities and net OPEB 
	-
	-

	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL YEAR 2020 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL YEAR 2020 

	Current Liabilities increased by $866 thousand, or 8 percent, primarily due to: 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Accounts payable and accrued liabilities increased by $1,527 thousand. Increases in payroll related, services and supplies related and contract retainage payables were slightly offset by a decrease in accrued interest payable. See Note 7 Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities for additional details 

	* 
	* 
	The current portion of long-term liabilities increased by $19 thousand due primarily to increases in compensated absence liability, SELP and Leases only slightly offset by decreases in the Perkins loan program liability and XI-F contracts payable to the State. See Note 9 Long-Term Liabilities for additional information. 

	* 
	* 
	Deposits decreased by $7 thousand primarily due to a decrease in funds held for student deposits and student clubs slightly offset by an increase in funds held for donors. 



	* 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Unearned revenue decreased by $581 thousand due to decreases in summer session tuition and unearned revenue related to federal CARES Act grants. 

	Noncurrent Liabilities increased by $4,992 thousand, or 12 percent. 

	* 
	* 
	The noncurrent portion of long-term liabilities decreased by $1,093 thousand. Decreases were seen in most categories of noncurrent long-term liabilities except for compensated absences and leases which increased slightly. See Debt Administration later in this MD&A and Note 9 Long-Term Liabilities for additional details. 

	* 
	* 
	Net pension liability increased by $6,135 thousand. See Note 14 Employee Retirement Plans for additional information. 

	* 
	* 
	OPEB liability decreased by $50 thousand. See Note 15 Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) for additional information 


	Deferred Inflows of Resources decreased by $1,369 thousand, or 35 percent. 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Deferred inflows related to the net pension liability decreased by $479 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	Deferred inflows related to the OPEB asset and liabilities decreased by $35 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	Deferred inflows related to leases decreased by $855 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	See Note 6 Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources for detailed information on these changes. 


	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL YEAR 2019 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL YEAR 2019 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL YEAR 2019 

	Current Liabilities increased by $1,173 thousand, or 12 percent, primarily due to: 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Accounts payable and accrued liabilities increased by $1,160 thousand due to increases in all categories of accounts payable with significant increases seen in services and supplies related to construction projects and general operations as well as payroll related payables. See Note 7 for additional details 

	* 
	* 
	The current portion of long-term liabilities decreased by $317 thousand due primarily to decreases in compensated absence liability, leases liability and Perkins loan program liability. See Note 9 for additional information. 

	* 
	* 
	Deposits decreased by $26 thousand primarily due to a decrease in funds held for student clubs and donors. 

	* 
	* 
	Unearned revenue increased by $605 thousand due to increases in summer session tuition and unearned revenue related to federal CARES Act grants. 


	Noncurrent Liabilities increased by $865 thousand, or 2 percent. 
	-

	* 
	* 
	* 
	The noncurrent portion of long-term liabilities decreased by $2,042 thousand. Decreases were seen in all categories of noncurrent long-term liabilities except for compensated absences which increased slightly. See Debt Administration later in this MD&A and Note 9 for additional details. 

	* 
	* 
	Net pension liability increased by $3,081 thousand. See Note 14 for additional information. 

	* 
	* 
	* 
	OPEB liability decreased by $174 thousand. See Note 15 for additional information 

	Deferred Inflows of Resources decreased by $795 thousand, or 17 percent. 

	* 
	* 
	Deferred inflows related to the net pension liability decreased by $134 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	Deferred inflows related to the OPEB asset and liabilities increased by $177 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	Deferred inflows related to leases decreased by $838 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	See Note 6 for detailed information on these changes. 


	STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION (SRE) 
	Due to the classification of certain revenues as nonoperating revenue, EOU shows a loss from operations. State general fund appropriations, nonexchange grants and non-capital gifts, although considered nonoperating revenue under GASB Statement No. 35 and reflected accordingly in the nonoperating section of the SRE, are used solely for operating purposes. 
	-
	-

	The following summarizes the revenue and expense activity of EOU: 
	Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (in 000’s) 
	For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019 
	Operating Revenues 
	Operating Revenues 
	Operating Revenues 
	$32,665 
	$ 28,819 
	$ 29,141 

	Operating Expenses 
	Operating Expenses 
	66,907 
	61,656 
	59,822 

	Operating Loss 
	Operating Loss 
	(34,242) 
	(32,837) 
	(30,681) 

	Nonoperating Revenues, Net of Expenses 
	Nonoperating Revenues, Net of Expenses 
	32,028 
	30,423 
	28,590 

	Other Revenues 
	Other Revenues 
	10,665 
	4,026 
	3,564 

	Increase in Net Position 
	Increase in Net Position 
	8,451 
	1,612 
	1,473 

	Net Position, Beginning of Year 
	Net Position, Beginning of Year 
	58,151 
	56,539 
	55,074 


	Net Position, End of Year $66,602 $ 58,151 $ 56,539 


	Revenues 
	Revenues 
	Total revenues increased by $11,764 thousand, or 18 percent in 2021 over 2020. The increase was primarily due to increases in student tuition and fees, operating grants and contracts, capital grants and gifts, appropriations and financial aid grants slightly offset by decreases in auxiliary enterprises, investment activity and other nonoperating items. 
	Total Operating and Nonoperating Revenues (in 000’s) 
	For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019 
	Student Tuition and Fees 
	Student Tuition and Fees 
	Student Tuition and Fees 
	$ 19,753 
	$ 17,751 
	$ 
	17,598 

	Grants and Contracts 
	Grants and Contracts 
	6,943 
	4,390 
	4,465 

	Auxiliary Enterprises 
	Auxiliary Enterprises 
	5,225 
	5,827 
	6,159 

	Educational and Other 
	Educational and Other 
	744 
	851 
	919 

	Total Operating Revenues 
	Total Operating Revenues 
	32,665 
	28,819 
	29,141 


	Appropriations 
	Appropriations 
	Appropriations 
	23,675 
	22,865 
	21,452 

	Financial Aid Grants 
	Financial Aid Grants 
	7,751 
	6,836 
	6,828 

	Gifts 
	Gifts 
	635 
	587 
	812 

	Investment Activity 
	Investment Activity 
	691 
	1,084 
	1,068 

	Capital Grants and Gifts 
	Capital Grants and Gifts 
	10,027 
	3,388 
	2,926 

	Other Nonoperating Items 
	Other Nonoperating Items 
	631 
	732 
	115 

	Total Nonoperating and Other Revenues 
	Total Nonoperating and Other Revenues 
	43,410 
	35,492 
	33,201

	 Total Revenues 
	 Total Revenues 
	$ 76,075 
	$ 64,311 
	$ 62,342 


	Total Operating and Nonoperating Revenues (in 000’s) 
	Operating Revenues 
	$-$5,000 $10,000 $15,000 $20,000 $25,000 Student Tuition and Fees Operating Grants and Contracts Auxiliary Enterprises Educational and Other Revenues Appropriations Other Nonoperating Revenues 2021 2020 2019 
	Operating revenues increased by $3,846 thousand in 2021, or 13 percent, over 2020, to $32,665 thousand. This increase is due to increases in student tuition and fees and operating grants and contracts slightly offset by decreases in auxiliary enterprises and educational and other revenues. Operating revenues decreased by $322 thousand in 2020, or 1 percent, over 2019, to $28,819 thousand. This decrease is due to decreases in most categories of operating revenue with the largest decrease in auxiliary enterpr
	-

	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL YEAR 2020 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL YEAR 2020 

	Net Student Tuition and Fees increased by $2,002 thousand, or 11 percent, primarily due to: 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Tuition and fees increased by $2,469 thousand. Tuition increased by $2,472 thousand due primarily to rate increases. Fees decreased by $3 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	Fee remissions and scholarship allowances reduced tuition and fees by $294 thousand more than in the previous year. 


	* Bad debt expense, primarily related to the maintenance of the allowance for bad debt, increased by $171 thousand, resulting in a decrease to net tuition and fees. 
	* Bad debt expense, primarily related to the maintenance of the allowance for bad debt, increased by $171 thousand, resulting in a decrease to net tuition and fees. 
	Federal, State and Nongovernmental Grants and Contracts 
	increased by $2,553 thousand, or 58 percent. 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Federal grant and contract revenues decreased by $18 thousand due primarily to decreased Department of Education financial aid grants somewhat offset by increased Department of Health and Human Services grants for Head Start funding. 

	* 
	* 
	State grant revenue increased by $2,690 thousand primarily due to increases in grants from the Oregon Department of Education for pre-kindergarten programs and emergency child care. 

	* 
	* 
	* 
	Nongovernmental grant activity decreased by $119 thousand due primarily to decreases in grants from commercial businesses, non-affiliated foundations and the EOU Foundation slightly offset by increased grants from the private individuals. 

	Auxiliary Enterprises revenues decreased by $602 thousand, or 10 percent. 

	* 
	* 
	Housing and dining revenues decreased by $23 thousand as a result of decreases in events revenue slightly offset by increased rental and food services revenue. 

	* 
	* 
	Student health service revenues increased by $22 thousand due to increased student health fee revenues. 

	* 
	* 
	Athletics revenues decreased by $131 thousand due primarily to decreased event and general sales revenues. 

	* 
	* 
	Parking revenues decreased by $46 thousand due to decreased fees and permits revenue. 

	* 
	* 
	Student centers and activities decreased by $286 thousand due to decreased student incidental fees, other fees, and services revenue which mostly resulted from decreased fees and events due to the pandemic-caused campus closure. 

	* 
	* 
	Other auxiliary revenues decreased by $138 thousand due primarily to decreases in property lease revenues. 


	Educational and Other Operating Revenues decreased by $107 thousand, or 13 percent. 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Educational Department Sales and Services revenues decreased by $42 thousand, primarily due to decreased camp and clinic and sales income slightly offset by increased fees and lease revenue. 

	* 
	* 
	Other Operating revenues decreased by $65 thousand, primarily due to decreased miscellaneous revenues for youth and athletic camps and interest on student loans slightly offset by increase general interest income and insurance recoveries from FEMA. 



	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL YEAR 2019 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL YEAR 2019 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL YEAR 2019 

	Net Student Tuition and Fees increased by $153 thousand, or less than 1 percent, primarily due to: 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Tuition and fees increased by $579 thousand. Tuition increased by $636 thousand due primarily to rate increases, offset by a slight decline in enrollment. Fees decreased by $57 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	Fee remissions and scholarship allowances reduced tuition and fees by $461 thousand more than in the previous year. 

	* 
	* 
	Bad debt expense, primarily related to the maintenance of the allowance for bad debt, decreased by $35 thousand, resulting in an increase to net tuition and fees. 


	Federal, State and Nongovernmental Grants and Contracts 
	decreased by $75 thousand, or 2 percent. 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Federal grant and contract revenues increased by $283 thousand due primarily to increased Department of Education financial aid grants and Department of Health and Human Services grants for Head Start funding, somewhat offset by the end of a pass-through grants for watershed work. 

	* 
	* 
	State grant revenue decreased by $431 thousand primarily due to decreases in grants from the Oregon Department of Education for STEM hubs and pre-kindergarten programs. 

	* 
	* 
	* 
	Nongovernmental grant activity increased by $73 thousand due primarily to increased grants from non-affiliated foundations and associations slightly offset by decreased grants from the EOU Foundation. 

	Auxiliary Enterprises revenues decreased by $332 thousand, or 5 percent. 

	* 
	* 
	Housing and dining revenues decreased by $567 thousand. Revenues from events, rentals, food service and housing charges were severely impacted by the university moving to remote teaching in March 2020. The EOU campus closure and subsequent remote transition in Spring 2020 was a direct result of the Governor’s “stay home” order, in response to the unexpected coronavirus pandemic. 

	* 
	* 
	Student health service revenues decreased by $48 thousand due to decreased student health fees.  Fees were reduced for Spring Term as a result of the campus closure during the coronavirus pandemic. 

	* 
	* 
	Athletics revenues increased by $138 thousand due primarily to an increased allocation of student incidental fees and increased event revenues from the summer prior to the pandemic. 

	* 
	* 
	Parking revenues decreased by $10 thousand due to decreased fines revenue spring term during campus closure. 

	* 
	* 
	Student centers and activities decreased by $83 thousand due to decreased student incidental fees, other fees, permits, and services revenue. Fees were reduced for Spring Term 


	as a result of the campus closure during the coronavirus pandemic. 
	* Other auxiliary revenues increased by $228 thousand due primarily to increases in property lease revenues slightly offset by a decreased allocation of student incidental fee revenue. 
	Educational and Other Operating Revenues decreased by $68 thousand, or 7 percent. 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Educational Department Sales and Services revenues decreased by $140 thousand, primarily due to decreased camp and clinic and event income.  Numerous events and contracts were canceled in the spring of 2020 as a result of the pandemic-caused campus closure. 

	* 
	* 
	Other Operating revenues increased by $72 thousand, primarily due to increased miscellaneous revenues for youth and athletic camps. 




	Nonoperating and Other Revenues 
	Nonoperating and Other Revenues 
	Nonoperating and other revenues increased by $7,918 thousand, or 22 percent, during 2021. Increases in appropriations, financial aid grants, gifts and capital grants and gifts were only slightly offset by decreases in investment activity and other nonoperating items. Nonoperating revenues increased by $2,291 thousand, or 7 percent, during 2020. Increases in appropriations, financial aid grants, investment activity, capital grants and gifts and other nonoperating items were only slightly offset by a decrease
	-
	-

	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL YEAR 2020 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL YEAR 2020 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL YEAR 2020 

	Government Appropriations increased by $810 thousand, or 4 percent. 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	State appropriations in support of university operations increased by $505 thousand due to increased general university support. 

	* 
	* 
	State appropriations for SELP debt service remained unchanged. 

	* 
	* 
	State appropriations from sports lottery increased by $305 thousand due to increased support from the state. 


	See Note 13 Government Appropriations for additional information relating to changes in appropriations. 
	-

	Financial Aid Grants increased by $915 thousand, or 13 percent. Increases in federal aid resulting from COVID-19 relief funding and state need grants were slightly offset by decreases in federal Pell grants. 
	-

	Gifts increased by $48 thousand, or 8 percent, due primarily to increased gifts from the EOU Foundation slightly offset by decreases in gifts from private individuals and commercial businesses. 
	Investment Activity decreased by $393 thousand, or 36 percent. Decreases in investment earnings and loss on sale of investments was only slightly offset by net appreciation of investments. See Note 11 Investment Activity for additional information. 
	-

	Capital Grants and Gifts increased by $6,639 thousand, or 196 percent, due to increased federal grant and contracts, state XI-Q and state lottery grants revenue. 
	Other Nonoperating Items decreased by $101 thousand, or 14 percent, due primarily to a loss on debt refunding of XI-F bonds and a decrease in the Perkins Loan Program Liability as EOU completed the process of assigning remaining loans to the federal government offset by an increase in COVID-19 relief funding for institutional support purposes. 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL YEAR 2019 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL YEAR 2019 

	Government Appropriations increased by $1,413 thousand, or 7 percent. 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	State appropriations in support of university operations increased by $802 thousand due to increased general university support. 

	* 
	* 
	State appropriations for SELP debt service remained unchanged. 

	* 
	* 
	State appropriations from sports lottery increased by $611 thousand due to increased support from the state. 


	See Note 13 for additional information relating to changes in appropriations. 
	Financial Aid Grants increased by $8 thousand, or less than 1 percent. An increase in federal aid resulting from the CARES Act was offset by decreases in state need grants and federal Pell grants. 
	Gifts decreased by $225 thousand, or 28 percent, due primarily to decreased gifts from the EOU Foundation. 
	Investment Activity increased by $16 thousand, or 1 percent. Increases in investment earnings and gain on sale of investments was mostly offset by net depreciation of investments. See Note 11 for additional information. 
	-

	Capital Grants and Gifts increased by $462 thousand, or 16 percent, due to increased state XI-Q and lottery grants revenue somewhat offset by decreased State of Oregon capital appropriations. 
	-

	Other Nonoperating Items increased by $617 thousand, or 537 percent, due primarily to a decrease in the Perkins Loan Program Liability as EOU began the process of assigning remaining loans to the federal government and the receipt of CARES Act funding for institutional support purposes. 
	EXPENSES 
	EXPENSES 



	Operating Expenses 
	Operating Expenses 
	Operating Expenses 
	Operating expenses increased by $5,251 thousand in 2021, or 9 percent, to $66,907 thousand, compared to 2020. During 2021 increases in most categories were offset by decreases in research and auxiliary programs. Operating expenses increased by $1,834 thousand in 2020, or 3 percent, to $61,656 thousand, compared to 2019. During 2020 increases in instruction, public service, academic support, institutional support, student aid and other operating expenses were offset by decreases in research, student services
	The following summarizes operating expenses by functional classification: 
	Operating Expense by Function (in 000’s) 
	For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019 
	Instruction 
	Instruction 
	Instruction 
	$ 16,811 $ 16,673 
	$ 15,969 

	Research 
	Research 
	180 
	354 
	604 

	Public Service 
	Public Service 
	5,221 
	3,382 
	3,007 

	Academic Support 
	Academic Support 
	10,689 
	7,829 
	7,520 

	Student Services 
	Student Services 
	3,205 
	3,144 
	3,260 

	Auxiliary Programs 
	Auxiliary Programs 
	7,693 
	8,029 
	8,253 

	Institutional Support 
	Institutional Support 
	10,386 
	10,087 
	9,690 

	Operation and Maint. of Plant 
	Operation and Maint. of Plant 
	3,780 
	3,666 
	3,747 

	Student Aid 
	Student Aid 
	4,833 
	4,529 
	4,040 

	Other Operating Expenses 
	Other Operating Expenses 
	4,109 
	3,963 
	3,732 

	Total Operating Expenses 
	Total Operating Expenses 
	$ 66,907 $ 61,656 
	$ 59,822 

	2021 Operating Expense by Function 
	2021 Operating Expense by Function 


	Institutional Support 16% Operation & Maintenance of Plant 6% Student Aid 7% Other Operating Expenses 6% Instruction 27% Research 1% Public Service 6% Academic Support 13% Student Services 5% Auxiliary Programs 13% 
	The implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68 beginning with fiscal year 2015 and GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions beginning with fiscal year 2018 has had a significant impact on the operating expenses reported
	-
	-


	The following shows the effect of GASB Statement Nos. 68, 71 and 75 on operating expenses across the functional classifications: 
	-

	Effect of GASB Statement Nos. 68, 71 and 75 on Expense by Function (in 000’s) 
	Without As GASB 68/71 For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 Reported & 75 Difference 
	Without As GASB 68/71 For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 Reported & 75 Difference 

	Instruction $ 16,811 
	Instruction $ 16,811 
	Instruction $ 16,811 
	$ 15,736 
	$ 1,075 

	Research 180 
	Research 180 
	171 
	9 

	Public Service 5,221 
	Public Service 5,221 
	4,874 
	347 

	Academic Support 10,689 
	Academic Support 10,689 
	9,981 
	708 

	Student Services 3,205 
	Student Services 3,205 
	2,946 
	259 

	Auxiliary Programs 7,693 
	Auxiliary Programs 7,693 
	7,438 
	255 

	Institutional Support 10,386 
	Institutional Support 10,386 
	10,087 
	299 

	Operation and Maint. of Plant 3,780 
	Operation and Maint. of Plant 3,780 
	3,174 
	606 

	Student Aid 4,833 
	Student Aid 4,833 
	4,833 
	-

	Other Operating Expenses 4,109 
	Other Operating Expenses 4,109 
	4,103 
	6 

	Total Operating Expenses $ 66,907 
	Total Operating Expenses $ 66,907 
	$ 63,343 
	$ 3,564 

	TR
	Without 

	As 
	As 
	GASB 68/71 

	For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 Reported 
	For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 Reported 
	& 75 
	Difference 

	Instruction $ 16,673 
	Instruction $ 16,673 
	$ 15,710 
	$ 963 

	Research 354 
	Research 354 
	332 
	22 

	Public Service 3,382 
	Public Service 3,382 
	3,196 
	186 

	Academic Support 7,829 
	Academic Support 7,829 
	7,315 
	514 

	Student Services 3,144 
	Student Services 3,144 
	2,943 
	201 

	Auxiliary Programs 8,029 
	Auxiliary Programs 8,029 
	7,837 
	192 

	Institutional Support 10,087 
	Institutional Support 10,087 
	9,865 
	222 

	Operation and Maint. of Plant 3,666 
	Operation and Maint. of Plant 3,666 
	3,176 
	490 

	Student Aid 4,529 
	Student Aid 4,529 
	4,529 
	-

	Other Operating Expenses 3,963 
	Other Operating Expenses 3,963 
	3,947 
	16 

	Total Operating Expenses $ 61,656 
	Total Operating Expenses $ 61,656 
	$ 58,850 
	$ 2,806 

	TR
	Without 

	As 
	As 
	GASB 68/71 

	For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 Reported 
	For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 Reported 
	& 75 
	Difference 


	Instruction 
	Instruction 
	Instruction 
	Instruction 
	$ 15,969 
	$ 
	15,401 
	$ 
	568 

	Research 
	Research 
	604 
	590 
	14 

	Public Service 
	Public Service 
	3,007 
	2,908 
	99 

	Academic Support 
	Academic Support 
	7,520 
	7,230 
	290 

	Student Services 
	Student Services 
	3,260 
	3,136 
	124 

	Auxiliary Programs 
	Auxiliary Programs 
	8,253 
	8,137 
	116 

	Institutional Support 
	Institutional Support 
	9,690 
	9,560 
	130 

	Operation and Maint. of Plant 
	Operation and Maint. of Plant 
	3,747 
	3,478 
	269 

	Student Aid 
	Student Aid 
	4,040 
	4,040 
	-

	Other Operating Expenses 
	Other Operating Expenses 
	3,732 
	3,724 
	8 


	Total Operating Expenses $ 59,822 $ 58,204 $ 1,618 

	Without the adjustments to compensation and benefits required under GASB Statement Nos. 68, 71 and 75, total operating expenses for EOU would have increased by $4,493 thousand, or 8 percent, during 2021 and by $646 thousand, or 1 percent, during 2020. 
	-
	-


	Operating Expenses by Nature 
	Operating Expenses by Nature 
	Due to the way in which expenses are incurred by EOU, variances are presented and explained by analyzing changes in the natural classification of expenses. Each natural classification analysis can be applied to many of the functional expense caption items. 
	-

	The following summarizes operating expenses by natural classification: 
	Operating Expenses by Natural Classification (in 000’s) 
	For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019 
	Compensation and Benefits 
	Compensation and Benefits 
	Compensation and Benefits 
	$43,994 
	$ 41,560 
	$ 39,383 

	Services and Supplies 
	Services and Supplies 
	13,043 
	10,555 
	11,856 

	Scholarships and Fellowships 
	Scholarships and Fellowships 
	5,175 
	4,107 
	4,075 

	Depreciation and Amortizatio 
	Depreciation and Amortizatio 
	4,663 
	4,554 
	4,306 

	Other Expenses 
	Other Expenses 
	32 
	880 
	202 


	Total Operating Expenses $66,907 $ 61,656 $ 59,822 
	Total Operating Expenses $66,907 $ 61,656 $ 59,822 
	Total Operating Expenses $66,907 $ 61,656 $ 59,822 


	2021 Operating Expenses by Natural Classification 
	CCoommppeennssaattiioonn aanndd BBeenneeffiittss 6666%% SSeerrvviicceess aanndd SSuupppplliieess 1199%% SScchhoollaarrsshhiippss aanndd FFeelllloowwsshhiippss 88%% DDeepprreecciiaattiioonn aanndd AAmmoorrttiizzaattiioonn 77%% OOtthheerr EExxppeennsseess 00%% 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL YEAR 2020 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL YEAR 2020 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL YEAR 2020 

	Compensation and Benefits costs increased by $2,434 thousand, or 6 percent. 
	-

	* 
	* 
	* 
	Salary and wage costs increased by $1,075 thousand. Increase are attributed to increased employee FTE, increased wages and new hires to meet work demands. 

	* 
	* 
	Retirement and health insurance costs increased by $470 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	Other payroll expenses increased by $171 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	Other costs associated with compensation and benefits decreased by $25 thousand due to decreased staff tuition and fee benefits. 

	* 
	* 
	The adjustment of the PERS state and local government rate pool (SLGRP) decreased compensation and benefit costs by $14 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	Adjustments and accruals associated with the net pension liability reporting requirement of GASB Statement Nos. 68 and 71 increased by $706 thousand. See the GASB 68/71/75 table to the left and Note 14 Employee Retirement Plans for additional information on this variance. 

	* 
	* 
	Adjustments and accruals associated with the OPEB asset/ (liability) reporting requirement of GASB Statement No. 75 increased by $51 thousand. See table on the previous page 


	and Note 15 Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) for additional information on this variance. 
	Services and Supplies expenses increased by $2,488 thousand, or 24 percent, during 2021 due primarily to increases in minor equipment, online program management services and medical and scientific services for COVID-19 testing, which were slightly offset by continued decreases in employee and student travel. 
	Scholarships and Fellowships increased by $1,068 thousand, or 26 percent. Decreases in federal TEACH and Pell aid were more than offset by new student aid funding under the CARES Act and COVID-19 relief funding as well as increases in SEOG aid. Increases were also seen in institutional aid, private aid and state aid. This expense category does not include fee remissions, which are reported as reductions to student tuition and fee revenues. 
	-

	Depreciation and Amortization increased by $109 thousand, or 2 percent due primarily to increases in depreciation for buildings, infrastructure and right-of-use lease assets. Major capital projects completed during fiscal year 2021 include a HVAC maintenance project in Badgley Hall, a campus-wide fiber optic upgrade, fuel system replacement for Facilities, Ackerman ADA access, and completion of a few other smaller deferred maintenance projects. 
	-
	-
	-

	Other Operating Expenses decreased by $848 thousand, or 96 percent, due to a decrease in federal student loans assigned to the federal government as the university completed the close out of the Perkins Loan Program. 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL YEAR 2019 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL YEAR 2019 

	Compensation and Benefits costs increased by $2,177 thousand, or 6 percent. 
	-

	* 
	* 
	* 
	Salary and wage costs increased by $245 thousand. Increases in wages were offset by decreases in FTE as a result of the coronavirus pandemic. Due to the unexpected campus closure, the university enrolled in the State of Oregon work-share program in May of 2020, which resulted in less work hours for staff. 

	* 
	* 
	Retirement and health insurance costs increased by $802 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	Other payroll expenses decreased by $63 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	Other costs associated with compensation and benefits increased by $30 thousand due to increased staff tuition and fee benefits. 

	* 
	* 
	The adjustment of the PERS state and local government rate pool (SLGRP) decreased compensation and benefit costs by $25 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	Adjustments and accruals associated with the net pension liability reporting requirement of GASB Statement Nos. 68 and 71 increased by $1,154 thousand. See the GASB 68/71/75 
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	table to the left and Note 14 for additional information on this variance. 
	* Adjustments and accruals associated with the OPEB asset/ (liability) reporting requirement of GASB Statement No. 75 increased by $34 thousand. See table on the previous page and Note 15 for additional information on this variance. 
	Services and Supplies expenses decreased by $1,301 thousand, or 11 percent, during 2020 due primarily to impacts of the coronavirus pandemic and the Spring 2020 campus closure. These savings were seen across many categories including minor equipment, subscriptions, utilities, professional services, travel and other services and supplies. 
	Scholarships and Fellowships increased by $32 thousand, or 1 percent. Decreases in federal TEACH, NSF, Pell and SEOG aid were more than offset by new student aid funding under the CARES Act. Decreases were also seen in institutional and private aid. State aid increased slightly due to an increase in sports lottery appropriations. This expense category does not include fee remissions, which are reported as reductions to student tuition and fee revenues. 
	Depreciation and Amortization increased by $248 thousand, or 6 percent. Increases in depreciation for buildings and land improvements resulted from newly completed construction projects being put into service. Major capital projects completed during fiscal year 2020 included a full roof replacement on Ackerman Hall and Loso Hall, addition of a new building and land located by Community Stadium, and completion of a few other smaller outstanding deferred maintenance projects. 
	-

	Other Operating Expenses increased by $678 thousand, or 336 percent, due to an increase in federal student loans assigned to the federal government. 



	Nonoperating Expenses 
	Nonoperating Expenses 
	Nonoperating Expenses 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL YEAR 2020 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL YEAR 2020 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2021 TO FISCAL YEAR 2020 

	Interest Expense decreased by $316 thousand, or 31 percent, primarily due to decreases in bond interest, SELP interest and SLGRP interest. 

	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL YEAR 2019 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL YEAR 2019 
	COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 TO FISCAL YEAR 2019 

	Interest Expense increased by $9 thousand, or 1 percent, primarily due to increased bond interest somewhat offset by decreased SELP interest. 
	-

	CAPITAL ASSETS AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 



	Capital Assets 
	Capital Assets 
	Capital Assets 
	At June 30, 2021, EOU had $160,529 thousand in capital assets, less accumulated depreciation of $81,374 thousand, for net capital assets of $79,155 thousand. At June 30, 2020, EOU had 
	At June 30, 2021, EOU had $160,529 thousand in capital assets, less accumulated depreciation of $81,374 thousand, for net capital assets of $79,155 thousand. At June 30, 2020, EOU had 
	$150,661 thousand in capital assets, less accumulated depreciation of $77,272 thousand, for net capital assets of $73,389 thousand. EOU is committed to a comprehensive program of capital investment and facility maintenance that includes addressing current maintenance needs and minimizing EOU’s deferred maintenance backlog. State, federal, private, debt, and internal EOU funding are all used to accomplish EOU’s capital objectives. 
	-



	2021 Capital Assets, Net - $79,155 Thousand 
	Infrastructure 
	Infrastructure 
	3% 
	Land and 
	Improvements 
	10% 

	Changes to Capital Assets (in 000’s) 
	As of June 30, 2021 2020 2019 
	Capital Assets, Beginning of Year $ 150,661 $ 146,556 $ 141,812 Add: Purchases/Construction 10,490 4,215 6,806 Less: Retirements/Disposals/Adjustments (622) (110) (2,062) 
	Total Capital Assets, End of Year 160,529 150,661 146,556 
	Total Capital Assets, End of Year 160,529 150,661 146,556 

	Accum. Depreciation, Beginning of Year 
	Accum. Depreciation, Beginning of Year 
	Accum. Depreciation, Beginning of Year 
	(77,272) 
	(72,774) 
	(68,773) 

	Add: Depreciation Expense 
	Add: Depreciation Expense 
	(4,663) 
	(4,554) 
	(4,306) 

	Less: Retirements/Disposals/Adjustments 
	Less: Retirements/Disposals/Adjustments 
	561 
	56 
	305 


	Total Accum. Depreciation, End of Year (81,374) (77,272) (72,774) 
	Total Accum. Depreciation, End of Year (81,374) (77,272) (72,774) 
	Total Capital Assets, Net, End of Year $ 79,155 $ 73,389 $ 73,782 

	Capital additions totaled $10,490 thousand for 2021, $4,215 thousand for 2020, and $6,806 thousand for 2019. 
	During 2021, capital additions included $7,878 thousand for construction in progress (CIP) for buildings and infrastructure; $810 thousand for land; $780 thousand for infrastructure; $412 thousand for equipment; $307 thousand for library materials; $131 thousand for buildings; $112 thousand for ROU Leases Space; $30 thousand of ROU leased equipment; and $30 thousand for land improvements. The large increase for CIP during 2021 includes continued construction of the Loso Hall Phase I Project and the new EOU 
	During 2021, capital additions included $7,878 thousand for construction in progress (CIP) for buildings and infrastructure; $810 thousand for land; $780 thousand for infrastructure; $412 thousand for equipment; $307 thousand for library materials; $131 thousand for buildings; $112 thousand for ROU Leases Space; $30 thousand of ROU leased equipment; and $30 thousand for land improvements. The large increase for CIP during 2021 includes continued construction of the Loso Hall Phase I Project and the new EOU 
	-
	-

	I Project and the new EOU Field House. During 2019, capital additions included $1,646 thousand for construction in progress (CIP) for buildings and infrastructure; $336 thousand for equipment; $313 thousand for library materials; $4,073 thousand for land improvements; and $148 thousand for buildings. 
	-
	-



	Debt Administration 
	Debt Administration 
	During 2021, long-term debt held by EOU decreased by $972 thousand, or 5 percent, from $19,832 thousand to $18,860 thousand. 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	EOU made debt service principal payments totaling $1,504 thousand on outstanding long-term debt. 

	* 
	* 
	Net change in long-term debt due to refunding was $495 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	EOU’s obligation for accreted interest on outstanding debt decreased by a net $8 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	* 
	EOU added new debt of $152 thousand for new leases and made principal payments of $107 thousand on capital leases for a net change of $45 thousand in lease liabilities. 

	During 2020, long-term debt held by EOU decreased by $1,502 thousand, or 7 percent, from $21,334 thousand to $19,832 thousand. 
	-


	* 
	* 
	EOU made debt service principal payments totaling $1,380 thousand on outstanding long-term debt. 

	* 
	* 
	EOU’s obligation for accreted interest on outstanding debt decreased by a net $60 thousand. 

	* 
	* 
	EOU added new debt of $24 thousand for new leases and made principal payments of $86 thousand on leases for a net decrease of $62 thousand in lease liabilities. 


	See Note 9 Long-Term Liabilities for additional information. 
	Long-term Debt (in 000,000’s) 
	$-$5 $10 $15 $20 $25 2021 2020 2019 Other Oregon Department of Energy Loans State of Oregon Contracts Payable 
	ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 
	Funding for the major activities of EOU comes from a variety of sources including tuition and fees, financial aid programs, federal and state appropriations, grants, private and government contracts, donor gifts, and investment earnings. Revenues are also generated through recovery of costs associated with federal grants and contract activities, which serve to offset related administrative and facilities costs at the university. 
	-

	State funding levels continue to challenge EOU’s ability to meet its public mission of teaching, research and service. While the state has made some investment in higher education over the last few years, it is still dramatically lower than the per student level of state contribution that existed prior to the last recession. Looking ahead, the state held our funding flat for the coming biennium. This low level of state support, combined with rising expenses, particularly compensation costs, has put increasi
	For the 2020-21 academic year, the EOU Board of Trustees approved a 4.2% increase for undergraduate resident tuition and a 7.1% increase for undergraduate off campus programs. In addition, non-resident on campus and graduate programs were increased by 4.5%. For the 2021-22 academic year, the Board approved the university’s recommendation to freeze undergraduate on campus tuition, as well as off campus undergraduate resident tuition. The institution implemented an off campus non-resident tuition rate for new
	-
	-
	-
	-

	The University is focused on responsible stewardship of its financial resources. The unexpected impacts of the Coronavirus over the last 18 months have certainly reiterated the importance of the University’s need to keep adapting to a changing financial environment. EOU will continue to face intense economic pressures from competition, uncertainties in state funding, significant operating cost escalators and effects of the Coronavirus. EOU emerged from the pandemic in a position of strength, both operationa
	-
	-
	-

	EOU remains challenged to balance the investment of state funding with aspirations related to Oregon’s 40/40/20 goals: 40 percent of all adult Oregonians to hold a bachelor’s or advanced degree; 40 percent to have an associates’ degree or 
	EOU remains challenged to balance the investment of state funding with aspirations related to Oregon’s 40/40/20 goals: 40 percent of all adult Oregonians to hold a bachelor’s or advanced degree; 40 percent to have an associates’ degree or 
	-

	meaningful postsecondary certificate; and all remaining adult Oregonians to hold a high school diploma or equivalent by the year 2025. Eastern is committed to increasing enrollment and assisting Oregon in meeting the 40/40/20 goals, as seen in the recent approval of nine additional academic degree programs, one certification and bolstering two existing graduate programs. The approval of future graduate programs is also on the horizon. 

	The EOU Board of Trustees and university leadership have reaffirmed their commitment to meeting these challenges by adopting the Ascent 2029 university strategic plan, which fo
	The EOU Board of Trustees and university leadership have reaffirmed their commitment to meeting these challenges by adopting the Ascent 2029 university strategic plan, which fo
	The EOU Board of Trustees and university leadership have reaffirmed their commitment to meeting these challenges by adopting the Ascent 2029 university strategic plan, which fo
	-
	-

	cuses on student success, transformational education, building a thriving university community, bolstering enrollment, relevance and interconnection, and financial sustainability. The plan focuses on ensuring the long-term financial health of the institution by actively seeking operating efficiencies, diversifying funding sources, and acting on the primary goal of graduating students with the competencies and confidence to succeed. 
	-



	Figure
	FINANCIAL RATIOS 
	2021 2020 2019 Viability Ratio (expendable net position to long-term debt) 0.74 0.54 0.41 Primary Reserve Ratio (expendable net position to operating expenses) 0.22 0.18 0.15 Net Revenues Ratio (total net income to total revenues) -3.07% -3.95% -3.75% Return on Net Assets Ratio (change in net position to beginning net position) 13.84% 4.89% 2.30% 
	Debt Burden Ratio (debt service to total expenditures) 
	VIABILITY RATIO 
	The viability ratio is a measure of clear financial health; the availability of expendable net position to cover debt should the University need to settle its obligations as of the fiscal year end. Expendable net position is the balance in total net position excluding investment in capital assets and non-expendable endowments of the University plus the unrestricted and temporarily restricted net assets of the component unit. Long-term debt includes bonds, loans and capital leases payable by the University a
	-
	-

	PRIMARY RESERVE RATIO 
	The primary reserve ratio, calculated by dividing expendable net position by operating expenses, measures the ability of the University to continue operating at current levels, within current restrictions, without future revenues. Expendable net position is the balance in total net position excluding investment in capital assets and non-expendable endowments of the University plus the unrestricted and temporarily restricted net assets of the component unit. Total operating expenses include the operating exp
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	2.46% 2.79% 2.87% 
	2.46% 2.79% 2.87% 

	NET REVENUES RATIO 
	The net revenues ratio indicates whether the University has an operating surplus or deficit for the year. Total net income includes operating income (loss) plus net nonoperating revenues of the University, excluding capital gifts and debt service appropriations, plus total change in unrestricted net assets of the component unit. Total revenues include operating and net nonoperating revenues of the University plus unrestricted revenues, gains and other support of the component unit. A positive ratio would in
	-

	RETURN ON NET ASSETS RATIO 
	The return on net assets ratio determines whether the University is financially better off than in previous years by measuring total economic return. Total change in net position includes the change in net position for the University plus the change in total net assets for the component unit. Total beginning net position includes the beginning net position of the University plus the total beginning net assets of the component unit. A positive ratio indicates a net increase in total net position at the end o
	-
	-

	DEBT BURDEN RATIO 
	The debt burden ratio measures the cost of servicing the debt of the University. This ratio examines the institution’s dependence on borrowed funds as a source of financing its mission and the relative cost of borrowing to overall expenditures. It compares the level of current debt service with the institution’s total expenditures. Total debt service includes the interest and principal payments on capital debt of both the University and the component unit. Total expenditures includes total expenses, includi
	-
	-




	EASTERN OREGON UNIVERSITY STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 
	EASTERN OREGON UNIVERSITY STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 
	As of June 30, 2021 2020 
	as Restated 
	as Restated 
	as Restated 

	ASSETS 
	ASSETS 
	(In thousands) 

	Current Assets 
	Current Assets 

	Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2) 
	Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2) 
	$ 
	12,907 $ 15,919 

	Collateral from Securities Lending (Note 2) 
	Collateral from Securities Lending (Note 2) 
	247 339 

	Accounts Receivable, Net (Note 3) 
	Accounts Receivable, Net (Note 3) 
	8,190 5,669 

	Notes Receivable, Net (Note 4) 
	Notes Receivable, Net (Note 4) 
	7 11 

	Leases Receivable (Note 8) 
	Leases Receivable (Note 8) 
	375 843 

	Inventories 
	Inventories 
	7 9 

	Prepaid Expenses 
	Prepaid Expenses 
	62 54 

	Total Current Assets 
	Total Current Assets 
	21,795 22,844 

	Noncurrent Assets 
	Noncurrent Assets 

	Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2) 
	Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2) 
	257 450 

	Investments (Note 2) 
	Investments (Note 2) 
	16,361 9,565 

	Notes Receivable, Net (Note 4) 
	Notes Receivable, Net (Note 4) 
	2 14 

	Leases Receivable (Note 8) 
	Leases Receivable (Note 8) 
	1,093 1,469 

	Net OPEB Asset (Note 15) 
	Net OPEB Asset (Note 15) 
	75 298 

	Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation (Note 5) 
	Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation (Note 5) 
	79,155 73,389 

	Total Noncurrent Assets 
	Total Noncurrent Assets 
	96,943 85,185 

	Total Assets 
	Total Assets 
	$ 
	118,738 $ 108,029 

	DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES (Note 6) 
	DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES (Note 6) 
	$ 
	9,342 $ 7,111 

	LIABILITIES 
	LIABILITIES 

	Current Liabilities 
	Current Liabilities 

	Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (Note 7) 
	Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (Note 7) 
	$ 
	6,196 $ 4,669 

	Deposits 
	Deposits 
	260 267 

	Obligations Under Securities Lending (Note 2) 
	Obligations Under Securities Lending (Note 2) 
	247 339 

	Current Portion of Long-Term Liabilities (Note 9) 
	Current Portion of Long-Term Liabilities (Note 9) 
	2,921 2,902 

	Unearned Revenues 
	Unearned Revenues 
	2,300 2,881 

	Total Current Liabilites 
	Total Current Liabilites 
	11,924 11,058 

	Noncurrent Liabilities 
	Noncurrent Liabilities 

	Long-Term Liabilities (Note 9) 
	Long-Term Liabilities (Note 9) 
	18,970 20,063 

	Net Pension Liability (Note 14) 
	Net Pension Liability (Note 14) 
	26,950 20,815 

	OPEB Liability (Note 15) 
	OPEB Liability (Note 15) 
	1,066 1,116 

	Total Noncurrent Liabilities 
	Total Noncurrent Liabilities 
	46,986 41,994 

	Total Liabilities 
	Total Liabilities 
	$ 
	58,910 $ 53,052 

	DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES (Note 6) 
	DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES (Note 6) 
	$ 
	2,568 $ 3,937 


	NET POSITION 
	NET POSITION 
	NET POSITION 

	Net Investment in Capital Assets 
	Net Investment in Capital Assets 
	$ 
	60,313 
	$ 
	53,584 

	Restricted For: 
	Restricted For: 

	Nonexpendable Endowments 
	Nonexpendable Endowments 
	554 
	554 

	Expendable: 
	Expendable: 

	Gifts, Grants and Contracts 
	Gifts, Grants and Contracts 
	1,485 
	1,216 

	Student Loans 
	Student Loans 
	142 
	158 

	Capital Projects 
	Capital Projects 
	28 
	79 

	Debt Service 
	Debt Service 
	249 
	318 

	OPEB Asset 
	OPEB Asset 
	75 
	298 

	Unrestricted (Note 10) 
	Unrestricted (Note 10) 
	3,756 
	1,944 

	Total Net Position 
	Total Net Position 
	$ 
	66,602 
	$ 
	58,151 


	The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
	Sect
	P
	Figure


	EOU FOUNDATION STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
	As of December 31, 2020 2019 
	(In thousands) 
	(In thousands) 
	(In thousands) 

	ASSETS 
	ASSETS 

	Cash and Cash Equivalents 
	Cash and Cash Equivalents 
	$ 
	3,448 $ 3,299 

	Pledges Receivable, Net 
	Pledges Receivable, Net 
	366 
	477 

	Investments (Note 2) 
	Investments (Note 2) 
	15,899 
	13,864 

	Assets Held Under Split-Interest Agreements 
	Assets Held Under Split-Interest Agreements 
	496 
	461 

	Beneficial Interests 
	Beneficial Interests 
	351 
	261 

	Property and Equipment, Net 
	Property and Equipment, Net 
	1,100 
	1,103 

	Total Assets 
	Total Assets 
	$ 
	21,660 $ 19,465 


	LIABILITIES Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities Accounts Payable to University Revocable Donor Endowment 
	LIABILITIES Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities Accounts Payable to University Revocable Donor Endowment 
	LIABILITIES Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities Accounts Payable to University Revocable Donor Endowment 
	$ 
	19 1,602 73 
	$ 
	18 1,516 38 

	Total Liabilities 
	Total Liabilities 
	$ 
	1,694 
	$ 
	1,572 

	NET ASSETS Without Donor Restrictions $ 1,248 $ 1,084 With Donor Restrictions 18,718 16,809 
	NET ASSETS Without Donor Restrictions $ 1,248 $ 1,084 With Donor Restrictions 18,718 16,809 

	Total Net Assets $ 19,966 $ 17,893 
	Total Net Assets $ 19,966 $ 17,893 


	TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 21,660 $ 19,465 
	The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
	EASTERN OREGON UNIVERSITY STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES & CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
	For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 2020 
	as Restated 
	as Restated 
	as Restated 

	(In thousands) 
	(In thousands) 

	OPERATING REVENUES 
	OPERATING REVENUES 

	Student Tuition and Fees (Net of Allowances of $6,682 and $6,527, respectively) $ 19,753 $ 17,751 
	Student Tuition and Fees (Net of Allowances of $6,682 and $6,527, respectively) $ 19,753 $ 17,751 

	Federal Grants and Contracts 2,790 2,808 
	Federal Grants and Contracts 2,790 2,808 

	State and Local Grants and Contracts 3,899 1,209 
	State and Local Grants and Contracts 3,899 1,209 

	Nongovernmental Grants and Contracts 254 373 
	Nongovernmental Grants and Contracts 254 373 

	Educational Department Sales and Services 262 304 
	Educational Department Sales and Services 262 304 

	Auxiliary Enterprises Revenues (Net of Allowances of $213 and $233, respectively) 5,225 5,827 
	Auxiliary Enterprises Revenues (Net of Allowances of $213 and $233, respectively) 5,225 5,827 

	Other Operating Revenues 482 547 
	Other Operating Revenues 482 547 

	Total Operating Revenues 32,665 28,819 
	Total Operating Revenues 32,665 28,819 


	OPERATING EXPENSES Instruction Research Public Service Academic Support Student Services Auxiliary Programs Institutional Support Operation and Maintenance of Plant Student Aid Other Operating Expenses Total Operating Expenses (Note 12) 
	OPERATING EXPENSES Instruction Research Public Service Academic Support Student Services Auxiliary Programs Institutional Support Operation and Maintenance of Plant Student Aid Other Operating Expenses Total Operating Expenses (Note 12) 
	OPERATING EXPENSES Instruction Research Public Service Academic Support Student Services Auxiliary Programs Institutional Support Operation and Maintenance of Plant Student Aid Other Operating Expenses Total Operating Expenses (Note 12) 
	16,811 180 5,221 10,689 3,205 7,693 10,386 3,780 4,833 4,109 66,907 
	16,673 354 3,382 7,829 3,144 8,029 10,087 3,666 4,529 3,963 61,656 

	Operating Loss 
	Operating Loss 
	(34,242) 
	(32,837) 

	NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) Government Appropriations (Note 13) 23,037 22,227 Financial Aid Grants 7,751 6,836 Gifts 635 587 Investment Activity (Note 11) 691 1,084 Loss on Sale of Assets, Net -(10) Interest Expense (717) (1,033) Other Nonoperating Items 631 732 Net Nonoperating Revenues 32,028 30,423 
	NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) Government Appropriations (Note 13) 23,037 22,227 Financial Aid Grants 7,751 6,836 Gifts 635 587 Investment Activity (Note 11) 691 1,084 Loss on Sale of Assets, Net -(10) Interest Expense (717) (1,033) Other Nonoperating Items 631 732 Net Nonoperating Revenues 32,028 30,423 


	Loss Before Other Revenues (2,214) (2,414) 
	Debt Service Appropriations (Note 13) Capital Grants and Gifts Total Other Revenues 
	Debt Service Appropriations (Note 13) Capital Grants and Gifts Total Other Revenues 
	Debt Service Appropriations (Note 13) Capital Grants and Gifts Total Other Revenues 
	638 10,027 10,665 
	638 3,388 4,026 

	Increase In Net Position 
	Increase In Net Position 
	8,451 
	1,612 


	NET POSITION 
	NET POSITION 

	Beginning Balance, Restated 58,151 56,539 
	Ending Balance $ 66,602 $ 58,151 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
	Sect
	P
	Figure


	EOU FOUNDATION STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 
	For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 2019 
	CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 
	CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 
	CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 
	(In thousands) 

	REVENUES 
	REVENUES 

	Contributions 
	Contributions 
	$ 
	469 $ 
	406 

	Investment Income (Loss), Net 
	Investment Income (Loss), Net 
	26 
	46 

	Net Assets Released From Restrictions 
	Net Assets Released From Restrictions 
	713 
	806 

	Donor Requested Transfers 
	Donor Requested Transfers 
	2 
	(3) 

	Other Revenues 
	Other Revenues 
	216 
	193 


	Total Revenues 1,426 1,448 
	EXPENSES 
	EXPENSES 
	EXPENSES 

	University Support 
	University Support 
	707 
	808 

	General and Administrative 
	General and Administrative 
	249 
	267 

	Fundraising Support 
	Fundraising Support 
	306 
	396 

	Total Expenses 
	Total Expenses 
	1,262 
	1,471 

	Increase (Decrease) In Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 
	Increase (Decrease) In Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 
	164 
	(23) 


	Beginning Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 1,084 1,106 
	Ending Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 1,248 1,083 
	CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 
	CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 
	CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 

	REVENUES 
	REVENUES 

	Grants, Bequests and Gifts 
	Grants, Bequests and Gifts 
	1,217 
	870 

	Investment Income (Loss), Net 
	Investment Income (Loss), Net 
	1,192 
	1,722 

	Donor Requested Transfers 
	Donor Requested Transfers 
	(2) 
	3 

	Other Revenues 
	Other Revenues 
	215 
	170 

	Net Assets Released from Restrictions 
	Net Assets Released from Restrictions 
	(713) 
	(806) 

	Increase In Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 
	Increase In Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 
	1,909 
	1,959 


	Beginning Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 16,809 14,851 
	Ending Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 18,718 16,810 
	Increase In Total Net Assets 2,073 1,936 
	Beginning Balance, Total Net Assets 17,893 15,957 
	Ending Balance, Total Net Assets $ 19,966 $ 17,893 
	The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
	STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
	STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 



	EASTERN OREGON UNIVERSITY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
	EASTERN OREGON UNIVERSITY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
	For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 2020 
	as Restated 
	as Restated 
	as Restated 

	(In thousands) 
	(In thousands) 

	CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
	CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

	Tuition and Fees 
	Tuition and Fees 
	$ 
	19,937 $ 18,031 

	Grants and Contracts 
	Grants and Contracts 
	5,691 
	5,157 

	Educational Department Sales and Services 
	Educational Department Sales and Services 
	264 
	288 

	Auxiliary Enterprises Operations 
	Auxiliary Enterprises Operations 
	3,930 
	5,784 

	Payments to Employees for Compensation and Benefits 
	Payments to Employees for Compensation and Benefits 
	(38,432) 
	(38,350) 

	Payments to Suppliers 
	Payments to Suppliers 
	(12,706) 
	(10,722) 

	Student Financial Aid 
	Student Financial Aid 
	(5,175) 
	(4,107) 

	Other Operating Receipts 
	Other Operating Receipts 
	452 
	594 

	Fiduciary Activities -Direct Student Loan Receipts 
	Fiduciary Activities -Direct Student Loan Receipts 
	14,042 
	13,861 

	Fiduciary Activities -Direct Student Loan Disbursements 
	Fiduciary Activities -Direct Student Loan Disbursements 
	(14,012) 
	(13,862) 

	Fiduciary Activities -External Scholarship Awards and Other Receipts 
	Fiduciary Activities -External Scholarship Awards and Other Receipts 
	1,828 
	1,892 

	Fiduciary Activities -External Scholarship Awards and Other Disbursements 
	Fiduciary Activities -External Scholarship Awards and Other Disbursements 
	(1,789) 
	(1,917) 

	Net Cash Used by Operating Activities 
	Net Cash Used by Operating Activities 
	(25,970) 
	(23,351) 


	CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES Government Appropriations 23,037 22,227 Financial Aid Grants 7,751 6,836 Gifts 635 587 Perkins Loan Program Repayment to Federal Government (122) (344) Other Noncapital Financing Receipts 402 266 
	Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 31,703 29,572 
	CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
	CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
	CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

	Debt Service Appropriations 
	Debt Service Appropriations 
	638 
	638 

	Capital Grants and Gifts 
	Capital Grants and Gifts 
	9,114 
	3,247 

	Sales of Capital Assets 
	Sales of Capital Assets 
	116 
	35 

	Purchases of Capital Assets 
	Purchases of Capital Assets 
	(10,235) 
	(3,376) 

	Interest Payments on Capital Debt 
	Interest Payments on Capital Debt 
	(847) 
	(1,022) 

	Principal Payments on Capital Debt 
	Principal Payments on Capital Debt 
	(1,619) 
	(1,525) 

	Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities 
	Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities 
	(2,833) 
	(2,003) 


	CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
	CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
	CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

	Net Sales (Purchases) of Investments 
	Net Sales (Purchases) of Investments 
	(6,564) 
	2,542 

	Income on Investments and Cash Balances 
	Income on Investments and Cash Balances 
	459 
	949 


	Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (6,105) 3,491 
	NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (3,205) 7,709 
	CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
	CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
	CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

	Beginning Balance 
	Beginning Balance 
	16,369 
	8,660 

	Ending Balance 
	Ending Balance 
	$ 
	13,164 
	$ 
	16,369 


	The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
	STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
	EASTERN OREGON UNIVERSITY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, CONT 
	For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 2020 
	as Restated 
	as Restated 
	as Restated 

	(In thousands) 
	(In thousands) 

	RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USED BY 
	RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USED BY 

	OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
	OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

	Operating Loss 
	Operating Loss 
	$ 
	(34,242) $ (32,837) 

	Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash Used by 
	Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash Used by 

	Operating Activities: 
	Operating Activities: 

	Depreciation Expense 
	Depreciation Expense 
	4,663 4,554 

	Fiduciary Student Loans 
	Fiduciary Student Loans 
	30 (1) 

	Fiduciary Scholarships 
	Fiduciary Scholarships 
	39 (25) 

	Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 
	Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 

	Accounts Receivable 
	Accounts Receivable 
	(689) (213) 

	Notes Receivable 
	Notes Receivable 
	(1) 672 

	Leases 
	Leases 
	(1,120) (29) 

	Inventories 
	Inventories 
	2 8 

	Prepaid Expenses 
	Prepaid Expenses 
	(8) (25) 

	Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 
	Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 
	1,245 1,149 

	Long-Term Liabilities 
	Long-Term Liabilities 
	20 (16) 

	Unearned Revenue 
	Unearned Revenue 
	(581) 605 

	Net Pension Liability and Related Deferrals 
	Net Pension Liability and Related Deferrals 
	3,962 2,854 

	OPEB Asset/(Liability) and Related Deferrals 
	OPEB Asset/(Liability) and Related Deferrals 
	710 (47) 


	NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (25,970) $ (23,351) 
	NONCASH INVESTING, NONCAPITAL FINANCING, AND CAPITAL AND 
	RELATED FINANCING TRANSACTIONS 
	Capital Assets Acquired by Incurring Lease Obligations $ 152 $ 24 Capital Assets Acquired by Gifts-in-Kind 1 Change in Fair Value of Investments Recognized as a Component of
	-

	 Investment Activity 73 (67) Gain on Sale of Investments Recognized as a Component of Investment Activity 159 202 
	The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

	NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
	NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
	1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
	1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
	A. REPORTING ENTITY 
	A. REPORTING ENTITY 
	Eastern Oregon University (EOU, university) is governed by the Eastern Oregon University Board of Trustees (Board), a citizen board appointed by the Governor with confirmation by the Oregon State Senate. EOU is located in La Grande, Oregon. 
	The financial reporting entity includes EOU and the EOU Foundation (foundation) as a discretely presented component unit under the guidelines established by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 39, 
	-
	-

	Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units. Discretely presented means that the statements are included separately in the financial report. See Note 20 EOU Foundation for additional information relating to this component unit. 
	-

	The Governor of the State of Oregon (state) appoints the EOU Board and because EOU receives some financial support from the state, EOU is a discretely presented component unit and is included in the state’s annual comprehensive financial report. 


	B. FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION 
	B. FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION 
	B. FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION 
	EOU financial accounting records are maintained in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed in applicable pronouncements of the GASB. The financial statement presentation required by GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for Public Colleges and Universities—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 34, modified by GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, provides a comprehensive, entity-wide p
	In preparing the financial statements, interfund transfers between university funds, and internal revenues and expenses associated with self-supporting auxiliary and service center operations have been eliminated. Unless otherwise stated, dollars are presented in thousands. 
	-
	-

	Financial statements of the foundation for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are discretely presented because of the difference in its reporting model. The foundation’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB). As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue 
	Financial statements of the foundation for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are discretely presented because of the difference in its reporting model. The foundation’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB). As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue 
	-

	criteria and presentation. Accordingly, those financial statements have been reported on separate pages following the respective counterpart financial statements of the university. No modifications have been made to the foundation’s financial information included in the university’s financial report. 
	-




	C. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
	C. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
	For financial reporting purposes, EOU is considered a special-purpose government engaged only in business-type activities. Accordingly, the EOU financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred. 
	-
	-

	Newly Implemented Accounting Standards 
	EOU implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. GASB Statement No. 87 improves the accounting and financial reporting for leases.  Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, while a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources. This Statement substantially impacts the university’s lease accounting and reporting.  Previously, the university reported capital leases as a capital asset and a long-t
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Upcoming Accounting Standards 
	In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements. GASB Statement No. 96 provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information technology arrangement (SBITAs) for government end users and is effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) pro
	-
	-
	-
	-


	D. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
	D. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
	Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand, cash and investments held by the state in the Oregon Short-Term Fund (OSTF), and cash held by U.S. Bank as required by the U.S. Department of Education for Title IV funds. 

	E. INVESTMENTS 
	E. INVESTMENTS 
	Investments are reported at fair value as determined by market prices. Unrealized gains or losses on investments are reported as investment activity in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. 
	Investments are classified as noncurrent assets in the Statement of Net Position. 
	-


	F. RECEIVABLES 
	F. RECEIVABLES 
	Accounts receivable consists primarily of tuition and fee charges to students and auxiliary enterprise services provided to students, faculty and staff. Accounts receivable for tuition and fee charges are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Grants and contracts receivable include amounts due from federal, state and local governments, or private sources, in connection with reimbursement of allowable expenditures made pursuant to the uni
	-
	-
	-

	Notes receivable consist primarily of student loans receivable due from student loans administered by the university. 

	G. INVENTORIES 
	G. INVENTORIES 
	Inventories are recorded at cost, with cost being generally determined on a first-in, first-out or average basis. Inventories consist primarily of supplies in storerooms and physical plant stores. 
	-

	H. CAPITAL ASSETS 
	Capital assets are recorded at cost on the date acquired or at acquisition value on the date donated. EOU capitalizes equipment with unit costs of five thousand dollars or more and an estimated useful life of greater than one year. EOU capitalizes real property expenditures that increase the functionality and/or extend the useful life of the real property if total expenditures exceed the capitalization thresholds of $50 to $100, depending on the type of real property. Intangible assets valued in excess of $
	-
	-
	-

	Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally 15 to 50 years for buildings, 10 to 20 years for infrastructure and land improvements, 10 years for library books and 5 to 11 years for equipment. Amortization terms of intangible assets vary depending on the factors relating to the specific asset. Depreciation is not applied to land, museum collections, works of art or historical treasures, or library special collections. 
	-

	I. LEASES 
	The university determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Lessee arrangements are included in lease assets and lease liabilities in the statements of net position. Lease assets represent the university’s control of the right to use an underlying asset for the lease term, as specified in the contract, in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Lease assets are recognized at the commencement date based on the initial measurement of the lease liability, plus any payments made to the lessor at or b
	-
	-
	-

	Lessor arrangements are included in lease receivables and deferred inflows of resources in the statements of net position. Lease receivables represent the university’s claim to receive lease payments over the lease term, as specified in the contract, in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Lease receivables are recognized at commencement date based on the present 
	Lessor arrangements are included in lease receivables and deferred inflows of resources in the statements of net position. Lease receivables represent the university’s claim to receive lease payments over the lease term, as specified in the contract, in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Lease receivables are recognized at commencement date based on the present 
	value of expected lease payments over the lease term, reduced by any provision for estimated uncollectible amounts. Interest revenue is recognized ratably over the contract term. Deferred inflows of resources related to leases are recognized at the commencement date based on the initial measurement of the lease receivable, plus any payments received from the lessee at or before the commencement of the lease term that relate to future periods, less any lease incentives paid to, or on behalf of, the lessee at
	-



	J. UNEARNED REVENUES 
	J. UNEARNED REVENUES 
	J. UNEARNED REVENUES 
	Unearned revenues include amounts received for tuition and fees, grants and contracts, lease income and auxiliary enterprises activities in which cash has been received, but revenues will be earned in subsequent fiscal year(s). 
	-


	K. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
	K. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
	EOU accrues a liability for vacation leave and other compensated absences that were earned but not used during the current or prior fiscal year for which employees can receive compensation in a future period. An estimate is made to allocate this liability between its current and noncurrent components. 
	-
	-

	Sick leave is recorded as an expense when paid. There is no payout provision for unused sick leave and no liability exists for terminated employees. 

	L. NET PENSION LIABILITY 
	L. NET PENSION LIABILITY 
	The net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense are actuarially determined at the system-wide plan level and are allocated to employers based on their proportionate share. EOU is included in the proportionate share for all state agencies. The university’s proportionate share is allocated to EOU by the Oregon State Department of Administrative Services. 
	-



	M. NET OPEB (ASSET)/LIABILITY 
	M. NET OPEB (ASSET)/LIABILITY 
	M. NET OPEB (ASSET)/LIABILITY 
	The university reports their proportionate share of the net PERS RHIA OPEB asset, net PERS RHIPA OPEB liability and the total PEBB OPEB liability along with the associated deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources.  See Note 15 Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) for a detailed description of each plan and the proportionate share methodology for each. 
	-


	N. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
	Deferred outflows of resources represent the consumption of net position in one period that is applicable to future periods. These deferred outflows have a positive effect on net position that is similar to assets, but they are not considered assets. Deferred inflows of resources represent the acquisition of net position that is applicable to future periods. These deferred inflows have a negative effect on net position that is similar to liabilities, but they are not considered liabilities. Deferred outflow
	-


	O. NET POSITION 
	O. NET POSITION 
	EOU’s net position is classified as follows: 
	Net Investment in Capital Assets 
	Net investment in capital assets represents the total investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, less outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets. 
	-

	Restricted – Nonexpendable 
	Restricted nonexpendable consists of endowment funds in which donors have stipulated, as a condition of the gift instrument, that the principal is to be maintained inviolate and in perpetuity, and invested for the purpose of producing present and future income. The income may either be expended or, depending on the terms of the gift instrument, added to principal. 
	-
	-

	Restricted – Expendable 
	Restricted expendable includes resources which EOU is legally or contractually obligated to spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by external parties. 
	-

	Unrestricted 
	Unrestricted are resources that may be used at the discretion of the Board. 

	P. RESTRICTED/UNRESTRICTED RESOURCES 
	P. RESTRICTED/UNRESTRICTED RESOURCES 
	The university has no formal policy addressing which resources to use when both restricted and unrestricted net position are available for the same purpose. University personnel decide which resources to use at the time expenses are incurred. Factors used to determine which resources to use include relative priorities of the university in accordance with the university’s strategic initiatives and externally imposed matching requirements of certain restricted funds. Major capital purchases are many times spl
	-
	-
	-


	Q. ENDOWMENTS 
	Q. ENDOWMENTS 
	The university’s endowment assets are invested and managed by the EOU Foundation in accordance with a fund management agreement between the university and the foundation. The endowment investments are invested with the objectives of long-term capital appreciation and stable but growing income stream. Per the agreement, the university policy is to distribute 5.5 percent of true endowment earnings, in quarterly installments. Earnings of quasi endowments are expended as needed. All endowments are managed for l
	-
	-

	For the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the net amount of appreciation available for authorization for expenditure was $671 and $510, respectively. 
	Nonexpendable Endowments on the Statement of Net Position of $554 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, represents the original corpus of true endowment funds and does not include the accumulated gains of those endowments. The EOU Foundation manages the endowment funds, however the assets belong to EOU and both the corpus and the net undistributed appreciation are included in the Statement of Net Position for EOU as investments. 
	-


	R. INCOME TAXES 
	R. INCOME TAXES 
	EOU is treated as a governmental entity for tax purposes. As such, EOU is generally not subject to federal and state income taxes. However, EOU remains subject to income taxes on any income that is derived from a trade or business regularly carried on and not in furtherance of the purpose for which it was granted exemption from income taxes. No income tax is recorded for the year ended June 30, 2021, because there is not estimated to be any amount of taxes on such unrelated business income for EOU. 
	-


	S. REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
	S. REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
	EOU has classified its revenues and expenses as either operating or nonoperating according to the following criteria: 
	-

	Operating revenues and expenses generally have the characteristics of exchange transactions. These transactions can be defined as an exchange in which two or more entities both receive and sacrifice value, such as purchases and sales of goods or services. Examples of operating revenues include student tuition and fees, sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, most federal, state and local grants and contracts, and other operating revenues. Examples of operating expenses include employee compensation and
	-
	-

	Nonoperating revenues and expenses generally have the characteristics of nonexchange transactions. In a nonexchange transaction, EOU receives value without directly giving equal value in exchange. Examples of nonoperating revenues in
	-
	-

	clude state appropriations, nonexchange grants, gifts, and contributions. Nonoperating expenses are defined in GASB Statement No. 9, Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Non-expendable Trust Funds and Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, and GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statement - and Management Discussion and Analysis -for State and Local Governments. Examples of nonoperating expenses include interest on capital asset related debt and loss on sale of assets. 
	T. STATE SUPPORT 
	EOU receives support from the state in the form of general fund and lottery appropriations and debt service appropriations for some Oregon Department of Energy loans. See Note 13 for details on appropriations. 
	-

	In addition to appropriations, the state provides funding for plant facilities on the university’s campus. Capital projects for new facilities, capital improvements, and repair are funded by philanthropy, state-paid debt, university-paid debt and other resources. The state legislature considers projects from all seven public universities for allocation of Oregon’s bonding capacity. Funds for capital projects funded by state-paid debt are provided through grant agreements between EOU and the state. Revenue i
	-

	Facilities funded by philanthropy, state-paid debt and university-paid debt are reflected as completed assets or construction in progress in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. The obligations for the bonds issued by the state are not obligations of EOU. EOU is obligated to pay contracts for projects funded by university-paid debt. These contracts are included as current and long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. 
	-
	-

	U. ALLOWANCES 
	Student tuition and fees and campus housing revenues included in auxiliary enterprise revenues are reported net of scholarship allowances. A scholarship allowance is the difference between the university’s stated rates and charges and the amounts actually paid by students and/or third parties making payments on behalf of the students. Under this approach, scholarships awarded by the university are considered as reductions in tuition and fee revenues rather than as expenses. Additionally, certain governmenta
	-
	-
	-
	-

	To the extent that revenues from such programs are applied to tuition, fees, and other student charges, the university has reported a corresponding scholarship allowance. 
	To the extent that revenues from such programs are applied to tuition, fees, and other student charges, the university has reported a corresponding scholarship allowance. 
	EOU has three types of allowances that net into tuition and fees and housing revenues. Tuition and housing waivers, provided directly by EOU, amounted to $3,136 and $2,896 for the fiscal years ended 2021 and 2020, respectively. Revenues from financial aid programs (e.g., Pell Grants, Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants, and Oregon Opportunity Grants) used for paying student tuition and fees and campus housing was estimated to be $3,914 and $3,880 for the fiscal years ended 2021 and 2020, respectivel
	-



	V. FEDERAL STUDENT LOAN PROGRAMS 
	V. FEDERAL STUDENT LOAN PROGRAMS 
	V. FEDERAL STUDENT LOAN PROGRAMS 
	EOU receives proceeds from the Federal Direct Student Loan Program (FDSLP). GASB Statement No. 84 allows business-type activities, such as EOU, to report activities that would otherwise be considered custodial funds in EOU’s Statement of Net Position and Statement of Cash Flows as an operating activity if upon receipt, the funds are normally expected to be held for three months or less. Funds associated with the FDSLP meet this exception and are reported as such. Federal student loans received by EOU studen
	-


	W. DEPOSIT LIABILITIES 
	W. DEPOSIT LIABILITIES 
	Deposit Liabilities primarily consist of fund balances held by EOU on behalf of student groups and organizations that account for activities in the EOU accounting system and whose cash is part of the cash held on deposit with the State Treasury. 
	-



	X. PERKINS LOAN PROGRAM TERMINATION 
	X. PERKINS LOAN PROGRAM TERMINATION 
	X. PERKINS LOAN PROGRAM TERMINATION 
	EOU administers Title IV Perkins Loans for the benefit of its students. Funds for the Perkins program were initially received through Federal Capital Contributions (FCC) from the U.S. Department of Education (ED) and were supplemented with Institutional Capital Contributions (ICC). Over the years, the proportion of federal to institutional matching funds has varied, from a 90/10 split to a 75/25 split. Academic year 2017-18 was the last year in which new Perkins loans were allowed to be disbursed as Congres
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, EOU began the process of assigning the Perkins loans back to the federal government. The balance of the Perkins loans was reported 
	During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, EOU began the process of assigning the Perkins loans back to the federal government. The balance of the Perkins loans was reported 
	in Notes Receivable and in Restricted Net Position Expendable for Student Loans. Additionally, a liability was established for the amount of the remaining FCC due to the ED. The liability was reported in current and noncurrent longterm liabilities. 
	-
	-
	-



	During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, EOU completed the process of assigning all of the Perkins Loans back to the federal government. As of June 30, 2021, EOU reports no assets, liabilities or net position related to Perkins Loans balances. 

	Y. COVID-19 RELIEF FUNDING 
	Y. COVID-19 RELIEF FUNDING 
	The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act, passed by Congress in March 2020, provides budgetary relief to higher education institutions through numerous provisions. Of the $30.75 billion allotted to the Education Stabilization Fund through the CARES Act, Congress set aside approximately $14.25 billion for the Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund (HEERF). Due to the different formulas and discretionary allocations Congress created within the CARES Act, the HEERF is comprised of multipl
	-
	-
	-

	The Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRRSAA) was approved by Congress in December 2020 as part of the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2021. The law authorized $23 billion through the Education Stabilization Fund specifically for higher education. These funds were allocated to institutions using the HEERF in the CARES Act and this portion of relief funding is commonly referred to as HEERF II. The CRRSA Act requires institutions to provide the same amount in emergency aid to
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	In March 2021, Congress passed additional COVID relief funding in the American Rescue Plan (ARP). This law authorized $39.6 billion to higher education through the Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund (known as HEERF III). Similar to the CARES Act, institutions must spend at least 50% of their allocation on emergency financial aid grants directly to students. Institutions are required to spend a “reasonable and necessary” amount of institutional funds on monitoring and controlling the spread of COVID-19 o
	In March 2021, Congress passed additional COVID relief funding in the American Rescue Plan (ARP). This law authorized $39.6 billion to higher education through the Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund (known as HEERF III). Similar to the CARES Act, institutions must spend at least 50% of their allocation on emergency financial aid grants directly to students. Institutions are required to spend a “reasonable and necessary” amount of institutional funds on monitoring and controlling the spread of COVID-19 o
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	es. Institutions who received HEERF I or HEERF II funds were automatically awarded HEERF III funds. 

	As of June 30, 2021, total COVID relief funding awarded to EOU under HEERF II and HEERF III was $7,410. EOU was awarded $3,042 for the student aid allocation. As of June 30, 2021, EOU had received and dispersed $1,172 directly to students as emergency financial aid grants. Additionally, $271 of the prior year award was disbursed. For fiscal year 2022, $1,870 remains to be received and dispersed. EOU recognized nonoperating financial aid grant revenue and student aid operating expense for the receipt and dis
	-
	-
	-
	-

	EOU was also awarded $127 through the Governor’s Emergency Education Relief (GEER) Fund. As of June 30, 2021, $57 had been received and distributed as grants to students and $70 remained available for institutional support. 
	-

	As of June 30, 2020, the total CARES Act funding awarded to EOU was $1,216. EOU was awarded $579 for the student portion allocation and all funds awarded were received as of June 30, 2020. Of the student allocation, $308 was dispersed directly to students as emergency financial aid grants as of June 30, 2020 and $271 remained to be dispersed in fiscal year 2021. EOU recognized nonoperating financial aid grant revenue and student aid operating expense for the total amount dispersed to students and recorded t
	-
	-
	-
	-

	EOU was awarded a matching $579 for the institutional portion allocation. Due to the timing of when eligible expenditures were identified, EOU did not draw down any of the institutional portion funds as of June 30, 2020. EOU recorded a receivable and recognized nonoperating revenue in other nonoperating items in the amount $264 for expenditures incurred in fiscal year 2020 which were identified as allowable 
	EOU was awarded a matching $579 for the institutional portion allocation. Due to the timing of when eligible expenditures were identified, EOU did not draw down any of the institutional portion funds as of June 30, 2020. EOU recorded a receivable and recognized nonoperating revenue in other nonoperating items in the amount $264 for expenditures incurred in fiscal year 2020 which were identified as allowable 
	-
	-
	-
	-

	under the institutional portion of the HEERF. Expenditures identified as allowable primarily relate to foregone auxiliary revenues in housing and dining, student activities, health services, and parking attributed to the pandemic-caused campus closure. As of June 30, 2020, $315 remained available to EOU for reimbursement of eligible expenditures incurred in fiscal year 2021. 
	-
	-
	-


	In addition to the student and institutional portions, EOU was awarded $58 through the Strengthening Institutions Program (SIP). No amounts from this program were received or accrued as of June 30, 2020. 
	Z. USE OF ESTIMATES 
	The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that could affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
	-

	AA. RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR PERIODS 
	The implementation of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, required the restatement of all prior periods presented in the financial statements for leasing activity of the university. Previously, EOU had capital assets and operating lease revenues and expenses. As a result of the implementation, EOU restated 2020 beginning net position on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position by $51. Restatement of beginning net position: 
	-
	-
	-

	June 30, 
	June 30, 
	June 30, 

	2020 
	2020 

	Beginning Net Position, as Previously Reported 
	Beginning Net Position, as Previously Reported 
	$ 
	56,488 

	Retroactive GASB 87 Implementation 
	Retroactive GASB 87 Implementation 
	51 

	Beginning Net Position, Restated 
	Beginning Net Position, Restated 
	$ 
	56,539 

	2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
	2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 


	The majority of EOU’s cash and investments were held in custody with the Oregon State Treasury (OST) during fiscal years 2021 and 2020. The OST manages these invested assets through commingled investment pools. The operating funds of EOU are commingled with cash and investments from five other public universities in Oregon and referred to collectively as the Public University Fund (PUF). The investments held in the PUF are managed by the OST and administered by the statutorily defined designated university,
	-
	-
	-

	In general, deposits and investment securities as described below have exposure to various risks such as credit, concentration of credit, custodial credit, interest rate and foreign currency. Although the objective of the investment pool is to preserve capital within defined risk parameters, it is likely that the value of the investment securities will fluctuate during short periods of time, and it is possible that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements. For mo
	In general, deposits and investment securities as described below have exposure to various risks such as credit, concentration of credit, custodial credit, interest rate and foreign currency. Although the objective of the investment pool is to preserve capital within defined risk parameters, it is likely that the value of the investment securities will fluctuate during short periods of time, and it is possible that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements. For mo
	-
	-

	For full disclosure regarding cash and investments managed by the OST, a copy of the OST audited annual financial report may be obtained by writing to the Oregon State Treasury, 350 Winter St. NE, Suite 100, Salem, OR 97301-3896 or via the internet at: / pages/treasury-news-reports.aspx#annualrep 
	https://www.oregon.gov/treasury/news-data

	A. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
	Cash and Cash Equivalents are classified as current and non-current which include both restricted and unrestricted cash and are summarized at June 30, 2021 and 2020 as follows: 
	June 30, June 30, 2021 2020 
	Current 
	Unrestricted $ 9,809 $ 13,011 
	Restricted For: 
	Gifts, Grants and Contracts -282 
	Student Aid 57 161 
	Debt Service -27 
	Payroll Withholdings 2,927 2,072 
	Student Groups and Campus
	 Organizations 108 106 
	US Bank -254 
	Petty Cash 6 6 
	Total Current 12,907 15,919 
	Noncurrent 
	Debt Service 257 450 Total Noncurrent 257 450 
	Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 
	$ 13,164 
	$ 16,369 

	Noncurrent, unrestricted cash consisted of student building fee funds and cash in capital construction funds. Prior to July 1, 2015, the student building fee funds were restricted for future debt service payments or other capital project expenses. The Board of Trustees now has spending authority over these funds, which are no longer restricted. The portion of the student building fee funds that will be used for debt service payable in 2022 is reported as current cash. 
	-

	Deposits with State Treasury 
	EOU maintains the majority of its cash balances on deposit with the OST. These deposits at the OST are held, on a pooled basis as described above, in the Oregon Short-Term Fund (OSTF). The OSTF is a short-term cash and investment pool available for use by all state agencies or by agreement for related agencies, such as EOU. The OST invests these deposits in high-grade short-term investment securities. While the university is not 
	EOU maintains the majority of its cash balances on deposit with the OST. These deposits at the OST are held, on a pooled basis as described above, in the Oregon Short-Term Fund (OSTF). The OSTF is a short-term cash and investment pool available for use by all state agencies or by agreement for related agencies, such as EOU. The OST invests these deposits in high-grade short-term investment securities. While the university is not 
	-

	required by statute to collateralize deposits, they do have a contractual obligation with the OST to collateralize deposits within 24 hours of receipt. At the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, EOU cash and cash equivalents on deposit at OST totaled $13,158 and $16,109, respectively. 


	Other Deposits 
	For the year ended June 30, 2021, EOU closed out the Perkins loan program and the associated U.S. Bank account for Title IV Perkins Loans. For the year ended June 30, 2020, EOU had cash at U.S. Bank held for Title IV Perkins Loans of $254. Additionally, for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, EOU had vault and petty cash balances of $6. 
	-

	Custodial Credit Risk—Deposits 
	Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a financial institution failure, cash deposits will not be returned to a depositor. The university and state do not have formal policies regarding custodial credit risk for deposits. However, banking regulations and Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) Chapter 295 establish the insurance and collateral requirements for deposits in the OSTF. EOU cash balances held on deposit at the OST are invested continuously, therefore custodial credit risk exposure to the O
	-

	U.S. Bank are collateralized, therefore invested continuously, resulting in low custodial risk. 
	Foreign Currency Risk—Deposits 
	Deposits in foreign currency run the risk of changing value due to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. OST deposits are in 
	U.S.
	U.S.
	U.S.
	 currency and therefore not exposed to foreign currency risk. 

	B. 
	B. 
	INVESTMENTS 


	EOU’s operating funds are invested in the PUF. University investments in the PUF are invested in the Core Bond Fund (CBF) managed by the OST. The CBF invests primarily in intermediate-term fixed income securities and is managed with an investment objective to maximize total return (i.e., principal and income) over an intermediate time horizon within stipulated risk parameters. The CBF is actively managed to maintain an average duration of four to five years, through a diversified portfolio of quality, inves
	-
	-

	EOU endowments are invested and managed by the EOU Foundation. These endowment assets are invested in the EOU Foundation’s pooled endowment fund (Fund) and directed by external investment managers. The Fund is expected to operate in perpetuity and the investments are invested with a long-term horizon while maintaining a prudent level of risk. See Note 1.Q for additional information regarding EOU endowments. 
	All investments are managed as a prudent investor would do, exercising reasonable care, skill and caution. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is at least 
	All investments are managed as a prudent investor would do, exercising reasonable care, skill and caution. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is at least 
	reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment securities could occur in the near term and such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the Statement of Net Position. 

	Significant events in domestic and international investment markets or aggressive action by the Federal Open Market Committee to influence both short and long-term interest rates contribute to price volatility. Consequently, the fair value of EOU’s operating and endowment investments is exposed to price volatility which could result in a substantial change in the fair value of certain investments from the amounts reported as of June 30, 2021 and 2020. 
	-

	Investments are all classified as noncurrent and include both restricted and unrestricted funds. Earnings on investments from restricted fund sources are spent in accordance with the restrictions of the funding source. At June 30, 2021, EOU had $16,361 in investments; $14,685 invested through the PUF CBF and $1,676 of restricted endowments managed by the foundation. At June 30, 2020, EOU had $9,565 in investments; $8,110 invested through the PUF CBF and $1,455 of restricted endowments managed by the foundat
	Investments of the EOU discretely presented component unit 
	are summarized as follows: 
	are summarized as follows: 
	are summarized as follows: 

	Fair Value at December 31, Investment Type: Corporate Equity Mutual Funds Corporate Debt Mutual Funds Money Market Funds Total Investments 
	Fair Value at December 31, Investment Type: Corporate Equity Mutual Funds Corporate Debt Mutual Funds Money Market Funds Total Investments 
	2020 $ 9,419 5,496 984 $ 15,899 
	2019 $ 8,087 5,683 94 $ 13,864 


	Credit Risk 
	Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of an investment fails to fulfill its obligations. EOU has separate investment policies for its operating and endowment assets. As of June 30, 2021, approximately 94.5 percent of investments in the PUF CBF were subject to credit risk reporting. PUF CBF investments totaled $270,091, of which EOU owned $14,685 or 5.4 percent. Fixed income securities rated by the credit agencies as lower medium to high quality, indicating the issuer has a strong capacity to pay principal
	-
	-

	As of June 30, 2020, approximately 91.5 percent of investments in the PUF CBF were subject to credit risk reporting. PUF CBF investments totaled $192,396, of which EOU owned $8,110 or 4.2 percent. Fixed income securities rated by the credit agencies as lower medium to high quality, indicating the issuer has a strong capacity to pay principal and interest when due, totaled $120,344 at June 30, 2020. Fixed income 
	As of June 30, 2020, approximately 91.5 percent of investments in the PUF CBF were subject to credit risk reporting. PUF CBF investments totaled $192,396, of which EOU owned $8,110 or 4.2 percent. Fixed income securities rated by the credit agencies as lower medium to high quality, indicating the issuer has a strong capacity to pay principal and interest when due, totaled $120,344 at June 30, 2020. Fixed income 
	-

	securities which have not been evaluated by the rating agencies totaled $55,753 at June 30, 2020. Of the EOU endowments managed by the foundation and allocated to fixed income, all investments were held in mutual funds which have not been evaluated by the rating agencies. 

	Custodial Credit Risk—Investments 
	Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the university will not be able to recover the value of an investment or collateral securities in the possession of an outside party. The OST has no formal policy regarding the holding of securities by a custodian or counterparty. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the university’s investments in the PUF CBF were exposed to custodial credit risk indirectly through the OST. 
	-

	Concentration of Credit Risk 
	Concentration of credit risk refers to potential losses if total investments are concentrated with one or few issuers. The PUF policy for reducing this risk for fixed income securities is that, with the exception of U.S. Government and Agency issues, no more than five percent of the bond portfolio, at par value, will be invested in securities of a single issuer or no more than three percent of the individual issue. The PUF held no securities from a single issuer that exceeded five percent of the bond portfo
	Foreign Currency Risk—Investments 
	Foreign currency risk is the risk that investments may lose value due to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Per PUF investment policy, all investments are to be in U.S. dollar denominated securities, therefore no amounts of the PUF CBF investments had reportable foreign currency risk at June 30, 2021 or 2020. 
	-

	The university’s endowments are invested by the foundation. Per the foundation’s investment policy, a maximum of 32 percent of equities and 10 percent of bonds may be invested in foreign securities, leading to foreign currency exposure. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, $300, or 17.9 percent, and $254, or 17.5 percent, were held subject to foreign currency risk. 
	-

	Interest Rate Risk 
	Investments in fixed income securities are subject to the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of the investments. As of June 30, 2021, securities in the PUF CBF held subject to interest rate risk totaling $255,110 had an average duration of 4.04 years. Additionally, securities of the endowment investments held subject to interest rate risk totaling $629 had an average duration of 4.77 years. As of June 30, 2020, securities in the PUF CBF held subject to interest rate ris
	-

	Fair Value Measurement 
	Fair Value Measurement 
	Investments are reported at estimated fair value as determined by OST, based on a fair value hierarchy which prioritizes the input techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3 measurements: 
	Level 1 – Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
	Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted market prices that are observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active; and 
	Level 3 – Inputs that are unobservable. These are only used if relevant Level 1 and Level 2 inputs are not available. 
	Inputs are used in applying valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that market participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk. In addition to the underlying reported net asset values (NAV), which generally serve as the primary valuation input, other inputs may include liquidity factors and broad credit data. An investment’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. 
	-

	In accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, investments valued at net asset value per share are not required to be leveled as described previously. The fair value of EOU’s investments in the PUF CBF at June 30, 2021 and 2020 totaled $14,685 and $8,110, respectively. 
	-

	The university’s investments at the foundation are all level 3 since the underlying inputs are unobservable. 
	The component unit investments are all valued using level 1 inputs as of December 31, 2020 and 2019. 


	C. SECURITIES LENDING 
	C. SECURITIES LENDING 
	C. SECURITIES LENDING 
	In accordance with the state investment policies, the state participates in securities lending transactions. The OST has, through a securities lending agreement, authorized State Street Bank and Trust Company (State Street) to lend the state’s securities pursuant to a form of loan agreement. Both the state and borrowers maintain the right to terminate all securities lending transactions on demand. EOU’s cash on deposit with the OST is subject to securities lending. There were no significant violations of th
	-
	-

	During the year, State Street had the authority to lend short-term, fixed income, and equity securities and receive as collateral U.S. dollar and foreign currency cash, U.S. government and agency securities, and foreign sovereign debt of Organization of Economic Cooperation and Development countries. Borrowers were required to deliver collateral for each loan equal to not less than 102 percent of the market value of the loaned 
	-
	-

	U.S. security. The custodian did not have the ability to pledge or 
	U.S. security. The custodian did not have the ability to pledge or 
	sell collateral securities absent a borrower default, and during the year the state did impose restrictions on the amount of the loans that the custodian made on its behalf. The OST is fully indemnified by the custodian against losses due to borrower default. There were no losses during the year from the failure of borrowers to return loaned securities. 


	State Street, as lending agent, has created a fund to reinvest cash collateral received on behalf of the OSTF and Oregon state agencies and related agencies, including EOU. As permitted under the fund’s Declaration of Trust (Declaration), participant purchases and redemptions are transacted at $1 per unit (“constant value”) based on the amortized cost of the fund’s investments. Accordingly, the securities lending collateral held and the obligation to the lending agent are both stated at constant value on th
	-

	The maturities of investments made with the cash collateral generally do not match the maturities of the securities loaned. Since the securities loaned are callable on demand by either the lender or borrower, the life of the loans at June 30, 2021 and 2020, is effectively one day. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the state had no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amounts owed to borrowers exceeded the amounts borrowers owed to the state. 
	The fair value of the university’s share of securities lending balances on loan as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 comprised the 
	following: 
	following: 
	following: 

	June 30, 
	June 30, 
	June 30, 

	2021
	2021
	2020 

	Investment Type 
	Investment Type 

	U.S. Treasury and Agency Securities $ 302 
	U.S. Treasury and Agency Securities $ 302 
	$ 527 

	Domestic Fixed Income Securities 237 
	Domestic Fixed Income Securities 237 
	53 

	Total 
	Total 
	$ 539 
	$ 580 


	The fair value of the university’s share of total cash and securities collateral received as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, was $550 and $592, respectively. The fair value of the university’s share of investments purchased with cash collateral as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, was $247 and $339 respectively. 
	-


	3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
	3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
	Accounts Receivable comprised the following: 
	June 30, June 30, 2021 2020 
	June 30, June 30, 2021 2020 

	Student Tuition and Fees $ 4,050 $ 4,445 Construction Reimbursements from State 1,917 1,005 Auxiliary Enterprises and Other 
	Operating Activities 357 270 Federal Grants and Contracts 2,105 545 State, Other Government, and Private
	 Gifts, Grants and Contracts 889 455 Component Unit 12 2 Other 32 2 
	9,362 6,724 Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (1,172) (1,055) Accounts Receivable, Net $ 8,190 $ 5,669 

	4. NOTES RECEIVABLE 
	4. NOTES RECEIVABLE 
	During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, EOU completed the process of assigning all of the Perkins Loans back to the federal government. As of June 30, 2021, EOU reports no notes receivable related to the Perkins program. See Note 1, Section X for additional information. Institutional and other student loans include loans offered through the university itself and other various non-federal loan programs. EOU has provided an allowance for uncollectable loans, which in management’s opinion will absorb loans
	-

	June 30, 2021 
	June 30, 2021 
	June 30, 2021 
	June 30, 2020 

	Current 
	Current 
	Noncurrent 
	Total 
	Current 
	Noncurrent 
	Total 

	Institutional and Other 
	Institutional and Other 

	Student Loans 
	Student Loans 
	$ 
	7 
	$ 
	2 
	$ 
	9 
	$ 
	8 
	$ 2 $ 10 

	Federal Student Loans 
	Federal Student Loans 
	-
	-
	-
	3 
	14 
	17 

	TR
	7 
	2 
	9 
	11 
	16 
	27 

	Less: Allowance for Doubtful 
	Less: Allowance for Doubtful 

	Accounts 
	Accounts 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	(2) 
	(2) 

	Notes Receivable, Net 
	Notes Receivable, Net 
	$ 
	7 
	$ 
	2 
	$ 
	9 
	$ 11 
	$ 14 $ 25 

	5. CAPITAL ASSETS 
	5. CAPITAL ASSETS 


	The following schedule reflects the changes in capital assets: 
	Balance 
	Balance 
	Balance 
	Transfer 
	Retire. 
	Balance 
	Transfer 
	Retire. 
	Balance 

	June 30, 
	June 30, 
	Completed 
	And 
	June 30, 
	Completed 
	And 
	June 30, 

	2019 
	2019 
	Additions 
	Assets 
	Adjust. 
	2020 
	Additions 
	Assets 
	Adjust. 
	2021 


	Capital Assets, 
	Capital Assets, 
	Capital Assets, 

	Non-depreciable/Non-amortizable: 
	Non-depreciable/Non-amortizable: 

	Land 
	Land 
	$ 969 
	$ 
	68 
	$ 
	-
	$ 
	-
	$ 1,037 
	$ 810 
	$ 
	223 
	$ 
	-
	$ 
	2,070 

	Capitalized Collections 
	Capitalized Collections 
	339 
	-
	-
	(3) 
	336 
	-
	-
	-
	336 

	Construction in Progress 
	Construction in Progress 
	2,171 
	2,041 
	(504) 
	-
	3,708 
	7,878 
	(2,135) 
	-
	9,451 

	Total Capital Assets, 
	Total Capital Assets, 

	Non-depreciable/Non-amortizable 
	Non-depreciable/Non-amortizable 
	3,479 
	2,109 
	(504) 
	(3) 
	5,081 
	8,688 
	(1,912) 
	-
	11,857 

	Capital Assets, Depreciable/ 
	Capital Assets, Depreciable/ 

	Amortizable: 
	Amortizable: 

	Equipment 
	Equipment 
	8,030 
	234 
	-
	(35) 
	8,229 
	412 
	15 
	(496) 
	8,160 

	Library Materials 
	Library Materials 
	9,658 
	303 
	-
	(42) 
	9,919 
	307 
	-
	(21) 
	10,205 

	Buildings 
	Buildings 
	110,564 
	1,523 
	471 
	-
	112,558 
	131 
	1,436 
	(32) 
	114,093 

	Land Improvements 
	Land Improvements 
	8,735 
	13 
	-
	-
	8,748 
	30 
	-
	(13) 
	8,765 

	Improvements Other Than Buildings 
	Improvements Other Than Buildings 
	568 
	9 
	-
	-
	577 
	-
	-
	-
	577 

	Infrastructure 
	Infrastructure 
	3,315 
	-
	33 
	-
	3,348 
	780 
	461 
	19 
	4,608 

	Intangible Assets 
	Intangible Assets 
	1,870 
	-
	-
	-
	1,870 
	-
	-
	-
	1,870 

	ROU Leased Equipment 
	ROU Leased Equipment 
	172 
	24 
	-
	(30) 
	166 
	30 
	-
	(30) 
	166 

	ROU Leased Space 
	ROU Leased Space 
	165 
	-
	-
	-
	165 
	112 
	-
	(49) 
	228 

	Total Capital Assets, 
	Total Capital Assets, 

	Depreciable/Amortizable 
	Depreciable/Amortizable 
	143,077 
	2,106 
	504 
	(107) 
	145,580 
	1,802 
	1,912 
	(622) 
	148,672 

	Less Accumulated Depreciation/ 
	Less Accumulated Depreciation/ 

	Amortization for: 
	Amortization for: 

	Equipment 
	Equipment 
	(6,737) 
	(260) 
	-
	39 
	(6,958) 
	(264) 
	-
	475 
	(6,747) 

	Library Materials 
	Library Materials 
	(8,214) 
	(266) 
	-
	-
	(8,480) 
	(266) 
	-
	-
	(8,746) 

	Buildings 
	Buildings 
	(51,115) 
	(3,325) 
	-
	(9) 
	(54,449) 
	(3,387) 
	-
	-
	(57,836) 

	Land Improvements 
	Land Improvements 
	(1,807) 
	(510) 
	-
	-
	(2,317) 
	(507) 
	-
	-
	(2,824) 

	Improvements Other Than Buildings 
	Improvements Other Than Buildings 
	(451) 
	(14) 
	-
	-
	(465) 
	(14) 
	-
	-
	(479) 

	Infrastructure 
	Infrastructure 
	(2,482) 
	(94) 
	-
	-
	(2,576) 
	(120) 
	-
	-
	(2,696) 

	Intangible Assets 
	Intangible Assets 
	(1,870) 
	-
	-
	-
	(1,870) 
	-
	-
	-
	(1,870) 

	ROU Leased Equipment 
	ROU Leased Equipment 
	(57) 
	(42) 
	-
	26 
	(73) 
	(38) 
	-
	26 
	(85) 

	ROU Leased Space 
	ROU Leased Space 
	(41) 
	(43) 
	-
	-
	(84) 
	(67) 
	-
	60 
	(91) 

	Total Accumulated Depreciation/ 
	Total Accumulated Depreciation/ 

	Amortization 
	Amortization 
	(72,774) 
	(4,554) 
	-
	56 
	(77,272) 
	(4,663) 
	-
	561 
	(81,374) 

	Total Capital Assets, Net 
	Total Capital Assets, Net 
	$ 73,782 
	$ 
	(339) 
	$ 
	-
	$ 
	(54) 
	$ 73,389 
	$ 5,827 
	$ 
	-
	$ 
	(61) 
	$ 
	79,155 

	Capital Assets Summary 
	Capital Assets Summary 

	Capital Assets, Non-depreciable/ 
	Capital Assets, Non-depreciable/ 

	Non-amortizable 
	Non-amortizable 
	$ 3,479 
	$ 
	2,109 
	$ 
	(504) 
	$ 
	(3) 
	$ 5,081 
	$ 8,688 
	$ 
	(1,912) 
	$ 
	-
	$ 
	11,857 

	Capital Assets, Depreciable/ 
	Capital Assets, Depreciable/ 

	Amortizable 
	Amortizable 
	143,077 
	2,106 
	504 
	(107) 
	145,580 
	1,802 
	1,912 
	(622) 
	148,672 

	Total Cost of Capital Assets 
	Total Cost of Capital Assets 
	146,556 
	4,215 
	-
	(110) 
	150,661 
	10,490 
	-
	(622) 
	160,529 

	Less Accumulated Depreciation/ 
	Less Accumulated Depreciation/ 

	Amortization 
	Amortization 
	(72,774) 
	(4,554) 
	-
	56 
	(77,272) 
	(4,663) 
	-
	561 
	(81,374) 

	Total Capital Assets, Net 
	Total Capital Assets, Net 
	$ 73,782 
	$ 
	(339) 
	$ 
	-
	$ 
	(54) 
	$ 73,389 
	$ 5,827 
	$ 
	-
	$ 
	(61) 
	$ 
	79,155 


	6. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
	6. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
	6. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

	Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources comprised the following: 
	Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources comprised the following: 

	June 30, 
	June 30, 
	June 30, 

	2021
	2021
	2020 

	Deferred Outflows 
	Deferred Outflows 

	Pension 
	Pension 

	Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 
	Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 
	$ 2,578 
	$ 2,418 

	Change in Proportionate Share 
	Change in Proportionate Share 
	718 
	610 

	Differences Between Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 
	Differences Between Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 
	5 
	7 

	Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience 
	Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience 
	1,186 
	1,148 

	Changes in Assumptions 
	Changes in Assumptions 
	1,446 
	2,824 

	Net difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments 
	Net difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments 
	3,169 
	-

	OPEB 
	OPEB 

	Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 
	Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 
	56 
	53 

	Change in Proportionate Share 
	Change in Proportionate Share 
	135 
	19 

	Differences Between Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 
	Differences Between Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 
	4 
	5 

	Changes in Assumptions 
	Changes in Assumptions 
	26 
	27 

	Net difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments 
	Net difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments 
	19 
	-

	Total Deferred Outflows 
	Total Deferred Outflows 
	$ 9,342 
	$ 7,111 

	Deferred Inflows 
	Deferred Inflows 

	Pension 
	Pension 

	Change in Proportionate Share 
	Change in Proportionate Share 
	$ 291 
	$ 424 

	Differences Between Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 
	Differences Between Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 
	616 
	423 

	Changes in Assumptions 
	Changes in Assumptions 
	51 
	-

	Net difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments 
	Net difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments 
	-
	590 

	OPEB 
	OPEB 

	Differences Between Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 
	Differences Between Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 
	2 
	2 

	Change in Proportionate Share 
	Change in Proportionate Share 
	61 
	63 

	Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience 
	Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience 
	29 
	56 

	Changes in Assumptions 
	Changes in Assumptions 
	159 
	146 

	Net difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments 
	Net difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments 
	-
	19 

	Leases 
	Leases 
	1,359 
	2,214 

	Total Deferred Inflows 
	Total Deferred Inflows 
	$ 2,568 
	$ 3,937 



	7. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 
	7. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 
	Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities is comprised of the following: 
	June 30, June 30, 2021 2020 
	June 30, June 30, 2021 2020 

	Payroll Related $ 2,929 $ 2,067 Services and Supplies 1,634 1,259 Salaries and Wages 1,045 1,037 Accrued Interest 172 302 Contract Retainage 416 4 
	Total 
	Total 
	$ 6,196 $ 4,669 



	8. LEASES 
	8. LEASES 
	A. LESSEE ARRANGEMENTS 
	EOU leases office equipment and space from external parties for various terms under long-term non-cancelable lease agreements. The leases expire at various dates through 2026 and provide for renewal options ranging from one year to five years. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 87, the university records right-to-use assets and lease liabilities based on the present value of expected payments over the lease term of the respective leases. The expected payments are discounted using the interest rate charge
	EOU leases office equipment and space from external parties for various terms under long-term non-cancelable lease agreements. The leases expire at various dates through 2026 and provide for renewal options ranging from one year to five years. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 87, the university records right-to-use assets and lease liabilities based on the present value of expected payments over the lease term of the respective leases. The expected payments are discounted using the interest rate charge
	-
	-
	-

	any leases featuring payments tied to an index or market rate. The university does not have any leases subject to a residual value guarantee. See Note 5 Capital Assets for information on right-to-use assets and associated accumulated depreciation. See Note 9 Long-Term Liabilities for future payments schedule. 


	B. LESSOR ARRANGEMENTS 
	B. LESSOR ARRANGEMENTS 
	EOU leases office and data center space to external parties. The university records lease receivables and deferred inflows of resources based on the present value of expected receipts over the term of the respective leases. The expected receipts are discounted using the interest rate charged on the lease or using the universities incremental borrowing rate. Variable payments are excluded from the valuations unless they are fixed in substance. During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the university rec
	-
	-
	-

	For the Year Ending June 30, Interest 2022 $375 $ 35 2023 224 28 2024 193 23 2025 205 17 2026 218 11 2027-2031 254 5 Total Future Receipts 
	Principal 
	$ 1,469 $ 119 

	9. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
	Long-term liability activity was as follows: 
	Balance Balance Amount June 30, June 30, Due Within Long-Term 2020 Additions Reductions 2021 One Year Portion 
	Long-Term Debt 
	Long-Term Debt 
	Long-Term Debt 

	Due to the State of Oregon: 
	Due to the State of Oregon: 

	Contracts Payable 
	Contracts Payable 
	$ 
	13,393 
	$ 
	6,271 
	$ 
	(6,829) 
	$ 
	12,835 
	$ 
	940 
	$ 
	11,895 

	Oregon Department of Energy Loans (SELP) 
	Oregon Department of Energy Loans (SELP) 
	6,256 
	-
	(459) 
	5,797 
	467 
	5,330 

	Leases 
	Leases 
	183 
	152 
	(107) 
	228 
	88 
	140 

	Total Long-Term Debt 
	Total Long-Term Debt 
	19,832 
	6,423 
	(7,395) 
	18,860 
	1,495 
	17,365 

	Other Noncurrent Liabilities 
	Other Noncurrent Liabilities 

	PERS pre-SLGRP pooled Liability 
	PERS pre-SLGRP pooled Liability 
	1,547 
	-
	(192) 
	1,355 
	178 
	1,177 

	Compensated Absences 
	Compensated Absences 
	1,464 
	899 
	(687) 
	1,676 
	1,248 
	428 

	Perkins Loan Program Liability 
	Perkins Loan Program Liability 
	122 
	-
	(122) 
	-
	-
	-

	Total Other Noncurrent Liabilities 
	Total Other Noncurrent Liabilities 
	3,133 
	899 
	(1,001) 
	3,031 
	1,426 
	1,605 

	Total Long-Term Liabilities 
	Total Long-Term Liabilities 
	$ 
	22,965 
	$ 
	7,322 
	$ 
	(8,396) 
	$ 
	21,891 
	$ 
	2,921 
	$ 
	18,970 


	Balance 
	Balance 
	Balance 
	Balance 
	Amount 

	June 30, 
	June 30, 
	June 30, 
	Due Within 
	Long-Term 

	2019 
	2019 
	Additions 
	Reductions 
	2020 
	One Year 
	Portion 

	Long-Term Debt 
	Long-Term Debt 

	Due to the State of Oregon: 
	Due to the State of Oregon: 

	Contracts Payable 
	Contracts Payable 
	$ 
	14,402 
	$ 
	2 
	$ (1,011) $ 13,393 $ 1,073 
	$ 12,320 

	Oregon Department of Energy Loans (SELP) 
	Oregon Department of Energy Loans (SELP) 
	6,687 
	-
	(431) 
	6,256 
	451 
	5,805 

	Leases 
	Leases 
	245 
	24 
	(86) 
	183 
	55 
	128 

	Total Long-Term Debt 
	Total Long-Term Debt 
	21,334 
	26 
	(1,528) 
	19,832 
	1,579 
	18,253 

	Other Noncurrent Liabilities 
	Other Noncurrent Liabilities 

	PERS pre-SLGRP pooled Liability 
	PERS pre-SLGRP pooled Liability 
	1,711 
	-
	(164) 
	1,547 
	168 
	1,379 

	Compensated Absences 
	Compensated Absences 
	1,316 
	1,174 
	(1,026) 
	1,464 
	1,133 
	331 

	Perkins Loan Program Liability 
	Perkins Loan Program Liability 
	964 
	-
	(842) 
	122 
	22 
	100 

	Total Other Noncurrent Liabilities 
	Total Other Noncurrent Liabilities 
	3,991 
	1,174 
	(2,032) 
	3,133 
	1,323 
	1,810 

	Total Long-Term Liabilities 
	Total Long-Term Liabilities 
	$ 25,325 $ 1,200 
	$ (3,560) $ 22,965 $ 2,902 
	$ 20,063 

	The schedule of principal and interest payments for EOU debt is as follows: 
	The schedule of principal and interest payments for EOU debt is as follows: 

	TR
	Contracts 
	Total 

	For the Year Ending June 30, 
	For the Year Ending June 30, 
	Payable 
	SELP 
	Leases 
	Payments 
	Principal 
	Interest 

	2022 
	2022 
	$ 1,283 $ 717 $ 93 $ 2,093 $ 1,476 $ 617 

	2023 
	2023 
	1,173 
	718 
	63 
	1,954 
	1,401 
	553 

	2024 
	2024 
	1,248 
	717 
	41 
	2,006 
	1,509 
	497 

	2025 
	2025 
	1,254 
	717 
	40 
	2,011 
	1,560 
	451 

	2026 
	2026 
	1,149 
	718 
	1 
	1,868 
	1,461 
	407 

	2027-2031 
	2027-2031 
	5,516 
	3,238 
	-
	8,754 
	7,399 
	1,355 

	2032-2036 
	2032-2036 
	3,965 
	410 
	-
	4,375 
	4,035 
	340 

	Accreted Interest 
	Accreted Interest 
	19 
	(19) 

	TR
	$ 18,860 
	$ 
	4,201 

	Total Future Debt Service 
	Total Future Debt Service 
	15,588 
	7,235 
	238 
	23,061 

	Less: Interest Component
	Less: Interest Component

	 of Future Payments 
	 of Future Payments 
	(2,753) 
	(1,438) 
	(10) 
	(4,201) 

	Principal Portion of 
	Principal Portion of 

	Future Payments 
	Future Payments 
	$ 
	12,835 
	$ 5,797 
	$ 228 $ 18,860 


	The state periodically issues bonded debt which it then loans to the university for capital construction. EOU has entered into contract loan agreements with the state for the principal and interest amounts due. In addition, EOU also borrows funds from the Oregon Department of Energy through the Small Scale Energy Loan Program (SELP). The state may periodically issue new debt to refund previously held debt. Per the contract and loan agreements, when this happens the state is required to pass the savings on t
	The state periodically issues bonded debt which it then loans to the university for capital construction. EOU has entered into contract loan agreements with the state for the principal and interest amounts due. In addition, EOU also borrows funds from the Oregon Department of Energy through the Small Scale Energy Loan Program (SELP). The state may periodically issue new debt to refund previously held debt. Per the contract and loan agreements, when this happens the state is required to pass the savings on t
	A. CONTRACTS PAYABLE 
	EOU has entered into loan agreements with the state for repayment of XI-F(1) bonds issued by the state on behalf of EOU for capital construction and refunding of previously issued debt. EOU makes loan payments (principal and interest) to the state in accordance with the loan agreements. In the event of default, the state may withhold future disbursements of state general fund appropriations up to the amount of default. Loans, with interest rates ranging from 0.12 percent to 5.29 percent, are due serially th
	-

	During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the state issued $290 of Series 2020N XI-F(1) Tax Exempt bonds and $2,425 of Series 2020O XI-F(1) Taxable bonds on behalf of EOU for the refunding of previously held debt. The bonds have an effective rate of 1.94 percent, and are due serially through 2033. The state also issued $135 of Series 2021H XI-F(1) Tax Exempt bonds and $3,420 of Series 2021I XI-F(1) Taxable bonds on behalf of EOU for the refunding of previously held debt. The bonds have an effective rate o
	-

	Other changes to the university’s contracts payable to the state during fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, include debt service payments for principal of $1,045, and the addition of $1 and the deduction of $10 for the amortization of accreted interest applicable to zero coupon bonds sold prior to 2002. 
	During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the state did not issue any bonds on behalf of EOU. Other changes to the university’s contracts payable to the state during fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, include debt service payments for principal of $949, and the addition of $2 and the deduction of $62 for the amortization of accreted interest applicable to zero coupon bonds sold prior to 2002. 


	B. OREGON DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY LOANS (SELP) 
	B. OREGON DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY LOANS (SELP) 
	B. OREGON DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY LOANS (SELP) 
	EOU has entered into loan agreements with the state De
	EOU has entered into loan agreements with the state De
	-

	partment of Energy (DOE) Small Scale Energy Loan Program (SELP) for energy conservation projects at the university. EOU makes monthly loan payments (principal and interest) to the DOE in accordance with the loan agreements. Upon event of default, the lender may accelerate the due date and declare balance due immediately. The projects funded by the loan serve as security for the debt. SELP loans, with interest rates ranging from 3.73 percent to 5.15 percent, are due through fiscal year 2033. 



	C. STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT RATE POOL 
	C. STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT RATE POOL 
	Prior to the formation of the PERS State and Local Government Rate Pool (SLGRP), the state and community colleges were pooled together in the State and Community College Pool (SCCP), and local government employers participated in the Local Government Rate Pool (LGRP). These two pools combined to form the SLGRP effective January 1, 2002, at which time a transitional, pre-SLGRP liability was created. The pre-SLGRP liability is essentially a debt owed to the SLGRP by the SCCP employers. The balance of the pre-
	-
	-


	D. PERKINS LOAN PROGRAM LIABILITY 
	D. PERKINS LOAN PROGRAM LIABILITY 
	During fiscal year 2018, EOU established a liability for the Federal Capital Contributions (FCC) received from the U.S. Department of Education (ED) which funded the Perkins loan program. With the close-out of the Perkins loan program, the FCC is due back to the ED. EOU has elected to assign their remaining loans back to the federal government. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, EOU completed the process of assigning these loans back to the federal government and closed out the Perkins Loan Program
	-
	-
	-

	Unrestricted university operations is comprised of the follow
	-


	10. UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION 
	10. UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION 
	ing:
	Unrestricted net position is comprised of the following: 
	June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 2021 2020 2021 2020 
	Education & General Operations $ 15,822 $ 12,760 University Operations $ 26,670 $ 21,498 Designated Operations 1,004 784 Net Pension Liability (See Note 14) (26,950) (20,815) Service Departments 76 62 Net Other Postemployment Benefits Auxiliary Enterprise Operations 8,149 6,648
	 Liabilities (see Note 15) (1,066) (1,116) Unrestricted Capital Construction Pension & OPEB Related Deferred & Debt Reserves 1,619 1,244 Outflows (See Note 6) 9,342 7,111 Total Unrestricted University Pension & OPEB Related Deferred Operations $ 26,670 $ 21,498 Inflows (See Note 6) (1,209) (1,723) State and Local Government Rate 
	11. INVESTMENT ACTIVITY
	Pool (see Note 9) (1,355) (1,547) 
	Pool (see Note 9) (1,355) (1,547) 

	Investment activity detail is as follows:
	Compensated Absences Liability 
	Compensated Absences Liability 
	June 30, June 30,
	(see Note 9) (1,676) (1,464) 

	2021 2020 
	2021 2020 

	Total Unrestricted Net Position $ 3,756 $ 1,944 
	Investment Earnings $ 458 $ 943 Net Appreciation (Depreciation) of
	 Investments 73 (67) Interest Income 1 6 Gain on Sale of Investment 159 202 
	Total Investment Activity $ 691 $ 1,084 

	12. OPERATING EXPENSES BY NATURAL CLASSIFICATION 
	12. OPERATING EXPENSES BY NATURAL CLASSIFICATION 
	The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position reports operating expenses by their functional classification. The table below displays operating expenses by both their functional classification and their natural classification. The reporting of the net pension liability and OPEB asset and liabilities, as required by GASB Statement Nos. 68, 71 and 75, affected the reported compensation and benefit expenses of EOU. Changes in the pension and OPEB expenses and associated reporting requirements
	-
	-

	Scholarships Depreciation Compensation Services and and and June 30, 2021 and Benefits Supplies Fellowships Amortization Other Total 
	Instruction 
	Instruction 
	Instruction 
	$ 
	16,276 
	$ 
	535 
	$ 
	-
	$ 
	-
	$ 
	-
	$ 
	16,811 

	Research 
	Research 
	92 
	26 
	62 
	-
	-
	180 

	Public Services 
	Public Services 
	4,061 
	1,160 
	-
	-
	-
	5,221 

	Academic Support 
	Academic Support 
	7,630 
	2,952 
	107 
	-
	-
	10,689 

	Student Services 
	Student Services 
	2,876 
	329 
	-
	-
	-
	3,205 

	Auxiliary Services 
	Auxiliary Services 
	3,389 
	3,316 
	198 
	790 
	-
	7,693 

	Institutional Support 
	Institutional Support 
	6,593 
	3,769 
	8 
	-
	16 
	10,386 

	Operation & Maint. of Plant 
	Operation & Maint. of Plant 
	3,023 
	757 
	-
	-
	-
	3,780 

	Student Aid 
	Student Aid 
	19 
	(2) 
	4,800 
	-
	16 
	4,833 

	Other 
	Other 
	35 
	201 
	-
	3,873 
	-
	4,109 

	Total 
	Total 
	$ 
	43,994 
	$ 
	13,043 
	$ 
	5,175 
	$ 
	4,663 
	$ 
	32 
	$ 
	66,907 


	Scholarships 
	Scholarships 
	Scholarships 
	Depreciation 

	Compensation 
	Compensation 
	Services and 
	and 
	and 

	June 30, 2020 
	June 30, 2020 
	and Benefits
	Supplies 
	Fellowships 
	Amortization 
	Other 
	Total 


	Instruction 
	Instruction 
	Instruction 
	$ 
	16,121 
	$ 
	539 
	$ 
	-
	$ 
	13 
	$ 
	-
	$ 
	16,673 

	Research 
	Research 
	276 
	43 
	35 
	-
	-
	354 

	Public Services 
	Public Services 
	2,659 
	706 
	-
	17 
	-
	3,382 

	Academic Support 
	Academic Support 
	6,703 
	1,116 
	-
	10 
	-
	7,829 

	Student Services 
	Student Services 
	2,807 
	336 
	-
	1 
	-
	3,144 

	Auxiliary Services 
	Auxiliary Services 
	3,123 
	3,907 
	198 
	801 
	-
	8,029 

	Institutional Support 
	Institutional Support 
	6,832 
	3,235 
	-
	6 
	14 
	10,087 

	Operation & Maint. of Plant 
	Operation & Maint. of Plant 
	2,906 
	760 
	-
	-
	-
	3,666 

	Student Aid 
	Student Aid 
	29 
	(240) 
	3,874 
	-
	866 
	4,529 

	Other 
	Other 
	104 
	153 
	-
	3,706 
	-
	3,963 

	Total 
	Total 
	$ 
	41,560 
	$ 
	10,555 
	$ 
	4,107 
	$ 
	4,554 
	$ 
	880 
	$ 
	61,656 



	13. GOVERNMENT APPROPRIATIONS 
	13. GOVERNMENT APPROPRIATIONS 
	13. GOVERNMENT APPROPRIATIONS 
	EOU receives support from the state in the form of general fund and lottery appropriations. These appropriations are in support of the operations of the university and debt service of SELP loans. Appropriations for SELP debt service are based on the loan agreements between the university and the Oregon Department of Energy. Government appropriations is comprised of the following: 
	-

	June 30, 
	June 30, 
	June 30, 
	June 30, 

	2021 
	2021 
	2020 

	General Fund -Operations 
	General Fund -Operations 
	$ 21,664 
	$ 21,159 

	General Fund -SELP Debt Service 
	General Fund -SELP Debt Service 
	638 
	638 

	Lottery Funding 
	Lottery Funding 
	1,373 
	1,067 

	Total State Appropriations 
	Total State Appropriations 
	$ 23,675 
	$ 22,864 

	14. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS 
	14. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS 


	The university offers various defined benefit and defined contribution retirement plans to qualified employees as described below. 
	-

	A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN (PERS) 
	Organization 
	EOU participates with other state agencies in the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (System), which is a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit plan (Plan). Plan assets may be used to pay the benefits of the employees of any employer that provides pensions through the plan. PERS is administered in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 238, Chapter 238A, and Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a). The Oregon Legislature has delegated authority to the Public Employees Retirement 
	Plan Membership 
	The 1995 Oregon Legislature enacted Chapter 654, Section 3, Oregon Laws 1995, which has been codified into ORS 238.435. This legislation created a second tier of benefits for those who established membership on or after January 1, 1996. Membership prior to January 1, 1996 are Tier One members. The second tier does not have the Tier One assumed earnings rate guarantee and has a higher normal retirement age of 60, compared to 58 for Tier One. Both Tier One and Tier Two are defined benefit plans. 
	-

	The 2003 Legislature enacted HB 2020, codified as ORS 238A, which created the Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP). OPSRP consists of the Pension Program (defined benefit, DB) and the Individual Account Program (IAP). The IAP is a defined contribution plan. Membership includes public employees hired on or after August 29, 2003. 
	Beginning January 1, 2004, PERS active Tier One and Tier Two members became members of IAP of OPSRP. PERS members retain their existing Defined Benefit Plan accounts, but member contributions are now deposited into the member’s IAP account, not into the member’s Defined Benefit Plan account. 
	-


	Accounts are credited with earnings and losses, net of administrative expenses. OPSRP is part of PERS and is administered by the PERS Board. 
	-

	Pension Plan Report 
	The PERS defined benefit and defined contribution retirement plans are reported as pension trust funds in the fiduciary funds combining statements and as part of the Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust in the State’s Comprehensive Financial Report. PERS issues a separate, publicly available financial report which includes an audit opinion that may be obtained by writing to the Public Employees Retirement System, Fiscal Services Division, PO Box 23700, Tigard, OR 97281-3700. The report may also be acces
	www.oregon.gov/pers

	Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
	Employers participating in the Plan are required to report pension information in their financial statements for fiscal periods beginning on or after June 15, 2014, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. 
	-
	-

	The requirements of this Statement incorporate provisions intended to reflect the effects of transactions and events related to pensions in the measurement of employer liabilities for pensions and recognition of pension expense and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions. 
	-

	Basis of Accounting 
	Contributions for employers are recognized on the accrual basis of accounting by the Plan. Employer contributions to PERS are calculated based on creditable compensation for active members reported by employers. Employer contributions are accrued when due pursuant to legal requirements. These are amounts normally included in the employer statements cut off as of the fifth of the following month. 
	-

	Plan Proportionate Share Allocation Methodology 
	The basis for the employer’s proportion is actuarially determined by comparing the employer’s projected long-term contribution effort to the Plan with the total projected long-term contribution effort of all employers. The contribution rate for every employer has at least two major components; Normal Cost Rate and Unfunded Actuarial Liability (UAL) Rate. 
	-
	-

	Collective Pension Plan Liability 
	The components of the Plan’s collective net pension liability as of the measurement dates of June 30, 2020 and 2019 are as follows (dollars in millions): 
	June 30, June 30, 2020 2019 Total Pension Liability $ 90,143 $ 87,501 Plan Fiduciary Net Position 68,319 70,204 Plan Net Pension Liability $ 21,823 $ 17,297 
	Changes Subsequent to Measurement Date 
	The university is not aware of any changes to benefit terms subsequent to the June 30, 2020 measurement date. 
	OREGON PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS) PENSION (CHAPTER 238) PROGRAM 
	Pension Benefits 
	The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life. There are 13 retirement benefit options a retiring employee may select from. These options include survivorship benefits and lump-sum refunds. The basic benefit is based on years of service and final average salary. A percentage (1.67 percent for general service employees) is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary. Benefits may also be calculated under either a formula plus annuity (for members who were contributin
	-

	A member is considered vested and will be eligible at minimum retirement age for a service retirement allowance if he or she has had a contribution in each of five calendar years or has reached at least 50 years of age before ceasing employment with a participating employer. General Service employees may retire after reaching age 55. Tier One general service employee benefits are reduced if retirement occurs prior to age 58 with fewer than 30 years of service. Tier Two members are eligible for full benefits
	-

	Death Benefits 
	Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum refund of the member’s account balance (accumulated contributions and interest). In addition, the beneficiary will receive a lump-sum payment from employer funds equal to the account balance provided one or more of the following conditions are met: 
	-
	-

	* 
	* 
	* 
	The member was employed by a PERS employer at the time of death. 

	* 
	* 
	The member died within 120 days after termination of PERS-covered employment. 

	* 
	* 
	The member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in a PERS-covered job. 

	* 
	* 
	The member was on an official leave of absence from a PERS-covered job at the time of death. 


	Disability Benefits 
	A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who becomes disabled due to an other than duty-connected cause may receive a non-duty disability benefit. A disability resulting from a job-incurred injury or illness qualifies a member for 
	A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who becomes disabled due to an other than duty-connected cause may receive a non-duty disability benefit. A disability resulting from a job-incurred injury or illness qualifies a member for 
	disability benefits regardless of the length of PERS-covered service. Upon qualifying for either a non-duty or duty disability, service time is computed to age 58 when determining the monthly benefit. 
	-


	Benefit Changes After Retirement 
	Members may choose to continue participation in a variable equities investment account after retiring and may experience annual benefit fluctuations due to changes in the market value of equity investments. 
	Under ORS 238.360 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs). The COLA is capped at 2.00 percent. 
	-

	OREGON PUBLIC SERVICE RETIREMENT PLAN (OPSRP DB) PENSION PROGRAM 
	Pension Benefits 
	This portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer contributions. Benefits are calculated with the following formula for members who attain normal retirement age: 1.50 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary. Normal retirement age for general service members is age 65, or age 58 with 30 years of retirement credit. 
	-

	A member of the pension program becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the date the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, and if the pension program is terminated, the date on which termination becomes effective. 
	-

	Death Benefits 
	Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other person who is constitutionally required to be treated in the same manner as the spouse, receives for life 50 percent of the pension that would otherwise have been paid to the deceased member. 
	Disability Benefits 
	A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement credits before the member becomes disabled or a member who becomes disabled due to job-related injury shall receive a disability benefit of 45 percent of the member’s salary determined as of the last full month of employment before the disability occurred. 
	-

	Benefit Changes After Retirement 
	Under ORS 238A.210 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through COLAs. The cap on the COLA varies based on 1.25 percent on the first $60 of annual benefit and 0.15 percent on annual benefits above $60. 
	OREGON PUBLIC SERVICE RETIREMENT PLAN (OPSRP IAP) PENSION PROGRAM 
	OREGON PUBLIC SERVICE RETIREMENT PLAN (OPSRP IAP) PENSION PROGRAM 
	Benefit Terms 
	The IAP is an individual account-based program under the PERS tax-qualified governmental plan as defined under ORS 238A.400. An IAP member becomes vested on the date the employee account is established or on the date the rollover account was established. If the employer makes optional employer contributions for a member, the member becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the date the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retir
	-
	-

	Upon retirement, a member of the IAP may receive the amounts in his or her employee account, rollover account, and vested employer account as a lump-sum payment or in equal installments over a 5-, 10-, 15-, 20-year period or an anticipated life span option. Installment amounts vary with market returns as the account remains invested while in distribution. When chosen, the distribution option must result in a $200 minimum distribution amount, or the frequency of the installments will be adjusted to reach tha
	-

	Death Benefits 
	Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives in a lump sum the member’s account balance, rollover account balance, and vested employer optional contribution account balance. If a retired member dies before the installment payments are completed, the beneficiary may receive the remaining installment payments or choose a lump-sum payment. 
	-
	-

	PENSION PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS 
	PERS and OPSRP employee contribution requirements are established by ORS 238.200 and ORS 238A.330, respectively, and are credited to an employee’s account in the IAP and may be amended by an act of the Oregon Legislature. PERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially determined rates. These contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are intended to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. This funding policy applies to the PERS Defined Benefit
	-
	-

	Employer contribution rates for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 were based on the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation. 
	-


	The employer contribution rates for the PERS and OPSRP are as follows: 
	2021 2020 
	2021 2020 
	Base Tier One/Two Rate 19.05% 19.05% 
	SLGRP Rate 1.71% 1.71% 
	RHIA/RHIPA OPEB Rate 0.45% 0.45% 

	Total PERS Tier One/Two Rate 21.21% 21.21% 
	Base OPSRP Rate 12.77% 12.77% 
	Base OPSRP Rate 12.77% 12.77% 
	SLGRP Rate 1.71% 1.71% 
	RHIA/RHIPA OPEB Rate 0.27% 0.27% 

	Total OPSRP Rate 14.75% 14.75% 
	The university’s required employer contributions for PERS and OPSRP for the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, were $2,940 and $2,762, respectively, including amounts to fund separately financed employer specific liabilities associated with the SLGRP liability (see Note 9.C for additional information). 
	B. NET PENSION LIABILITY 
	At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the university reported a liability of $26,950 and $20,815, respectively, for its proportionate share of the PERS net pension liability. The net pension liability as of June 30, 2021, was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018. The net pension liability as of June 30, 2020, was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calc
	-
	-
	-

	0.12 percent of the statewide pension plan. 
	For the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, EOU recorded total pension expense of $6,139 and $5,274, respectively, due to the changes in net pension liability, deferred inflows, and deferred outflows. 
	Deferred Items 
	Deferred items are calculated at the system-wide level and are allocated to employers based on their proportionate share. For fiscal years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020, deferred items include: 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Difference between expected and actual experience 

	* 
	* 
	Changes in assumptions 

	* 
	* 
	Net difference between projected and actual pension plan investment earnings 

	* 
	* 
	Changes in employer proportion since the prior measurement date 


	* 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Difference between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions 

	Differences between expected and actual experience, changes in assumption, and changes in employer proportion are amortized over the average remaining service lives of all plan participants, including retirees, determined as of the beginning of the respective measurement period. Employers are required to recognize pension expense based on the balance of the closed period “layers” attributable to each measurement period. The average remaining service lives determined as of the beginning of each measurement p
	-
	-


	* 
	* 
	Measurement period ended June 30, 2020 - 5.3 years 

	* 
	* 
	Measurement period ended June 30, 2019 - 5.2 years 

	* 
	* 
	Measurement period ended June 30, 2018 - 5.2 years 

	* 
	* 
	Measurement period ended June 30, 2017 - 5.3 years 

	* 
	* 
	Measurement period ended June 30, 2016 - 5.3 years 


	The difference between projected and actual pension plan investment earnings attributable to each measurement period is amortized over a closed five-year period. 
	One year of amortization is recognized in the university’s total pension expense for fiscal years 2021 and 2020. 
	At June 30, 2021, EOU reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
	-

	Deferred Deferred 
	Deferred Deferred 
	Outflows of Inflows of 
	Resources Resources 

	Differences between expected and
	 actual experience $ 1,186 $ Changes of assumptions 1,446 (51) Net difference between projected and
	-

	 actual earnings on pension plan
	 actual earnings on pension plan

	 investments 3,169 Change in proportionate share 718 (291) Difference between contributions
	-

	 and proportionate share of 
	 and proportionate share of 

	contributions 5 (616) Total 
	$ 6,524 $ (958) 

	Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
	Resources before Contributions 
	Resources before Contributions 
	Subsequent to the Measurement 
	Date (MD) 5,566 

	Contributions Subsequent to the MD 2,578 Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
	Resources after Contributions
	Resources after Contributions
	 Subsequent to the MD $ 8,144 

	Of the amount reported as deferred outflows of resources, $2,578 are related to pension contributions subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2022. 
	At June 30, 2020, EOU reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from 
	-

	the following sources: 
	the following sources: 
	the following sources: 

	Deferred 
	Deferred 
	Deferred 

	Outflows of 
	Outflows of 
	Inflows of 

	Resources 
	Resources 
	Resources 

	Differences between expected and
	Differences between expected and

	 actual experience 
	 actual experience 
	$ 
	1,148 
	$ 
	-

	Changes of assumptions 
	Changes of assumptions 
	2,824 
	-

	Net difference between projected and
	Net difference between projected and

	 actual earnings on pension plan
	 actual earnings on pension plan

	 investments 
	 investments 
	-
	(590) 

	Change in proportionate share 
	Change in proportionate share 
	610 
	(424) 

	Difference between contributions
	Difference between contributions

	 and proportionate share of 
	 and proportionate share of 

	contributions 
	contributions 
	7 
	(423) 

	Total 
	Total 
	$ 
	4,589 
	$ 
	(1,437) 

	Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
	Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 

	Resources before Contributions 
	Resources before Contributions 

	Subsequent to the Measurement 
	Subsequent to the Measurement 

	Date (MD) 
	Date (MD) 
	3,152 

	Contributions Subsequent to the MD 
	Contributions Subsequent to the MD 
	2,418 

	Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
	Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 

	Resources after Contributions
	Resources after Contributions

	 Subsequent to the MD 
	 Subsequent to the MD 
	$ 
	5,570 


	Of the amount reported as deferred outflows of resources, $2,418 are related to pension contributions subsequent to the measurement date and are recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. 
	As of June 30, 2021, other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
	-

	Year Ended June 30: 2022 $ 1,236 2023 1,601 2024 1,578 2025 1,124 2026 27 
	Year Ended June 30: 2022 $ 1,236 2023 1,601 2024 1,578 2025 1,124 2026 27 
	$ 5,566 
	$ 5,566 


	Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
	Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of projected benefits and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Experience studies are performed as of December 31 of even numbered years. 
	-

	The following methods and assumptions were used in the development of the total pension liability: 
	The following methods and assumptions were used in the development of the total pension liability: 
	-

	Actuarial Methods: 
	Actuarial Methods: 
	Actuarial Methods: 

	As of: 
	As of: 
	June 30, 2021 
	June 30, 2020 

	Valuation Date 
	Valuation Date 
	December 31, 2018 
	December 31, 2017 

	Measurement Date 
	Measurement Date 
	June 30, 2020 
	June 30, 2019 

	Experience Study Report 
	Experience Study Report 
	2018, published July 2019 
	2016, published July 2017 

	Actuarial Cost Method 
	Actuarial Cost Method 
	Entry Age Normal 

	Actuarial Assumptions: 
	Actuarial Assumptions: 

	Inflation Rate 
	Inflation Rate 
	2.50 percent 

	Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 
	Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 
	7.20 percent 

	Discount Rate 
	Discount Rate 
	7.20 percent 

	Projected Salary Increases 
	Projected Salary Increases 
	3.50 percent 

	Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA) 
	Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA) 
	Blend of 2.00% COLA and graded COLA (1.25%/0.15%) in accordance with Moro decision; blend based on service 

	Mortality 
	Mortality 
	Healthy retirees and beneficiaries: 

	Pub-2010 Healthy Retriee, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation. 
	Pub-2010 Healthy Retriee, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation. 
	RP-2014 Healthy annuitant, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with collar adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation. 

	Active members: 
	Active members: 

	Pub-2010 Employee, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation. 
	Pub-2010 Employee, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation. 
	RP-2014 Employees, sex-distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with collar adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation. 

	Disabled retirees: 
	Disabled retirees: 

	Pub-2010 Disabled Retriee, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation. 
	Pub-2010 Disabled Retriee, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation. 
	RP-2014 Disabled retirees, sex-distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale 


	Discount Rate 
	The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability at June 30, 2021 and 2020, was 7.20. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and those of the contributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long
	-
	-
	-

	Sensitivity Analysis 
	The sensitivity analysis shows the sensitivity of the university’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. 

	The following presents the university’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 
	7.20 percent as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, as well as what the university’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate: 
	Table
	TR
	June 30, 2021 
	June 30, 2020 

	1% Decrease 6.20% 
	1% Decrease 6.20% 
	$40,019 
	$33,334 

	Current Discount Rate 7.20% 
	Current Discount Rate 7.20% 
	26,950 
	20,815 

	1% Increase 8.20% 
	1% Increase 8.20% 
	15,992 
	10,339 


	Depletion Date Projection 
	GASB Statement No. 68 generally requires that a blended discount rate be used to measure the Total Pension Liability (the Actuarial Accrued Liability calculated using the Individual Entry Age Normal Cost Method). The long-term expected return on plan investments may be used to discount liabilities to the extent that the plan’s Fiduciary Net Position (fair market value of assets) is projected to cover benefit payments and administrative expenses. A 20-year high quality (AA/Aa or higher) municipal bond rate m
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	The following circumstances justify an alternative evaluation of sufficiency for Oregon PERS: 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Oregon PERS has a formal written policy to calculate an Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC), which is articulated in the actuarial valuation report. 

	* 
	* 
	The ADC is based on a closed, layered amortization period, which means that payment of the full ADC each year will bring the plan to a 100 percent funded position by the end of the amortization period if future experience follows assumption. 

	* 
	* 
	GASB Statement No. 68 specifies that the projections regarding future solvency assume that plan assets earn the assumed rate of return and there are no future changes in the plan provisions or actuarial methods and assumptions, which means that the projections would not reflect any adverse future experience, which might impact the plan’s funded position. 


	Based on these circumstances, it is the independent actuary’s opinion that the detailed depletion date projections outlined in 
	Based on these circumstances, it is the independent actuary’s opinion that the detailed depletion date projections outlined in 
	GASB Statement No. 68 would clearly indicate that the Fiduciary Net Position is always projected to be sufficient to cover benefit payments and administrative expenses. 
	-


	Assumed Asset Allocation 
	Asset Class/ Strategy 
	Asset Class/ Strategy 
	Asset Class/ Strategy 
	Low Range 
	High Range 
	OIC Target 

	Debt Securities 
	Debt Securities 
	15.00 % 
	25.00 % 
	20.00 % 

	Public Equity 
	Public Equity 
	27.50 
	37.50 
	32.50 

	Private Equity 
	Private Equity 
	14.00 
	21.00 
	17.50 

	Real Estate 
	Real Estate 
	9.50 
	15.50 
	12.50 

	Alternative Investments 
	Alternative Investments 
	7.50 
	17.50 
	15.00 

	Opportunity Portfolio 
	Opportunity Portfolio 
	0.00 
	3.00 
	0.00 

	Risk Parity 
	Risk Parity 
	0.00 
	2.50 
	2.50 

	Total 
	Total 
	100 % 


	Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 
	To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in May 2019 the PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman’s capital market assumptions team and the Oregon Investment Council’s (OIC) investment advisors. Each asset assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are not based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forward-lookin
	-
	-
	www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/Financials/Actuarial-Finan
	-

	The following table shows long-term expected rate of return by asset class: 
	Asset Class 
	Asset Class 
	Asset Class 
	Target 
	Compound Annual Return (Geometric) 

	Core Fixed Income
	Core Fixed Income
	 9.60%
	 4.07% 

	Short-Term Bonds 
	Short-Term Bonds 
	9.60 
	3.68 

	Bank/Leveraged Loans 
	Bank/Leveraged Loans 
	3.60 
	5.19 

	High Yield Bonds 
	High Yield Bonds 
	1.20 
	5.74 

	Large/Mid Cap US Equities 
	Large/Mid Cap US Equities 
	16.17 
	6.30 

	Small Cap US Equities 
	Small Cap US Equities 
	1.35 
	6.68 

	Micro Cap US Equities 
	Micro Cap US Equities 
	1.35 
	6.79 

	Developed Foreign Equities 
	Developed Foreign Equities 
	13.48 
	6.91 

	Emerging Market Equities 
	Emerging Market Equities 
	4.24 
	7.69 

	Non-US Small Cap Equities 
	Non-US Small Cap Equities 
	1.93 
	7.25 

	Private Equity 
	Private Equity 
	17.50 
	8.33 

	Real Estate (Property) 
	Real Estate (Property) 
	10.00 
	5.55 

	Real Estate (REITS) 
	Real Estate (REITS) 
	2.50 
	6.69 

	Hedge Fund of Funds Diversified 
	Hedge Fund of Funds Diversified 
	-

	1.50 
	4.06 

	Hedge Fund -Event-driven 
	Hedge Fund -Event-driven 
	0.38 
	5.59 

	Timber 
	Timber 
	1.13 
	5.61 

	Farmland 
	Farmland 
	1.13 
	6.12 

	Infrastructure 
	Infrastructure 
	2.25 
	6.67 

	Commodities 
	Commodities 
	1.13 
	3.79 

	Assumed Inflation – Mean 
	Assumed Inflation – Mean 
	2.50% 


	BOND DEBT 
	The retirement bond debt service assessment was authorized by the Oregon Legislature in 2003 to sell general obligation bonds in the amount of $2 billion to pay a PERS unfunded actuarial liability. This action reduced the PERS contribution rate for PERS covered employers in the state actuarial pool in November 2003. 
	The Oregon Department of Administrative Services coordinates the debt service assessments to PERS employers to cover the bond debt service payments. PERS employers are assessed a percentage of PERS-subject payroll to fund the payments. The assessment rate is adjusted periodically over the life of the twenty-four year debt repayment schedule. 
	-

	The payroll assessment for the pension obligation bond began in May 2004. The assessment rate for fiscal year 2021 was 5.60 percent. The assessment rate for fiscal year 2020 was 6.20 percent through October 31, 2019. The 2020 rate was decreased to 
	-

	5.60 percent effective November 1, 2019. Payroll assessments for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, were $990 and $952, respectively. 
	C. OTHER RETIREMENT PLANS 
	OPTIONAL RETIREMENT PLAN 
	The 1995 Oregon Legislature enacted legislation that authorized the university to offer a defined contribution retirement plan as an alternative to PERS. A Retirement Plan Committee was appointed to administer the Optional Retirement Plan (ORP) and named trustees to manage plan assets placed with mutual funds and insurance companies. Beginning April 1, 1996, the ORP was made available to university academic and administrative faculty. Employees choosing the ORP may invest the employee and employer contribut
	-
	-

	The ORP consists of four tiers. Membership under ORP Tier One and Tier Two is determined using the same date of entry criteria as PERS. Tier Three is determined by the date of entry applicable to the OPSRP. Employees hired on or after July 1, 2014 who elected the ORP are Tier Four members. 
	Tier Four is a departure from the other three tiers. The employee is entitled to an employer contribution plus a “match” contribution based on the employee’s participation in the voluntary 403(b) investment plan. The employer contribution is fixed at 8 percent by plan rules and is unaffected by PERS rates, unlike the other tiers. The employer provides an ORP match contribution equal to 403(b) deferrals up to a 4 percent maximum. Under the ORP Tiers One, Two and Three, the employee’s contribution rate is 6 p
	-
	-
	-

	The employer contribution rates for the ORP are as follows: 
	The employer contribution rates for the ORP are as follows: 
	2021 
	2021 
	2021 
	2020 

	Tier One/Two 
	Tier One/Two 
	27.20% 
	27.20% 

	Tier Three 
	Tier Three 
	9.85% 
	9.85% 

	Tier Four 
	Tier Four 
	8.00% 
	8.00% 


	SUMMARY OF OTHER PENSION PAYMENTS 
	EOU’s total payroll for the year ended June 30, 2021 was $25,606, of which $4,226 was subject to optional retirement plan contributions. Employer contributions for the year totaled $623, or 14.74 percent of covered payroll. Employee contributions, paid by the university on behalf of the employees, totaled $277, or 6.55 percent of covered payroll. Employee contributions paid by the employees totaled $37. EOU’s total payroll for the year ended June 30, 2020 was $26,780, of which $4,389 was subject to optional
	-
	-
	-
	-

	15. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 
	A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (PERS) 
	PLAN DESCRIPTIONS 
	The Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) Board contracts for health insurance coverage on behalf of eligible PERS members. Eligible retirees pay their own age-adjusted premiums. To help retirees defray the cost of these premiums, PERS also administers two separate defined benefit other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans: the Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA) and the Retiree Health Insurance Premium Account (RHIPA). Only Tier One and Tier Two PERS members are eligible to participate in the RHI
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	The RHIA is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan in which the university participates. Established under Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 238.420, the plan provides a payment of up to $60 toward the monthly cost of health insurance for eligible PERS members. To be eligible to receive the RHIA subsidy, the member must (1) have eight years or more of qualifying service in PERS at the time of retirement or receive a disability allowance as if the member had eight years or more of creditable s
	-
	-
	-
	-

	(2) receive both Medicare parts A and B coverage, and (3) enroll in a PERS-sponsored health plan. A surviving spouse or dependent of a deceased PERS retiree who was eligible to receive the subsidy is eligible to receive the subsidy if he or she (1) is receiving a retirement benefit or allowance from PERS or (2) was insured at the time the member died and the member retired before May 1, 1991. The Legislature has 
	(2) receive both Medicare parts A and B coverage, and (3) enroll in a PERS-sponsored health plan. A surviving spouse or dependent of a deceased PERS retiree who was eligible to receive the subsidy is eligible to receive the subsidy if he or she (1) is receiving a retirement benefit or allowance from PERS or (2) was insured at the time the member died and the member retired before May 1, 1991. The Legislature has 
	sole authority to amend the benefit provisions and employer obligations for the RHIA plan. 


	Established under ORS 238.415, the RHIPA is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan for financial reporting purposes. The plan provides payment of the average difference between the health insurance premiums paid by retired state employees under contracts entered into by the PERS Board and health insurance premiums paid by state employees who are not retired. PERS members are qualified to receive the RHIPA subsidy if they have eight or more years of qualifying service in PERS a
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Both RHIA and RHIPA are closed to employees hired on or after August 29, 2003, who had not established PERS membership prior to that date. 
	-

	OPEB PLANS REPORT 
	The PERS RHIA and RHIPA defined benefit OPEB plans are reported separately under Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds in the fiduciary funds combining statements and as part of the Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust in the state’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. PERS issues a separate, publicly available financial report that includes audited financial statements and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to the Public Employees Retirement System, Fiscal Service
	-
	www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages

	BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
	The financial statements for the PERS OPEB plans are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Benefits are recognized in the month they are earned and withdrawals are recognized in the month they are due and payable. Plan investments are reported at fair value. 
	-

	SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
	Employers participating in PERS are required to report OPEB information in their financial statements for fiscal periods beginning on or after June 15, 2017, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. 
	-
	-

	The requirements of this Statement incorporate provisions intended to reflect the effects of transactions and events related to OPEB in the measurement of employer liabilities and recognition of OPEB expense and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB. 
	PROPORTIONATE SHARE ALLOCATION METHODOLOGY 
	The basis for the employer’s proportion is determined by comparing the employer’s actual, legally required contributions made during the fiscal year to the Plan with the total actual contributions made in the fiscal year of all employers. 
	-

	COLLECTIVE OPEB PLAN (ASSET)/LIABILITY 
	The components of the total PERS Net OPEB (asset)/liability for the OPEB plans as of the measurement date of June 30, 2020 and 2019 are as follows (in millions): 
	-

	June 30, 
	June 30, 
	June 30, 
	June 30, 

	Net OPEB -RHIA (Asset) 
	Net OPEB -RHIA (Asset) 
	2020 
	2019 

	Total OPEB -RHIA Liability 
	Total OPEB -RHIA Liability 
	$ 406.9 
	$ 435.6 

	Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
	Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
	610.7 
	628.9 

	Plan Net OPEB -RHIA (Asset) 
	Plan Net OPEB -RHIA (Asset) 
	$(203.8) 
	$ (193.3) 

	TR
	June 30, 
	June 30, 

	Net OPEB -RHIPA Liability 
	Net OPEB -RHIPA Liability 
	2020 
	2019 

	Total OPEB -RHIPA Liability 
	Total OPEB -RHIPA Liability 
	$ 64.3 
	$ 72.0 

	Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
	Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
	54.3 
	46.7 

	Plan Net OPEB -RHIA Liability 
	Plan Net OPEB -RHIA Liability 
	$ 10.0 
	$ 25.3 


	CHANGES SUBSEQUENT TO THE MEASUREMENT DATE 
	The university is not aware of any changes to benefit terms subsequent to the June 30, 2020 measurement date. 
	CONTRIBUTIONS 
	Both of the OPEB plans administered by PERS are funded through actuarially determined employer contributions. 
	For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the university contributed 0.06 of PERS-covered payroll for Tier One and Tier Two plan members to fund the normal cost portion of RHIA benefits. The required employer contribution was approximately $2 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. The actual contribution equaled the annual required contribution for the fiscal year. 
	-
	-
	-

	For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the university contributed 0.12 of PERS-covered payroll for Tier One and Tier Two plan members to fund the normal cost portion of RHIPA benefits. In addition, the university contributed 
	-

	0.27 of all PERS-covered payroll to amortize the unfunded actuarial accrued liability over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities amortized over 20 years. The required employer contribution was approximately $54 and $51 for the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The actual contribution equaled the annual required contribution for the fiscal year. 
	-
	-

	NET OPEB ASSET/LIABILITY 
	a. RHIA 
	At June 30, 2021, the university reported an asset of $75 for its proportionate share of the RHIA net OPEB asset. The net OPEB asset as of June 30, 2021 was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total OPEB asset used to calculate the net OPEB asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018. At June 30, 2020, the university reported an asset of $298 for its proportionate share of the RHIA net OPEB asset. The net OPEB asset as of June 30, 2020 was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the t
	-
	-
	-

	For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, EOU recorded total OPEB expense of ($48) and ($42) due to the change in the net RHIA OPEB asset and changes to deferred outflows and deferred inflows. 
	b. RHIPA 
	At June 30, 2021, the university reported a liability of $45 for its proportionate share of the RHIPA net OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability as of June 30, 2021 was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018. At June 30, 2020, the university reported a liability of $124 for its proportionate share of the RHIPA net OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability as of June 30, 2020 was measure
	-
	-
	-

	For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, EOU recorded total OPEB expense of $8 and $19 due to the change in the net RHIPA OPEB liability and changes to deferred outflows and deferred inflows. 
	DEFERRED ITEMS 
	DEFERRED ITEMS 
	a. RHIA 
	Deferred items are calculated at the system-wide level and are allocated to employers based on their proportionate share. For fiscal years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020, deferred items include: 
	-

	* 
	* 
	* 
	Difference between expected and actual experience 

	* 
	* 
	Difference due to changes in assumptions 

	* 
	* 
	Changes in employer proportion since the prior measurement date 

	* 
	* 
	Difference between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions 

	* 
	* 
	* 
	A difference between projected and actual earnings 

	Differences between expected and actual experience, changes in assumption, and changes in employer proportion are amortized over the average remaining service lives of all plan participants, including retirees, determined as of the beginning of the respective measurement period. Employers are required to recognize OPEB expense based on the balance of the closed period “layers” attributable to each measurement period. The average remaining service lives determined as of the beginning of each measurement peri
	-
	-


	* 
	* 
	Measurement period ended June 30, 2020 - 2.9 years 

	* 
	* 
	Measurement period ended June 30, 2019 - 3.1 years 

	* 
	* 
	Measurement period ended June 30, 2018 - 3.3 years 


	The difference between projected and actual OPEB plan investment earnings attributable to each measurement period is amortized over a closed five-year period. 
	-

	One year of amortization is recognized in the university’s total OPEB expense for fiscal years 2021 and 2020. 
	-


	At June 30, 2021, EOU reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to RHIA 
	-

	OPEB from the following sources: 
	OPEB from the following sources: 
	OPEB from the following sources: 

	TR
	Deferred 
	Deferred 

	TR
	Outflows of 
	Inflows of 

	TR
	Resources 
	Resources 

	Differences between expected and
	Differences between expected and

	 actual experience 
	 actual experience 
	$ 
	-
	$ 
	(8) 

	Changes of assumptions 
	Changes of assumptions 
	-
	(4) 

	Net difference between projected and
	Net difference between projected and

	 actual earnings on pension plan
	 actual earnings on pension plan

	 investments 
	 investments 
	9 
	-

	Change in proportionate share 
	Change in proportionate share 
	120 
	(4) 

	Difference between contributions
	Difference between contributions

	 and proportionate share of 
	 and proportionate share of 

	contributions 
	contributions 
	-
	(1) 

	Total 
	Total 
	$ 
	129 
	$ 
	(17) 

	Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
	Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 

	Resources before Contributions 
	Resources before Contributions 

	Subsequent to the Measurement 
	Subsequent to the Measurement 

	Date (MD) 
	Date (MD) 
	112 

	Contributions Subsequent to the MD 
	Contributions Subsequent to the MD 
	2 

	Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
	Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 

	Resources after Contributions
	Resources after Contributions

	 Subsequent to the MD 
	 Subsequent to the MD 
	$ 
	114 


	Of the amount reported as deferred outflows of resources, $2 are related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as an increase of the net OPEB asset in the year ending June 30, 2022. 
	-

	At June 30, 2020, EOU reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to RHIA OPEB from the following sources: 
	-

	Deferred Deferred Outflows of Inflows of 
	Deferred Deferred Outflows of Inflows of 
	Resources Resources 


	Differences between expected and actual experience $ -$ (39) 
	Net difference between projected and
	 actual earnings on pension plan
	 actual earnings on pension plan
	 investments -(18) 

	Change in proportionate share -(8) 
	Difference between contributions
	 and proportionate share of 
	 and proportionate share of 
	contributions 1 (2) 

	Total $ 1 $ (67) Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of Resources before Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date (MD) (66) 
	Contributions Subsequent to the MD 2 
	Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
	Resources after Contributions
	Resources after Contributions
	 Subsequent to the MD $ (64) 

	Of the amount reported as deferred outflows of resources, $2 are related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date and was recognized as an increase of the net OPEB asset in the year ended June 30, 2021. 
	-

	As of June 30, 2021, other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to RHIA OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
	-

	Year Ended June 30: 
	Year Ended June 30: 
	2022 $ 51 
	2023 55 
	2024 3 
	2025 3 
	$ 112 

	b. RHIPA 
	Deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources are calculated at the system-wide level and are allocated to employers based on their proportionate share. For the fiscal years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020, deferred items include: 
	-
	-

	* 
	* 
	* 
	Difference due to changes in assumptions 

	* 
	* 
	Difference between expected and actual experience 

	* 
	* 
	Changes in employer proportion since the prior measurement date 

	* 
	* 
	Difference between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions 

	* 
	* 
	* 
	Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

	Differences between expected and actual experience, changes in assumption, and changes in employer proportion are amortized over the average remaining service lives of all plan participants, including retirees, determined as of the beginning of the respective measurement period. Employers are required to recognize OPEB expense based on the balance of the closed period “layers” attributable to each measurement period. The average remaining service lives determined as of the beginning of each measurement peri
	-
	-


	* 
	* 
	Measurement period ended June 30, 2020 - 6.4 years 

	* 
	* 
	Measurement period ended June 30, 2019 - 6.7 years 

	* 
	* 
	Measurement period ended June 30, 2018 - 6.9 years 

	* 
	* 
	Measurement period ended June 30, 2017 - 7.2 years 


	The difference between projected and actual OPEB plan investment earnings attributable to each measurement period is amortized over a closed five-year period. 
	-

	One year of amortization is recognized in the university’s total OPEB expense for fiscal years 2021 and 2020. 
	-

	At June 30, 2021, EOU reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to RHIPA OPEB 
	-

	from the following sources: 
	from the following sources: 
	from the following sources: 

	Deferred 
	Deferred 
	Deferred 

	Outflows of 
	Outflows of 
	Inflows of 

	Resources 
	Resources 
	Resources 

	Difference Between Expected and
	Difference Between Expected and

	 Actual Experience 
	 Actual Experience 
	$ 
	-
	$ 
	(17) 

	Change in Assumptions 
	Change in Assumptions 
	1 
	(30) 

	Net Difference Between Projected and
	Net Difference Between Projected and

	 Actual Earnings on OPEB Plan
	 Actual Earnings on OPEB Plan

	 Investments 
	 Investments 
	10 
	-

	Change in Proportion 
	Change in Proportion 
	11 
	(10) 

	Difference between contributions
	Difference between contributions

	 and proportionate share of 
	 and proportionate share of 

	contributions 
	contributions 
	2 
	(1) 

	Total 
	Total 
	$ 
	24 
	$ 
	(58) 

	Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
	Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 

	Resources before Contributions 
	Resources before Contributions 

	Subsequent to the Measurement 
	Subsequent to the Measurement 

	Date (MD) 
	Date (MD) 
	(34) 

	Contributions Subsequent to the MD 
	Contributions Subsequent to the MD 
	54 

	Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
	Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 

	Resources after Contributions
	Resources after Contributions

	 Subsequent to the MD 
	 Subsequent to the MD 
	$ 
	20 


	Of the amount reported as deferred outflows of resources, $54 are related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ending June 30, 2022. 
	-

	At June 30, 2020, EOU reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to RHIPA OPEB from the following sources: 
	-

	Deferred Deferred Outflows of Inflows of 
	Deferred Deferred Outflows of Inflows of 
	Resources Resources 


	Difference Between Expected and
	 Actual Experience $ -$ (12) Change in Assumptions 2 
	-

	Net Difference Between Projected and
	 Actual Earnings on OPEB Plan
	 Investments -(1) 
	Change in Proportion 14 (1) Difference between contributions and proportionate share of contributions 1 Total $ 17 Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of Resources before Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement 
	-
	$ (14) 

	Date (MD) 3 Contributions Subsequent to the MD 51 Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
	Resources after Contributions
	 Subsequent to the MD $ 54 
	Of the amount reported as deferred outflows of resources, $51 are related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date and was recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. 
	-

	As of June 30, 2020, other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to RHIPA OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
	As of June 30, 2020, other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to RHIPA OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
	-

	Year Ended June 30: 
	2022 
	2022 
	2022 
	$ 
	(6) 

	2023 
	2023 
	(5) 

	2024 
	2024 
	(5) 

	2025 
	2025 
	(6) 

	2026 
	2026 
	(9) 

	thereafter 
	thereafter 
	(3) 

	TR
	$ 
	(34) 


	ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
	Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of projected benefits and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Experience studies are performed as of December 31 of even numbered years. 
	-
	-

	P
	Figure


	The following key methods and assumptions were used to measure the total RHIA OPEB liability: 
	The following key methods and assumptions were used to measure the total RHIA OPEB liability: 
	The following key methods and assumptions were used to measure the total RHIPA OPEB liability: 

	Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 
	Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 
	Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 

	TR
	RHIA 

	Fiscal Year 
	Fiscal Year 
	June 30, 2021 
	June 30, 2020 

	Valuation Date 
	Valuation Date 
	December 31, 2018 
	December 31, 2017 

	Measurement Date 
	Measurement Date 
	June 30, 2020 
	June 30, 2019 

	Experience Study Report 
	Experience Study Report 
	2018, published July 2019 
	2016, published July 2017 

	Actuarial Assumptions: 
	Actuarial Assumptions: 

	Actuarial Cost Method 
	Actuarial Cost Method 
	Entry Age Normal 

	Inflation Rate 
	Inflation Rate 
	2.50 percent 

	Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 
	Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 
	7.20 percent 

	Discount Rate 
	Discount Rate 
	7.20 percent 

	Projected Salary Increases 
	Projected Salary Increases 
	3.50 percent 

	Retiree Healthcare Participation 
	Retiree Healthcare Participation 
	Healthy retirees: 32%; Disabled retirees: 20% 
	Healthy retirees: 35%; Disabled retirees: 20% 

	Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 
	Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 
	Not applicable 

	Mortality 
	Mortality 
	Healthy retirees and beneficiaries: 

	Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation 
	Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation 
	RP-2014 Healthy annuitant, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with collar adjustments and setbacks as described in the valuation 
	-


	Active members: 
	Active members: 

	Pub-2010 Employee, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation 
	Pub-2010 Employee, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation 
	RP-2014 Employees, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with collar adjustments and setbacks as described in the valuation 
	-


	Disabled retirees: 
	Disabled retirees: 

	Pub-2010 Disabled Retriee, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation 
	Pub-2010 Disabled Retriee, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation 
	RP-2014 Disabled retriees, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale 


	Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 
	Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 
	Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 

	TR
	RHIPA 

	Fiscal Year 
	Fiscal Year 
	June 30, 2021 
	June 30, 2020 

	Valuation Date 
	Valuation Date 
	December 31, 2018 
	December 31, 2017 

	Measurement Date 
	Measurement Date 
	June 30, 2020 
	June 30, 2019 

	Experience Study Report 
	Experience Study Report 
	2018, published July 2019 
	2016, published July 2017 

	Actuarial Assumptions: 
	Actuarial Assumptions: 

	Actuarial Cost Method 
	Actuarial Cost Method 
	Entry Age Normal 

	Inflation Rate 
	Inflation Rate 
	2.50 percent 

	Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 
	Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 
	7.20 percent 

	Discount Rate 
	Discount Rate 
	7.20 percent 

	Projected Salary Increases 
	Projected Salary Increases 
	3.50 percent 

	Retiree Healthcare Participation 
	Retiree Healthcare Participation 
	8-14 Years of Service: 10% 15-19 Years of Servie: 15% 20-24 Years of Service: 19% 25-29 Years of Service: 26% 30+ Years of Service: 34% 
	8-14 Years of Service: 10% 15-19 Years of Servie: 18% 20-24 Years of Service: 23% 25-29 Years of Service: 29% 30+ Years of Service: 38% 

	Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 
	Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 
	Applied at beginning of plan year, starting with 7.1% for 2019, decreasing to 5.0% for 2022, increasing to 5.9% for 2031, and decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4.1% for 2094 and beyond. 
	Applied at beginning of plan year, starting with 7.5% for 2017, decreasing to 5.2% for 2024, increasing to 6.2% for 2029, and decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4.2% for 2093 and beyond. 

	Mortality 
	Mortality 
	Healthy retirees and beneficiaries: 

	Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation 
	Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation 
	RP-2014 Healthy annuitant, sex-distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with collar adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation 

	Active members: 
	Active members: 

	Pub-2010 Employee, sex-distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation 
	Pub-2010 Employee, sex-distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation 
	RP-2014 Employees, sex-distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with collar adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation 

	Disabled retirees: 
	Disabled retirees: 

	Pub-2010 Disabled Retriee, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation 
	Pub-2010 Disabled Retriee, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation 
	RP-2014 Disabled retirees, sex-distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale 


	DISCOUNT RATE 
	The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability/ (asset) at June 30, 2021 and 2020 was 7.20 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from contributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plans’ fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate 
	The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability/ (asset) at June 30, 2021 and 2020 was 7.20 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from contributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plans’ fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate 
	-

	all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 

	SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS 
	The sensitivity analysis below shows the sensitivity of the university’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/ (asset) to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the university’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/(asset) calculated using the discount rate of 7.20 percent as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, as well as what the net OPEB liability/(asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percent lower or one percent higher than the current rate: 
	-
	-
	-

	Discount Rate 
	Discount Rate 
	Discount Rate 
	RHIA 
	RHIPA 

	June 30, 2021 
	June 30, 2021 
	June 30, 2020 
	June 30, 2021 
	June 30, 2020 

	1% Decrease 6.20% 
	1% Decrease 6.20% 
	($60) 
	($231) 
	$62 
	$148 

	Current Discount Rate 7.20% 
	Current Discount Rate 7.20% 
	(75) 
	(298) 
	44 
	124 

	1% Increase 8.20% 
	1% Increase 8.20% 
	(87) 
	(355) 
	28 
	102 


	The sensitivity analysis below shows the sensitivity of the university’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/ (asset) calculated using the current healthcare cost trend rates, as well as what the net OPEB liability/(asset) would be if it were calculated using healthcare trend rates that are one percentage point lower, or one percentage point higher than the current rates: 
	Healthcare Cost Rate 
	Healthcare Cost Rate 
	Healthcare Cost Rate 
	RHIA 
	RHIPA 

	June 30, 2021 
	June 30, 2021 
	June 30, 2020 
	June 30, 2021 
	June 30, 2020 

	1% Decrease 
	1% Decrease 
	($75) 
	($298) 
	$31 
	$93 

	Current Trend Rate 
	Current Trend Rate 
	(75) 
	(298) 
	44 
	124 

	1% Increase 
	1% Increase 
	(75) 
	(298) 
	61 
	159 


	ASSUMED ASSET ALLOCATION 
	Asset Class/ Strategy 
	Asset Class/ Strategy 
	Asset Class/ Strategy 
	Low Range 
	High Range 
	OIC Target 

	Debt Securities 
	Debt Securities 
	15.00 % 
	25.00 % 
	20.00 % 

	Public Equity 
	Public Equity 
	27.50 
	37.50 
	32.50 

	Private Equity 
	Private Equity 
	14.00 
	21.00 
	17.50 

	Real Estate 
	Real Estate 
	9.50 
	15.50 
	12.50 

	Alternative Investments 
	Alternative Investments 
	7.50 
	17.50 
	15.00 

	Opportunity Portfolio 
	Opportunity Portfolio 
	0.00 
	3.00 
	0.00 

	Risk Parity 
	Risk Parity 
	0.00 
	2.50 
	2.50 

	Total 
	Total 
	100 % 


	LONG-TERM EXPECTED RATE OF RETURN 
	To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the longterm expected rate of return assumption, in May 2019 the PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman’s capital market assumptions team and the OIC investment advisors. Each asset assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are not based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forward-looking capital market economic model
	To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the longterm expected rate of return assumption, in May 2019 the PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman’s capital market assumptions team and the OIC investment advisors. Each asset assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are not based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forward-looking capital market economic model
	-
	-
	-

	folio, assumed asset allocation, and the long-term expected rate of return for each major asset class, calculated using both arithmetic and geometric means, see PERS’ audited financial statements at: cials/actuarial-financial-information.aspx 
	-
	www.oregon.gov/pers/pages/finan
	-


	The following table shows long-term expected rate of return by asset class: 
	The following table shows long-term expected rate of return by asset class: 
	Asset Class 
	Asset Class 
	Asset Class 
	Target 
	Compound Annual Return (Geometric) 

	Core Fixed Income
	Core Fixed Income
	 9.60%
	 4.07% 

	Short-Term Bonds 
	Short-Term Bonds 
	9.60 
	3.68 

	Bank/Leveraged Loans 
	Bank/Leveraged Loans 
	3.60 
	5.19 

	High Yield Bonds 
	High Yield Bonds 
	1.20 
	5.74 

	Large/Mid Cap US Equities 
	Large/Mid Cap US Equities 
	16.17 
	6.30 

	Small Cap US Equities 
	Small Cap US Equities 
	1.35 
	6.68 

	Micro Cap US Equities 
	Micro Cap US Equities 
	1.35 
	6.79 

	Developed Foreign Equities 
	Developed Foreign Equities 
	13.48 
	6.91 

	Emerging Market Equities 
	Emerging Market Equities 
	4.24 
	7.69 

	Non-US Small Cap Equities 
	Non-US Small Cap Equities 
	1.93 
	7.25 

	Private Equity 
	Private Equity 
	17.50 
	8.33 

	Real Estate (Property) 
	Real Estate (Property) 
	10.00 
	5.55 

	Real Estate (REITS) 
	Real Estate (REITS) 
	2.50 
	6.69 

	Hedge Fund of Funds Diversified 
	Hedge Fund of Funds Diversified 
	-

	1.50 
	4.06 

	Hedge Fund -Event-driven 
	Hedge Fund -Event-driven 
	0.38 
	5.59 

	Timber 
	Timber 
	1.13 
	5.61 

	Farmland 
	Farmland 
	1.13 
	6.12 

	Infrastructure 
	Infrastructure 
	2.25 
	6.67 

	Commodities 
	Commodities 
	1.13 
	3.79 

	Assumed Inflation – Mean 
	Assumed Inflation – Mean 
	2.50% 


	DEPLETION DATE PROJECTION 
	GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, generally requires that a blended discount rate be used to measure the Total OPEB Liability (the Actuarial Accrued Liability calculated using the Individual Entry Age Normal Cost Method). The long-term expected return on plan investments may be used to discount liabilities to the extent that the plan’s Fiduciary Net Position (fair market value of assets) is projected to cover benefit payments and admin
	GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, generally requires that a blended discount rate be used to measure the Total OPEB Liability (the Actuarial Accrued Liability calculated using the Individual Entry Age Normal Cost Method). The long-term expected return on plan investments may be used to discount liabilities to the extent that the plan’s Fiduciary Net Position (fair market value of assets) is projected to cover benefit payments and admin
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	plate a specific method for making an alternative evaluation of sufficiency; it is left to professional judgment. 


	The following circumstances justify an alternative evaluation of sufficiency for Oregon PERS: 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Oregon PERS has a formal written policy to calculate an actuarially determined contribution (ADC), which is articulated in the actuarial valuation report. 

	* 
	* 
	The ADC is based on a closed, layered amortization period, which means that payment of the full ADC each year will bring the plan to a 100 percent funded position by the end of the amortization period if future experience follows assumption. 

	* 
	* 
	GASB Statement No. 75 specifies that the projections regarding future solvency assume that plan assets earn the assumed rate of return and there are no future changes in the plan provisions or actuarial methods and assumptions, which means that the projections would not reflect any adverse future experience that might impact the plan’s funded position. 


	Based on these circumstances, it is the independent actuary’s opinion that the detailed depletion date projections outlined in GASB Statement No. 75 would clearly indicate that the fiduciary net position is always projected to be sufficient to cover benefit payments and administrative expenses. 
	B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ BENEFIT BOARD (PEBB) 
	B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ BENEFIT BOARD (PEBB) 
	PLAN DESCRIPTION 
	EOU participates in a defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan administered by the Public Employees Benefit Board (PEBB). This plan offers healthcare assistance to eligible retired employees and their beneficiaries. Chapter 243 of the Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) gives PEBB the authority to establish and amend the benefit provisions of the PEBB Plan. The PEBB Plan is considered a multi-employer cost-sharing plan for financial reporting purposes and is not administered through a trust. PEBB does not i
	-
	-
	-

	The PEBB Plan allows qualifying retired employees to continue their “active” health insurance coverage on a self-pay basis until they are eligible for Medicare. Participating retirees pay their own monthly premiums. However, the premium amount is based on a blended rate that is determined by pooling the qualifying retirees with active employees, thus, creating an “implicit rate subsidy”. 
	-
	-

	SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
	Employers participating in PEBB are required to report OPEB information in their financial statements for fiscal periods beginning on or after June 15, 2017, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. 
	-
	-

	The requirements of this Statement incorporate provisions intended to reflect the effects of transactions and events related to OPEB in the measurement of employer liabilities and recognition of OPEB expense and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB. 
	PROPORTIONATE SHARE ALLOCATION METHODOLOGY 
	The basis for the employer’s proportion is determined by comparing the employer’s actual contributions made during the fiscal year with the total actual contributions made in the fiscal year of all employers. 
	TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY 
	At June 30, 2021, the university reported a liability of $1,021 for its proportionate share of the total OPEB liability. The total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2021 was measured as of June 30, 2021, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019. At June 30, 2020, the university reported a liability of $992 for its proportionate share of the total OPEB liability. The total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2020 was measured as of June 30, 2020, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as o
	-
	-

	For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, EOU recorded total OPEB expense of $68 and $85 due to the increase in the total OPEB liability and changes to deferred outflows and deferred inflows. 
	DEFERRED ITEMS 
	Deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources are calculated at the system-wide level and are allocated to employers based on their proportionate share. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, deferred items include: 
	-
	-

	* 
	* 
	* 
	Difference between expected and actual experience 

	* 
	* 
	Difference due to changes in assumptions 

	* 
	* 
	Changes in employer proportion since the prior measurement date 

	* 
	* 
	Difference between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions 


	Changes in assumption and changes in proportion are amortized over the closed period equal to the average expected remaining service lives of all covered active and inactive participants. Employers are required to recognize OPEB ex
	Changes in assumption and changes in proportion are amortized over the closed period equal to the average expected remaining service lives of all covered active and inactive participants. Employers are required to recognize OPEB ex
	-
	-
	-

	pense based on the balance of the closed period “layers” attributable to each measurement period. The weighted average expected remaining service lives, assuming zero years for all retirees, determined as of the beginning of each measurement period are as follows: 
	-
	-


	* 
	* 
	* 
	Measurement period ended June 30, 2021 - 8.6 years 

	* 
	* 
	Measurement period ended June 30, 2020 - 8.6 years 

	* 
	* 
	Measurement period ended June 30, 2019 - 8.2 years 

	* 
	* 
	Measurement period ended June 30, 2018 - 8.2 years 


	One year of amortization is recognized in the university’s total OPEB expense for fiscal years 2021 and 2020. 
	-

	At June 30, 2021, EOU reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 
	-

	Deferred Deferred 
	Deferred Deferred 
	Outflows of Inflows of 
	Resources Resources 

	Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience $ -$ (4) 
	Change in Assumptions 25 (125) Change in Proportion 4 (47) Difference between contributions
	 and proportionate share of contributions 2 Total $ 31 Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of Resources $ (145) 
	-
	$ (176) 

	At June 30, 2020, EOU reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 
	-

	Deferred Deferred Outflows of Inflows of 
	Deferred Deferred Outflows of Inflows of 
	Resources Resources 


	Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience $ -$ (5) 
	Change in Assumptions 25 (146) Change in Proportion 5 (54) Difference between contributions
	 and proportionate share of contributions 3 Total $ 33 Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of Resources $ (172) 
	-
	$ (205) 

	As of June 30, 2021, amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
	Year Ended June 30: 2022 $ (23) 2023 (23) 2024 (23) 2025 (23) 2026 (21) Thereafter (32) 
	Year Ended June 30: 2022 $ (23) 2023 (23) 2024 (23) 2025 (23) 2026 (21) Thereafter (32) 
	$ (145) 
	ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
	Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of projected benefits and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The following key methods and assumptions were used to measure the total OPEB liability: 
	-
	-
	-

	Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 
	Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 
	Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 

	Measurement Date 
	Measurement Date 
	June 30, 2021 
	June 30, 2020 

	Valuation Date 
	Valuation Date 
	July 1, 2019 
	July 1, 2019 

	Actuarial Assumptions: 
	Actuarial Assumptions: 

	Actuarial Cost Method 
	Actuarial Cost Method 
	Entry Age Normal 

	Inflation Rate 
	Inflation Rate 
	2.50 percent 

	Discount Rate 
	Discount Rate 
	2.16 percent 
	2.21 percent 

	Projected Salary Increases 
	Projected Salary Increases 
	3.50 percent 

	Withdrawal, retirement, and mortality rates 
	Withdrawal, retirement, and mortality rates 
	December 31, 2018 Oregon PERS valuation 

	Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 
	Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 
	Pursuant to ORS 243.135(8), growth in per-member expenditures under self-insured plans and premium amounts is assumed to be 3.40% per year. 

	Election and lapse rates 
	Election and lapse rates 
	30% of eligible employees 

	60% spouse coverage for males, 35% for females 
	60% spouse coverage for males, 35% for females 

	7% annual lapse rate 
	7% annual lapse rate 


	DISCOUNT RATE 
	Unfunded plans must use a discount rate that reflects a 20year tax-exempt municipal bond yield or index rate. The Bond Buyer 20-Year General Obligation Bond Index was used to determine the discount rate for the OPEB liability. The discount rate in effect for the June 30, 2021 and 2020 reporting dates was 2.16 percent and 2.21 percent, respectively. 
	-
	-

	SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS 
	The sensitivity analysis below shows the sensitivity of the university’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the university’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability calculated using the discount rate of 2.16 percent as of June 30, 2021 and 2.21 percent as of June 30, 2020, as well as what the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percent lower or one percent higher than the current ra
	-
	-

	Discount Rate 
	Discount Rate 
	Discount Rate 
	June 30, 2021 
	June 30, 2020 

	1% Decrease 1.16%/1.21% 
	1% Decrease 1.16%/1.21% 
	$1,094 
	$1,063 

	Current Discount Rate 2.16%/2.21% 
	Current Discount Rate 2.16%/2.21% 
	1,021 
	992 

	1% Increase 3.16%/3.21% 
	1% Increase 3.16%/3.21% 
	952 
	925 



	The sensitivity analysis below shows the sensitivity of the university’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability calculated using the current healthcare cost trend rates, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare trend rates that are one percentage point lower, or one percentage point higher than the current rates: 
	-

	Healthcare Cost Rate 
	Healthcare Cost Rate 
	Healthcare Cost Rate 
	Healthcare Cost Rate 
	June 30, 2021 
	June 30, 2020 

	1% Decrease 
	1% Decrease 
	$919 
	$893 

	Current Trend Rate 
	Current Trend Rate 
	1,021 
	992 

	1% Increase 
	1% Increase 
	1,142 
	1,109 



	16. FUNDS HELD IN TRUST BY OTHERS 
	Funds held in trust by others, for which EOU is an income beneficiary, are not recorded in the financial records. The approximate value of such trust funds at June 30, 2021 and 2020, was $3,806 and $2,998, respectively. 
	-

	17. RISK FINANCING 
	EOU is a member of the Public Universities Risk Management and Insurance Trust (trust). The trust is a separate legal entity which operates for the benefit of the member universities (members). The trust is governed by a Board of Trustees comprised of a representative of each member of the trust. The trustees administer an insurance program wherein the members share risk by pooling their losses and claims and jointly purchasing insurance and administrative services through the trust. In exchange, members pa
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	* 
	* 
	* 
	real property loss for university owned building, equipment, automobiles and other types of property; 

	* 
	* 
	tort liability claims brought against the university, its officers, employees or agents; 

	* 
	* 
	workers’ compensation and employers liability; 

	* 
	* 
	crime, fiduciary; 

	* 
	* 
	cyber security; and 

	* 
	* 
	specialty lines of business including: medical practicums, international travel, fine art, camps, clinics and other items. 


	EOU retains risk for losses under $5, which is the deductible per claim for insurance purchased through the trust. 
	EOU is charged an assessment to cover the trust’s cost of servicing claims and payments based on the risk allocation model and actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and current-year claims. The amount of settlements has not exceeded insurance coverage in the last three years. 
	In addition, EOU purchases various commercial insurance policies to cover the deductible amounts of intercollegiate ath
	In addition, EOU purchases various commercial insurance policies to cover the deductible amounts of intercollegiate ath
	-
	-

	letics insurance provided through the National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics, and to provide coverage for special events and student liability. 

	18. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
	As of June 30, 2021, EOU had $9,487 in outstanding commitments on partially completed and planned but not initiated construction projects. These commitments will be primarily funded from bond proceeds, gifts and grants. 
	-

	EOU is contingently liable in connection with certain other claims and contracts, including those currently in litigation, arising in the normal course of its activities. Management is of the opinion that the outcome of such matters will not have a material effect on the financial statements. 
	EOU participates in certain federal grant programs. These programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by the grantor or its representative. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursement to the grantor for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant. Management believes that disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the financial statements. 
	Unemployment compensation claims are administered by the Oregon Employment Division pursuant to ORS Chapter 657, or other appropriate governmental entity depending on employee location. EOU reimburses the appropriate governmental entity for actual benefits paid. Each year resources are budgeted to pay current charges. The amount of future benefit payments to claimants and the resulting liability to EOU cannot be reasonably determined at June 30, 2021. 
	-

	19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
	EOU management has reviewed events and transactions that occurred subsequent to the Statement of Net Position date of June 30, 2021, and found none that required adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements. 
	20. UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION 
	Under policies approved by the board, individual university foundations may be established to provide assistance in fund raising, public outreach and other support for the mission of EOU. The EOU Foundation is a legally separate, tax-exempt entity with an independent governing board. Although EOU does not control the timing or amount of receipts from the foundation, the majority of resources, or income thereon, that the foundation holds and invests are restricted to the activities of the university by the d
	-
	-

	Please see the financial statements for the EOU component unit on pages 23 and 25 of this report. 
	During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 gifts of $761 and $687, respectively, were transferred from the foundation to EOU. The university and the foundation have an agreement for services and use of facilities and university employees that perform foundation functions. The university paid $263 and $225 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, in compensation and benefits for university employees performing foundation functions. 
	-

	Complete financial statements for the foundation may be obtained online at: dation or by writing to the following: 
	-
	www.eou.edu/foundation/about-the-foun
	-

	* Eastern Oregon University Foundation, One University Blvd., La Grande, OR 97850-2807 
	Figure
	REQUIREDSUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
	SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY CONTRIBUTIONS 
	SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY PERS RHIA OPEB EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION
	Public Employees Retirement System 
	For Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 
	For Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
	Contractually Required
	Contractually Required

	 Contribution $ 2,578 $ 2,418 $ 1,695 $ 1,639 $ 1,111 $ 1,069 $ 875 $ 898 $ 855 $ 875 Actuarially Determined Contributions in Relation to 
	Contributions$ 2$ 2$ 74$ 70$ 69$ 64$ 67$ 66$ 64$ 66
	1 

	 the Contractually 
	 the Contractually 

	Contributions in Relation to the
	Required Contribution 2,578 2,418 1,695 1,639 1,111 1,069 875 898 855 875
	 Actuarially Determined 
	Contribution Deficiency(Excess) $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
	-

	Contributions 2 2 74 70 69 64 67 66 64 66 
	University's Covered Payroll $ 18,226 $ 16,849 $ 16,381 $ 15,477 $ 14,441 $ 13,330 $ 12,474 $ 12,332 $ 12,005 $ 12,179 
	Contribution Deficiency(Excess) $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
	-

	Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 14.14% 14.35% 10.35% 10.59% 7.69% 8.02% 7.01% 7.28% 7.12% 7.18% 
	Covered Payroll $ 18,226 $ 16,849 $ 16,381 $ 15,477 $ 14,441 $ 13,330 $ 12,474 $ 12,332 $ 11,671 $ 11,905 
	Contributions as a Percentage of
	 Covered Payroll 0.01% 0.01% 0.45% 0.45% 0.48% 0.48% 0.54% 0.54% 0.55% 0.55% 
	SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE 
	NET PENSION ASSET/(LIABILITY)* 
	Public Employees Retirement System For Actuarial Assumptions and Methods, see table in Note 15 
	1

	As of the Measurement Date June 30, 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 
	University's Proportion of the Net Pension Asset/(Liability) 0.12% 0.12% 0.12% 0.12% 0.12% 0.11% 
	University's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension $ (26,950) $ (20,815) $ (17,734) $ (16,689) $ (18,079) $ (6,294) University's Covered Payroll $ 16,849 $ 16,381 $ 15,477 $ 14,441 $ 13,330 $ 12,474 University's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 
	Asset/(Liability) as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll 159.95% 127.07% 114.58% 115.57% 135.63% 50.46% Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension 
	Asset/(Liability) 75.79% 80.23% 82.07% 83.12% 80.53% 91.88% 
	0.11% 0.11% 
	0.11% 0.11% 

	SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PERS RHIA OPEB ASSET/(LIABILITY)* 
	$ 2,475 $ (5,571) $ 12,332 $ 12,005 
	$ 2,475 $ (5,571) $ 12,332 $ 12,005 

	As of the Measurement Date June 30, 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 
	20.07% -46.41% 
	20.07% -46.41% 

	University's Proportion of the Net RHIA OPEB Asset/(Liability) 0.04% 0.15% 0.14% 0.14% 0.13% 103.59% 91.97% University's Proportionate Share of the Net RHIA OPEB Asset/(Liability) $ 75 $ 298 $ 157 $ 58 $ (36) University's Covered Payroll $ 16,849 $ 16,381 $ 15,477 $ 14,441 $ 13,330 University's Proportionate Share of the Net RHIA OPEB Asset/(Liability) as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 0.45% 1.82% 1.01% 0.40% 0.27% Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total RHIA OPEB Asset/(Liability) 150.09%
	*These tables will eventually contain 10 years of data. Only the data shown above is available at this time. 
	*These tables will eventually contain 10 years of data. Only the data shown above is available at this time. 
	SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY PERS RHIPA OPEB EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 
	For Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 
	Actuarially Determined 
	Actuarially Determined 
	Actuarially Determined 

	Contributions1 
	Contributions1 
	$ 
	54 
	$ 
	51 
	$ 
	68 
	$ 
	64 
	$ 
	55 
	$ 
	51 
	$ 
	29 
	$ 
	29 
	$ 
	16 
	$ 
	17 

	Contributions in Relation to the
	Contributions in Relation to the

	 Actuarially Determined 
	 Actuarially Determined 

	Contributions 
	Contributions 
	54 
	51 
	68 
	64 
	55 
	51 
	29 
	29 
	16 
	17 


	Contribution Deficiency(Excess) $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
	-

	Covered Payroll $ 18,226 $ 16,849 $ 16,381 $ 15,477 $ 14,441 $ 13,330 $ 12,474 $ 12,332 $ 11,671 $ 11,905 Contributions as a Percentage of
	 Covered Payroll 0.30% 0.30% 0.42% 0.41% 0.38% 0.38% 0.23% 0.24% 0.14% 0.14% 
	For Actuarial Assumptions and Methods, see table in Note 15 
	For Actuarial Assumptions and Methods, see table in Note 15 
	1


	SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PERS RHIPA OPEB LIABILITY* 
	As of the Measurement Date June 30, 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 University's Proportion of the Net RHIPA OPEB Liability 0.45% 0.49% 0.48% 0.45% 0.45% University's Proportionate Share of the Net RHIPA OPEB Liability $ 45 $ 124 $ 168 $ 211 $ 241 University's Covered Payroll $ 16,849 $ 16,381 $ 15,477 $ 14,441 $ 13,330 
	University's Proportionate Share of the Net RHIPA OPEB Liability as a Percentage of
	 Covered Payroll 0.27% 0.76% 1.09% 1.46% 1.81% Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total RHIPA OPEB Liability 84.45% 64.86% 49.79% 34.25% 21.87% 
	SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE 
	TOTAL PEBB OPEB LIABILITY* 
	As of June 30, 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 University's Allocation of the Total OPEB Liability 0.68% 0.68% 0.70% 0.72% 0.00% University's Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB Liability $ 1,021 $ 992 $ 1,122 $ 1,068 $ 1,033 University's Covered Payroll $ 21,283 $ 20,208 $ 20,366 $ 19,359 $ 18,454 University's Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB Liability as a
	 Percentage of University Covered Payroll 4.80% 4.91% 5.51% 5.52% 5.60% 
	Total OPEB Liability as a % of Total Covered Payroll 4.31% 3.77% 4.31% 4.42% 4.45% 
	Figure
	*These tables will eventually contain 10 years of data. Only the data shown above is available at this time. 
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	SUPPORT 
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	LETTER FROM THE PRESIDENT 
	To our alumni, friends, and philanthropic partners, 
	On behalf of the Eastern Oregon University Foundation, and its directors and trustees, I would like to thank our generous alumni, donors, friends, and partners for your continued support. 
	Your role is critical to the EOU Foundation’s goal of ensuring that every student has access to higher education. You can be very proud that the EOU Foundation awarded over $750,000 in scholarships this past year! 
	We believe that Eastern Oregon University has a transforming impact on students, alumni, and the communities we serve. Our philanthropic investments are aimed at supporting this transformation. 
	We believe education is a great equalizer for underserved people, businesses, and communities. The impact for EOU students is particularly strong with our large proportion of first-generation and low-income students. 
	The EOU Foundation strategic plan objectives are focused on themes of 1) engaging with alumni, friends, and philanthropic partners; 2) dramatically growing our endowment; and 
	3) increasing the number of scholarships awarded annually. Achieving these objectives will help make college education a reality for more students, enable faculty and programs to achieve national distinction, and ensure the continued vitality of Eastern Oregon University. 
	Looking into next year, the EOU Foundation will “Engage, Invest, and Enhance” as we grow our endowment and increase scholarships. Your support will help realize our shared vision of “Funding the Future—Enriching Lives” and make the dream of higher education a reality for future Mountaineers. 
	Sincerely, 
	Sincerely, 

	Figure
	Mark Pearson, ’77  | President, EOU Foundation 
	“We believe that Eastern Oregon University has a transforming impact on students, alumni, and the communities we serve. Our philanthropic investments are aimed at supporting this transformation.” — MARK PEARSON, ’77 
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	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DECEMBER 31, 2020 
	ASSETS NET ASSETS:
	EOU 
	EOU 

	CASH $ 3,447,939 WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS INVESTMENTS 15,898,640 UNDESIGNATED $ 841,204 PLEDGES RECEIVABLE, NET 365,507 BOARD DESIGNATED
	FOUNDATION 
	ASSETS HELD UNDER SPLIT-INTEREST FOR OTHER PURPOSES 246,533 AGREEMENTS 496,448 BOARD DESIGNATED QUASI 
	BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN CHARITABLE ENDOWMENT 160,490
	2021 
	2021 

	TRUSTS HELD BY OTHERS 351,230 WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 1,100,339 PURPOSE RESTRICTED 7,943,827 _____________ PERPECTUAL IN NATURE 10,774,432
	FINANCIAL 
	TOTAL ASSETS $ 21,660,103 _____________ TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 19,966,486
	REPORT 
	LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 
	TOTAL LIABILITIES AND LIABILITIES: 
	NET ASSETS $ 21,660,103 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 19,024 _____________ DUE TO AFFILIATE 1,601,834 REVOCABLE DONOR ENDOWMENT 72,759 
	TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 1,693,617 
	The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
	NEWLY ESTABLISHED FUNDS IN 2020 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Patrick Burke Football Scholarship * Scott Fairley Memorial Scholarship * Neely Physcial Health Scholarship 


	* 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla * Fenton Family Scholarship * Pendleton Foundation Trust Scholarship Scholarship



	* Learning Disabilities Foundation 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	Connected Professional Accountants Scholarship * Walter S. Sutton Scholarship Accounting Scholarship 



	* Library Support Fund - Burgess Estate * Beatrice Warren Memorial Scholarship 
	* 
	* 
	* 
	EOU Coaching Excellence Award 


	* Lund Last Lap Endowed Scholarship 
	* Lund Last Lap Endowed Scholarship 

	* 
	* 
	* 
	EOU Teacher Excellence Award 



	* Nearing EOU Deans Fund for Excellence 
	* Nearing EOU Deans Fund for Excellence 
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	FOUNDATION YEAR 
	IN REVIEW 
	2021 EOU 
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	089 
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 
	CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
	CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
	CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

	Change in net assets 
	Change in net assets 
	$ 2,073,102 

	Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to 
	Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to 

	net cash from operating activities 
	net cash from operating activities 

	Depreciation 
	Depreciation 
	2,395 

	Net revaluation of split-interest agreement and other trusts 
	Net revaluation of split-interest agreement and other trusts 
	(34,995) 

	Endowment contributions, including pledges receivable 
	Endowment contributions, including pledges receivable 
	(423,583) 

	(Increase) decrease in value of investments 
	(Increase) decrease in value of investments 

	including reinvested dividends and interest 
	including reinvested dividends and interest 
	(1,431,356) 

	(Increase) decrease in non-endowment pledges receivable 
	(Increase) decrease in non-endowment pledges receivable 
	87,905 

	Increase (decrease) in due to affiliate 
	Increase (decrease) in due to affiliate 
	121,110 

	Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
	Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
	970 

	TR
	_____________ 

	Net case provided by operating activities
	Net case provided by operating activities
	 $ 395,548 

	TR
	_____________ 

	CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
	CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

	Purchases if investments 
	Purchases if investments 
	$ (1,255,832) 

	Proceeds from sale of investments 
	Proceeds from sale of investments 
	$ 652,714 

	TR
	_____________ 

	Net case used by investment activities 
	Net case used by investment activities 
	$ (603,118) 

	TR
	_____________ 

	CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
	CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

	Proceeds from endowment gifts including collection of pledges 
	Proceeds from endowment gifts including collection of pledges 
	356,693 

	TR
	_____________ 

	Net cash provided by financing activities 
	Net cash provided by financing activities 
	$ 356,693 


	Net increase in cash 149,123 Cash, beginning of year 3,298,816 
	Cash, end of year $ 3,447,939 
	EOU Foundation Scholarship Awards 
	$900,000 $800,000 $700,000 $600,000 $500,000 $400,000 $300,000 $200,000 
	$900,000 $800,000 $700,000 $600,000 $500,000 $400,000 $300,000 $200,000 

	Note: Net gift revenue for EOU 
	$100,000 
	$100,000 

	Foundation only and does not include any trust activity. 
	Figure
	07-08 08-09 09-10 10-11 11-12 12-13 13-14 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21 21-22 
	07-08 08-09 09-10 10-11 11-12 12-13 13-14 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21 21-22 
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	EOU FOUNDATION 
	FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
	2021 EOU 
	ANNUAL REPORT 
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	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 
	Without Donor With Donor Restrictions Restrictions Total____ 
	REVENUE AND GAINS: 
	REVENUE AND GAINS: 
	REVENUE AND GAINS: 

	Contributions 
	Contributions 
	$ 180,957 

	Contributions - Shared employees 
	Contributions - Shared employees 
	287,741 

	Grants 
	Grants 
	-

	Investment income (loss) 
	Investment income (loss) 
	25,574 

	Administrative assessments 
	Administrative assessments 
	212,198 

	Special event revenue 
	Special event revenue 
	564 

	Rental income 
	Rental income 
	-

	Net revaluation of split-interest agreements 
	Net revaluation of split-interest agreements 

	and other trusts 
	and other trusts 
	-

	Donor requested transfers 
	Donor requested transfers 
	2,390 

	Other revenue 
	Other revenue 
	3,674 

	TR
	_____________ 

	Total revenues and gains
	Total revenues and gains
	 713,098 

	TR
	_____________ 

	NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS: 
	NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS: 

	Expiration of program & time restrictions 
	Expiration of program & time restrictions 
	712,561 

	TR
	_____________ 

	Total revenues, gains and other support
	Total revenues, gains and other support
	 1,425,659 

	TR
	_____________ 

	EXPENSES: 
	EXPENSES: 

	Administrative 
	Administrative 
	248,630 

	Fundraising support 
	Fundraising support 
	305,985 

	Other University support 
	Other University support 
	706,955 

	TR
	_____________ 

	TOTAL EXPENSES
	TOTAL EXPENSES
	 1,261,570 

	TR
	_____________ 

	Increase (decrease) in net assets 
	Increase (decrease) in net assets 
	164,089 

	TR
	_____________ 

	Net assets, beginning of year 
	Net assets, beginning of year 
	1,084,138 

	TR
	_____________ 

	Net assets, end of year 
	Net assets, end of year 
	$ 1,2,48,227 

	TR
	_____________ 

	TR
	_____________ 


	Calendar Year 2020 Gifts by Designation 
	2% Athletics 9% Unrestricted 
	57% Scholarships 5% Building & Equipment 27% Other Program/Acadmic Support 
	$ 1,205,192 $ 1,386.149 -287,741 11,867 11,867 1,191,726 1,217,300 -212,198 6,476 7,040 82,251 82,251 
	$ 1,205,192 $ 1,386.149 -287,741 11,867 11,867 1,191,726 1,217,300 -212,198 6,476 7,040 82,251 82,251 
	125,266 125,266 (2,390) 1,186 4,860 
	-

	2,621,574 3,334,672 
	(712,561) 
	-

	1,909,013 3,334,672 
	-248,630 -305,985 -706,955 
	-1,261,570 
	1,909,013 2,073,102 16,809,246 17,893,384 
	$ 18,718,259 $ 19,966,486 
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	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 
	Fundraising Other University Administrative Support Support Total____ 
	Salaried and related expenses $ 154,114 $ 133,627 -$ 287,741 Services and supplies 2,592 77,248 155,933 235,773 Student aid --546,199 546,199 Events --4,823 4,823 License, membership & fees 2,219 4,995 -7,214 Insurance 4,524 --4,524 Contracted services 36,892 33,949 -70,841 Purchased services, research, and lists -3,490 -3,490 Maintenance 39,925 --39,925 Postage -18,258 -18,258 Printing -23,876 -23,876 Recognition and stewardship -6,674 -6,674 Meeting expense 862 --862 Training and travel -3,868 -3,868 Adve
	-

	$ 248,630 $ 305,985 $ 706,955 $ 1,261,570 
	Calendar Year 2020 Expenses by Designation 
	20% Administrative Support 44% Student Aid 
	24% Fundraising Support 
	Figure

	12% Other University Support 
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	PROGRAMS & ACTIVITIES 
	SUPPORTED 
	Alumni Program 
	Art Dept. Support - media, print making, graphics and pottery Arts East Publication Ars Poetica Athletic Support Basalt Publication Badgley Science Equipment Big Idea Fund Campus Events to Support Students, 
	Faculty, Classified Staff and Administrative Staff Career Center Campus Carillon Chemistry Club Choir Program Conectate Event
	Figure
	The EOU Foundation supports a wide array of programs and activities 
	Concert Piano Equipment 
	at the University, above and beyond funding for scholarships. The 
	Clock Tower and Carillon Music 
	Collegiate Athletic Program Support Conference Attendance for Students 
	following pages contain a brief list of some areas of support that the 
	Foundation is able to provide, through the various funds from our 
	Crisis Support for Students in Need
	generous donors. 
	generous donors. 

	(from Glasses to Travel, Rent and many other areas) 
	Dean Support Funds E-sports Support Education Dept. Equipment English Writing Program Support EOU Academic Marketing Program EOU Drumline EOU Governing Board Equipment for Sciences Dept. Faculty Support for Professional 
	Publications and Development Fieldhouse Fine Arts Flag Preservation Geology Program Hermiston Center Support High School Outreach and Summer 
	Institute 
	Institute 

	Historical Buildings on Campus Support Hoke Renovation Holiday Music Festival Honors Program Honorariums and Memorials International Student Event Internship Program Fund KickStart Program Library Support EOU Marketing Dept. Media Program McKenzie Farm Support McKenzie Theatre Mountaineer Athletic Association Multicultural Center Program Support Music Ensemble Program Music Program and Equipment Nightingale Gallery OHSU Rita Monahan Support Fund 
	OHSU Nursing Club 
	OHSU Nursing Club 
	OHSU Nursing Club 
	One-Up Club Oregon East Publication Outdoor Program Partner Programs with BMCC, TVCC, 

	EOU 
	OHSU, OSU 
	Physical Health and Science Computer Lab Polo Club Pottery Program PowWow Event Presidents Innovative Fund President’s Support Fund Professional development for Faculty Professorships Psychology Program Support Rodeo Club Science Dept Equipment Science Journal Support Fund Stadium improvements Staircase Restoration Stenard Gardens Student Crisis Fund Student Media Group Student Recruitment Fund Student Summer Research Support Teacher Licensure Support Theatre Program Track and Field improvements Trap Club T
	Staff 
	University Grant Program - Student Clubs Week of Welcome Activities Women’s Resources Center 
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	LEGACY SOCIETY 
	Figure
	The Legacy Society includes those individuals who have included the EOU Foundation in their estate. 
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	Sect
	Figure

	Figure
	Sect
	Figure

	LEGACY SOCIETY MEMBERS 
	Estate of Grace M. Scully Estate of Elizabeth R. Bohnenkamp Mike and Bobbi Allstott Donald and Trudy Anderson Margaret Anderson Estate of Roy Benedict Carol and Doug Campbell Richard and Kathleen Chaves Joy Cleaver Michael and Susan Daugherty Steven De Hart and Sheldon Donig Estate of Alma B. Trask Estate of Charles and Rhoda Chollet Estate of Gordan Cochran Estate of Jennie A. White Estate of Joy Dobbin Estate of Paul H. Lewis Estate of Pauline Harris Sharon Evoy and Jerome Sebestyen Estate of Rema Fleener
	Estate of Grace M. Scully Estate of Elizabeth R. Bohnenkamp Mike and Bobbi Allstott Donald and Trudy Anderson Margaret Anderson Estate of Roy Benedict Carol and Doug Campbell Richard and Kathleen Chaves Joy Cleaver Michael and Susan Daugherty Steven De Hart and Sheldon Donig Estate of Alma B. Trask Estate of Charles and Rhoda Chollet Estate of Gordan Cochran Estate of Jennie A. White Estate of Joy Dobbin Estate of Paul H. Lewis Estate of Pauline Harris Sharon Evoy and Jerome Sebestyen Estate of Rema Fleener
	Pat and Joan Kelly Estate of Carol Kennell Estate of Irma Klinghammer Lawrence Koppy William Ralston Lindley, Jr. Dixie and Ed Lund Jim and Judy Lundy Keith Masterson Bob and Bev Moody Estate of Janice Neely 

	G. Susanna Ogston Anne Olson John Patterson Lanetta S. Paul Mark and Stacy Pearson Robert R. Peshall Michael Rosenbaum Judith and Lawrence Sale Donald and Sarah Stearns Elmer Stone Lloyd and Carole Trilling Honorable Eric and 
	G. Susanna Ogston Anne Olson John Patterson Lanetta S. Paul Mark and Stacy Pearson Robert R. Peshall Michael Rosenbaum Judith and Lawrence Sale Donald and Sarah Stearns Elmer Stone Lloyd and Carole Trilling Honorable Eric and 
	Mrs. Meg Valentine Peter Wordelman and Lisa Ladendorff 
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	HONOR ROLL OF 
	DONORS 
	Figure
	The EOU Foundation wishes to recognize and thank all of our donors in 2020. The lists on the following pages recognize each donor who gave by cash, pledge, gifts-in-kind or bequest to the Foundation, including gifts to the EOU Mountaineer Athletic Association and the many other organizations at the University. Donors are listed by the total amount given in 2020. The Foundation’s Fiscal Year runs January 1 - December 31. 
	Every effort has been made to acknowledge all gifts received by the Foundation. If you notice any omissions or have any questions, please contact University Advancement. 
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	$500,000 AND ABOVE 
	Janice Neely† 
	$100,000 TO $499,999 
	Don Dunbar Oregon Agriculture Foundation 
	$50,000 TO $99,999 
	Herb and Linda Jolliff 
	$25,000 TO $49,999 
	James and Nancy Case Dixie and Ed Lund Lawrence Koppy Patrick Nearing and Barbara Zukin 
	$10,000 TO $24,999 
	Banner Bank Connected Professional 
	Accountants, LLC Estate of Jennie A. White Estate of Walter & Melva Taylor CRUT Joann Fenton Good Shepherd Community 
	Health Foundation Tom and Emily Insko Lane Farms Inc 
	G. Susanna Ogston Pendleton Foundation Trust Val and G Royes 
	Figure
	$5,000 TO $9,999 
	$5,000 TO $9,999 

	Carey and Heather Allison 
	Mike and Bobbi Allstott 
	Mike and Bobbi Allstott 
	Craig and Kay Braseth 
	Stephen C. Carter 

	James and Ashley Challis 
	Scott Coe 
	Scott Coe 
	Peter Dalke 
	Rema Fleener† 
	Elizabeth and Ray Hyde 
	Lee and Beth Insko 

	Legacy Chrysler Jeep Dodge Ram 
	Les Schwab Tires - La Grande 
	Michael A. Becker, General Contractor, Inc. 
	Mountain West Moving and Storage 
	Anne Olson 
	Anne Olson 

	Frank and Chloe Pearson 
	R. D. Mac, Inc. Red Cross United Drug, Inc. Margerat and Earl Rother Gary and Ina Syphers James and Connie Voelz Kristle and Marvin Wyant 
	$1,000 TO $4,999 
	$1,000 TO $4,999 

	(All gifts of $1,000 and above qualifies 
	donors for inclusion in the President’s 
	Circle.) 
	Circle.) 

	Margaret Anderson Phyllis and Fred Arnst Avista Foundation Audrey Carey and Tom Hippensteele Kevin and Darnel Cassidy Centsable Wealth Management Holly Chason Bud and Elaine Cockrell Susan and Steven Corey John Cuthbert Mike and Sue Daugherty Scott and Susan Davidson Dale and Jackie De Long Energy Trust of Oregon Eton Lane Foundation 
	Margaret Anderson Phyllis and Fred Arnst Avista Foundation Audrey Carey and Tom Hippensteele Kevin and Darnel Cassidy Centsable Wealth Management Holly Chason Bud and Elaine Cockrell Susan and Steven Corey John Cuthbert Mike and Sue Daugherty Scott and Susan Davidson Dale and Jackie De Long Energy Trust of Oregon Eton Lane Foundation 
	Marguerite H. Fitzpatrick Jan and Steve Foltz Mel Frederick Michael and Kelsey Freese Carolyn P. Gilbert Timothy and Linda Gleeson Bob Grable Brent and Kimmi Gunderson Marcy and Sam Haines Linda and Hugo Hartig Alex Hattenhauer Rebecca and Jason Henry Dr. Richard A. Hermens Mary and Chris Horn Dr. Steven D. Hunsaker Ann and Dan Hutchinson Matt and Melanie Insko Michael and Marilyn Jaeger Robert Jenkins Steve Jennings 

	Sect
	Figure
	Figure
	Jeremy Jones Sharon Judycki Holly and John Kerfoot David E. Kerley† Koza Family Dental Care 
	Figure
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	Legacy Chrysler Jeep Dodge Ram Michael and Adelaide Andrews Jennifer and Jarod Teeter Andrew J. Koopman Joseph E. Baird Evan Bryan Terry and Mary Jo Lemon Joan Bates Sharon and Burke Thomason Bud and Lorene Lewis Douglas and Wadonna Bansch Elizabeth and Daniel Burton Corey and Mandi Maag Blue Summit Realty Group Andrea and Doug Waldrop Brian and Sheryl Little Zachary Bartlow Stacy Burton John and D. Gail McAllister Christ and Barbara Bouneff Anji Weissenfluh Pamela Lucas Drinda Battalie and Gordon Battaile 
	  Jacqueline Gijssen Skye Fitzgerald Gary and Sheila Bores Linda and Dale Settje Roberta Borgonovo Nicole L. Christian Oregon Trail Electric Mary and Lowell Forman Doug Briney Judith Seydel Mary Bousquet Mr. and Mrs. Allan Claudson
	  Consumers Cooperative Carolyn Frasier Joe Burgett Scott and Christine Smith John Patterson Lou and Gayla Freter Kathryn and Gary Burke Evelyn Spikes Mark and Stacy Pearson Suzanne and Eric Gilman Molly and Norman Burke Gordon Syphers John and Becky Preston Grande Ronde Hospital Ron and Jolene Burnette Darin Tankersley Jeff and Sue Quinn Grout Farms LLC Tim and Janet Camp Treasure Valley Steel, Inc. - Ontario 
	R.H. Parker/United Foundation Jamie Jo and Anthony Haddock Castle Rock Farming, LLC Ellie and Rick Tymer Riverside Greens Patty and Wayne Herron Dr. Kenneth and Mrs. Ellen Chasteen Jessy Watson Matt  and Lynn Scarfo James and Sue Hottois Shellee Christensen Dale and Lorrine Wordelman Tim and Tressa Seydel Charles and Kathi Karns Jeff and Ginger Church Marie and Mark Wyzgala Rich and Julie Sipe Pat and Joan Kelly City of La Grande Y1 Farms, Inc. Doyle and Connie Slater Ellen Krieger Butch and Marjean Corey D
	 Lisa Ladendorff Norris and Lucy Preyer Craig Humphrey and Linda Patterson Tim Azevedo† Chrystine and Jim Brown Doyle and Candi Connall 
	Patrick and Noreen Regan Mr. Richard D. Hutchison Dustyn Azure Angie Brown Elizabeth and Coop Cooper Doug Reynolds Marjorie Iburg Priscilla Azurin Peg K. Brown Teresa Cooper Cotton Joni and Joel Albright Cindy Stenard Anonymous Jodie Bailey Betty and Howard Brown Thomas Cox 
	$500 TO $999 

	Luke and Tracie Aldrich Charles and Andrea Stine Greg and Valerie Juul Konnie and Don Baines Morgan Brown Michael Craven 
	Figure
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	Gerald L. Crawford† 
	Gerald L. Crawford† 
	An Dinh 

	Chris and Dan Cronin 
	Chris and Dan Cronin 
	Elsie Donaldson 

	Robert Crow 
	Robert Crow 
	Timothy and Loraine Donivan 

	Erin Culley and Morgan Troyer 
	Erin Culley and Morgan Troyer 
	Lynn Duncan and Gary Pierson 

	Jacqueline Cupples 
	Jacqueline Cupples 
	Lori Durrell 

	Melanie Dabulskis 
	Melanie Dabulskis 
	David and Nicki Ebel 

	John and Barbara Dadoly 
	John and Barbara Dadoly 
	Margaret and Ken Edwards 

	Marilyn K. Daggett 
	Marilyn K. Daggett 
	Janet and Richard Enger 

	David Dallas 
	David Dallas 
	Matthew and Selena English 

	Jean M. Damon 
	Jean M. Damon 
	Michael Esquibel 

	Michael J. DeFelice 
	Michael J. DeFelice 
	Shane Essency 

	Danielle DeVall 
	Danielle DeVall 
	Sharon Evoy and Jerome Sebestyen 

	Jacquelyn DeVore 
	Jacquelyn DeVore 
	Farmers Supply Cooperative 

	Mirta Diaz 
	Mirta Diaz 
	Dena Faulstich 

	Kyla and Doug Dickerson 
	Kyla and Doug Dickerson 
	William Felix 
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	PHILANTHROPIC SUPPORT 
	Roberta Fink Sarah Fischer Lorri and Ricky Fischer Mary Lou Fletcher Joanne Flower Madeline Ford Jessica Franks Linda Fratzke Claudia Fredricks Ronda Fritz Evelyn Fuller Jeremy and Lindsy Fullenwider Gary Gardner Lesley Garoutte GCT Land Management Inc. 

	Figure
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